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 1      (HEARING COMMENCED AT 5:08 P.M.)
 2      MR. GAGNON: Hello everyone, I'm going to
 3  try to get things started here.  How this is going
 4  to work is, I'm going to read a statement to start
 5  the commentary.  After I read the statement, we'll
 6  call up the names of the individuals who signed
 7  in, and you can come up here to give your public
 8  comment.
 9      So, welcome everyone.  Today is Wednesday,
10  May 8, 2013, it is 5:08 p.m.  My name is Ron
11  Gagnon.  I'm the Chief of the Rhode Island
12  Department of Environmental Management's Office of
13  Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today
14  is Richard Bianculli from our DEM Legal Services
15  office.  Also, here today is Michael Elliot from
16  United Corps of Engineers.
17      We've gathered at the New Shoreham Town
18  Hall today regarding a public hearing concerning
19  the application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a
20  State of Rhode Island Water Quality Certificate
21  and Dredge Permit in accordance with the
22  Department's Rules and Regulations for Dredging
23  and the Management of Dredge Materials and the
24  State Water Quality Regulations.
25      This hearing is being conducted under the
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 1  authority of the Administrative Procedures Act
 2  located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of
 3  Rhode Island.  In accordance with the Act's
 4  requirements, public notices of this hearing were
 5  published in the Narragansett Times, the South
 6  County Independent and the Block Island Times.
 7  Notice was also posted on the Department's
 8  website.
 9      The purpose of this hearing is to afford
10  interested parties an opportunity to comment on
11  the noted application.  The hearing is not
12  intended as a means of providing a forum for
13  discussion, debating, arguing or otherwise having
14  any dialogue at this time with members of the
15  Department.  We ask that you please be silent when
16  an individual is making his or her comments to let
17  them fully have their time to speak.
18      Full copies of the application have been
19  placed in the public libraries in Narragansett and
20  New Shoreham.  We've also extended the written
21  public comment period to 4 p.m. Wednesday, May
22  22nd, 2013.  The previous public hearing was held
23  at the Narragansett Town Hall on April 24, 2013 at
24      6:30 p.m.
25      The procedure we will use for those who
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 1  wish to speak is as follows:  If you have not
 2  already done so, you can register at our desk over
 3  here.  I will call the speakers in the order of
 4  their registration.  We will allow approximately
 5  five minutes for each individual to make comments
 6  on the record.  When your name is called, please
 7  come to this microphone and speak clearly and
 8  slowly so that the stenographer can accurately
 9  transcribe your comments.  Written comments may
10  also be submitted before or after your
11  presentation of this meeting.
12      Please note that if it's necessary, I will
13  raise a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you have
14  approximately one minute remaining for comments,
15  and at the end of the approximately five-minute
16  period, I'll raise the red cardboard sign -- I'll
17  try not to use those -- we didn't need them in
18  Narragansett but, if necessary, I have them.  We
19  ask that you please respect the time limit so that
20  all comments may be heard.  Thank you for your
21  cooperation.
22      After the time has elapsed for the
23  submission of the written comments, the Department
24  will prepare a written response to all comments
25  and then we will complete the review process and
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 1  issue a final determination.  So, at this time,
 2  we'll start with the registered speakers for the
 3  comments.
 4      MR. BIANCULLI: Before we start, there are
 5  sign-in sheets by the entrance.  We do have a
 6  sign-in sheet just for attendance and another
 7  sign-in sheet if you wish to give public comments,
 8  and please do remember to speak slowly, we do have
 9  a stenographer that's present here tonight that
10  will be transcribing all of the public comments.
11      MR. GAGNON: Our first speaker is Linda
12  Spak.
13      MS. SPAK: Do I address you or the
14  audience?
15      MR. BIANCULLI: You can address the
16  audience.  The stenographer will be transcribing
17  your public comment, so you can speak in whichever
18  direction you feel comfortable.
19      MS. SPAK: My name is Linda Spak.  I
20  would, first of all, thank you for coming here and
21  having a meeting on Block Island.  It's much
22  easier for us to come here than it is to go to the
23  mainland, and my concerns are several.  First of
24  all, our beautiful view from our Southeast
25  Lighthouse, all the wedding pictures that are
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 1  taken there, it might seem like a small thing, but
 2  weddings have developed into quite an industry
 3  here.
 4      Secondly, our very dramatic night skies.
 5  I understand there will be illumination on the
 6  towers, and I think that is a critical thing to be
 7  concerned about, and I've read some comments
 8  recently from some fishermen from Point Judith
 9  that have grave concern over what this building
10  will do to our fishing grounds, and I share their
11  concerns.  I hope that there is serious thought
12  put to that.  Thank you.
13      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  Next speaker is
14  Bill Penn.
15      MR. PENN: Bill Penn.  For the record, I
16  want everyone in this room to know that while I
17  represent members of several community
18  organizations, I stand here before you as an
19  individual, a homeowner for over 30 years, and a
20  year-round resident for 17 years.  I strongly
21  support the Deepwater Wind Project.  It's a
22  significant public -- it's a significant
23  infrastructure improvement to Rhode Island.
24      As a semi-retired person, 40 percent
25  reduction in my monthly electric bill is going to
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 1  be very significant to me.  Also, the bills are
 2  going to be more constant.  They're not going to
 3  fluctuate up and down with the cost of diesel.
 4  It's also the fact that the cable to the mainland
 5  is going to be socialized with the mainland rate
 6  payers.  There's no way that 1,800 customers of
 7  BIPCO could afford a stand-alone cable to the
 8  mainland.
 9      Now, most of you know I'm an
10  environmentalist.  The environmental benefits to
11  this project will significantly reduce the carbon
12  footprints of Block Island.  We will no longer be
13  burning and consuming a million gallons of diesel
14  fuel a year.  The diesels will no longer run 24/7,
15  and will only run if there's an interruption to
16  the cable to the mainland.  This is truly a
17  renewable energy source.  Renewable energy
18  sources, such as this project, are the only way to
19  reverse global warming.
20      We in the U.S. have 4 percent of the world
21  population, but we emit 25 percent of greenhouse
22  gases.  This project is one small step to reduced
23  greenhouse gases and should be applauded for that
24  result.  Also, professionally, I'm an
25  environmental finance person, consultant, and I
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 1  have had a chance to meet several of the
 2  management team both locally and in Providence,
 3  and my professional opinion is that they are very
 4  professional.  So, with that, I would like to
 5  submit my written statement.  Thank you.
 6      MR. BIANCULLI: Folks, just a reminder,
 7  those that are giving public comment today, if you
 8  could please state your name and spell your name
 9  in its entirety so the stenographer can enter that
10  into the record, and just a reminder for folks to
11  turn off their cell phones if you do have them.
12      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Jane and
13  George Emsbo.
14      MS. EMSBO: My name is Jane Emsbo
15  (E-m-s-b-o).  My husband and I, Jorgen and myself,
16  would like to share two things.  We'd like to
17  share a letter that we wrote to the Council
18  members concerning this and, then, we would like
19  to briefly go over a few of the comments we got
20  back from the council members with some
21  information we'd like to share.
22      So, the letter we sent was:  We are so
23  proud to live on an island famous for its
24  continuing commitment to land and environmental
25  preservation.  Let us now be leaders, not laggers,
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 1  to also bring the first U.S. offshore wind farm to
 2  Block Island.  Please vote, yes, to this project.
 3  Change is never easy, but is often critical for
 4  our well-being.  The clock is running down to save
 5  our environment and wind power is one of the
 6  solutions for the future.
 7      The fears expressed by the opponents of
 8  the wind farm must be acknowledged, but they have
 9  been allayed again and again through international
10  research and examples.  Now Block Island has the
11  enormous opportunity to inspire others while
12  reaping economic and environmental benefits
13  ourselves.  We depend on our council to assure
14  this.
15      Now I'm going to talk to some of the
16  points.  We were very fortunate to get two
17  responses from council members with some of their
18  concerns and, very briefly, we're going to go over
19  some of those concerns and we're going to depend
20  on some information.  Most of the information we
21  got from Danish sources on the Internet, and also
22  through a personal phone call Jorgen made to
23  Denmark yesterday.  Jorgen is Danish and that's
24  one reason we're going to quote from Denmark.
25  There is another reason for using Denmark, and
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 1  I'll read, briefly, that Denmark is the country in
 2  the world with the longest experience in this area
 3  of offshore wind farms and wind itself.
 4      The first farm was in 1991, 20 years ago
 5  offshore, and I'm very excited that, right now,
 6  Denmark is using -- wait a minute -- has 28
 7  percent of the electricity produced by wind power,
 8  and the project now is by 2020, they hope to use
 9  50 percent by wind power.  Then, I do have those
10  figures if I come to them quickly about how much
11  of this is from offshore wind farms.
12      Some of the concerns of the council
13  members, I'll read one of the concerns:  Most of
14  the European countries have or are discontinuing
15  permitting projects because of undue hardship
16  placed on abutters' quality of life, general
17  health and well-being.  The first point, as far as
18  discontinuing the projects -- and I have all these
19  resources I'm going to hand to the council members
20  for their perusal.  Right now, as of October 2010,
21  3.16 gigawatts of wind power is operational
22  worldwide.  By 2020, the estimate is, we will have
23  75 gigawatts worldwide with significant
24  contributions from China and the U.S.
25      So, going on to the quality of life
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 1  talking about health, I don't see any reference to
 2  that, not that we've done extensive research.  I
 3  don't think that's too appropriate with an
 4  offshore wind farm.  Well-being, I'd like to read
 5  from an excerpt from a Danish paper, Offstiff
 6  Stelenoff (phonetic) and it's very brief, sounds
 7  familiar.  Everybody complained, holiday cottage
 8  owners, Town Councilors, nature conservation
 9  groups, animal lovers.  1,900 complaints were made
10  about the first offshore wind farms in Denmark.
11  2,000 holiday cottage owners were afraid of having
12  their piece and wonderful sea view spoiled.  We
13  all understand that.
14      It goes on with all the feelings,
15  whatever, and I'll go down to how many years
16  later, I don't know, but there were ten wind
17  turbines that were set up and, now, there was a
18  chairman of these beach villages that were
19  affected by this, and it's a wonderful article, as
20  you can read in full.  Ten years later, the
21  chairman of this committee of the welfare of these
22  beach cottages and houses, and mansions, says:  "I
23  don't know anybody who's bothered by the wind
24  turbine, said so and so, the chairman of the
25  coastal group of 2,000 holiday cottage owners.
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 1      From another municipality in that area,
 2  there's also a more positive area.  It seems the
 3  residents have embraced the wind turbines.  At the
 4  time, holiday owners, beach owners with properties
 5  wanted a tax reduction when it first came out
 6  because they felt that their house values were
 7  going to go down, so they wanted some
 8  compensation.  Today, a real estate agent
 9  specialized in property in that area states that
10  the wind turbines in no way have had a negative
11  impact on the value of holiday cottages, just to
12  put that out.
13      And the next point -- I don't want to run
14  out of time -- the rest of this will be given to
15  the council members, and we thank them for all
16  their hard work on this.
17      MR. EMSBO: It so happens that I graduated
18  pretty much at the same time that the wind
19  adventure for Denmark started 50 years ago, and I
20  have followed this minutely in the first years
21  especially, and all these things that we have
22  listened to here in this room and on this island
23  was debated just like that, but over the first,
24  like, 20 years and then all the negative requests,
25  if you will, completely died out, and now
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 1  everybody is very happy with what is happening.
 2      I have friends that have parts in wind
 3  power in Denmark and, as I said, I think it's five
 4  or six years ago, I stood up in this same room and
 5  I said:  All the issues, all the negative issues
 6  that has been mentioned, short of the visual
 7  problem when you look out over the sea has all
 8  been proven wrong.  The thing is, whether you
 9  think that the windmills are in your way, to enjoy
10  the view or not is very difficult to quantify.
11      So, the only thing that is left is really
12  what it looked like -- and I had it all down --
13  one of the things I would say is a complaint about
14  it's far too expensive, this Deepwater thing and,
15  as I said five years ago in this room, this is one
16  of the things that is very difficult for me to see
17  because it is very, very expensive, but as
18  somebody said to me, yes, but this is America, you
19  know, somehow that was supposed to give an excuse
20  for it.  Whereas, in Denmark, when the Danes got
21  it all together and they started projects like
22  that, supported by the public, it's very
23  socialistic in Denmark, as you know, it -- you
24  were not going to be considered if the power cost
25  out of the wind farm was more than 5 percent
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 1  higher than the run-of-the-mill price, which in
 2  the case of Deepwater, that means that instead of
 3  9 cents or 10 cents a kilowatt, they couldn't
 4  charge more than five percent more than that, and
 5  this is the way that it's been operated since
 6  then.
 7      Also, somebody complains that the lifetime
 8  is not long enough and say that after -- what was
 9  it, ten years or something like that, that the
10  productivity of the turbines was down 30 percent.
11  We have not been able to see where this has been
12  coming from.  I'd better stop.  Okay, there are so
13  many good arguments for starting it, and one of
14  the things we have to look at, of course, is that
15  it would help the local situation.  In the U.S.,
16  as we just heard, are the people that use the most
17  energy in the world by far.  They would be able to
18  do a big reduction in carbon dioxide emission and
19  help with global warming, which is much more
20  serious than is admitted by the people in politics
21  that talk about it; much, much more serious.
22      We have people here on the Island that are
23  very knowledgeable about that, that has described
24  for me what this means with the global warming,
25  and I will just say, take yourself on a trip
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 1  around the country here and see the mountainsides
 2  all over the west and all over the country, and
 3  you will see that whether this project cost $400
 4  million too much, I mean, it's -- it means so much
 5  more to the whole big picture that we must have
 6  money to get it started so that if this becomes
 7  the first, we could hope that it would be
 8  successful and that more things would follow-up.
 9      Denmark is starting their next six
10  offshore parks right now.  It just was announced
11  two weeks ago, and they will use the research that
12  has been going on for, you know, how much are the
13  fish and the birds suffering and how about the
14  noise, et cetera?  They use all these things to
15  compare what has actually happened over time, and
16  somebody says that the fish are going to be going
17  away and, yes, they may go away, they prefer not
18  to stick around at the time that production or
19  rather the installation happens, but once it is
20  installed, you will get more fish than you ever
21  had in most areas with our wind farms.
22      MR. GAGNON: Sir, could I ask you to wrap
23  it up.
24      MR. EMSBO: Okay.  So, I must ask you to
25  think it over if you are thinking of saying, no,
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 1  please change it to, yes.  It's really very
 2  important.  Excuse me for taking so much of your
 3  time.
 4      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  We have about
 5  sixteen speakers remaining, so we'll try to keep
 6  it to five or so minutes, if possible.  Thank you.
 7  Next speaker is Peter Baute.
 8      MR. BAUTE: My name is Peter Baute
 9  (B-a-u-t-e).  First, I want to thank DEM and the
10  Army Corps for being here today.  We appreciate
11  your efforts, and my compliments to DEM for taking
12  the lead in using wind power at its own facilities
13  on the mainland.  I think they're kind of setting
14  a precedent that we could all mimic.
15      I'm a former three-term member of the Town
16  Council and Chair of the Town's Energy Planning
17  Committee, which was responsible for developing a
18  long range energy plan for our community.  My
19  purpose for speaking today is to give you some
20  insight into Island opinion on the Deepwater
21  Project, as well as just a few of my own thoughts.
22      Three years ago the Town Council requested
23  that Roger Williams University conduct a
24  scientific survey to determine whether Block
25  Island residents would support or oppose a wind
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 1  farm off the shores of Block Island.  This survey
 2  was anonymous and voluntary.  It was mailed to all
 3  Block Island residents and voters.  The response
 4  rate was 42 percent for Island voters and 58
 5  percent for non-voting homeowners who are largely
 6  seasonal residents.  Both groups overwhelmingly
 7  are in support.  84 percent of the voters on Block
 8  Island favored the wind farm, 71 percent of the
 9  seasonal residents.
10      These results are similar to those of a
11  recent survey carried out by the Block Island Land
12  Trust.  The disastrous results of the past winter
13  and fall storm give us a graphic example of some
14  of the effects of climate change and provide
15  emphasis to the great importance of limiting
16  carbon emissions to the atmosphere.  Every wind
17  turbine, every solar panel is a step in the right
18  direction.  For Block Island, the elimination of
19  emissions from the power plant is important, and
20  cessation of the noise of the diesel generators
21  will be a blessing.
22      The risks involved in the shipping and the
23  storage of a million gallons of diesel oil are
24  real and need to be avoided.  The dollars saved by
25  Block Island residents, easily as much as 100 to
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 1  $200 a month, and much greater amounts by
 2  businesses will be an enormous benefit to our
 3  Island economy, and the recycling of these dollars
 4  on the Island will be a boost.
 5      Just a couple small remarks about the
 6  environmental effects.  First, at a range of
 7  almost three miles off the Island, there will be
 8  no noise pollution from wind turbines.  Flicker is
 9  a geometric impossibility at that distance.  The
10  fish will appreciate the presence of structure,
11  and as Mr. Emsbo said, there will be more of them
12  rather than less.  Nature will repair whatever
13  disturbance there is to the ocean floor.
14      I urge you to continue the permitting of
15  this project, it will be of great benefit to the
16  people of Block Island and the economy of the
17  state.  It's environmental effects will be
18  positive.  Thank you.
19      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Michael
20  Ballard.
21      MR. BALLARD: Michael Ballard, and I'd
22  like to thank the DEM and the representatives from
23  the Army Corps for coming out and hearing how we
24  feel here on the Island.  Good afternoon to all of
25  you.  As many of you know, I've had a life-long
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 1  love affair with Block Island and have been a
 2  resident for the last -- full time resident for
 3  the last five years.
 4      As a resident, I strongly support this
 5  project, strongly in favor of it.  I had come to
 6  that conclusion knowing that in life not
 7  everything is perfect, and there are aspects of
 8  this that, perhaps, I agree with, are not perfect
 9  but, in my opinion, the overriding chapter is the
10  fact that with this project comes a cable which
11  affects the cost of electricity on Block Island.
12  I'm happy to reduce my electrical cost, but my
13  thinking goes beyond that, and this community has
14  a number of very critical issues facing the
15  viability of it.
16      One of them is the cost of electricity,
17  and I, for one, feel that we need to throw a
18  lifeline to the businesses that operate here on
19  Block Island so that they continue to be a viable
20  operation.  Thank you.
21      MR. GAGNON: Jules Craynock.
22      MR. CRAYNOCK: My name is Jules Craynock
23  (C-r-a-y-n-o-c-k), and I am a year-round resident
24  here on Block Island.  I spent 37 years federal
25  service as a research oceanographer with NOAA, and
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 1  my field of study was anthropological impact and
 2  coastal marine environment, kind of some of the
 3  issues that we run into here.
 4      I chose to live on Block Island because
 5  it's Block Island, and I could have chosen any
 6  place along the East Coast, and I chose Block
 7  Island.  I live up on Sands Pond Road.  I can see
 8  clearly the site where, hopefully, we will see our
 9  wind generators coming up, and I welcome this
10  site.  To me, this is just an amazing leading edge
11  of a way to get to a cleaner energy issue.
12      Block Island is a beautiful Island, but
13  it's not a pristine island.  We are downwind and
14  downstream of major pollutants, nuclear power
15  plants, you name it.  We're a little structure out
16  on the fringes of the North Atlantic, and if we
17  can somehow reduce our own footprint a little bit,
18  it's all to the good.  I have comments that I had
19  made in a previous letter to the Block Island
20  Times, and I will submit those as a written
21  statement that came out on March 16.
22      I found that the comments of people who
23  grew up here is important to listen to the full
24  gamut, so we have different opinions, but I think
25  we are all, all united in how do you make it
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 1  better here on Block Island?  How do you make it a
 2  little easier?  If I look at my property value and
 3  if I look at my view shed, I find myself -- and I
 4  would consider myself to be very narrow minded,
 5  somewhat inconsiderate of people who don't have
 6  that view shed.
 7      So, in fact, it's a small island and we're
 8  all in each other's view shed.  Anyway, I come
 9  from an environment standpoint and, again, I think
10  this is part of a prosperity, a direction for
11  prosperity on Block Island with a limited resource
12  space.  Thank you.
13      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Bud Comeau.
14      MR. COMEAU: My name is Bud Comeau
15  (C-o-m-e-a-u), and I'm here, actually, to read a
16  letter from Sandra and Pat Kelly who are off the
17  Island.  They were fortunate enough to schedule
18  their European vacation before this meeting was
19  scheduled.  I know they had a hell of a time, they
20  flipped a coin and said, which way should we go?
21  Clearly, European first.  Anyway, what it says --
22  and by the way, gentlemen, thank you very much for
23  being here, and I do standup comedy sometimes,
24  too.
25      MR. BIANCULLI: Sorry, we butchered your
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 1  last name.
 2      MR. COMEAU: If I had a quarter for every
 3  time that happened, I wouldn't care what you did
 4  with the electricity on Block Island.  Anyway,
 5  what it says here is:  We are opposed to the
 6  Deepwater Project 1/2 to 3 miles off the coast of
 7  Block Island.  Do not permit this project to
 8  damage forever one of Rhode Island's natural
 9  resources, a resource that can never be replaced.
10  The Mohegan Bluffs are very fragile.  The drilling
11  construction for these massive 600 foot towers 1/2
12  to 3 miles off the coast is unthinkable.
13      It's understandable when Newport, Little
14  Compton, Jamestown and other communities didn't
15  want any part of this venture.  Is there any study
16  that shows what this massive drilling and
17  construction could mean being completed so close
18  to a bluff?  Should we not be protective of our
19  historic Southeast Lighthouse?  Will this massive
20  drilling weaken the bluffs and possibly the
21  Southeast Light?  Much effort and money were
22  extended to move the Southeast Lighthouse probably
23  for the last time.  Do we want to take the chance
24  of moving this historic treasure sooner than the
25  studies have shown?  Detailed environmental and
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 1  construction studies must be completed before
 2  allowing the project to continue.  Protect our
 3  bluffs and waters, protect the Southeast
 4  Lighthouse.  Sincerely, Patrick Kelly and Sandra
 5  Kelly.
 6      I have -- just a thought occurred of my
 7  own on this subject.  I didn't register to speak
 8  only to be a proxy or something, but it does occur
 9  to me that in the 40 years I've been fooling
10  around on Block Island, a fair number of people
11  have viewed this place as sort of a smorgasbord.
12  They've come in, helped themselves, satisfied
13  themselves and left.  I can't say that's what's
14  going to happen with Deepwater Winds, but I'm old
15  enough to be past altruism and have embraced fully
16  cynicism, and the only thing I can say about the
17  whole damn thing is, follow the money.  Thank you.
18      MR. GAGNON: The next speaker is
19  Christopher Warfel.
20      MR. WARFEL: Christopher Warfel
21  (W-a-r-f-e-l).  I'm going to speak to DEM since
22  you probably all know exactly what I'm going to
23  say -- and Michael Elliot.  My name is Christopher
24  Warfel.  I was elected to the Town Council this
25  past year and began service December 3rd of 2012.
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 1  I'm a registered professional engineer with 30
 2  years of experience in the field of energy
 3  utilization and 27 years of experience in utility
 4  generation, renewable energy generation and energy
 5  conservation.
 6      I've been published several times in
 7  issues ranging from the use of wind power to
 8  provide potable water, to industrial financial
 9  behavior for investing in energy efficiency, to
10  administration of the nationally awarded
11  Department of Energy Program to encourage the
12  development of renewal energy technology in grid
13  isolated diesel generated power systems, such as
14  Block Island.  My intention today is to convey to
15  DEM that this project has been misrepresented with
16  respect to its supposed public benefit, and should
17  not go forward.
18      I believe DEM, itself, has made some
19  mistakes in its calculations regarding emission
20  reductions in its submittal to the Rhode Island
21  Public Utilities Commission dated July 20th, 2010.
22  I believe this project is a poor use of the waters
23  under the trust of the State, and it is an
24  economic albatross around the ratepayers of
25  National Grid and Block Island Power Company.
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 1  This project will be an economic windfall to DB
 2  Shaw, one of the hedge funds behind this project,
 3  a company that has been behind similar ventures
 4  and has a poor track record, in my opinion.
 5      I'd like to give a little context to DEM
 6  as to how we got here, in my opinion.  Formerly, I
 7  was a member of the Electric Utility Task Group
 8  for the Town of New Shoreham.  Our task, in
 9  essence, was to see if we could purchase Block
10  Island Power Company in order to form a co-op
11  under the guise of lowering electric rates on the
12  Island.
13      Three years later, we delivered what Mr.
14  McGinnis, Sr., Dr. Gazazza and Dr. Emandi
15  (phonetic), I don't know how to spell his name,
16  sorry.  We delivered their asking price, they then
17  tripled the asking price.  That left us with a
18  very desperate Town Council, which I feel is
19  exactly the situation that companies such as DB
20  Shaw was seeking.  So, our Town Council was
21  desperate, and they grasped at the concept of a
22  cable.
23      Going through the record it is apparent
24  that the Town, even with a $12 million budget, did
25  not allocate financial resources to properly
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 1  analyze this project.  Even when they were told
 2  they incorrectly analyzed the project, the Town
 3  did not, and still has not, conducted the proper
 4  analysis.  Today, we have people referring to the
 5  incorrect analysis as factual.  We just heard some
 6  people refer to a 40 percent reduction in energy.
 7      This was based upon an incorrect
 8  understanding of power contracting.  I'm going to
 9  respond to Mr. Baute's intentions that we had
10  qualified surveys that showed great support for
11  this project.  The survey out of Roger Williams
12  was done by a professor of architecture, including
13  such questions as:  Do you think wind turbines are
14  sexy?  This is not a serious survey.  It was not a
15  serious survey.
16      Also, I would like to point out that
17  electricity, while very expensive on Block Island,
18  is not one of the major cost drivers, or is not
19  the major cost drivers for businesses out here,
20  it's probably number 4, and I don't think the
21  money that is saved from any reduction, supposed
22  reduction in electricity, is necessarily going to
23  stay on this Island, it's going to go where the
24  business owners go.
25      I think DEM indirectly analyzed the power
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 1  production in energy usage of Deepwater Wind and
 2  Block Island Power Company and, hence, the
 3  environmental benefit.  DEM, Deepwater Wind and
 4  the Town of New Shoreham had mixed power and
 5  generation variables together, forgetting or
 6  ignoring that power is instantaneous, while energy
 7  is time dependent.
 8      We challenged Jeff Grybowski, the CEO of
 9  Deepwater to set the record straight, offering to
10  resign from the Town Council if he could prove me
11  wrong.  He declined, calling the intent for
12  clarity as silly and, instead, repeated the same
13  incorrect information.  How does this affect DEM
14  analysis?  It greatly overstates the environmental
15  benefit by ignoring the reality of BIPCO's energy
16  pattern and is incompatible with Deepwater Wind's
17  production.
18      I'll just refer you to this:  Block Island
19  Power Company is a summer peaking utility with a
20  very poor load factor of approximately, annually,
21  29 percent.  The wind energy on Block Island is
22  going to -- if we look at the mathematical
23  function -- most of the time the wind speed -- not
24  most of the time -- 40 percent of the time the
25  wind speed is going to be below the cut-in of
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 1  these wind turbines for the summer.  This also is
 2  -- you know, so we don't get the energy that we
 3  thought we would get.
 4      It doesn't match up with our energy usage
 5  and, in addition, we actually are not buying power
 6  from Deepwater, we're buying it from ISO-New
 7  England and nobody in this Town has done that
 8  calculation.  Let's see, if we look at graphs of
 9  ISO-New England generation, we hit right on their
10  peak.  So, we will be buying the highest cost of
11  electricity in New England, and with our poor load
12  factor, we'll be buying probably the most
13  expensive power in New England.  Again, we don't
14  buy power from Deepwater, we cannot claim
15  environmental benefits from Deepwater, all those
16  benefits are being claimed by National Grid.
17      I do believe there are some problems with
18  your analysis that you've provided to the PUC.
19  They used very old data, and using the most
20  current report from ISO-New England, which is
21  2012, there's been an overstatement, or there will
22  be a reduction of -- there is an error, that is
23  the best way to say it, an error of 50 percent in
24  the nitrous oxide emission.  There's a 91 percent
25  error in the SO2 emissions, and there's a 10
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 1  percent error in the carbon dioxide emissions.
 2      With respect to the benefit to Block
 3  Island Power Company, we found just mistakes,
 4  which meant there was a 76 percent error in NOx
 5  and 89 percent error in SO2, and I could not
 6  determine what the error would be in carbon
 7  dioxide in time for this presentation.  The
 8  ammonia calculation also appears to be very much
 9  an error.  13,210 pounds of ammonia are supposed
10  to be emitted by BIPCO, however, our resources
11  showed that BIPCO only has 670 pounds.  We think
12  the analysis is inaccurately calculating in the
13  slip and the SCR process.
14      It should also be noted that of all the
15  states in New England, Rhode Island has the second
16  lowest emissions, Vermont has the lowest.  So, if
17  you're really worried about the impact in Rhode
18  Island, this is another contributing error to the
19  analysis.  My recommendation to you, to DEM, I
20  know it's not within your purview but it's within
21  the state purview, that instead of taking so much
22  money out of the state economy, transferring it
23  from the mainland ratepayers and turning it to DB
24  Shaw is -- just work with the Town of New Shoreham
25  and other state agencies to develop our own
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 1  indigenous resources.
 2      I did that analysis.  That, coupled with
 3  energy conservation by far is the lowest cost
 4  option for the state and, actually, it's the
 5  lowest cost option for Block Island, and that is
 6  on another graph, which I will just highlight.  My
 7  point that I'd like to make is that we did not do
 8  our homework.  I think mistakes have been made in
 9  the analysis that overstate the benefit of the
10  project.  This project is not what it has been
11  purported to be as an economic benefit to the
12  Island, it's definitely not an economic benefit to
13  the state, and for that amount of money, we could
14  do so much more by developing indigenous resources
15  within Rhode Island.
16      40 percent of every project, in my
17  estimation, the dollars of that project stay
18  within the state, stay with the companies that do
19  it.  What's going to happen here is that almost
20  all the money is going to go to the investors.
21  Thank you.
22      MR. GAGNON: Thank you.  The next speaker
23  is Peter Lasser (sic).
24      MR. GREENMAN: Good evening, everybody.
25  My handwriting is so horrible, I printed out my
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 1  last name, which is Greenman (G-r-e-e-n-m-a-n).  I
 2  am a -- I'm in my 19th full-time year out here,
 3  and Sandy and I are out here for eleven or twelve
 4  full months a year.  I mean, we both are -- I am
 5  speaking for her as well -- entirely in favor of
 6  alternative energy.  I do think that, clearly,
 7  that after all of us here are dead and gone, the
 8  entire area, state, country and throughout
 9  globally, certainly, in China, are going to be
10  very used to wind and solar generation.  I have
11  read Tom Friedman's book, Hot, Flat and Crowded.
12  He is either a one -- or I can't remember, a
13  three-time Pulitzer Prize winner.  He is a
14  journalist for the Block Island -- New York Times.
15  We would do well to have him, isn't that true,
16  Bruce?
17      I have also read a book by Bill McKennon.
18  He is active in this very same genre.  Bill is
19  from Vermont.  I have heard him speak and he, too,
20  is very familiar with what is happening to our
21  world.  All of these engineering details, fiscal
22  details and so on and so forth, they're totally
23  irrelevant.  This world is changing.  His book
24  called, EEARTH, E-E-A-R-T-H, and the reason for
25  that is, is that the earth that all of us here
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 1  grew up in as kids, nobody here will ever see that
 2  again.  That earth is totally gone.  So, it must
 3  be spelled in a different way.
 4      We have, within the last few months
 5  experienced, with Super Storm Sandy -- didn't even
 6  qualify as a hurricane out here -- damage millions
 7  of dollars.  Some of that came from the Feds, some
 8  of it came from the State.  Much of it is coming
 9  right out of our pockets here in the repair of our
10  beach pavilion.  So, anyway, it is a mystery to me
11  how anybody who can read these two books would
12  ever find any fault with wind generation or solar
13  generation.
14      A few years ago the nature conservancy in
15  their wonderful magazine wrote a beautiful article
16  on wind generation, and it made very clear,
17  there's good places to do it and there's bad
18  places to do it.  The best place to do it is the
19  ocean where the winds are more constant and
20  favorable for producible.  As for here in our
21  country, those best sources are the Atlantic Ocean
22  and not the Pacific Ocean, but even though you can
23  generate certainly wonderful electricity from wind
24  generation of the land, it is much less efficient
25  than if it were in the ocean.


Page 34


 1      Financial condition on Deepwater Wind:  I
 2  started to read some of these letters from people
 3  that want to take potshots at Deepwater Wind, and
 4  somebody is going to make a big windfall.  My
 5  attitude is these investors have invested their
 6  own money in this company.  If they make a
 7  windfall, God bless them is my take here.  They
 8  are at enormous risk right now.  Are they going to
 9  make mistakes?  Of course they are.  This is the
10  first time operation for this -- and there are
11  lots of risks involved.  So, are they going to
12  make mistakes, I expect them to.  Are they going
13  to be corrected, I expect them to.  Anything
14  that's this new and this huge, there are going to
15  be bugs and they are going to be worked out.  So,
16  anybody that wants to take -- I was in accounting
17  and financial all my life.  I have no interest in
18  Deepwater Wind's financial statements and so on
19  and so forth.
20      The state has found fit to sit down and
21  write a contract with them and, so, I think all of
22  these potshots are from people, really, that have
23  a problem with the -- what they think is going to
24  be the appearance, the bad appearance of five
25  turbines out at sea.  If this is a problem with
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 1  them, and this is my last point, this is what I
 2  urge you to do:  Just look out here or anywhere
 3  else on the Island.
 4      You want to see something ugly, look at
 5  our electrical and telephone distribution system.
 6  It is the ugliest you could ever want to see.
 7  However, we're so used to it, we've been used to
 8  this since birth and, so, we don't even see it
 9  anymore, but if you really want to see something
10  ugly, go down to Chapel Street and look towards
11  Estes Park and all of this construction of all of
12  these poles, none of which are plumb, or level, or
13  anything else, is just a hobble affront.
14      So, anyway -- and further, I don't find
15  the turbines at all ugly, but if it's appearance
16  that bothers you, just look right outside your
17  door.  Thank you.
18      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Barbara --
19  because I'm going to mess up your last name.
20      MS. MacMULLAN: I guess we all have bad
21  handwriting on Block Island.  My name is Barbara
22  MacMullan (M-a-c-M-u-l-l-a-n).  I also want to
23  say, as Bill Penn did, that I'm a member of the
24  Town Board, the Electric Utility Task Group, but
25  I'm speaking today on behalf of just myself and
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 1  not any groups.  I'd like to speak in favor of
 2  Deepwater Wind Farm, I think it will provide
 3  enormous economic and environmental benefits to
 4  Block Island.  We can quibble about the numbers,
 5  and we can argue about whether it's 10 pounds of
 6  CO2 or 20 pounds of CO2, but the matter of this
 7  will be to reduce the consumption of diesel fuel
 8  on the Island and to substitute that with wind
 9  power from the wind farm.
10      At the same time, our rates will go down.
11  We can argue about whether it will be 20 percent
12  or 40 percent or 60 percent, but the fact is that
13  our rates will go down.  In terms of the impact on
14  the mainland, while the project is expensive and
15  the cost of power is higher than -- from the wind
16  farm is higher than the average cost of power
17  being generated or purchased on the mainland, the
18  wind farm -- the Block Island Wind Farm will
19  provide only a small portion of the total
20  electricity consumed on the mainland.  So, the
21  overall economic impact on mainland Rhode Island
22  will be small.
23      And, finally, I think it will be a
24  tremendous boom to the economy in this Island,
25  which has struggles with high costs on every
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 1  facet.  We just went through with the ferry -- I
 2  think as an Island, we should support the project
 3  and look forward to the benefits that we'll
 4  receive.  Thank you.
 5      MR. GAGNON: Henry DuPont?
 6      MR. DuPONT: Henry DuPont.  I'm a
 7  year-round resident of the Island for all my adult
 8  life.  I served three terms on the Town Council.
 9  I want to thank you guys for coming down here
10  today, it's important to hold these hearings in
11  the places that are most affected.  I'm also a
12  35-year wind energy project consultant and, most
13  recently, I worked for COVEN (phonetic), which is
14  the largest offshore wind energy consulting firm
15  in the world with projects that total over 2,000
16  megawatts.
17      Of course, since we don't have any
18  projects here yet, they're all in Europe, Asia,
19  and places like that.  So, I reviewed the
20  Deepwater Wind Application at the Army Corps of
21  Engineers and to DEM, and I note that the cable
22  runs and the installation procedures, in my
23  opinion, follow offshore wind energy best
24  management procedures, and they've done quite a
25  bit to mitigate the environmental impact of
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 1  installing the cables through directional drilling
 2  and cofferdams and other stuff, of course, and
 3  especially I know that people have been looking at
 4  marine animals and a number of other issues with
 5  regard to installing the structures offshore.  So,
 6  this all -- I believe, the environmental impact of
 7  the actual construction activities have been well
 8  addressed and have been mitigated.
 9      I also note in the big picture that there
10  are significant environmental benefits to Block
11  Island and to the region, as a whole, especially
12  with regard to emissions with diesel fuel
13  transportation risk and also with -- when you live
14  on an island, seawater rises is an important issue
15  and, so, we need to do everything we can in New
16  England and around to embrace forms of energy
17  generation which will not put us underwater in the
18  next few years.
19      Lastly, this project has significant --
20  not only environment but economic impacts to the
21  Island, somewhere in the neighborhood of $2
22  million a year in electrical savings from getting
23  power from the low cost mainland power grid, and
24  that is a significant economic benefit to the
25  Island.  So, thank you again for your time, and I
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 1  appreciate your good review of this project.
 2      MR. GAGNON: Edith Littlefield Blane.
 3      MS. BLANE: I thank you for coming, Mr.
 4  Elliot, who was gracious enough to answer my
 5  letter, and everybody in the room.  I currently
 6  have a different outlook about this project
 7  because I've lived here my entire life, which is
 8  84 years right now, and I'm not entirely convinced
 9  by the studies that have been done and the recent
10  letter from the National Park Service -- which was
11  printed in the Block Island Times -- had one item
12  that was not in there, in the original, which said
13  that an environmental impact statement should be
14  made.
15      Now, we had a report done -- so it was
16  said that Deepwater did a report, an environmental
17  report, which is a lot different than an impact
18  statement, and I'm sure you gentlemen all know
19  that.  When the first survey came out, I was in
20  favor of it and I answered in favor of it, but as
21  time went on and the more I thought about it, I
22  looked at what was going to transpire.  I have no
23  objection to the blades themselves.  I think
24  they're beautiful, I've seen them on the mainland.
25  On the other hand, we're used to the black velvet
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 1  nights of the Mohegan Bluffs and the Southeast
 2  Light, which is historic -- and has been preserved
 3  at great cost emotionally and financially.  I
 4  think to, you know, jeopardize that in any way,
 5  would be hard for me to accept.
 6      I could accept the blades themselves, but
 7  I think the bells, the whistles and the lights,
 8  which we know are going to be on them, because
 9  where are they going to be.  I don't -- I'm not
10  entirely convinced that they have studied
11  thoroughly the fragility of the bluffs.  We are at
12  a slump there.  If I were a property owner along
13  those bluffs, I would really be worried.
14      The other thing that really bothered me in
15  looking at the background and how Governor
16  Carcieri was quoted in the paper as saying that we
17  did not have enough people here to really matter
18  for any kind of objection, and we all know we're a
19  small community and we don't have any political
20  clout because we have no senator or representative
21  who lives on Block Island, and unless you live
22  here, you don't know really what Block Island is
23  like on a twelve-month basis for a lifetime.
24      I know that the pluses are going to be
25  good, and I fear also for the businesses in the
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 1  State of Rhode Island because their electricity is
 2  going to be greatly increased on this project, and
 3  I think that if these were not going to be within
 4  half-a-mile to three miles from Block Island, it
 5  would be a lot easier for me to accept that,
 6  therefore, I would just like to have my objections
 7  noted in the record.  Thank you.
 8      MR. GAGNON: Norris Pike?
 9      MR. PIKE: Good afternoon, my name is
10  Norris Pike, I'm a member of Block Island's Town
11  Council and have been involved with the local
12  politics on the Island for quite a few years.  I
13  was a member of the Utility Task Force at one
14  point and active on the Planning Board of Block
15  Island, both as a member and its chairman.
16      I am also a proud member of Block Island's
17  codfish aristocracy.  My descendants go back to
18  Justin Dodge who came to Block Island to teach the
19  original settlers how to fish.  I started my
20  working career early in life fishing out of Point
21  Judith, and some of our best fishing was around
22  dumping grounds or wreck sites and structure on
23  the bottom that invited fish in to live.  Probably
24  the best spots were around the torpedo's dumping
25  grounds, I caught a few of those, those aren't
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 1  good.
 2      I also visited Denmark when my daughter
 3  was in school in Copenhagen and noticed the beauty
 4  of all of their wind turbines out on their outer
 5  harbor around Copenhagen, the Jutland Peninsula,
 6  and it astounded me, it was awesome.  To me, it
 7  was just beautiful.  I'm sure there's others in
 8  this audience that would disagree to the beauty of
 9  turbines, but I see them sprouting up in Wickford,
10  Providence, Fair Haven.  To me, it's a step in the
11  right direction.
12      I think the bottom line is whether or not
13  we believe that there's a problem with global
14  warming.  I, personally, believe there is.  I've
15  worked outside all my life.  I have scars on my
16  face from skin cancer.  My insurance rates are
17  higher because of skin cancer.  I think the ozone
18  hole over North America is something that most
19  people aren't aware of.  The amount of nitrous
20  oxide spewed out of diesel engines gobble up the
21  ozone on a significant basis.
22      Whatever Block Island can do to offset
23  some of this emission is probably just a small
24  step, but in the long run, I think if everybody
25  takes small steps, we'll get a big step.  They say
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 1  in the next 90 years we're looking at a three to a
 2  six-foot ocean rise due to global warming.  I
 3  don't disbelieve it.  I think there's enough
 4  science out there to be able to put your finger on
 5  it, and it's not our generation.
 6      Nobody sitting in this room is going to
 7  realize any significant change, it's our children
 8  and our grandchildren that are coming along that
 9  we're going to leave our world to, that we need to
10  make changes for.  Can they look back in history
11  and blame us for not doing what we could to offset
12  this problem?  I think DB Shaw is entitled to
13  profit.  They are taking a significant risk with
14  what they're doing.  If they make millions, great,
15  that's what America was built on and will continue
16  to be built on.
17      I think we need to go forward and accept
18  that we need to change the world that we live in.
19  We can no longer continue burning and consuming
20  massive quantities of fossil fuel.  China is
21  taking steps to get into the big picture of wind
22  industry.  The Europeans have been doing it for
23  years, they had to.  The cost of fuel for them was
24  significantly higher than in the states where fuel
25  and water were synonymous, but that's changing.
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 1  $4 a gallon for diesel fuel that we burn to make
 2  electricity with has had a significant economic
 3  impact on Block Island, and if we can change that,
 4  reduce it by 20 percent, 10 percent even, to spill
 5  some of that money back into our economy, I think
 6  the survival rate of old codfish aristocracy, guys
 7  like myself, will be a better thing.  Thank you.
 8      MR. GAGNON: Maggie Delia?
 9      MS. DELIA: Thank you for coming to Block
10  Island.  I'm going to address the room since I've
11  addressed you before in Narragansett.  Maggie
12  Delia (D-e-l-i-a).  I'm sitting here thinking
13  about what can I say to you because when someone
14  speaks, it's not just the words that they say but
15  it's who's listening to them, and a lot of you
16  don't know me, some of you do.  Some of you just
17  know me as someone who doesn't like this project.
18  Some of you know me as a friend.  Some of you know
19  me as a part of your community.  I am not an
20  expert in wind energy, though, I know more about
21  wind energy more than I ever thought I would know
22  in this lifetime.  What I am an expert in is being
23  on the ground upfront and personal with this
24  project since 2009.
25      I've seen things that I thought I would
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 1  never see.  We read about things in the newspaper
 2  about our government.  Well, in Rhode Island, it's
 3  as bad as you might think it is in your worst
 4  dreams.  Not that there aren't some good people
 5  out there because I've met some extraordinarily
 6  great people with great integrity, but that's not
 7  the business, as usual, in government.
 8      What has me working on this day after day
 9  is because I really do care about the future for
10  our children and our grandchildren, and I don't
11  think that future is going to get fixed by the
12  same people who messed it up to begin with.  Who
13  Deepwater Wind is, is, a hedge fund.  They were
14  introduced tonight as an LLC.  An LLC is a paper
15  company, it has no assets.  If we have 660-foot
16  wind turbines out in our ocean and something goes
17  wrong with them, there is no way to fix them.  If
18  lightening strikes these things and they are
19  burning, there aren't any 660 -- well, maybe it's
20  only 400 feet because the blades -- you don't have
21  to go up to the blades, you go to NSL.  There even
22  aren't any vehicles, no boats, no nothing to get
23  up to 400 feet to fix these things when they're on
24  fire, they will just be on fire until they burn
25  out, and the thing I want to say to you is,
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 1  really, take this seriously, you know, and I might
 2  say some really stupid things here but they're
 3  real things, like logical things.
 4      Like, when you've been to that great
 5  restaurant and you really love -- because I worry
 6  about tourism here, too -- when you go to that
 7  great restaurant that's really cute and small, and
 8  they have so many people that they change and they
 9  make it bigger, and then it's not the same
10  restaurant and you don't want to go there anymore.
11  This is not going to be the same Island having
12  660-foot turbines hanging over it.  If I just do
13  that to you right now, that's kind of dominating,
14  you know.  That's what it's like to be in the
15  presence of something that tall.
16      I screwed up a long time ago when I didn't
17  know and didn't care about -- and it's not that I
18  didn't care, it's just really that I didn't know
19  the impact of the electricity rate on this Island,
20  because had I known then, I don't think we'd be in
21  this shape right now talking about this, I think
22  something different would have happened, and we
23  would be insured that this Island was the same
24  beautiful unique place that it is right now.
25      Wind energy is not good renewable energy.
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 1  I will work on having electricity go down on this
 2  Island, you can count on me for that, because I've
 3  learned my lesson.  I've been working for almost
 4  five years to not have this happen because I
 5  screwed up and didn't know about the electricity
 6  rates and the impact that it had on everyone,
 7  which was the big opening for Deepwater Wind to
 8  come to this Island and say we're going to fix
 9  everything for you, but I'll tell you something,
10  Deepwater Wind is a hedge fund.  They are
11  lobbyists, and our corporations and our government
12  work together to make sure that they get what they
13  want.
14      When I hear tonight that people say it's
15  only a little bit of money for the mainland, it's
16  not a little bit of money for people.  Everything
17  is meaningful for people that don't have a lot of
18  money.  It's a half-a-billion dollars over market
19  for this energy.  I don't see how you can justify
20  that.  I listen to fishermen in Narragansett
21  because I've been in Narragansett now for the past
22  few months listening to that community, and this
23  cable will go directly through their winter
24  flounder breeding grounds, breeding grounds that
25  they haven't been able to fish for a number of
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 1  years that are now opened up and they said, well,
 2  the cable will go through there and it will, you
 3  know, destroy your eggs and larvae but, you know,
 4  that's a little something that we have to give up.
 5  Well, you're going to pay more for this than over
 6  market, but that's a little something that we have
 7  to give up.
 8      Well, you're going to have, you know,
 9  poles and substations and big turbines, and that's
10  a little something we just have to give up, and I
11  say there's something possible that doesn't have
12  to be, that we're all working on different sides,
13  because I'm for renewable energy.  I'm an
14  environmentalist my entire life, actively for the
15  past, you know, thirty years.  I put my money
16  where my mouth is about that.  I give a lot of
17  money to environmental groups, and I do a lot of
18  work with them.
19      There's so much commitment in this room.
20  People who are for renewable energy getting the
21  electric rate down, you know, doing the right
22  thing for this Island, keeping the Island, you
23  know, the way that it is.  I am for that, too.
24  Deepwater Winds and the hedge fund, their job is
25  to make money.  Governor Carcieri pushed this
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 1  thing through.
 2      If you want to find out about that, talk
 3  to, you know, your commissioners at the PUC.  They
 4  got more pressure to put that thing through than
 5  anything they've ever seen before and when they
 6  turned it down, I was at the State House and
 7  watched Deepwater Winds write the new piece of
 8  legislation that was foolproof, that no one could
 9  deny.
10      Narragansett just suspended negotiations
11  with Deepwater Wind for the landfall.  They did
12  that because a new Town Council member there said
13  he couldn't stand how much back room conversations
14  there were.  He wanted a public transparent
15  process, and he wanted time on their own to do the
16  research they needed to find out if it was a good
17  project.  Not that they would just listen to
18  Deepwater Wind about whether or not it was a good
19  project.  He just, you know, he held up, you know,
20  a huge stack of paper he just got through Docket
21  4111, and he still has to get through the next
22  docket, but he's serious about the impact that
23  this thing is going to have on their town.
24      We need to get serious about the impact on
25  this town.  Whether you're for it or against it, I
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 1  can find all the studies in the world that will
 2  prove my points, and if you are for it, you can
 3  find all the studies in the world that are for
 4  your points.  You have got to talk to the real
 5  people who are living with these wind turbines.
 6  You have to look at the real numbers.  The 40
 7  percent output of these wind turbines is not
 8  reality that's happening, it's 25 percent.
 9      In Scotland, they just spent $2 million.
10  They gave $2 million to wind farms to shut down
11  for the day because they were getting too much
12  energy at National Grid in Scotland, and how they
13  worked that out is, they didn't turn down other
14  sources of energy because they're too hard and
15  they use too much energy to go up and down, so
16  they just turned off 13 wind farms and paid them
17  $2 million.
18      I believe we really want the right thing.
19  Our government doesn't necessarily do the right
20  thing, and we're, most of us, old enough in here
21  to know that something that might look like it can
22  help us has many, many drawbacks.  Like, you know,
23  sometimes I think I'm listening to Saturday Night
24  Live about, you know, we can fix your fungus on
25  your toenails only you might die, you might have
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 1  seizures, you know, it's like all of those things.
 2  There are really some drawbacks to this.
 3      So, I ask you to listen to me like a
 4  member of your community because that's who I
 5  consider myself to be.  I know I'm a summer person
 6  for some of you.  I know I'm an NIMBY for some of
 7  you.  I know some of you think all I care about is
 8  my view.  I know some of you think I really care
 9  dearly about, you know, the future.  However, you
10  listen to me, I am committed to being in a
11  relationship in communication with you about this,
12  and there's lots and lots that I know about this,
13  and I ask you to please call on me.  Thank you.
14      MR. GAGNON: I need some help with this
15  one.  I think the initials are T. R. --
16      MR. DOYLE: Doyle.  Tom Doyle.  Most of
17  you know me, I've had a home on the Island for 23
18  years, and I have lived here full-time since 2007.
19  I would like to reiterate the facts echoed by the
20  previous speakers to the DEM and the Army Corps of
21  Engineers for coming and listening to us, both the
22  pros and cons.
23      As most of you know, I'm against the
24  deepwater demonstration project.  I jotted down
25  seven -- very brief, seven brief reasons why I'm
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 1  against it.  First of all, the procedure to which
 2  several previous speakers have alluded, Little
 3  Compton turned it down, Jamestown turned it down
 4  and then we have the Deepwater Demonstration
 5  Project on Block Island, and most people have no
 6  awareness that that's what was going on.
 7      My second reason is the wanted BIRA
 8  survey.  As Mark Twain said, "There are lives,
 9  there are damn lives, and there are statistics."
10  This is an excellent example of irresponsible
11  statistics.  I stated very briefly, and I know
12  good people disagree, I'm not saying those who
13  quote the survey are evil, and I am good.  I'm
14  just pointing this out.
15      There were many marginal comments to that
16  survey which qualified the opinion that we are in
17  favor of wind farm.  For example, people who are
18  in favor of a wind farm are far enough away that
19  they couldn't see it, et cetera, et cetera.  Those
20  comments were never published although, full
21  disclosure, the BIRA Board asked Dr. Papalitas
22  (phonetic), who lead the survey, to publish those
23  things and they were never published.  The
24  mysteries of science.
25      My third reason, which has also been
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 1  alluded to was the override of the Public
 2  Utilities Commission or PUC.  They thought that
 3  the electricity generated would be too expensive,
 4  and I think they were right, I'll leave that up to
 5  you.
 6      The fourth reason is there's a need for a
 7  cable.  However, it's very interesting that the
 8  cost for the cable, if you look at it, has jumped
 9  up and down, whereas, the consumer price index has
10  not.  Now, you hear about the price of copper,
11  that's what driving it up, the cost of labor, that
12  may all be so but that, really, has not been
13  investigated, at least I don't think it has.
14      My fifth reason, I am not a -- "Not In My
15  Backyard Person," I won't see the windmills.  I'm
16  not opposed to them.  In fact, I'm not opposed to
17  alternative energy.  I think it's a wonderful
18  idea, I'm just opposed to this version of
19  alternative energy.  However, one must note that
20  it's very easy to say, if you're not looking at
21  them, "Well, I think they're beautiful structural
22  entities," but you're not looking at them.  That
23  should be left to the people that look at them.
24      Part of this is that we're giving up our
25  view, and we'll be giving up some other things and
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 1  we have gotten very little in return.  In fact,
 2  many of us feel we've been rolled by Deepwater
 3  Wind.  For example, we've talked about burying our
 4  electrical wires.  Why couldn't that be done?
 5  And, once again, I'm a capitalist.  I think it's
 6  the worst best system we have.  The other systems
 7  don't work.  Ours works.  However, there is an
 8  issue of fairness, and as long someone has a lot
 9  of cash, they either have to give it -- which they
10  usually don't -- but you have to be smart enough
11  to take it away from them and we haven't done
12  that.
13      My sixth reason is the -- talk about
14  energy bills.  The projections are 20 to 40
15  percent, and this is a good thing.  However, no
16  one has mentioned the escalator clause that
17  National Grid has.  If the escalator clause works
18  and if inflation kicks in, God forbid.  So far we
19  don't have any inflation, but we could well end up
20  spending as much or more for energy than we are
21  now.  There's something to be considered.
22      Lastly, we hear a lot of talk about this
23  is going to be -- the environment is going to be
24  clean, our grandchildren, et cetera, will live in
25  a pollution-free environment, that's a losery.  I,
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 1  like you, I would love to see a cleaner
 2  environment, and I would do everything in my power
 3  to make that so, but practicality tells us that
 4  we're going to be dependent on fossil fuels for
 5  the foreseeable future.  Coal, oil, gas won't go
 6  away.  When the wind turbines shut down, the
 7  diesel generators pick up, and they're not running
 8  on sea algae, they're running on fossil fuel.  You
 9  all know that.  As the man said, I digress.
10      And, lastly, Governor Carcieri and his
11  group when they propounded this, they talked a lot
12  about jobs in Rhode Island, it would bring jobs to
13  Rhode Island in the depressed economy.  These are
14  all laudable ideas, and I am not mocking them,
15  however, the latest evidence indicates that those
16  jobs are not forthcoming.  Thank you.
17      MR. BIANCULLI: Folks.  Before we announce
18  the next speaker, if those of you that are
19  standing, if you wish to come in, there are a few
20  seats up here, you can sit up here.  We're just
21  visitors to this room today, and if you do wish to
22  sign in, there's still a sign-in sheet for giving
23  public comments over there as soon as you enter
24  the room.
25      MR. GAGNON: Our next speaker is Millie
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 1  McGinnis.
 2      MS. McGINNIS: Hi, my name is Millie
 3  McGinnis (M-c-G-i-n-n-i-s).  I'm going to speak
 4  very briefly this afternoon.  I'm going to then
 5  excuse myself to be with my family, but I live
 6  here and I work here year-round, and I just want
 7  to say that I support this project with a big warm
 8  heart for it.  I look forward to it going forward.
 9  I'm hoping that the permitting process will
10  continue.
11      It's a good thing for Block Island
12  environmentally and economically.  I feel for
13  Rhode Island, for the economic development
14  potential it brings.  It's a good thing for Rhode
15  Island.  I see it as a good thing for the nation,
16  for some innovation and technology, and I
17  certainly think it's a great thing, so, bring it
18  on.  Thank you.
19      MR. GAGNON: Rob Gilpin?
20      MR. GILPIN: Thank you.  I would just like
21  to say that I support this project.  I've watched
22  it from the beginning and I think you really need
23  to start at the beginning and how it started, and
24  it was the governor and the state that put in an
25  RFP, and the first proposal that I saw showed 130
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 1  wind turbines all around Block Island.  Now, I
 2  opposed that, I didn't think it was feasible, and
 3  then it was Deepwater, this contractor that came
 4  forward and said, we don't think you ought to do
 5  that.  We'd like to see six to eight around Block
 6  Island and then move the bulk of them offshore,
 7  which is more of a proposal that I could support.
 8      I've been involved with Deepwater.  I
 9  monitor their med (sic) equipment while I was on
10  the Island, and I have lived here for 35 years,
11  year-round.  The wind blows out here.  You have to
12  put the turbines where the wind is, and I
13  supported the governor and the legislature.
14  They're not only thinking of Block Island, this is
15  an opportunity to bring offshore wind to Rhode
16  Island.  Realizing that this country doesn't have
17  the infrastructure, they had to start with baby
18  steps.
19      I've been to Quonset point for years, it's
20  been well underdeveloped, and this is a perfect
21  opportunity to put Rhode Island in the forefront
22  of developing offshore wind on the East Coast.
23  Now, that's forward thinking, in my mind.  I live
24  on Mohegan Trail, I'm going to have to look at
25  them.  It's a risk I'm willing to take.  The power
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 1  bills really don't affect me.  I conserve, but I
 2  know there's a lot of people who are elderly that
 3  their power bill in the summer can be seven or
 4  $800 a month.
 5      Currently, I've been on the Planning Board
 6  for ten years, and I served on the Zoning Board
 7  one, and the North Light Commission for over 20.
 8  So, I've been on the other side of the table, and
 9  the only thing I request of you is, take the
10  emotion out of it and examine the record.  All the
11  information is there.  You can debate the benefits
12  until the cows come home, but the bottom line is,
13  I think it's a benefit for this community and for
14  the State of Rhode Island.
15      I did read the comments from the Park
16  Service on the Southeast Light and the impact, and
17  I did meet with Bill Bulger and Marianne Abacus
18  (phonetic) when she came to the Island to do the
19  assessment, and I was just curious on what
20  criteria do you evaluate this?  She looked at me
21  and said, there is none.  So, my point is, is
22  whether it's going to have an impact?  Obviously,
23  yes, but I ask you to consider this one thing:
24  Lighthouses were never enamored the way they are
25  today.  They were essentially utility structures,
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 1  not unlike wind turbines.
 2      When they were built, personally, for the
 3  North Light, they built four lighthouses in 38
 4  years because they just couldn't find the right
 5  site and, historically, they were built and they
 6  knew when they built the Southeast Light that it
 7  would have to be moved some day, or they would
 8  demolish it.  So, you've got to look at the
 9  historic value in that context.  I'm also aware
10  that the Coast Guard is planning to remove Cape
11  Lookouts First Order Lens and, in my opinion, that
12  will have more of an impact on the historic
13  Southeast Light than the wind turbines that are
14  three miles away.  Thank you.
15      MR. GAGNON: Sean McGarry?
16      MR. McGARRY: My name is Sean McGarry
17  M-c-G-a-r-r-y.  Good evening, and thank you for
18  coming to Block Island, Mr. Elliot, for being
19  proactive in getting a jump start on your
20  hearings.  My name is Sean McGarry, I'm a member
21  of the New Shoreham Town Council.  I am also
22  Chairman of the Democratic Town Committee, and I
23  want to talk briefly about why I'm opposed to the
24  overall project and, then, I want to focus on what
25  this hearing is really about.
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 1      Of course the visual impact and the
 2  quality of life is going to be greatly impacted
 3  for those of us who have lived here a great
 4  portion of our lives.  My family originally
 5  settled here in 1919.  I have two boys in the
 6  school and they represent the fifth generation of
 7  McGarrys here on the Island, and their quality of
 8  life is going to be greatly impacted by this.
 9  They'll never be able to know the pristine quality
10  of our vista that I was able to experience, that
11  four generations ahead of me were able to
12  experience and, hopefully, that my children will
13  some day be able to experience.
14      There's going to be a great impact on
15  tourism.  People say people are going to come to
16  see this.  Well, they might come and say, hey,
17  let's go check out and see what these fools did
18  over there because they really made a mess out of
19  that, but that's going to die out because what's
20  going to happen is, we're going to kill what is so
21  special and unique about our geographic isolation,
22  our unspoiled beauty.
23      This is going to represent
24  industrialization on a large scale in a very rural
25  isolated community that I'm sure you've enjoyed
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 1  seeing as you walked here or drove here, but
 2  moving forward -- oh, just briefly about the cost
 3  of electricity.  My health insurance is about
 4  $1,600 a month.  My electric bill in a year is
 5  about $1,600 a month.  So, if you want to do
 6  something for me, help me with my health insurance
 7  and not my electrical bill, but the reason for
 8  this hearing is the dredge application.
 9      Specifically, the application at this
10  point is incomplete.  I mean, they say that
11  they're going to land the cable in Narragansett,
12  but there's no agreement to land the cable in
13  Narragansett.  So, I don't understand why the
14  hearing would proceed anyway.  If they have to
15  change that location then, I guess, we would redo
16  this hearing again, and my hope is that you would
17  come back and we'd talk about the other location
18  because it would be very great, because if we were
19  to go to Charlestown, then we would land on West
20  Beach or Coast Guard Road.  I mean, everything
21  would change, all the dynamics.  Essentially, the
22  process should not have even started yet.
23      Now, why did they choose beaches as
24  landing areas for this cable?  The reason is
25  because there's an immense amount of equipment and
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 1  excavation, and demolition and destruction that's
 2  going to happen with this process:  The building
 3  of the cofferdams, the 40 acres of sea floor
 4  disturbance.  I like to call it sea floor
 5  destruction, but an immense, immense amount.
 6      So, they choose beaches because they can
 7  get the machinery in there and minimize the amount
 8  of impact, but there's going to be an enormous
 9  amount of impact.  There are a lot of issues that
10  are going to continue to be identified that aren't
11  identified yet.
12      We don't really understand what the impact
13  on the fishing stock is going to be, what the
14  issues with tidal -- or people talk about driving
15  the pilings and what effect that's going to have
16  on the bluffs.  You know, I can only imagine
17  driving a piling two and three quarter miles off
18  shore on our fragile bluffs, you know.  I can see
19  chunks of that falling off with that vibration,
20  maybe, I don't know, we don't know.  So, there
21  must be an environmental impact study to determine
22  not only the dredging impacts but the impacts of
23  the overall project.  So, I ask you to please,
24  please study those impacts thoroughly.
25      The public process for this has been
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 1  flawed from the start.  Here, on Block Island,
 2  there were never any public hearings.  We never
 3  had the opportunity to come and speak in front of
 4  the then Town Council, we weren't offered that
 5  opportunity.  The Public Utility Commission came
 6  out here for the first time and listened to us,
 7  and the next thing they did is they denied the
 8  Power Purchase Agreement with Deepwater Wind and
 9  then like people said, the legislature in their
10  infinite wisdom decided to legislate out the
11  people that were designated to protect us.
12      I'm looking to you to protect us as well
13  with our natural resources of our ocean floor and
14  our beaches and I hope that you don't, in turn,
15  get legislated out.  At this hearing today, this
16  time of the year there's only 25 percent of the
17  people that live here on the Island.  So, if this
18  were a month later, we would have had to have been
19  at the school because we would have been out far
20  into the street.
21      In a day like today -- and there are many
22  more to come like this, there would be no
23  electricity being generated by wind turbines.
24  What you would have is five competing foghorns,
25  not the tweeting of the birds but the five
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 1  foghorns fighting, and ten flashing lights.
 2  There's a lot of debate about what turbines do,
 3  whether there's positives or negatives.  One thing
 4  I will tell you that they do for certain is they
 5  divide communities.  This community is divided.
 6  The damage has already been done.  Thank you again
 7  for coming.
 8      MR. GAGNON: Doreen Napoleone.
 9      MS. NAPOLEONE: Hello, my name is Doreen
10  Napoleone (N-a-p-o-l-e-o-n-e).  I'd like to thank
11  the DEM and Army Corps for hearing our comments,
12  and everybody here.  I know this is a very
13  difficult topic, and I have many friends in the
14  room that we don't see eye-to-eye on this topic
15  and I am going to focus, I think, my comments
16  today on the environmental side since that is the
17  purpose of this hearing.
18      I realize this isn't a perfect project and
19  there's probably much about it that could be
20  improved, but I am for the wind turbines.  I was
21  very saddened to see the full page in our paper
22  this past week from a New Jersey-based
23  non-for-profit firm called Beautiful Block Island,
24  Inc. that was urging us to deny this project and
25  say no to it because of the birds and the fish,
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 1  and the lighthouse and the beauty of our Island.
 2      In that focus of the environment and the
 3  issues, I think it's so important to stress to
 4  everyone, and I know many of us know this, but
 5  there's overwhelming consensus among the
 6  scientific community that our planet is warming,
 7  the Arctic ice is melting, the sea levels are
 8  rising and man-made greenhouse gas and carbon
 9  dioxide such is that, that our power plant
10  produces is causing that problem.  So, for us to
11  talk about protecting our birds and our fish, and
12  our Island by burying our heads in the sand and
13  not addressing the problem head-on is very sad to
14  me.
15      I looked at our beaches after our storms
16  this winter, and our fish and our birds are very
17  damaged, and we need to be looking forward into
18  the future and what is there -- I don't have
19  children, but for the future generations to come
20  here.  I think that the offshore wind project is
21  an opportunity for this beautiful place to be a
22  leader, to lead and clean alternative energy in a
23  project that is not perfect, and I would encourage
24  all of you in the room that know all of the things
25  wrong with it to use that information to making it
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 1  a better project versus stopping the project.
 2      I feel like your comments about it being
 3  industrialized, we have a power plant in the
 4  middle of our Island, how much more industrial
 5  could that be?  We have a gigantic cell tower in
 6  the middle of our Island, those things are very
 7  industrial.  So I think we really need to sort of
 8  dwell and reflect on some of those comments, and I
 9  do feel that this project is not permanent.
10      Yes, we'll have some lights out there and
11  there will be some foghorns, but we talk about
12  this being turbines that are here for 20 years,
13  not a nuclear plant here forever, and 20 years
14  from now, people's grandchildren, maybe we'll see
15  the Southeast Light, maybe it will be there
16  because we won't have the super storms.  I know
17  it's a little project, a small impact to climate
18  change, but I feel it's important that we be
19  leaders in that process.  Thank you.
20      MR. GAGNON: Dick Martin?
21      MR. MARTIN: Dick Martin (M-a-r-t-i-n),
22  previous Town Council for the last six years.
23  I've worked at the Block Island Power Company for
24  32 years, still working there.  I'm not a
25  millionaire.  I made that very clear at the last
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 1  PUC meeting, I'm not, I wish I was.  I wish I was
 2  wealthy, as much as a lot of people in this room.
 3  I do respect a lot of you in this room for
 4  everything that you do say.
 5      I have a lot of issues, but I know when I
 6  moved to this Island and when I began to work at
 7  the Block Island Power Company, there was talk of
 8  the cable.  For 32 fricking years I've heard that
 9  that's what we need, is, a cable.  Franklin Renz
10  couldn't do it.  The previous owners, Mr.
11  McGinnis, Gerry Edwards and Dr. Gazazza, excuse
12  me, they couldn't do it.  They need help.  There's
13  only 2,000 customers out here, roughly, we can't
14  do it alone.  This was my way that I felt six
15  years ago or seven years almost now, when I went
16  on the council.  This is my way of trying to get a
17  cable.
18      I know it went from eight windmills down
19  to six to five, or whatever.  Who knows where it
20  will go before it's done, we're not there yet.  It
21  might go to three, who knows, but the cable is
22  what is more important to me than anything.  I
23  think it's more important to the Island.  That's
24  what has divided us.  Yes, we've had a civil war.
25  We've had a lot of arguments at our dinner tables,
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 1  whether it's in-laws, outlaws, or whatever you
 2  want to say, neighbors and, hopefully, we'll be
 3  friends after it's all over, still, but we have
 4  had the discussions and it's not being
 5  blind-sided, we all know what's going on.
 6      I am not an engineer, I do not know the
 7  answers, but I do know that I have seen a lot of
 8  businesses and a lot of people come and go because
 9  of electricity bills.  I've heard tonight that
10  it's the fourth level, wow.  If you were ever
11  around the first of the month and you heard the
12  electric bills come out, "This can't be my
13  electric bill, it must be somebody else's because
14  I couldn't do that."  Well, I don't get discounts
15  on my electric bills either.  In the summertime,
16  they're outrageous.
17      I talk to my family on the mainland.  I
18  wish that each and every one of you all that come
19  here tonight would call up every month and ask
20  what the electric rate was and compare it to your
21  electric and find out how much it would be, and
22  you'd understand where we said stand, but I am for
23  this project.  I'm not sure if it will go all the
24  way through, but I do know we need this cable, and
25  if we don't get this cable, damn it, I really hope
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 1  that each and every one of you that have fought
 2  this project stand up and get us a cable, and that
 3  should be a promise that we have before this is
 4  over, because we do need this cable, bad, this
 5  Island does.
 6      If you've ever owned a business on this
 7  Island -- I have not run a business -- but I've
 8  heard and seen a lot of them come and go, and I
 9  don't know how some of these people stay, but if
10  you go out to dinner here, it cost you $125 for
11  two people to go out and not have booze -- God
12  forbid if you need booze because it's going to be
13  more -- but $125 for a meal here is going to be a
14  lot more than you would have gotten from the
15  mainland, and that's my point, is, that we do live
16  here, and I live here 365 days a year.
17      I don't take vacations, very seldom.  I
18  only go off if it's a medical problem or if it's
19  something in the family.  So, this is where I do
20  still take my vacations.  I live here 365 days a
21  year, 32 years I've been here.  I want to thank
22  you all for coming, and I hope it's not wasting
23  your time, and I hope you're not wasting our time
24  and that you're listening to each and every one of
25  us.  Thank you.
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 1      MR. GAGNON: The next speaker is Mya
 2  Velvenan Wilson.
 3      MS. WILSON: I've written a poem about the
 4  wind turbines and what I think about them:
 5  Our heroes of the future need permission to
 6  come and stay.  They love the water like some of
 7  us, or most of us.  They are giants.  The wind is
 8  their horses.  They only spin, they don't hurt
 9  anybody.  Our heroes of the future, blue and
10  white, white more than gray.  Their names are wind
11  turbines.
12      MR. GAGNON: Peter Saxon.
13      MR. SAXSON: I want to reiterate what Dick
14  Martin said.  That is what this is all about, the
15  cables to the mainland.  We need it for
16  electricity, we need it for broadband.  We can get
17  it if it were a card (phonetic), but if you keep
18  pushing off Providence, they eventually will
19  capitulate, we can do it.  What we don't need is
20  an experimental project on Block Island.
21      This wind farm is called a demonstration
22  project.  Why?  Because they have to demonstrate
23  that it's feasible to build wind turbines off
24  Block Island and operate them.  Why?  Because
25  there's a chance you can't maintain those wind
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 1  turbines.  There's a chance they're not
 2  economically feasible.  There's a chance this is a
 3  100 percent boondoggle, which will result in five
 4  rusting wind turbines with no one to take them
 5  down.
 6      Instead of spending a fortune on building
 7  an experimental project off Block Island and
 8  ruining what many people feel is a great vista,
 9  what we should be doing is getting the damn cable
10  to the mainland and focusing our energy to do
11  that, not on an experimental project which could
12  fail.  I asked the President, I think it was Mr.
13  Rich (sic) years ago:  "What would happen if a
14  hurricane with 120 mile-an-hour wind hits those
15  turbines?"  He said, "Well, we have computer
16  simulations to show they'd be fine."  I said, "You
17  have computer simulations to show they'd be fine,"
18  that's as good as the data that goes in.
19  Computers never go wrong, right?  Nothing can go
20  wrong, nothing can go wrong.
21      What happens if these turbines, because of
22  the turbulence below and the winds above crack,
23  bend or fail, who's going to fix them; you, me?
24  Who's going to pay for it, you?  That's for sure.
25  Who's going to take them down, not Deepwater,
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 1  they'll be gone, you'll pay for that, and we'll
 2  have turbine reef out there with five rusting wind
 3  turbines.  That's why I'm opposed.
 4      MR. GAGNON: Fred Leeder?
 5      MR. LEEDER: Good evening, Fred Leeder.  I
 6  came to this Island to work for the summer 30
 7  years ago, I've been here ever since.  I came out
 8  here with a duffle bag full of clothes and a
 9  couple of milk crates full of books.  Since then,
10  part of the lesson is living within one's means.
11  You've all seen -- well, most of you have seen the
12  crappy cars I drive, I string them along as long
13  as I can.
14      You know, as far as introduction, if you
15  don't know me and my crappy cars or remember me
16  from the post office, maybe you should.  From
17  these extremely humble beginnings, I was able to
18  acquire some property and build my own home,
19  literally built it myself.  I recognize a lot of
20  people in here who actually helped me pound nails,
21  you know, living within your needs.
22      I'm off the grid, so I'm going to say I
23  don't have a dog in this fight because I don't get
24  electric bills.  In fact, when I worked at the
25  post office, that was the best part of my job, is
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 1  every month delivering the electric bills because
 2  I didn't get one again, but I heard people crying
 3  in the lobby of the outrageous bills, and during
 4  my term as postmaster, we put solar on the post
 5  office.  So, my alternative energy credentials are
 6  pretty good.
 7      Alternative energy works.  You've got to
 8  look at the pig picture.  We've got to do
 9  something as a country, as a society, as a world.
10  We cannot go on doing what we're doing, it's not
11  working.  In 200 years since the industrial
12  revolution just -- pollution, you can't see it,
13  your vistas that everybody is raving about just
14  aren't there.  Traveling national parks a few
15  years ago, I think it was Bryce Canyon, they
16  always have the wonderful displays they do and
17  usually they'll have something that shows you
18  which mountain range you're looking at, what's
19  over here, what's over there.
20      They had a display pointing out what you
21  used to be able to see before the smog from the
22  West Coast cut down the visibility.  You know, the
23  consumption, the waste and the pollution, just the
24  arrogance of our society, in general, is shameful.
25  We're behind Europe.  They can make us look like
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 1  fools when it comes to energy conservation,
 2  alternative energy, and the technology is there,
 3  they're doing it.
 4      I've heard the objections, "It won't
 5  work."  Well, they've been doing it in Europe for
 6  a long time.  I actually heard people stand up and
 7  say the warning lights for air craft will be a
 8  problem, and the foghorns will keep us awake at
 9  night.  Well, we're all a heck of a lot closer to
10  the Southeast Light than we're going to be to this
11  wind farm, and as I recall, people were jumping
12  for joy when the Southeast Light was relit.  So, a
13  little perspective there.
14      Cable, you know, cable will be great.
15  Standalone cable ain't going to happen.  Who's
16  going to pay for it, end of story.  Sure, maybe
17  Bill Gates will come along and write us a check,
18  we'll get a cable.  I'm not holding my breath.
19  The big one, the view, everybody is about the
20  view.  My small unscientific survey, people argue
21  about this affecting tourism.
22      I drive a taxi in the summer.  When the
23  test rigs were up, one of the big stops, the
24  show-stoppers were called Second Bluffs, not the
25  stairs but the ones to the west of that, and you
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 1  could see these rigs, and I'd just ask everybody I
 2  took up there -- and there was a lot of people, it
 3  was a big stop on the Island tour -- "What do you
 4  think?"  "It doesn't bother me, kind of
 5  interesting."
 6      So, I am totally an unscientific study,
 7  but I don't think it's going hurt tourism.  What
 8  will hurt tourism is when our businesses start to
 9  fail because they can't afford the electricity.
10  To sum things up, you know, is this the best
11  project?  I don't know.  Are there better ones?
12  Are the finances right?
13      They say -- they're being bent about that
14  they're investment capitalists and it's a hedge
15  fund and that's the anti-Christ, well, maybe it
16  is, but nobody else is offering to build a wind
17  farm and put in a cable.  You know, this is not
18  communism.  If they want to put in their
19  investment of work, that's what America is about,
20  to make a profit, and we'll all in some ways
21  profit from this.
22      I heard about this being an experimental
23  project.  I think that's what the Wright Brothers
24  had going to Kitty Hawk.  Somebody had to get on
25  that plane and give it a try 'cause, you know, you
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 1  name it, somebody had to do the first one.  Some
 2  Indian ate the first quahaug.  Think about that.
 3  This project has been coming up for a long time,
 4  2008, that's five years.  It will be another
 5  several years, I'm guessing, before this is
 6  completed.  I'd like to see this happen in my
 7  lifetime.
 8      If this fails, we're back to square one,
 9  we're going to have to start again, and another
10  five years at least, ten years.  There's plenty of
11  ways to find fault.  We can continue that and
12  maintain the status quo and watch the pollution
13  increase and our resources run out and, you know,
14  the number -- in the past 200 years since our
15  industrial revolution, it's shameful.
16      We pride ourselves on the Island that we
17  have 43.9, I think our latest is in conservancy,
18  that is stewardship.  It's taking care of our
19  Island.  We have a sense of place.  Well, it's
20  time to, I think, apply that to a wider picture
21  and take stewardship of our planet.
22      One more thing, we talked about dividing
23  the community, wind turbines dividing the
24  community.  Well, when that's all settled, guess
25  what, we can still fight about the deer and
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 1  whether we use fertilizer -- or mopeds, or the
 2  parking at the post office.  We're good at this,
 3  folks.  What divides us is what brings us
 4  together.
 5      MR. GAGNON: Our next speaker is Kay
 6  Lewis.
 7      MS. LEWIS: Kay Lewis.  I don't have to
 8  give a speech because Doreen Napoleone did it for
 9  me, and she did a great job.  Thank you, Doreen.
10  I'll just make a few observations about some of
11  what I've heard today.  One, is, there are a lot
12  of people who seem very certain about the outcome
13  of this and, particularly, it seems that the
14  doomsayers are really certain it's going to be a
15  disaster.  Well, no one really knows, and I hope
16  that it will be more like Denmark than some of the
17  predictions, because it's very easy for me to
18  imagine that this goes forward and we all decipher
19  that they're beautiful, they work, and overall our
20  lives are improved and there's no loss in property
21  value and all of that.  Many people here look at
22  the same set of data and come down on totally
23  different sides, but my hope is it ends up on that
24  side, and that's where I'm placing my bets.
25      The second observation is that it's an
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 1  experiment, and we don't want any experiments.
 2  You know, life is an experiment, and I'm with
 3  those people who say, "We have to do something."
 4  I don't have children, but I worry about the globe
 5  that your children and your children's children
 6  will be living on and, yes, we're going to be
 7  dependent on fossil fuels for some time to come,
 8  but we have to start somewhere.  This is a small
 9  project, it's an experiment, it's worth a chance,
10  and I say give it a chance.
11      The third observation is probably the most
12  disturbing thing I heard today was someone who
13  said that he has gone past altruism and totally
14  embraced cynicism.  If very many people do that,
15  not only is this Island dead but the globe is
16  dead.  So, my appeal is, let's not give up on
17  altruism because our only hope for your children
18  and your children's children is that there's still
19  plenty of people here who will continue to embrace
20  altruism.  So, give it a chance.
21      MR. GAGNON: Patrick Tengwall.
22      MR. TENGWALL: My name is Patrick Tengwall
23  (T-e-n-g-w-a-l-l).  I want to thank the
24  representatives of DEM for coming here and taking
25  the time to listen to all of the comments that you
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 1  are receiving today.  I know you're going to get
 2  many more in written form, and I commend you for
 3  your patience with the entire public process
 4  that's involved.  I respect you for that.
 5      I am a year-round resident of Block
 6  Island.  I moved here with my wife who grew up on
 7  Block Island.  I moved here five years ago.  The
 8  house where my wife and I live is inland.  Our
 9  best view is of the airport, it's to the west, so,
10  we always have a sunset.  I will not see the
11  turbines in question from my home.
12      The view shed issues are largely
13  irrelevant.  I would say, though, that I agree
14  with some of the commenters today.  I find, in my
15  opinion, wind turbines to be beautiful and
16  graceful.  I have thought of one item in favor of
17  this project -- and I am in favor of this
18  project -- that I don't know if it's been raised
19  before.  It may not be strictly in DEM's purview,
20  but I want to put it out there.
21      I am hoping that when the Block Island
22  Wind Farm is in place and the cable is connected
23  to the mainland and this Island is enjoying the
24  benefits of being part of the New England electric
25  grid, I am looking forward to the Block Island
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 1  Power Company relaxing or eliminating its
 2  restrictions on a small scale, residential scale,
 3  wind and power projects, because my understanding
 4  is that those have been predicated on various
 5  capacity issues.  When we are a part of a larger
 6  grid, they will disappear.  Those issues, I
 7  believe, will disappear.
 8      I will also say that I think the most
 9  important point I can make today is, it's a given
10  for you folks at the Department of Environmental
11  Management, but I think it may need to be restated
12  for the audience.  DEM and the other agencies that
13  are involved in the permitting process here are
14  charged with making decisions on the basis of
15  science.
16      Scientific facts, as far as they can be
17  determined, are what should rule the day here.
18  Reliable, verifiable studies, statistics,
19  simulation, read and interpreted fairly, allowing
20  the data to drive the conclusion and not the other
21  way around.  That is what this process that you
22  are involved in regarding the dredging, and the
23  rest of our colleagues in the public process are
24  supposed to be about.
25      Yes, public opinion is important.  It's
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 1  one of the human factors that is involved here
 2  that needs to be considered in the public
 3  discourse, but I will agree with people we've
 4  heard today who say that irresponsible statistics
 5  and unsupported prejudice on either side of the
 6  issue should be ignored, and they should be
 7  ignored as a matter of law, a matter of law under
 8  the state Administrative Procedure Act.
 9      That includes my own rhetoric if, per
10  chance, I happen to be wrong about the matter of
11  the restrictions on small scale projects, but I
12  understand DEM's role in this matter is to make a
13  decision on the basis of the best evidence that
14  you have before you.  I was in your shoes.  I
15  worked for five years for the Division of Public
16  Utilities.  I understand the concept of making a
17  an administrative law decision on the basis of the
18  facts and testimony and sworn statements, and I
19  think that the public needs to remember that as
20  well.
21      I trust that you and your colleagues will
22  do your job to the best of your ability.  If, on
23  the other hand you do not, and some people will
24  regard that you have not regardless of the
25  outcome, that's what the appeals process is for,
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 1  that's what the courts are for but, in my opinion,
 2  the only people who will benefit from that are not
 3  the investors in the project, not the residents
 4  part-time/full-time, or the visitors of Block
 5  Island.  The only people who will benefit from
 6  that are attorneys.  That will serve no one.
 7  Thank you.
 8      MR. GAGNON: Martha Ball.
 9      MS. BALL: Sorry, we couldn't give you
10  gentlemen a better day.  I'm also sorry I'm late.
11  I missed a lot of this because, ironically, I was
12  on the mainland for a State Tourism Unity
13  Luncheon.  That's why I have my name tag on, in
14  case anybody doesn't know me.  Basically, I really
15  can't say it better than Norris Pike and Millie
16  McGinnis who spoke, when they said their peace.
17  They summed it up for a lot of us who live here,
18  who have always lived here.
19      I do just want to note a couple of things,
20  though.  One of the things I have found, since the
21  beginning, that's kind of disturbing is when
22  people say, "Well, it's a demonstration project,
23  why should we do that?"  Other people have said,
24  "Why not?"  Rhode Island used to lead the nation.
25  Rhode Island was one of the colonies, and a
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 1  handful of people here will know the answer to
 2  this question only because I ask it every single
 3  year on May 4th.  What's May 4th?
 4      THE AUDIENCE: Rhode Island Independence
 5  Day.
 6      MS. BALL: Those are the people who listen
 7  to me.  That's right, Rhode Island Independence
 8  Day.  Rhode Island declared independence two
 9  months before the rest of the colonies.  I mean,
10  we have a history of moving ahead and trying to
11  make things better, not just waiting for everybody
12  else to do it.  There's been talk about the cable,
13  which has been kind of interesting to just walk
14  in.  "The cable is really bad, it's going to
15  disrupt everything if it's coming from over.  The
16  cable is really good if it's coming only from the
17  mainland," which makes absolutely no sense when
18  you're talking about disturbance of land.
19      I would, though, remind everyone and,
20  again, I was reminded of this when I was on the
21  mainland today.  Maybe -- a lot of people don't
22  remember, we didn't always have the big tower up
23  on the hill to get telephone transmission.  Prior
24  to 1958 there was a submarine cable, that's how we
25  got telephone.  So, the total business of bringing
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 1  a cable into Block Island is not anything new, nor
 2  is, obviously, a cable coming from the mainland
 3  because telephone came from somewhere.
 4      There was only one other thing that I want
 5  to say, and I said this before toward the
 6  beginning of this.  When Cape Wind was approved, I
 7  was reading some comments about eyesores, and
 8  someone from West Virginia said, "I grew up where
 9  coal seams were open and mountains caught on fire,
10  and where rivers ran orange," and if you want an
11  eyesore, give me -- I will show you an eyesore.
12  These turbines are not rivers catching on fire,
13  they're not coal seams burning.  We've really got
14  to look at the big picture.  Thank you.
15      MR. GAGNON: Beth Gaffett.
16      MS. GAFFETT: Good afternoon, everyone.  I
17  have lived on Block Island all my life minus the
18  20 years I was away, which I don't count.  And,
19  initially, I was kind of on the fence about the
20  wind turbines.  I was, "Maybe, maybe not."  There
21  were things about them that I really liked and
22  there were concerns I had, but as I listened to
23  people, as I listened to concerns about the view
24  shed -- and I kept hearing this over and over
25  again, I started thinking about that.
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 1      I started thinking about the fact that I
 2  live off a dirt road at the top of High Street and
 3  I have a view of the airport, which isn't bad, it
 4  isn't perfect, and I have a view of a house that's
 5  this tall.  Next to mine it's this tall.  Yeah, I
 6  don't have a view at my house but, you know, I can
 7  walk five minutes to the top of High Street and I
 8  can see across.  So, not having a view -- most
 9  people can get to a view a lot easier than I can.
10      The other thing is the question about
11  savings.  You know, how are the wind turbines or
12  the cables going to save us on our power bill?  I
13  don't know.  It sounds to me like there's some
14  question about that.  There are people in this
15  room who have lived here all their lives, and
16  there are those of us who left and couldn't wait
17  to come back and, so, if we have some wind
18  turbines up, I can live with that because I'm
19  here.  Thank you.
20      MR. GAGNON: Next speaker is Judith
21  Tierney.
22      MS. TIERNEY: Judith Tierney
23  (T-i-e-r-n-e-y).  Hi, I'm a year-round resident of
24  Block Island.  I've been here for almost ten
25  years.  I'm the first of my family, but I think my
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 1  protenators (sic) would have come here with their
 2  bundles and opened a rooming house if they could
 3  have.  I am in favor of this exciting alternative
 4  energy project.  I've seen wind turbine farms on
 5  land and in water, in Iowa, in California, in
 6  Denmark and in Germany, and I don't understand why
 7  they would be considered experimental here when
 8  the whole world has been experimenting for us.
 9  It's time for us to change away from fossil fuels.
10      As for the view, it's not so pristine for
11  some of us.  I look at ugly telephone poles and
12  wires, and I look at cell phone towers out my
13  windows, and I don't see anybody turning in their
14  cell phones so I can have a better view.  I think
15  our power bills here have driven high costs for
16  our school, for our town, for our businesses and
17  for our residents, and if wind can help us, let's
18  harness it.  Thank you.
19      MR. GAGNON: Kim Gaffett.
20      MS. GAFFETT: I'll be very brief.  First
21  of all, I'd like to say thank you, and I know many
22  people have said thank you to the DEM and Mr.
23  Elliot from the Army Corps of Engineers, but I
24  know that you can never get enough thank yous.
25  Thank you for coming here.
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 1      I am speaking as an individual, although
 2  I've been a member of the Town Council for a
 3  number of years.  This Town Council, the previous
 4  Town Councils, in fact, each iteration of the Town
 5  Council since this project began have made public
 6  comments and have supported at various times to
 7  both the DEM the Army Corps, CRMC and the various
 8  places, so there's no need to reiterate those
 9  comments by the Town Council.
10      I speak as an individual, as a person who
11  has lived all -- most of my life.  As an
12  individual, I support this project, and I will
13  hope that some day we will say that the Town
14  Council was not desperate but forward-thinking,
15  and many people have spoken today to the
16  technology, to the resources that make this a good
17  project, and I would just like to adopt their
18  comments.  The comments of Bill Penn and the
19  Emsbos, the Bautes, the Ballards, Jules Craynock,
20  Barbara MacMullen, Mr. Greenman, Norris Pike,
21  Millie McGinnis, Martha Ball, Fred Leeder, just to
22  name a few, all said it much better than I can say
23  it, we're here to make comments.  Those are my
24  comments.
25      My concerns, I have three concerns, and I
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 1  guess I am truly an optimist because my concerns
 2  have to do with after the project is permitted and
 3  is in place.  I want to make sure that the record
 4  goes forward to say that I'm concerned that the
 5  project will be decommissioned even if it is
 6  working in 20 years, and I know that that is
 7  another part of the process but I, for one, don't
 8  want to see it decommissioned if it is working.
 9      My second is that I believe that one of
10  the best things -- I was, for a long time, not in
11  favor of a cable to the mainland.  I think there's
12  a lot to be said for Block Island's independence,
13  but we have grown and we need a certain amount of
14  technology.  The best way to accept a cable is if
15  we can be exporting renewable energy to the
16  mainland and continue as much independence as
17  possible.
18      That means when the grid on the mainland
19  goes down, that we should be able to stay up.  So,
20  I hope that in the future design -- I'm very
21  concerned that the design go in place so that, say
22  the mainland grid goes down, that the wind farm
23  can be tamped down so what is being produced by
24  the wind farm can meet the load of Block Island so
25  that we don't have to be turned down because of
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 1  excess power needing to protect the mainland from
 2  excess power.
 3      And my other major concern is that I think
 4  it's very important, through this process, that
 5  long-term monitoring, ecological monitoring be put
 6  in place, not for just two years or three years,
 7  ten years, fifteen years.  We are being considered
 8  a demonstration, but all over the world we're
 9  having to find out what are the effects of
10  individual wind turbine farms and the cumulative
11  effects, and the only way we can do that is if
12  there's ecological monitoring fish, wind,
13  migratory paths, birds, both pre-construction,
14  during construction, and post construction.  So,
15  my concerns to you are biological, and they have
16  to do with the future of this project once it is
17  permitted.  Thank you.
18      MR. GAGNON: David Chatowsky.
19      MR. CHATOWSKY: Hello, thank you for
20  coming to hear whatever everybody has to say.  I'm
21  an artist, a builder, and a naturalist here on
22  Block Island.  I write the cartoon Sea Squad and
23  Sealy that I contribute to the Block Island Times.
24  I built this stockade around the sonar, the
25  machine that Deepwater put out to track the birds
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 1  off the Southeast Light.
 2      They were concerned about the migratory
 3  patterns of the birds.  I have two things to
 4  say -- well, really three, and one is that a
 5  project of this magnitude, you don't want to rush,
 6  you want to operate on a snail's pace.  That's
 7  number one, is, to operate on a snail's pace.
 8  There should not be any rush, there should not be:
 9  We have to rush because so and so or this or that.
10  That, in my opinion, is wrong.  Don't let anybody
11  rush this project.
12      The second thing is transparency.
13  Everything should be transparent, the data --
14  there's some brilliant people on this Island, and
15  they have data that conflicts this or that, and
16  the data needs to be transparent.  There can't be
17  anything hidden from this community that would --
18  because of the magnitude of such a project.  So,
19  those are the two issues.  You know, operate on a
20  snail's pace, don't rush.  Have as many meetings
21  as you can.  More meetings, the better.  I don't
22  know why, I mean, there wouldn't be more meetings.
23  I don't know why the community shouldn't have the
24  most say.  It should be constantly talked about
25  and things should be brought out on the table
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 1  because this is a very, very huge project.
 2      As an artist, and the wind turbines that
 3  I've seen, they typically are white, and I know
 4  that a lot of you are concerned about the view,
 5  and should this project go through, an idea would
 6  be to paint the wind turbines like the color of
 7  that picture, like, that blue, okay.
 8      I have a beautiful view from the deck
 9  where I live.  I mean, it's absolutely stunningly
10  gorgeous except for three or two black water tanks
11  that I see.  So, my vista, I'll scan and obviously
12  I'll go away from them and I'll write, but it has
13  to do with the color.  If these wind turbines are
14  white, your eyes are going to go directly to them.
15  You know, you're going to look over this beautiful
16  vista of sky blue, ocean view, and then bam, white
17  as snow and there it is, but if you paint them
18  blue, sky blue, they just disappear.
19      I don't know whether this is going to be a
20  success, but I have only the three things:  Don't
21  rush, it's a mistake to rush.  Operate on a
22  snail's pace, and the more talks you could have,
23  the better.  I think that these ideas are
24  extremely valid.  The cable -- get the stuff out
25  on the table, don't let -- and be transparent.
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 1  This data, if there's any kind of conflicting
 2  ideas about data or anything like that, like a
 3  conflicting -- what's going to happen with these
 4  machines when they get decommissioned?  No, no,
 5  that shouldn't even be on the table.  All that
 6  stuff needs to be worked out ahead of time.  You
 7  can't, like, get into a project.  I don't get into
 8  projects and not think about the end.
 9      You know, responsible parties -- I'd like
10  to think that I'm a responsible individual, you
11  have everything worked out, you know, you be
12  responsible, we're all responsible.  You don't
13  just leave things unattended for somebody else to
14  deal with.  And, then, think about the color of
15  the wind turbine, and I suggest -- it's just a
16  recommendation -- to paint them sky blue and they
17  could very possibly just disappear.  Thank you.
18      MR. GAGNON: That concluded the number of
19  speakers that have signed up.  Is there anyone
20  else that wishes to speak that didn't get a chance
21  to signup.  Excuse me, folks, if we could just
22  remain silent as the speakers continue.
23      MR. FALLON: Hello, my name is Bob Fallon,
24  I'm a resident of Block Island for approximately
25  the past ten years but have been coming to the
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 1  Island for about 25 years.  I've been a Rhode
 2  Resident my entire life.  There are some things
 3  that I think you've heard tonight.  I have my back
 4  to the audience because it's you gentlemen that
 5  I'd like to take my message and not necessarily
 6  the people on Block Island.
 7      I think there are some things that you
 8  need to consider that other people have talked
 9  about.  One person indicated you need to be guided
10  and driven by the science, the statistics, the
11  facts.  I think that's a factor, but not the only
12  factor.  You also need to be driven by the
13  economics of the project, by the community feeling
14  about the project, as well as what I'll call the
15  intangible feeling of the esoteric and the beauty
16  of Block Island which, to me, is one of the most
17  important things.
18      I also think you need to take into account
19  the politics that have got this project to where
20  it is and the capitalism spirit that has brought
21  the project to where it is.  This is a project
22  that has been brought forward by entrepreneurs who
23  think that they can make money, and that's what
24  their main goal is, is to make a dollar bill here,
25  and they're doing that like any businessmen would,
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 1  using all the resources that they have.
 2      We've seen them lobby here on Block
 3  Island, we've seen them lobby in the statehouse,
 4  we've seen them lobby before the Public Utilities
 5  Commission.  We've seen the governor support their
 6  initiative, we've seen them lose at the Public
 7  Utilities Commission only to have the legislature
 8  change the rules that the Public Utilities
 9  Commission operates by, to allow the project to go
10  forward.  We've also seen, as part of that same
11  process, these entrepreneurs be able to make
12  assurances in the law that in the future we will
13  be protected.  But, in doing that, we should all
14  keep in mind that we have another boondoggle going
15  on right now in Rhode Island that has its basis in
16  Curt Shilling, the beloved Red Sox patriarch
17  pitcher that we're paying for and will pay for in
18  the future.
19      One of my main concerns as I fly around
20  the United States these past couple of months
21  since flying down the multiple rivers, the
22  multiple ports that we have looking at the ports,
23  looking at the structures, the docks, the railroad
24  trestles that are left to rot and stay where they
25  are because some business has left them there and


Page 95


 1  not taken care of our future.  Kim Gaffett talked
 2  about the future, that's what I'm most concerned
 3  about.
 4      I was in New York City this weekend and
 5  looked at the destruction that Sandy left.  Along
 6  the shore there are docks and busted concrete that
 7  God only knows who is going take care of it.  My
 8  guess is no one.  When this technology becomes
 9  outmoded, and it will, it will, there will be
10  something better and we have those windmills off
11  the coast.  We have no insurance, despite what the
12  legislation says, that they'll be taken care of,
13  and we all know that legislation can be changed.
14  Our Social Security have been changed.  We've seen
15  laws that are on the books that have been
16  repealed.
17      I was guaranteed a retirement, they
18  changed that.  All of us have.  So we can't go
19  forward with those guarantees and think that
20  they're replaced forever and to protect us.  On
21  the Island here, we need to make sure that what we
22  have, as Norris Pike pointed out, has to be here
23  for our children, and that includes the view and
24  the vista that we're able to see, as well as
25  having affordable electricity.  I agree with Peter
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 1  that the answer is cable, not a demonstration
 2  project in the ocean that we'll pay for 25 years
 3  from now.  Thank you.
 4      MR. GAGNON: Pat Doyle.
 5      MS. DOYLE: Good evening, my name is Pat
 6  Doyle and we've owned a home here for 23 years and
 7  have been full-time residents for seven years, and
 8  I sit here this evening taking great pride in this
 9  community.  I count the number, and over 10
10  percent of this town's full-time people, most of
11  them are full-timers, are here expressing views on
12  both sides, and I think that's something that we
13  all need to commend ourselves for.
14      This issue certainly has divided us.  And,
15  unfortunately, I think some of the words that Dave
16  Chatowsky used has been behind that, the lack of
17  transparency.  Patrick, you said, "Let us go
18  forward and make decisions based on science," and
19  I think we have to.  There's been a lot of
20  emotion, and we talk here about saving the
21  environment, the future of our children, how this
22  demonstration project is really not only going to
23  lower prices but it's going to do these huge --
24  accomplish these huge things.
25      I sit here tonight thinking what we have


Min-U-Script® Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


(24) Pages 93 - 96







Public Hearing Deepwater Wind Project
May 08, 2013


Page 97


 1  to ensure is that there's no damage done, and
 2  there are other things beyond even the science for
 3  this Island.  I live in the Historic District and
 4  when we did a major renovation to our home, we
 5  couldn't use a type of product on our windows that
 6  would have been less expensive.  Because we were
 7  in the Historic District, we had to use something
 8  that was visually pleasing.
 9      We had -- two or three times that we had
10  to go to Historic about what I considered a minor
11  change, but we live on an Island that we love and
12  views are important, not only to us but to the
13  people who look at our home, and we recognize that
14  living in a Historic District put an added burden
15  on us.  Living on an Island such as this that
16  brings tremendous income to the state is in great
17  part -- and you heard many talk about view
18  sheds -- I am not a view shed person.  This is not
19  the view shed that I look at, but I do think for
20  tourism, for the beauty of what attracts people to
21  here, I think it is something that has to be
22  looked at.
23      So, what did we really learn here tonight?
24  Everyone of us here, there's not environmentalists
25  and non-environmentalists.  Block Islanders came
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 1  here because they love the environment, that's
 2  what brought us all here.  So, for one group to
 3  say "I love it more, I read Friedman, I support
 4  conservation," I think we all do.  Wherever we're
 5  coming from, we're here for that reason, we know
 6  that.  We all want to lower the cost of
 7  electricity on the Island, that's the other given,
 8  and everyone speaks to that.
 9      We know that a cable is an answer to bring
10  lower costs, and on this particular issue, I think
11  transparency, through the years, has not been
12  there, but we're getting a cable, we can't afford
13  it.  I certain would like to see -- we have to go
14  in that direction, however -- but what we need to
15  know, we know that we're all together in support
16  of the environment.  We need to know how to go
17  about getting lower cost energy in a way that's
18  scientifically the best way to do it.
19      January 2nd, 2011, I was listening to NBR
20  as I was traveling and they had the President of
21  MIT, a woman, and the director, the publisher, two
22  women speaking about what will this new decade
23  bring in terms of science to this country?  This
24  is going to be positive changes.  They talked
25  about medical and then they talked about energy,
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 1  and there was an extensive conversation about
 2  solar.
 3      Someone called in and said, "You have not
 4  in the last hour-and-a-half," it was as full day
 5  program "talked about winds," and it was the
 6  President of MIT that said, "I'm not ready to talk
 7  about wind energy as the viable source for this
 8  country at this time."  It's working in Europe
 9  where their availability of the kinds of energy we
10  have here are not, she said, "I will put my money
11  in the future of solar.  We don't have the battery
12  storage yet, we don't have this thing perfected."
13      I thought that was very, very telling, and
14  I really liked hearing one of our council people,
15  Chris Warfel, who has the science because of his
16  education.  I'm not a scientist, but I really want
17  to depend upon you folks, the DEM folks, to first
18  of all go for the best science, but keeping in
19  mind that there are other issues; the economy and
20  the affordability of the energy, but also to keep
21  our historic and beautiful vista, which we go to
22  great lengths to protect.
23      We have committee upon committee that
24  tries to keep each one of us in line, not to
25  destroy one slight inch of the vistas that we look
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 1  at that brought us here.  So, thank you for coming
 2  here, and I hope you keep those three things in
 3  mind as you make your decision.
 4      MR. GAGNON: Are there any other speakers?
 5  Anyone else that would like to speak?  Do you have
 6  the extended list?
 7      MR. BIANCULLI: The problem is, there was
 8  a sign-in sheet and folks may have signed up for
 9  the sign-in sheet, which was the attendance
10  record.  We also had another sheet there that was
11  to provide public comment.  I believe we're
12  getting near the end of the evening, but you can
13  come forward.  Come up to the microphone and just
14  say and spell your name and, then, you can provide
15  comment.
16      MR. SPIER: Good evening, John Spier.
17  I'll be brief because as several people have said,
18  other people have stolen my best thoughts and said
19  it better than I could.  Like most of us out here,
20  I wear a number of hats.  One of my hats is sort
21  of on the Housing Board, and as part of our market
22  research for our next project has been sending out
23  questionnaires to Island families that live in
24  housing that we've created through a number of
25  entities.
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 1      So, this questionnaire is a recurring
 2  theme.  I've been reading them as they come in.
 3  The recurring theme is, "We love our house, we
 4  love living here.  Yes, our mortgage payments are
 5  pretty commensurate with our income but, boy,
 6  those utility bills are killing us.  We have to
 7  rent rooms to pay our utility bills.  I'm just
 8  going to address a few other topics, briefly.
 9      Construction impacts, look at some of the
10  big projects out there, look at the Panama Canal.
11  If you went today and said, I'm going to bulldoze
12  a path through 50 piles of virgin rain forest,
13  peoples' minds would be blown, okay.  They did it,
14  it's beautiful today and nobody would ever argue
15  that it shouldn't have been done.  So, to me,
16  running a cable through a beach in Narragansett or
17  Charlestown doesn't seem like a big deal.  It will
18  recover.  Nothing is free.
19      Corporations, sure, Deepwater Wind is a
20  corporation, they're out to make money, that's the
21  American way as people have said.  There's no
22  corporations out there that are warm and fuzzy
23  except, maybe, mine.  History, you know, somebody
24  had mentioned abandoned facilities all over this
25  country.  We have a problem here, we're getting
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 1  our butts kicked by the rest of the world.  In the
 2  1970s, the US was leading the world in wind
 3  energy.  Now, it's either Denmark or China, China
 4  may have passed Denmark.
 5      That's why we have abandoned facilities,
 6  abandoned shipping, factories, abandoned docks,
 7  okay.  We were innovators in this world for 150 or
 8  200 years, what happened?  Another thing, you
 9  know, what happened?  I grew up in upstate New
10  York, so forty years ago as a kid, you had
11  divisive issues.  My parents were involved, so I
12  was pretty aware.  We had cement factories, we had
13  correctional facilities, we had transfer stations,
14  things that divided communities, and I remember
15  when I was a kid, NIMBY was a bad word.
16      You didn't want to be a NIMBY, okay, it
17  was an insult.  If you called somebody a NIMBY,
18  you were saying, "You're a selfish ass."  Now,
19  forty years later, I hear people stand up and say,
20  "I'm a NIMBY.  I think alternative energy is
21  great, I don't want it in my backyard.  Yeah, we
22  need a transfer station, but I don't want it in my
23  backyard."  So, what happened, what happened to
24  this country where all of a sudden it's okay,
25  socially, to be selfish and to put your own
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 1  personal needs or desires in front of the good of
 2  the community?  What's the problem there?  On that
 3  note, somebody mentioned the full page ad.  I grew
 4  up with the idea that if you want to say
 5  something, put your name on it.
 6      MS. DELIA: It's my name, I thought that
 7  was pretty obvious.
 8      MR. GANNON: Just let him finish his --
 9      MS. DELIA: Yeah, I will.
10      MR. SPIER: It's an organization that
11  purports to be a whole bunch of people, and I
12  don't know who they are, I have a problem with
13  that.  And, lastly, on a positive note, I love
14  islands.  I live on one, I live in a state called
15  Rhode Island.  Most of you know I'm not
16  exaggerating when I say I've seen a lot of islands
17  all over the world, you know, hundreds, maybe
18  thousands.  A lot of them had wind turbines, it is
19  the future to a lot of places.
20      The Canary Islands, case in point, they're
21  a lot bigger than we are and there's a bunch of
22  them, but they have something in common with us,
23  they don't have coal, they don't have oil, they
24  don't have wood, so, they used to bring in tanker
25  trucks and diesels to run their power.  Well,
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 1  that's unsustainable.  Now they have wind
 2  turbines.  Sailing down the East Coast of the Gran
 3  Canaria, you can see hundreds, maybe thousands of
 4  wind turbines.  They work.  They're not unproven
 5  experimental technology.
 6      Some of the most beautiful remote islands
 7  in the South Pacific, they have wind turbines so
 8  that they can have some of the things that we take
 9  for granted in the First World.  They can play
10  music, they can access the internet, they can
11  charge their cell phones, they can have light in
12  their house.  They don't mind the wind turbines.
13  A lot of people have spoken very eloquently about
14  what we have to do to change in this world, and
15  I'm not going to reiterate or reverberate on that,
16  I would just like to suggest that we should all
17  work together to be part of the solution.  Thanks.
18      MR. RESOM: My name is Sven (S-v-e-n)
19  Resom (R-e-s-o-m).  I've stayed out of the Block
20  Island Times letter writing debacle because we've
21  actually been pretty busy working.  My wife and I
22  run one of the very few year-round businesses on
23  Block Island, the only light industry business on
24  Block Island, which is a manufacturing business.
25  We actually produce something here.
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 1      We're trying to demonstrate that
 2  year-round businesses can work on Block Island.
 3  As you may know, there are very few in the winter,
 4  and half of the reason is because of the power
 5  costs, and you've got the belief that we're just a
 6  summer community versus a year-round community.
 7  As John expressed, housing and economic costs are
 8  a big issue.  Economic sustainability is a huge
 9  issue on Block Island, and I think the discussion
10  is really coming down to economic sustainability
11  versus view shed.
12      Many people have talked about tourism.
13  Well, if you actually look at our hotels and the
14  cost of our hotels versus the services that we're
15  providing relative to other destination markets,
16  we're losing our competitive advantage, and a lot
17  of that is because of the energy costs.  We need
18  to figure out how to lower energy costs.  It would
19  be great to have a cable, everybody would love
20  that.  Wouldn't that be ideal?  My son teaches
21  elementary and middle school in Rhode Island, they
22  can't even afford pencils.
23      So, let's try and figure out where that
24  money for a cable is going to come from, unless we
25  have someone to help us.  Demonstration, we're a
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 1  demonstration business, we're doing everything we
 2  can to demonstrate to Block Island that you can
 3  have a year-round manufacturing operation and be
 4  profitable.  We believe that Deepwater can
 5  demonstrate.  We believe that we can learn and
 6  that we'll allow for year-round businesses on
 7  Block Island.  Truly, I believe this is good for
 8  Block Island.  It will preserve Block Island, and
 9  it will not hurt Block Island.  Thank you.
10      MR. GAGNON: Anyone else who hasn't signed
11  up wishes to speak?
12      MR. LEWIS: Keith Lewis, I just want to
13  say for the record because there's several,
14  there's different people on the Island that have
15  the same name, I just want to say that I'm not
16  opposed to wind power.  I can't be -- I don't feel
17  I can be an advocate because the current proposal
18  is not in my view.  If it was in my view, then I
19  would think seriously about being an advocate but
20  then, again, in order to be an advocate, I would
21  have to study it a whole lot more to be an honest
22  advocate.
23      It's very easy to say, no.  I wouldn't
24  feel the necessity to study at all because I know
25  to say, yes, I would want to study more than I
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 1  have, but what holds me back is that the current
 2  proposal is not in my view, so I don't feel I can
 3  be an advocate for someone else's view.  Thank
 4  you.
 5      MR. LaCOSTE: Ken LaCoste (L-a-C-o-s-t-e).
 6  I guess one of the words I heard earlier was the
 7  word, perspective, and I think that's an important
 8  word in decisions that your organizations will
 9  have to make.  The perspective of what this
10  project will do to the view sheds of Block Island,
11  the perspective of what it will do to the tourism,
12  and the perspective of what it will look like.  I
13  was a historical archeologist for five years
14  before I became a marine mechanic, and I learned a
15  lot about history and how the landscape changes,
16  and I don't know if you're familiar with the
17  books, they're put out by Bob Downey, they're
18  pictures of the Island.
19      Historically, the Island has been an
20  evolution of human occupation.  First, it was
21  fully deciduous forest, or forested, it was all
22  cut down, clear cut.  It was farmland.  It evolved
23  into an industry of farmland and tourism and
24  fishing.  Large hotels went up blocking some
25  people's view, obviously, of the ocean.  After the
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 1  hotel -- during that same period they had
 2  windmills, or prior to that period they had
 3  windmills up, relatively large windmills that were
 4  used to create grain.
 5      After the hotels were built and some of
 6  them still stand, you had a period of decline when
 7  the fishing fleet was wiped out, and it wasn't as
 8  predominant as it was before.  Then, you had a
 9  time period when you had the tower put up for
10  telephones, and all of a sudden large towers were
11  in the view shed.  At some point, Block Island was
12  declared one of the last great places -- one of
13  the last ten great places.  Since that time, we
14  had a large cell phone tower and radio tower put
15  up.  As far as I know, it's still one of the last
16  ten great places, it's a matter of perspective.
17      Through time, the evolution has evolved.
18  The landscape has evolved, our view shed has
19  evolved, and I think it's something that this,
20  too, will evolve.  Another perspective is a matter
21  of time.  I'm thinking, from what I understand,
22  the towers, the expected life of these wind
23  turbines is 20 years.  The expected life of the
24  cable is somewhere around 50 years.  Almost 20
25  years ago I quit the rescue squad after being on
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 1  it for 10 years.  14 years ago my son went into
 2  boot camp on his 18th birthday.  That time passes
 3  so quickly.
 4      Once these are put up, time will pass.
 5  They will either be very effective, they'll be
 6  very successful or they won't be, but if they're
 7  not, I just want to make sure that you folks do
 8  what you have to do to ensure that the money will
 9  be there to take them down when the time comes,
10  whether it be because of obsolescence, whether it
11  be because of damage, whether it be because they
12  just don't work.  I'm in favor of the wind farm,
13  but I want to make sure that you and we make sure
14  that the money is there at the proper time,
15  whether it be early in the project or late in the
16  project to take them down when and, if necessary,
17  because after that 20-year period they're going to
18  be gone, that's it, and we're going to go back to,
19  you know, the way it was, and I just want to make
20  sure that the money is there to take it down.
21  Thank you for coming.
22      MR. GAGNON: Are there any further
23  speakers?  If not, we can conclude the public
24  hearing, and thank you everyone for coming
25  tonight.
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 1      THE AUDIENCE: Thank you.
 2      (HEARING CONCLUDED AT 7:55 P.M.)
 3  
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 1                 C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N
   
 2  STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
    PROVIDENCE, SC.
 3 
   
 4          I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that
   
 5  the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete
   
 6  transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled
   
 7  proceeding.
   
 8          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
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 1            (HEARING COMMENCED AT 5:08 P.M.)
  


 2           MR. GAGNON:  Hello everyone, I'm going to
  


 3   try to get things started here.  How this is going
  


 4   to work is, I'm going to read a statement to start
  


 5   the commentary.  After I read the statement, we'll
  


 6   call up the names of the individuals who signed
  


 7   in, and you can come up here to give your public
  


 8   comment.
  


 9           So, welcome everyone.  Today is Wednesday,
  


10   May 8, 2013, it is 5:08 p.m.  My name is Ron
  


11   Gagnon.  I'm the Chief of the Rhode Island
  


12   Department of Environmental Management's Office of
  


13   Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today
  


14   is Richard Bianculli from our DEM Legal Services
  


15   office.  Also, here today is Michael Elliot from
  


16   United Corps of Engineers.
  


17           We've gathered at the New Shoreham Town
  


18   Hall today regarding a public hearing concerning
  


19   the application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a
  


20   State of Rhode Island Water Quality Certificate
  


21   and Dredge Permit in accordance with the
  


22   Department's Rules and Regulations for Dredging
  


23   and the Management of Dredge Materials and the
  


24   State Water Quality Regulations.
  


25           This hearing is being conducted under the
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 1   authority of the Administrative Procedures Act
  


 2   located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of
  


 3   Rhode Island.  In accordance with the Act's
  


 4   requirements, public notices of this hearing were
  


 5   published in the Narragansett Times, the South
  


 6   County Independent and the Block Island Times.
  


 7   Notice was also posted on the Department's
  


 8   website.
  


 9           The purpose of this hearing is to afford
  


10   interested parties an opportunity to comment on
  


11   the noted application.  The hearing is not
  


12   intended as a means of providing a forum for
  


13   discussion, debating, arguing or otherwise having
  


14   any dialogue at this time with members of the
  


15   Department.  We ask that you please be silent when
  


16   an individual is making his or her comments to let
  


17   them fully have their time to speak.
  


18           Full copies of the application have been
  


19   placed in the public libraries in Narragansett and
  


20   New Shoreham.  We've also extended the written
  


21   public comment period to 4 p.m. Wednesday, May
  


22   22nd, 2013.  The previous public hearing was held
  


23   at the Narragansett Town Hall on April 24, 2013 at
  


24   6:30 p.m.
  


25           The procedure we will use for those who
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 1   wish to speak is as follows:  If you have not
  


 2   already done so, you can register at our desk over
  


 3   here.  I will call the speakers in the order of
  


 4   their registration.  We will allow approximately
  


 5   five minutes for each individual to make comments
  


 6   on the record.  When your name is called, please
  


 7   come to this microphone and speak clearly and
  


 8   slowly so that the stenographer can accurately
  


 9   transcribe your comments.  Written comments may
  


10   also be submitted before or after your
  


11   presentation of this meeting.
  


12           Please note that if it's necessary, I will
  


13   raise a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you have
  


14   approximately one minute remaining for comments,
  


15   and at the end of the approximately five-minute
  


16   period, I'll raise the red cardboard sign -- I'll
  


17   try not to use those -- we didn't need them in
  


18   Narragansett but, if necessary, I have them.  We
  


19   ask that you please respect the time limit so that
  


20   all comments may be heard.  Thank you for your
  


21   cooperation.
  


22           After the time has elapsed for the
  


23   submission of the written comments, the Department
  


24   will prepare a written response to all comments
  


25   and then we will complete the review process and
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 1   issue a final determination.  So, at this time,
  


 2   we'll start with the registered speakers for the
  


 3   comments.
  


 4           MR. BIANCULLI:  Before we start, there are
  


 5   sign-in sheets by the entrance.  We do have a
  


 6   sign-in sheet just for attendance and another
  


 7   sign-in sheet if you wish to give public comments,
  


 8   and please do remember to speak slowly, we do have
  


 9   a stenographer that's present here tonight that
  


10   will be transcribing all of the public comments.
  


11           MR. GAGNON:  Our first speaker is Linda
  


12   Spak.
  


13           MS. SPAK:  Do I address you or the
  


14   audience?
  


15           MR. BIANCULLI:  You can address the
  


16   audience.  The stenographer will be transcribing
  


17   your public comment, so you can speak in whichever
  


18   direction you feel comfortable.
  


19           MS. SPAK:  My name is Linda Spak.  I
  


20   would, first of all, thank you for coming here and
  


21   having a meeting on Block Island.  It's much
  


22   easier for us to come here than it is to go to the
  


23   mainland, and my concerns are several.  First of
  


24   all, our beautiful view from our Southeast
  


25   Lighthouse, all the wedding pictures that are
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 1   taken there, it might seem like a small thing, but
  


 2   weddings have developed into quite an industry
  


 3   here.
  


 4           Secondly, our very dramatic night skies.
  


 5   I understand there will be illumination on the
  


 6   towers, and I think that is a critical thing to be
  


 7   concerned about, and I've read some comments
  


 8   recently from some fishermen from Point Judith
  


 9   that have grave concern over what this building
  


10   will do to our fishing grounds, and I share their
  


11   concerns.  I hope that there is serious thought
  


12   put to that.  Thank you.
  


13           MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
  


14   Bill Penn.
  


15           MR. PENN:  Bill Penn.  For the record, I
  


16   want everyone in this room to know that while I
  


17   represent members of several community
  


18   organizations, I stand here before you as an
  


19   individual, a homeowner for over 30 years, and a
  


20   year-round resident for 17 years.  I strongly
  


21   support the Deepwater Wind Project.  It's a
  


22   significant public -- it's a significant
  


23   infrastructure improvement to Rhode Island.
  


24           As a semi-retired person, 40 percent
  


25   reduction in my monthly electric bill is going to







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - May 08, 2013


8


  
 1   be very significant to me.  Also, the bills are
  


 2   going to be more constant.  They're not going to
  


 3   fluctuate up and down with the cost of diesel.
  


 4   It's also the fact that the cable to the mainland
  


 5   is going to be socialized with the mainland rate
  


 6   payers.  There's no way that 1,800 customers of
  


 7   BIPCO could afford a stand-alone cable to the
  


 8   mainland.
  


 9           Now, most of you know I'm an
  


10   environmentalist.  The environmental benefits to
  


11   this project will significantly reduce the carbon
  


12   footprints of Block Island.  We will no longer be
  


13   burning and consuming a million gallons of diesel
  


14   fuel a year.  The diesels will no longer run 24/7,
  


15   and will only run if there's an interruption to
  


16   the cable to the mainland.  This is truly a
  


17   renewable energy source.  Renewable energy
  


18   sources, such as this project, are the only way to
  


19   reverse global warming.
  


20           We in the U.S. have 4 percent of the world
  


21   population, but we emit 25 percent of greenhouse
  


22   gases.  This project is one small step to reduced
  


23   greenhouse gases and should be applauded for that
  


24   result.  Also, professionally, I'm an
  


25   environmental finance person, consultant, and I
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 1   have had a chance to meet several of the
  


 2   management team both locally and in Providence,
  


 3   and my professional opinion is that they are very
  


 4   professional.  So, with that, I would like to
  


 5   submit my written statement.  Thank you.
  


 6           MR. BIANCULLI:  Folks, just a reminder,
  


 7   those that are giving public comment today, if you
  


 8   could please state your name and spell your name
  


 9   in its entirety so the stenographer can enter that
  


10   into the record, and just a reminder for folks to
  


11   turn off their cell phones if you do have them.
  


12           MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Jane and
  


13   George Emsbo.
  


14           MS. EMSBO:  My name is Jane Emsbo
  


15   (E-m-s-b-o).  My husband and I, Jorgen and myself,
  


16   would like to share two things.  We'd like to
  


17   share a letter that we wrote to the Council
  


18   members concerning this and, then, we would like
  


19   to briefly go over a few of the comments we got
  


20   back from the council members with some
  


21   information we'd like to share.
  


22           So, the letter we sent was:  We are so
  


23   proud to live on an island famous for its
  


24   continuing commitment to land and environmental
  


25   preservation.  Let us now be leaders, not laggers,
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 1   to also bring the first U.S. offshore wind farm to
  


 2   Block Island.  Please vote, yes, to this project.
  


 3   Change is never easy, but is often critical for
  


 4   our well-being.  The clock is running down to save
  


 5   our environment and wind power is one of the
  


 6   solutions for the future.
  


 7           The fears expressed by the opponents of
  


 8   the wind farm must be acknowledged, but they have
  


 9   been allayed again and again through international
  


10   research and examples.  Now Block Island has the
  


11   enormous opportunity to inspire others while
  


12   reaping economic and environmental benefits
  


13   ourselves.  We depend on our council to assure
  


14   this.
  


15           Now I'm going to talk to some of the
  


16   points.  We were very fortunate to get two
  


17   responses from council members with some of their
  


18   concerns and, very briefly, we're going to go over
  


19   some of those concerns and we're going to depend
  


20   on some information.  Most of the information we
  


21   got from Danish sources on the Internet, and also
  


22   through a personal phone call Jorgen made to
  


23   Denmark yesterday.  Jorgen is Danish and that's
  


24   one reason we're going to quote from Denmark.
  


25   There is another reason for using Denmark, and
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 1   I'll read, briefly, that Denmark is the country in
  


 2   the world with the longest experience in this area
  


 3   of offshore wind farms and wind itself.
  


 4           The first farm was in 1991, 20 years ago
  


 5   offshore, and I'm very excited that, right now,
  


 6   Denmark is using -- wait a minute -- has 28
  


 7   percent of the electricity produced by wind power,
  


 8   and the project now is by 2020, they hope to use
  


 9   50 percent by wind power.  Then, I do have those
  


10   figures if I come to them quickly about how much
  


11   of this is from offshore wind farms.
  


12           Some of the concerns of the council
  


13   members, I'll read one of the concerns:  Most of
  


14   the European countries have or are discontinuing
  


15   permitting projects because of undue hardship
  


16   placed on abutters' quality of life, general
  


17   health and well-being.  The first point, as far as
  


18   discontinuing the projects -- and I have all these
  


19   resources I'm going to hand to the council members
  


20   for their perusal.  Right now, as of October 2010,
  


21   3.16 gigawatts of wind power is operational
  


22   worldwide.  By 2020, the estimate is, we will have
  


23   75 gigawatts worldwide with significant
  


24   contributions from China and the U.S.
  


25           So, going on to the quality of life
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 1   talking about health, I don't see any reference to
  


 2   that, not that we've done extensive research.  I
  


 3   don't think that's too appropriate with an
  


 4   offshore wind farm.  Well-being, I'd like to read
  


 5   from an excerpt from a Danish paper, Offstiff
  


 6   Stelenoff (phonetic) and it's very brief, sounds
  


 7   familiar.  Everybody complained, holiday cottage
  


 8   owners, Town Councilors, nature conservation
  


 9   groups, animal lovers.  1,900 complaints were made
  


10   about the first offshore wind farms in Denmark.
  


11   2,000 holiday cottage owners were afraid of having
  


12   their piece and wonderful sea view spoiled.  We
  


13   all understand that.
  


14           It goes on with all the feelings,
  


15   whatever, and I'll go down to how many years
  


16   later, I don't know, but there were ten wind
  


17   turbines that were set up and, now, there was a
  


18   chairman of these beach villages that were
  


19   affected by this, and it's a wonderful article, as
  


20   you can read in full.  Ten years later, the
  


21   chairman of this committee of the welfare of these
  


22   beach cottages and houses, and mansions, says:  "I
  


23   don't know anybody who's bothered by the wind
  


24   turbine, said so and so, the chairman of the
  


25   coastal group of 2,000 holiday cottage owners.
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 1           From another municipality in that area,
  


 2   there's also a more positive area.  It seems the
  


 3   residents have embraced the wind turbines.  At the
  


 4   time, holiday owners, beach owners with properties
  


 5   wanted a tax reduction when it first came out
  


 6   because they felt that their house values were
  


 7   going to go down, so they wanted some
  


 8   compensation.  Today, a real estate agent
  


 9   specialized in property in that area states that
  


10   the wind turbines in no way have had a negative
  


11   impact on the value of holiday cottages, just to
  


12   put that out.
  


13           And the next point -- I don't want to run
  


14   out of time -- the rest of this will be given to
  


15   the council members, and we thank them for all
  


16   their hard work on this.
  


17           MR. EMSBO:  It so happens that I graduated
  


18   pretty much at the same time that the wind
  


19   adventure for Denmark started 50 years ago, and I
  


20   have followed this minutely in the first years
  


21   especially, and all these things that we have
  


22   listened to here in this room and on this island
  


23   was debated just like that, but over the first,
  


24   like, 20 years and then all the negative requests,
  


25   if you will, completely died out, and now
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 1   everybody is very happy with what is happening.
  


 2           I have friends that have parts in wind
  


 3   power in Denmark and, as I said, I think it's five
  


 4   or six years ago, I stood up in this same room and
  


 5   I said:  All the issues, all the negative issues
  


 6   that has been mentioned, short of the visual
  


 7   problem when you look out over the sea has all
  


 8   been proven wrong.  The thing is, whether you
  


 9   think that the windmills are in your way, to enjoy
  


10   the view or not is very difficult to quantify.
  


11           So, the only thing that is left is really
  


12   what it looked like -- and I had it all down --
  


13   one of the things I would say is a complaint about
  


14   it's far too expensive, this Deepwater thing and,
  


15   as I said five years ago in this room, this is one
  


16   of the things that is very difficult for me to see
  


17   because it is very, very expensive, but as
  


18   somebody said to me, yes, but this is America, you
  


19   know, somehow that was supposed to give an excuse
  


20   for it.  Whereas, in Denmark, when the Danes got
  


21   it all together and they started projects like
  


22   that, supported by the public, it's very
  


23   socialistic in Denmark, as you know, it -- you
  


24   were not going to be considered if the power cost
  


25   out of the wind farm was more than 5 percent
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 1   higher than the run-of-the-mill price, which in
  


 2   the case of Deepwater, that means that instead of
  


 3   9 cents or 10 cents a kilowatt, they couldn't
  


 4   charge more than five percent more than that, and
  


 5   this is the way that it's been operated since
  


 6   then.
  


 7           Also, somebody complains that the lifetime
  


 8   is not long enough and say that after -- what was
  


 9   it, ten years or something like that, that the
  


10   productivity of the turbines was down 30 percent.
  


11   We have not been able to see where this has been
  


12   coming from.  I'd better stop.  Okay, there are so
  


13   many good arguments for starting it, and one of
  


14   the things we have to look at, of course, is that
  


15   it would help the local situation.  In the U.S.,
  


16   as we just heard, are the people that use the most
  


17   energy in the world by far.  They would be able to
  


18   do a big reduction in carbon dioxide emission and
  


19   help with global warming, which is much more
  


20   serious than is admitted by the people in politics
  


21   that talk about it; much, much more serious.
  


22           We have people here on the Island that are
  


23   very knowledgeable about that, that has described
  


24   for me what this means with the global warming,
  


25   and I will just say, take yourself on a trip
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 1   around the country here and see the mountainsides
  


 2   all over the west and all over the country, and
  


 3   you will see that whether this project cost $400
  


 4   million too much, I mean, it's -- it means so much
  


 5   more to the whole big picture that we must have
  


 6   money to get it started so that if this becomes
  


 7   the first, we could hope that it would be
  


 8   successful and that more things would follow-up.
  


 9           Denmark is starting their next six
  


10   offshore parks right now.  It just was announced
  


11   two weeks ago, and they will use the research that
  


12   has been going on for, you know, how much are the
  


13   fish and the birds suffering and how about the
  


14   noise, et cetera?  They use all these things to
  


15   compare what has actually happened over time, and
  


16   somebody says that the fish are going to be going
  


17   away and, yes, they may go away, they prefer not
  


18   to stick around at the time that production or
  


19   rather the installation happens, but once it is
  


20   installed, you will get more fish than you ever
  


21   had in most areas with our wind farms.
  


22           MR. GAGNON:  Sir, could I ask you to wrap
  


23   it up.
  


24           MR. EMSBO:  Okay.  So, I must ask you to
  


25   think it over if you are thinking of saying, no,







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - May 08, 2013


17


  
 1   please change it to, yes.  It's really very
  


 2   important.  Excuse me for taking so much of your
  


 3   time.
  


 4           MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  We have about
  


 5   sixteen speakers remaining, so we'll try to keep
  


 6   it to five or so minutes, if possible.  Thank you.
  


 7   Next speaker is Peter Baute.
  


 8           MR. BAUTE:  My name is Peter Baute
  


 9   (B-a-u-t-e).  First, I want to thank DEM and the
  


10   Army Corps for being here today.  We appreciate
  


11   your efforts, and my compliments to DEM for taking
  


12   the lead in using wind power at its own facilities
  


13   on the mainland.  I think they're kind of setting
  


14   a precedent that we could all mimic.
  


15           I'm a former three-term member of the Town
  


16   Council and Chair of the Town's Energy Planning
  


17   Committee, which was responsible for developing a
  


18   long range energy plan for our community.  My
  


19   purpose for speaking today is to give you some
  


20   insight into Island opinion on the Deepwater
  


21   Project, as well as just a few of my own thoughts.
  


22           Three years ago the Town Council requested
  


23   that Roger Williams University conduct a
  


24   scientific survey to determine whether Block
  


25   Island residents would support or oppose a wind
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 1   farm off the shores of Block Island.  This survey
  


 2   was anonymous and voluntary.  It was mailed to all
  


 3   Block Island residents and voters.  The response
  


 4   rate was 42 percent for Island voters and 58
  


 5   percent for non-voting homeowners who are largely
  


 6   seasonal residents.  Both groups overwhelmingly
  


 7   are in support.  84 percent of the voters on Block
  


 8   Island favored the wind farm, 71 percent of the
  


 9   seasonal residents.
  


10           These results are similar to those of a
  


11   recent survey carried out by the Block Island Land
  


12   Trust.  The disastrous results of the past winter
  


13   and fall storm give us a graphic example of some
  


14   of the effects of climate change and provide
  


15   emphasis to the great importance of limiting
  


16   carbon emissions to the atmosphere.  Every wind
  


17   turbine, every solar panel is a step in the right
  


18   direction.  For Block Island, the elimination of
  


19   emissions from the power plant is important, and
  


20   cessation of the noise of the diesel generators
  


21   will be a blessing.
  


22           The risks involved in the shipping and the
  


23   storage of a million gallons of diesel oil are
  


24   real and need to be avoided.  The dollars saved by
  


25   Block Island residents, easily as much as 100 to
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 1   $200 a month, and much greater amounts by
  


 2   businesses will be an enormous benefit to our
  


 3   Island economy, and the recycling of these dollars
  


 4   on the Island will be a boost.
  


 5           Just a couple small remarks about the
  


 6   environmental effects.  First, at a range of
  


 7   almost three miles off the Island, there will be
  


 8   no noise pollution from wind turbines.  Flicker is
  


 9   a geometric impossibility at that distance.  The
  


10   fish will appreciate the presence of structure,
  


11   and as Mr. Emsbo said, there will be more of them
  


12   rather than less.  Nature will repair whatever
  


13   disturbance there is to the ocean floor.
  


14           I urge you to continue the permitting of
  


15   this project, it will be of great benefit to the
  


16   people of Block Island and the economy of the
  


17   state.  It's environmental effects will be
  


18   positive.  Thank you.
  


19           MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Michael
  


20   Ballard.
  


21           MR. BALLARD:  Michael Ballard, and I'd
  


22   like to thank the DEM and the representatives from
  


23   the Army Corps for coming out and hearing how we
  


24   feel here on the Island.  Good afternoon to all of
  


25   you.  As many of you know, I've had a life-long
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 1   love affair with Block Island and have been a
  


 2   resident for the last -- full time resident for
  


 3   the last five years.
  


 4           As a resident, I strongly support this
  


 5   project, strongly in favor of it.  I had come to
  


 6   that conclusion knowing that in life not
  


 7   everything is perfect, and there are aspects of
  


 8   this that, perhaps, I agree with, are not perfect
  


 9   but, in my opinion, the overriding chapter is the
  


10   fact that with this project comes a cable which
  


11   affects the cost of electricity on Block Island.
  


12   I'm happy to reduce my electrical cost, but my
  


13   thinking goes beyond that, and this community has
  


14   a number of very critical issues facing the
  


15   viability of it.
  


16           One of them is the cost of electricity,
  


17   and I, for one, feel that we need to throw a
  


18   lifeline to the businesses that operate here on
  


19   Block Island so that they continue to be a viable
  


20   operation.  Thank you.
  


21           MR. GAGNON:  Jules Craynock.
  


22           MR. CRAYNOCK:  My name is Jules Craynock
  


23   (C-r-a-y-n-o-c-k), and I am a year-round resident
  


24   here on Block Island.  I spent 37 years federal
  


25   service as a research oceanographer with NOAA, and
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 1   my field of study was anthropological impact and
  


 2   coastal marine environment, kind of some of the
  


 3   issues that we run into here.
  


 4           I chose to live on Block Island because
  


 5   it's Block Island, and I could have chosen any
  


 6   place along the East Coast, and I chose Block
  


 7   Island.  I live up on Sands Pond Road.  I can see
  


 8   clearly the site where, hopefully, we will see our
  


 9   wind generators coming up, and I welcome this
  


10   site.  To me, this is just an amazing leading edge
  


11   of a way to get to a cleaner energy issue.
  


12           Block Island is a beautiful Island, but
  


13   it's not a pristine island.  We are downwind and
  


14   downstream of major pollutants, nuclear power
  


15   plants, you name it.  We're a little structure out
  


16   on the fringes of the North Atlantic, and if we
  


17   can somehow reduce our own footprint a little bit,
  


18   it's all to the good.  I have comments that I had
  


19   made in a previous letter to the Block Island
  


20   Times, and I will submit those as a written
  


21   statement that came out on March 16.
  


22           I found that the comments of people who
  


23   grew up here is important to listen to the full
  


24   gamut, so we have different opinions, but I think
  


25   we are all, all united in how do you make it
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 1   better here on Block Island?  How do you make it a
  


 2   little easier?  If I look at my property value and
  


 3   if I look at my view shed, I find myself -- and I
  


 4   would consider myself to be very narrow minded,
  


 5   somewhat inconsiderate of people who don't have
  


 6   that view shed.
  


 7           So, in fact, it's a small island and we're
  


 8   all in each other's view shed.  Anyway, I come
  


 9   from an environment standpoint and, again, I think
  


10   this is part of a prosperity, a direction for
  


11   prosperity on Block Island with a limited resource
  


12   space.  Thank you.
  


13           MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Bud Comeau.
  


14           MR. COMEAU:  My name is Bud Comeau
  


15   (C-o-m-e-a-u), and I'm here, actually, to read a
  


16   letter from Sandra and Pat Kelly who are off the
  


17   Island.  They were fortunate enough to schedule
  


18   their European vacation before this meeting was
  


19   scheduled.  I know they had a hell of a time, they
  


20   flipped a coin and said, which way should we go?
  


21   Clearly, European first.  Anyway, what it says --
  


22   and by the way, gentlemen, thank you very much for
  


23   being here, and I do standup comedy sometimes,
  


24   too.
  


25           MR. BIANCULLI:  Sorry, we butchered your
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 1   last name.
  


 2           MR. COMEAU:  If I had a quarter for every
  


 3   time that happened, I wouldn't care what you did
  


 4   with the electricity on Block Island.  Anyway,
  


 5   what it says here is:  We are opposed to the
  


 6   Deepwater Project 1/2 to 3 miles off the coast of
  


 7   Block Island.  Do not permit this project to
  


 8   damage forever one of Rhode Island's natural
  


 9   resources, a resource that can never be replaced.
  


10   The Mohegan Bluffs are very fragile.  The drilling
  


11   construction for these massive 600 foot towers 1/2
  


12   to 3 miles off the coast is unthinkable.
  


13           It's understandable when Newport, Little
  


14   Compton, Jamestown and other communities didn't
  


15   want any part of this venture.  Is there any study
  


16   that shows what this massive drilling and
  


17   construction could mean being completed so close
  


18   to a bluff?  Should we not be protective of our
  


19   historic Southeast Lighthouse?  Will this massive
  


20   drilling weaken the bluffs and possibly the
  


21   Southeast Light?  Much effort and money were
  


22   extended to move the Southeast Lighthouse probably
  


23   for the last time.  Do we want to take the chance
  


24   of moving this historic treasure sooner than the
  


25   studies have shown?  Detailed environmental and
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 1   construction studies must be completed before
  


 2   allowing the project to continue.  Protect our
  


 3   bluffs and waters, protect the Southeast
  


 4   Lighthouse.  Sincerely, Patrick Kelly and Sandra
  


 5   Kelly.
  


 6           I have -- just a thought occurred of my
  


 7   own on this subject.  I didn't register to speak
  


 8   only to be a proxy or something, but it does occur
  


 9   to me that in the 40 years I've been fooling
  


10   around on Block Island, a fair number of people
  


11   have viewed this place as sort of a smorgasbord.
  


12   They've come in, helped themselves, satisfied
  


13   themselves and left.  I can't say that's what's
  


14   going to happen with Deepwater Winds, but I'm old
  


15   enough to be past altruism and have embraced fully
  


16   cynicism, and the only thing I can say about the
  


17   whole damn thing is, follow the money.  Thank you.
  


18           MR. GAGNON:  The next speaker is
  


19   Christopher Warfel.
  


20           MR. WARFEL:  Christopher Warfel
  


21   (W-a-r-f-e-l).  I'm going to speak to DEM since
  


22   you probably all know exactly what I'm going to
  


23   say -- and Michael Elliot.  My name is Christopher
  


24   Warfel.  I was elected to the Town Council this
  


25   past year and began service December 3rd of 2012.
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 1   I'm a registered professional engineer with 30
  


 2   years of experience in the field of energy
  


 3   utilization and 27 years of experience in utility
  


 4   generation, renewable energy generation and energy
  


 5   conservation.
  


 6           I've been published several times in
  


 7   issues ranging from the use of wind power to
  


 8   provide potable water, to industrial financial
  


 9   behavior for investing in energy efficiency, to
  


10   administration of the nationally awarded
  


11   Department of Energy Program to encourage the
  


12   development of renewal energy technology in grid
  


13   isolated diesel generated power systems, such as
  


14   Block Island.  My intention today is to convey to
  


15   DEM that this project has been misrepresented with
  


16   respect to its supposed public benefit, and should
  


17   not go forward.
  


18           I believe DEM, itself, has made some
  


19   mistakes in its calculations regarding emission
  


20   reductions in its submittal to the Rhode Island
  


21   Public Utilities Commission dated July 20th, 2010.
  


22   I believe this project is a poor use of the waters
  


23   under the trust of the State, and it is an
  


24   economic albatross around the ratepayers of
  


25   National Grid and Block Island Power Company.
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 1   This project will be an economic windfall to DB
  


 2   Shaw, one of the hedge funds behind this project,
  


 3   a company that has been behind similar ventures
  


 4   and has a poor track record, in my opinion.
  


 5           I'd like to give a little context to DEM
  


 6   as to how we got here, in my opinion.  Formerly, I
  


 7   was a member of the Electric Utility Task Group
  


 8   for the Town of New Shoreham.  Our task, in
  


 9   essence, was to see if we could purchase Block
  


10   Island Power Company in order to form a co-op
  


11   under the guise of lowering electric rates on the
  


12   Island.
  


13           Three years later, we delivered what Mr.
  


14   McGinnis, Sr., Dr. Gazazza and Dr. Emandi
  


15   (phonetic), I don't know how to spell his name,
  


16   sorry.  We delivered their asking price, they then
  


17   tripled the asking price.  That left us with a
  


18   very desperate Town Council, which I feel is
  


19   exactly the situation that companies such as DB
  


20   Shaw was seeking.  So, our Town Council was
  


21   desperate, and they grasped at the concept of a
  


22   cable.
  


23           Going through the record it is apparent
  


24   that the Town, even with a $12 million budget, did
  


25   not allocate financial resources to properly
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 1   analyze this project.  Even when they were told
  


 2   they incorrectly analyzed the project, the Town
  


 3   did not, and still has not, conducted the proper
  


 4   analysis.  Today, we have people referring to the
  


 5   incorrect analysis as factual.  We just heard some
  


 6   people refer to a 40 percent reduction in energy.
  


 7           This was based upon an incorrect
  


 8   understanding of power contracting.  I'm going to
  


 9   respond to Mr. Baute's intentions that we had
  


10   qualified surveys that showed great support for
  


11   this project.  The survey out of Roger Williams
  


12   was done by a professor of architecture, including
  


13   such questions as:  Do you think wind turbines are
  


14   sexy?  This is not a serious survey.  It was not a
  


15   serious survey.
  


16           Also, I would like to point out that
  


17   electricity, while very expensive on Block Island,
  


18   is not one of the major cost drivers, or is not
  


19   the major cost drivers for businesses out here,
  


20   it's probably number 4, and I don't think the
  


21   money that is saved from any reduction, supposed
  


22   reduction in electricity, is necessarily going to
  


23   stay on this Island, it's going to go where the
  


24   business owners go.
  


25           I think DEM indirectly analyzed the power
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 1   production in energy usage of Deepwater Wind and
  


 2   Block Island Power Company and, hence, the
  


 3   environmental benefit.  DEM, Deepwater Wind and
  


 4   the Town of New Shoreham had mixed power and
  


 5   generation variables together, forgetting or
  


 6   ignoring that power is instantaneous, while energy
  


 7   is time dependent.
  


 8           We challenged Jeff Grybowski, the CEO of
  


 9   Deepwater to set the record straight, offering to
  


10   resign from the Town Council if he could prove me
  


11   wrong.  He declined, calling the intent for
  


12   clarity as silly and, instead, repeated the same
  


13   incorrect information.  How does this affect DEM
  


14   analysis?  It greatly overstates the environmental
  


15   benefit by ignoring the reality of BIPCO's energy
  


16   pattern and is incompatible with Deepwater Wind's
  


17   production.
  


18           I'll just refer you to this:  Block Island
  


19   Power Company is a summer peaking utility with a
  


20   very poor load factor of approximately, annually,
  


21   29 percent.  The wind energy on Block Island is
  


22   going to -- if we look at the mathematical
  


23   function -- most of the time the wind speed -- not
  


24   most of the time -- 40 percent of the time the
  


25   wind speed is going to be below the cut-in of
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 1   these wind turbines for the summer.  This also is
  


 2   -- you know, so we don't get the energy that we
  


 3   thought we would get.
  


 4           It doesn't match up with our energy usage
  


 5   and, in addition, we actually are not buying power
  


 6   from Deepwater, we're buying it from ISO-New
  


 7   England and nobody in this Town has done that
  


 8   calculation.  Let's see, if we look at graphs of
  


 9   ISO-New England generation, we hit right on their
  


10   peak.  So, we will be buying the highest cost of
  


11   electricity in New England, and with our poor load
  


12   factor, we'll be buying probably the most
  


13   expensive power in New England.  Again, we don't
  


14   buy power from Deepwater, we cannot claim
  


15   environmental benefits from Deepwater, all those
  


16   benefits are being claimed by National Grid.
  


17           I do believe there are some problems with
  


18   your analysis that you've provided to the PUC.
  


19   They used very old data, and using the most
  


20   current report from ISO-New England, which is
  


21   2012, there's been an overstatement, or there will
  


22   be a reduction of -- there is an error, that is
  


23   the best way to say it, an error of 50 percent in
  


24   the nitrous oxide emission.  There's a 91 percent
  


25   error in the SO2 emissions, and there's a 10
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 1   percent error in the carbon dioxide emissions.
  


 2           With respect to the benefit to Block
  


 3   Island Power Company, we found just mistakes,
  


 4   which meant there was a 76 percent error in NOx
  


 5   and 89 percent error in SO2, and I could not
  


 6   determine what the error would be in carbon
  


 7   dioxide in time for this presentation.  The
  


 8   ammonia calculation also appears to be very much
  


 9   an error.  13,210 pounds of ammonia are supposed
  


10   to be emitted by BIPCO, however, our resources
  


11   showed that BIPCO only has 670 pounds.  We think
  


12   the analysis is inaccurately calculating in the
  


13   slip and the SCR process.
  


14           It should also be noted that of all the
  


15   states in New England, Rhode Island has the second
  


16   lowest emissions, Vermont has the lowest.  So, if
  


17   you're really worried about the impact in Rhode
  


18   Island, this is another contributing error to the
  


19   analysis.  My recommendation to you, to DEM, I
  


20   know it's not within your purview but it's within
  


21   the state purview, that instead of taking so much
  


22   money out of the state economy, transferring it
  


23   from the mainland ratepayers and turning it to DB
  


24   Shaw is -- just work with the Town of New Shoreham
  


25   and other state agencies to develop our own
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 1   indigenous resources.
  


 2           I did that analysis.  That, coupled with
  


 3   energy conservation by far is the lowest cost
  


 4   option for the state and, actually, it's the
  


 5   lowest cost option for Block Island, and that is
  


 6   on another graph, which I will just highlight.  My
  


 7   point that I'd like to make is that we did not do
  


 8   our homework.  I think mistakes have been made in
  


 9   the analysis that overstate the benefit of the
  


10   project.  This project is not what it has been
  


11   purported to be as an economic benefit to the
  


12   Island, it's definitely not an economic benefit to
  


13   the state, and for that amount of money, we could
  


14   do so much more by developing indigenous resources
  


15   within Rhode Island.
  


16           40 percent of every project, in my
  


17   estimation, the dollars of that project stay
  


18   within the state, stay with the companies that do
  


19   it.  What's going to happen here is that almost
  


20   all the money is going to go to the investors.
  


21   Thank you.
  


22           MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  The next speaker
  


23   is Peter Lasser (sic).
  


24           MR. GREENMAN:  Good evening, everybody.
  


25   My handwriting is so horrible, I printed out my
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 1   last name, which is Greenman (G-r-e-e-n-m-a-n).  I
  


 2   am a -- I'm in my 19th full-time year out here,
  


 3   and Sandy and I are out here for eleven or twelve
  


 4   full months a year.  I mean, we both are -- I am
  


 5   speaking for her as well -- entirely in favor of
  


 6   alternative energy.  I do think that, clearly,
  


 7   that after all of us here are dead and gone, the
  


 8   entire area, state, country and throughout
  


 9   globally, certainly, in China, are going to be
  


10   very used to wind and solar generation.  I have
  


11   read Tom Friedman's book, Hot, Flat and Crowded.
  


12   He is either a one -- or I can't remember, a
  


13   three-time Pulitzer Prize winner.  He is a
  


14   journalist for the Block Island -- New York Times.
  


15   We would do well to have him, isn't that true,
  


16   Bruce?
  


17           I have also read a book by Bill McKennon.
  


18   He is active in this very same genre.  Bill is
  


19   from Vermont.  I have heard him speak and he, too,
  


20   is very familiar with what is happening to our
  


21   world.  All of these engineering details, fiscal
  


22   details and so on and so forth, they're totally
  


23   irrelevant.  This world is changing.  His book
  


24   called, EEARTH, E-E-A-R-T-H, and the reason for
  


25   that is, is that the earth that all of us here
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 1   grew up in as kids, nobody here will ever see that
  


 2   again.  That earth is totally gone.  So, it must
  


 3   be spelled in a different way.
  


 4           We have, within the last few months
  


 5   experienced, with Super Storm Sandy -- didn't even
  


 6   qualify as a hurricane out here -- damage millions
  


 7   of dollars.  Some of that came from the Feds, some
  


 8   of it came from the State.  Much of it is coming
  


 9   right out of our pockets here in the repair of our
  


10   beach pavilion.  So, anyway, it is a mystery to me
  


11   how anybody who can read these two books would
  


12   ever find any fault with wind generation or solar
  


13   generation.
  


14           A few years ago the nature conservancy in
  


15   their wonderful magazine wrote a beautiful article
  


16   on wind generation, and it made very clear,
  


17   there's good places to do it and there's bad
  


18   places to do it.  The best place to do it is the
  


19   ocean where the winds are more constant and
  


20   favorable for producible.  As for here in our
  


21   country, those best sources are the Atlantic Ocean
  


22   and not the Pacific Ocean, but even though you can
  


23   generate certainly wonderful electricity from wind
  


24   generation of the land, it is much less efficient
  


25   than if it were in the ocean.
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 1           Financial condition on Deepwater Wind:  I
  


 2   started to read some of these letters from people
  


 3   that want to take potshots at Deepwater Wind, and
  


 4   somebody is going to make a big windfall.  My
  


 5   attitude is these investors have invested their
  


 6   own money in this company.  If they make a
  


 7   windfall, God bless them is my take here.  They
  


 8   are at enormous risk right now.  Are they going to
  


 9   make mistakes?  Of course they are.  This is the
  


10   first time operation for this -- and there are
  


11   lots of risks involved.  So, are they going to
  


12   make mistakes, I expect them to.  Are they going
  


13   to be corrected, I expect them to.  Anything
  


14   that's this new and this huge, there are going to
  


15   be bugs and they are going to be worked out.  So,
  


16   anybody that wants to take -- I was in accounting
  


17   and financial all my life.  I have no interest in
  


18   Deepwater Wind's financial statements and so on
  


19   and so forth.
  


20           The state has found fit to sit down and
  


21   write a contract with them and, so, I think all of
  


22   these potshots are from people, really, that have
  


23   a problem with the -- what they think is going to
  


24   be the appearance, the bad appearance of five
  


25   turbines out at sea.  If this is a problem with
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 1   them, and this is my last point, this is what I
  


 2   urge you to do:  Just look out here or anywhere
  


 3   else on the Island.
  


 4           You want to see something ugly, look at
  


 5   our electrical and telephone distribution system.
  


 6   It is the ugliest you could ever want to see.
  


 7   However, we're so used to it, we've been used to
  


 8   this since birth and, so, we don't even see it
  


 9   anymore, but if you really want to see something
  


10   ugly, go down to Chapel Street and look towards
  


11   Estes Park and all of this construction of all of
  


12   these poles, none of which are plumb, or level, or
  


13   anything else, is just a hobble affront.
  


14           So, anyway -- and further, I don't find
  


15   the turbines at all ugly, but if it's appearance
  


16   that bothers you, just look right outside your
  


17   door.  Thank you.
  


18           MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Barbara --
  


19   because I'm going to mess up your last name.
  


20           MS. MacMULLAN:  I guess we all have bad
  


21   handwriting on Block Island.  My name is Barbara
  


22   MacMullan (M-a-c-M-u-l-l-a-n).  I also want to
  


23   say, as Bill Penn did, that I'm a member of the
  


24   Town Board, the Electric Utility Task Group, but
  


25   I'm speaking today on behalf of just myself and
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 1   not any groups.  I'd like to speak in favor of
  


 2   Deepwater Wind Farm, I think it will provide
  


 3   enormous economic and environmental benefits to
  


 4   Block Island.  We can quibble about the numbers,
  


 5   and we can argue about whether it's 10 pounds of
  


 6   CO2 or 20 pounds of CO2, but the matter of this
  


 7   will be to reduce the consumption of diesel fuel
  


 8   on the Island and to substitute that with wind
  


 9   power from the wind farm.
  


10           At the same time, our rates will go down.
  


11   We can argue about whether it will be 20 percent
  


12   or 40 percent or 60 percent, but the fact is that
  


13   our rates will go down.  In terms of the impact on
  


14   the mainland, while the project is expensive and
  


15   the cost of power is higher than -- from the wind
  


16   farm is higher than the average cost of power
  


17   being generated or purchased on the mainland, the
  


18   wind farm -- the Block Island Wind Farm will
  


19   provide only a small portion of the total
  


20   electricity consumed on the mainland.  So, the
  


21   overall economic impact on mainland Rhode Island
  


22   will be small.
  


23           And, finally, I think it will be a
  


24   tremendous boom to the economy in this Island,
  


25   which has struggles with high costs on every
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 1   facet.  We just went through with the ferry -- I
  


 2   think as an Island, we should support the project
  


 3   and look forward to the benefits that we'll
  


 4   receive.  Thank you.
  


 5           MR. GAGNON:  Henry DuPont?
  


 6           MR. DuPONT:  Henry DuPont.  I'm a
  


 7   year-round resident of the Island for all my adult
  


 8   life.  I served three terms on the Town Council.
  


 9   I want to thank you guys for coming down here
  


10   today, it's important to hold these hearings in
  


11   the places that are most affected.  I'm also a
  


12   35-year wind energy project consultant and, most
  


13   recently, I worked for COVEN (phonetic), which is
  


14   the largest offshore wind energy consulting firm
  


15   in the world with projects that total over 2,000
  


16   megawatts.
  


17           Of course, since we don't have any
  


18   projects here yet, they're all in Europe, Asia,
  


19   and places like that.  So, I reviewed the
  


20   Deepwater Wind Application at the Army Corps of
  


21   Engineers and to DEM, and I note that the cable
  


22   runs and the installation procedures, in my
  


23   opinion, follow offshore wind energy best
  


24   management procedures, and they've done quite a
  


25   bit to mitigate the environmental impact of
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 1   installing the cables through directional drilling
  


 2   and cofferdams and other stuff, of course, and
  


 3   especially I know that people have been looking at
  


 4   marine animals and a number of other issues with
  


 5   regard to installing the structures offshore.  So,
  


 6   this all -- I believe, the environmental impact of
  


 7   the actual construction activities have been well
  


 8   addressed and have been mitigated.
  


 9           I also note in the big picture that there
  


10   are significant environmental benefits to Block
  


11   Island and to the region, as a whole, especially
  


12   with regard to emissions with diesel fuel
  


13   transportation risk and also with -- when you live
  


14   on an island, seawater rises is an important issue
  


15   and, so, we need to do everything we can in New
  


16   England and around to embrace forms of energy
  


17   generation which will not put us underwater in the
  


18   next few years.
  


19           Lastly, this project has significant --
  


20   not only environment but economic impacts to the
  


21   Island, somewhere in the neighborhood of $2
  


22   million a year in electrical savings from getting
  


23   power from the low cost mainland power grid, and
  


24   that is a significant economic benefit to the
  


25   Island.  So, thank you again for your time, and I
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 1   appreciate your good review of this project.
  


 2           MR. GAGNON:  Edith Littlefield Blane.
  


 3           MS. BLANE:  I thank you for coming, Mr.
  


 4   Elliot, who was gracious enough to answer my
  


 5   letter, and everybody in the room.  I currently
  


 6   have a different outlook about this project
  


 7   because I've lived here my entire life, which is
  


 8   84 years right now, and I'm not entirely convinced
  


 9   by the studies that have been done and the recent
  


10   letter from the National Park Service -- which was
  


11   printed in the Block Island Times -- had one item
  


12   that was not in there, in the original, which said
  


13   that an environmental impact statement should be
  


14   made.
  


15           Now, we had a report done -- so it was
  


16   said that Deepwater did a report, an environmental
  


17   report, which is a lot different than an impact
  


18   statement, and I'm sure you gentlemen all know
  


19   that.  When the first survey came out, I was in
  


20   favor of it and I answered in favor of it, but as
  


21   time went on and the more I thought about it, I
  


22   looked at what was going to transpire.  I have no
  


23   objection to the blades themselves.  I think
  


24   they're beautiful, I've seen them on the mainland.
  


25   On the other hand, we're used to the black velvet
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 1   nights of the Mohegan Bluffs and the Southeast
  


 2   Light, which is historic -- and has been preserved
  


 3   at great cost emotionally and financially.  I
  


 4   think to, you know, jeopardize that in any way,
  


 5   would be hard for me to accept.
  


 6           I could accept the blades themselves, but
  


 7   I think the bells, the whistles and the lights,
  


 8   which we know are going to be on them, because
  


 9   where are they going to be.  I don't -- I'm not
  


10   entirely convinced that they have studied
  


11   thoroughly the fragility of the bluffs.  We are at
  


12   a slump there.  If I were a property owner along
  


13   those bluffs, I would really be worried.
  


14           The other thing that really bothered me in
  


15   looking at the background and how Governor
  


16   Carcieri was quoted in the paper as saying that we
  


17   did not have enough people here to really matter
  


18   for any kind of objection, and we all know we're a
  


19   small community and we don't have any political
  


20   clout because we have no senator or representative
  


21   who lives on Block Island, and unless you live
  


22   here, you don't know really what Block Island is
  


23   like on a twelve-month basis for a lifetime.
  


24           I know that the pluses are going to be
  


25   good, and I fear also for the businesses in the
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 1   State of Rhode Island because their electricity is
  


 2   going to be greatly increased on this project, and
  


 3   I think that if these were not going to be within
  


 4   half-a-mile to three miles from Block Island, it
  


 5   would be a lot easier for me to accept that,
  


 6   therefore, I would just like to have my objections
  


 7   noted in the record.  Thank you.
  


 8           MR. GAGNON:  Norris Pike?
  


 9           MR. PIKE:  Good afternoon, my name is
  


10   Norris Pike, I'm a member of Block Island's Town
  


11   Council and have been involved with the local
  


12   politics on the Island for quite a few years.  I
  


13   was a member of the Utility Task Force at one
  


14   point and active on the Planning Board of Block
  


15   Island, both as a member and its chairman.
  


16           I am also a proud member of Block Island's
  


17   codfish aristocracy.  My descendants go back to
  


18   Justin Dodge who came to Block Island to teach the
  


19   original settlers how to fish.  I started my
  


20   working career early in life fishing out of Point
  


21   Judith, and some of our best fishing was around
  


22   dumping grounds or wreck sites and structure on
  


23   the bottom that invited fish in to live.  Probably
  


24   the best spots were around the torpedo's dumping
  


25   grounds, I caught a few of those, those aren't
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 1   good.
  


 2           I also visited Denmark when my daughter
  


 3   was in school in Copenhagen and noticed the beauty
  


 4   of all of their wind turbines out on their outer
  


 5   harbor around Copenhagen, the Jutland Peninsula,
  


 6   and it astounded me, it was awesome.  To me, it
  


 7   was just beautiful.  I'm sure there's others in
  


 8   this audience that would disagree to the beauty of
  


 9   turbines, but I see them sprouting up in Wickford,
  


10   Providence, Fair Haven.  To me, it's a step in the
  


11   right direction.
  


12           I think the bottom line is whether or not
  


13   we believe that there's a problem with global
  


14   warming.  I, personally, believe there is.  I've
  


15   worked outside all my life.  I have scars on my
  


16   face from skin cancer.  My insurance rates are
  


17   higher because of skin cancer.  I think the ozone
  


18   hole over North America is something that most
  


19   people aren't aware of.  The amount of nitrous
  


20   oxide spewed out of diesel engines gobble up the
  


21   ozone on a significant basis.
  


22           Whatever Block Island can do to offset
  


23   some of this emission is probably just a small
  


24   step, but in the long run, I think if everybody
  


25   takes small steps, we'll get a big step.  They say
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 1   in the next 90 years we're looking at a three to a
  


 2   six-foot ocean rise due to global warming.  I
  


 3   don't disbelieve it.  I think there's enough
  


 4   science out there to be able to put your finger on
  


 5   it, and it's not our generation.
  


 6           Nobody sitting in this room is going to
  


 7   realize any significant change, it's our children
  


 8   and our grandchildren that are coming along that
  


 9   we're going to leave our world to, that we need to
  


10   make changes for.  Can they look back in history
  


11   and blame us for not doing what we could to offset
  


12   this problem?  I think DB Shaw is entitled to
  


13   profit.  They are taking a significant risk with
  


14   what they're doing.  If they make millions, great,
  


15   that's what America was built on and will continue
  


16   to be built on.
  


17           I think we need to go forward and accept
  


18   that we need to change the world that we live in.
  


19   We can no longer continue burning and consuming
  


20   massive quantities of fossil fuel.  China is
  


21   taking steps to get into the big picture of wind
  


22   industry.  The Europeans have been doing it for
  


23   years, they had to.  The cost of fuel for them was
  


24   significantly higher than in the states where fuel
  


25   and water were synonymous, but that's changing.
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 1   $4 a gallon for diesel fuel that we burn to make
  


 2   electricity with has had a significant economic
  


 3   impact on Block Island, and if we can change that,
  


 4   reduce it by 20 percent, 10 percent even, to spill
  


 5   some of that money back into our economy, I think
  


 6   the survival rate of old codfish aristocracy, guys
  


 7   like myself, will be a better thing.  Thank you.
  


 8           MR. GAGNON:  Maggie Delia?
  


 9           MS. DELIA:  Thank you for coming to Block
  


10   Island.  I'm going to address the room since I've
  


11   addressed you before in Narragansett.  Maggie
  


12   Delia (D-e-l-i-a).  I'm sitting here thinking
  


13   about what can I say to you because when someone
  


14   speaks, it's not just the words that they say but
  


15   it's who's listening to them, and a lot of you
  


16   don't know me, some of you do.  Some of you just
  


17   know me as someone who doesn't like this project.
  


18   Some of you know me as a friend.  Some of you know
  


19   me as a part of your community.  I am not an
  


20   expert in wind energy, though, I know more about
  


21   wind energy more than I ever thought I would know
  


22   in this lifetime.  What I am an expert in is being
  


23   on the ground upfront and personal with this
  


24   project since 2009.
  


25           I've seen things that I thought I would
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 1   never see.  We read about things in the newspaper
  


 2   about our government.  Well, in Rhode Island, it's
  


 3   as bad as you might think it is in your worst
  


 4   dreams.  Not that there aren't some good people
  


 5   out there because I've met some extraordinarily
  


 6   great people with great integrity, but that's not
  


 7   the business, as usual, in government.
  


 8           What has me working on this day after day
  


 9   is because I really do care about the future for
  


10   our children and our grandchildren, and I don't
  


11   think that future is going to get fixed by the
  


12   same people who messed it up to begin with.  Who
  


13   Deepwater Wind is, is, a hedge fund.  They were
  


14   introduced tonight as an LLC.  An LLC is a paper
  


15   company, it has no assets.  If we have 660-foot
  


16   wind turbines out in our ocean and something goes
  


17   wrong with them, there is no way to fix them.  If
  


18   lightening strikes these things and they are
  


19   burning, there aren't any 660 -- well, maybe it's
  


20   only 400 feet because the blades -- you don't have
  


21   to go up to the blades, you go to NSL.  There even
  


22   aren't any vehicles, no boats, no nothing to get
  


23   up to 400 feet to fix these things when they're on
  


24   fire, they will just be on fire until they burn
  


25   out, and the thing I want to say to you is,
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 1   really, take this seriously, you know, and I might
  


 2   say some really stupid things here but they're
  


 3   real things, like logical things.
  


 4           Like, when you've been to that great
  


 5   restaurant and you really love -- because I worry
  


 6   about tourism here, too -- when you go to that
  


 7   great restaurant that's really cute and small, and
  


 8   they have so many people that they change and they
  


 9   make it bigger, and then it's not the same
  


10   restaurant and you don't want to go there anymore.
  


11   This is not going to be the same Island having
  


12   660-foot turbines hanging over it.  If I just do
  


13   that to you right now, that's kind of dominating,
  


14   you know.  That's what it's like to be in the
  


15   presence of something that tall.
  


16           I screwed up a long time ago when I didn't
  


17   know and didn't care about -- and it's not that I
  


18   didn't care, it's just really that I didn't know
  


19   the impact of the electricity rate on this Island,
  


20   because had I known then, I don't think we'd be in
  


21   this shape right now talking about this, I think
  


22   something different would have happened, and we
  


23   would be insured that this Island was the same
  


24   beautiful unique place that it is right now.
  


25           Wind energy is not good renewable energy.
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 1   I will work on having electricity go down on this
  


 2   Island, you can count on me for that, because I've
  


 3   learned my lesson.  I've been working for almost
  


 4   five years to not have this happen because I
  


 5   screwed up and didn't know about the electricity
  


 6   rates and the impact that it had on everyone,
  


 7   which was the big opening for Deepwater Wind to
  


 8   come to this Island and say we're going to fix
  


 9   everything for you, but I'll tell you something,
  


10   Deepwater Wind is a hedge fund.  They are
  


11   lobbyists, and our corporations and our government
  


12   work together to make sure that they get what they
  


13   want.
  


14           When I hear tonight that people say it's
  


15   only a little bit of money for the mainland, it's
  


16   not a little bit of money for people.  Everything
  


17   is meaningful for people that don't have a lot of
  


18   money.  It's a half-a-billion dollars over market
  


19   for this energy.  I don't see how you can justify
  


20   that.  I listen to fishermen in Narragansett
  


21   because I've been in Narragansett now for the past
  


22   few months listening to that community, and this
  


23   cable will go directly through their winter
  


24   flounder breeding grounds, breeding grounds that
  


25   they haven't been able to fish for a number of
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 1   years that are now opened up and they said, well,
  


 2   the cable will go through there and it will, you
  


 3   know, destroy your eggs and larvae but, you know,
  


 4   that's a little something that we have to give up.
  


 5   Well, you're going to pay more for this than over
  


 6   market, but that's a little something that we have
  


 7   to give up.
  


 8           Well, you're going to have, you know,
  


 9   poles and substations and big turbines, and that's
  


10   a little something we just have to give up, and I
  


11   say there's something possible that doesn't have
  


12   to be, that we're all working on different sides,
  


13   because I'm for renewable energy.  I'm an
  


14   environmentalist my entire life, actively for the
  


15   past, you know, thirty years.  I put my money
  


16   where my mouth is about that.  I give a lot of
  


17   money to environmental groups, and I do a lot of
  


18   work with them.
  


19           There's so much commitment in this room.
  


20   People who are for renewable energy getting the
  


21   electric rate down, you know, doing the right
  


22   thing for this Island, keeping the Island, you
  


23   know, the way that it is.  I am for that, too.
  


24   Deepwater Winds and the hedge fund, their job is
  


25   to make money.  Governor Carcieri pushed this
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 1   thing through.
  


 2           If you want to find out about that, talk
  


 3   to, you know, your commissioners at the PUC.  They
  


 4   got more pressure to put that thing through than
  


 5   anything they've ever seen before and when they
  


 6   turned it down, I was at the State House and
  


 7   watched Deepwater Winds write the new piece of
  


 8   legislation that was foolproof, that no one could
  


 9   deny.
  


10           Narragansett just suspended negotiations
  


11   with Deepwater Wind for the landfall.  They did
  


12   that because a new Town Council member there said
  


13   he couldn't stand how much back room conversations
  


14   there were.  He wanted a public transparent
  


15   process, and he wanted time on their own to do the
  


16   research they needed to find out if it was a good
  


17   project.  Not that they would just listen to
  


18   Deepwater Wind about whether or not it was a good
  


19   project.  He just, you know, he held up, you know,
  


20   a huge stack of paper he just got through Docket
  


21   4111, and he still has to get through the next
  


22   docket, but he's serious about the impact that
  


23   this thing is going to have on their town.
  


24           We need to get serious about the impact on
  


25   this town.  Whether you're for it or against it, I
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 1   can find all the studies in the world that will
  


 2   prove my points, and if you are for it, you can
  


 3   find all the studies in the world that are for
  


 4   your points.  You have got to talk to the real
  


 5   people who are living with these wind turbines.
  


 6   You have to look at the real numbers.  The 40
  


 7   percent output of these wind turbines is not
  


 8   reality that's happening, it's 25 percent.
  


 9           In Scotland, they just spent $2 million.
  


10   They gave $2 million to wind farms to shut down
  


11   for the day because they were getting too much
  


12   energy at National Grid in Scotland, and how they
  


13   worked that out is, they didn't turn down other
  


14   sources of energy because they're too hard and
  


15   they use too much energy to go up and down, so
  


16   they just turned off 13 wind farms and paid them
  


17   $2 million.
  


18           I believe we really want the right thing.
  


19   Our government doesn't necessarily do the right
  


20   thing, and we're, most of us, old enough in here
  


21   to know that something that might look like it can
  


22   help us has many, many drawbacks.  Like, you know,
  


23   sometimes I think I'm listening to Saturday Night
  


24   Live about, you know, we can fix your fungus on
  


25   your toenails only you might die, you might have
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 1   seizures, you know, it's like all of those things.
  


 2   There are really some drawbacks to this.
  


 3           So, I ask you to listen to me like a
  


 4   member of your community because that's who I
  


 5   consider myself to be.  I know I'm a summer person
  


 6   for some of you.  I know I'm an NIMBY for some of
  


 7   you.  I know some of you think all I care about is
  


 8   my view.  I know some of you think I really care
  


 9   dearly about, you know, the future.  However, you
  


10   listen to me, I am committed to being in a
  


11   relationship in communication with you about this,
  


12   and there's lots and lots that I know about this,
  


13   and I ask you to please call on me.  Thank you.
  


14           MR. GAGNON:  I need some help with this
  


15   one.  I think the initials are T. R. --
  


16           MR. DOYLE:  Doyle.  Tom Doyle.  Most of
  


17   you know me, I've had a home on the Island for 23
  


18   years, and I have lived here full-time since 2007.
  


19   I would like to reiterate the facts echoed by the
  


20   previous speakers to the DEM and the Army Corps of
  


21   Engineers for coming and listening to us, both the
  


22   pros and cons.
  


23           As most of you know, I'm against the
  


24   deepwater demonstration project.  I jotted down
  


25   seven -- very brief, seven brief reasons why I'm
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 1   against it.  First of all, the procedure to which
  


 2   several previous speakers have alluded, Little
  


 3   Compton turned it down, Jamestown turned it down
  


 4   and then we have the Deepwater Demonstration
  


 5   Project on Block Island, and most people have no
  


 6   awareness that that's what was going on.
  


 7           My second reason is the wanted BIRA
  


 8   survey.  As Mark Twain said, "There are lives,
  


 9   there are damn lives, and there are statistics."
  


10   This is an excellent example of irresponsible
  


11   statistics.  I stated very briefly, and I know
  


12   good people disagree, I'm not saying those who
  


13   quote the survey are evil, and I am good.  I'm
  


14   just pointing this out.
  


15           There were many marginal comments to that
  


16   survey which qualified the opinion that we are in
  


17   favor of wind farm.  For example, people who are
  


18   in favor of a wind farm are far enough away that
  


19   they couldn't see it, et cetera, et cetera.  Those
  


20   comments were never published although, full
  


21   disclosure, the BIRA Board asked Dr. Papalitas
  


22   (phonetic), who lead the survey, to publish those
  


23   things and they were never published.  The
  


24   mysteries of science.
  


25           My third reason, which has also been
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 1   alluded to was the override of the Public
  


 2   Utilities Commission or PUC.  They thought that
  


 3   the electricity generated would be too expensive,
  


 4   and I think they were right, I'll leave that up to
  


 5   you.
  


 6           The fourth reason is there's a need for a
  


 7   cable.  However, it's very interesting that the
  


 8   cost for the cable, if you look at it, has jumped
  


 9   up and down, whereas, the consumer price index has
  


10   not.  Now, you hear about the price of copper,
  


11   that's what driving it up, the cost of labor, that
  


12   may all be so but that, really, has not been
  


13   investigated, at least I don't think it has.
  


14           My fifth reason, I am not a -- "Not In My
  


15   Backyard Person," I won't see the windmills.  I'm
  


16   not opposed to them.  In fact, I'm not opposed to
  


17   alternative energy.  I think it's a wonderful
  


18   idea, I'm just opposed to this version of
  


19   alternative energy.  However, one must note that
  


20   it's very easy to say, if you're not looking at
  


21   them, "Well, I think they're beautiful structural
  


22   entities," but you're not looking at them.  That
  


23   should be left to the people that look at them.
  


24           Part of this is that we're giving up our
  


25   view, and we'll be giving up some other things and
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 1   we have gotten very little in return.  In fact,
  


 2   many of us feel we've been rolled by Deepwater
  


 3   Wind.  For example, we've talked about burying our
  


 4   electrical wires.  Why couldn't that be done?
  


 5   And, once again, I'm a capitalist.  I think it's
  


 6   the worst best system we have.  The other systems
  


 7   don't work.  Ours works.  However, there is an
  


 8   issue of fairness, and as long someone has a lot
  


 9   of cash, they either have to give it -- which they
  


10   usually don't -- but you have to be smart enough
  


11   to take it away from them and we haven't done
  


12   that.
  


13           My sixth reason is the -- talk about
  


14   energy bills.  The projections are 20 to 40
  


15   percent, and this is a good thing.  However, no
  


16   one has mentioned the escalator clause that
  


17   National Grid has.  If the escalator clause works
  


18   and if inflation kicks in, God forbid.  So far we
  


19   don't have any inflation, but we could well end up
  


20   spending as much or more for energy than we are
  


21   now.  There's something to be considered.
  


22           Lastly, we hear a lot of talk about this
  


23   is going to be -- the environment is going to be
  


24   clean, our grandchildren, et cetera, will live in
  


25   a pollution-free environment, that's a losery.  I,
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 1   like you, I would love to see a cleaner
  


 2   environment, and I would do everything in my power
  


 3   to make that so, but practicality tells us that
  


 4   we're going to be dependent on fossil fuels for
  


 5   the foreseeable future.  Coal, oil, gas won't go
  


 6   away.  When the wind turbines shut down, the
  


 7   diesel generators pick up, and they're not running
  


 8   on sea algae, they're running on fossil fuel.  You
  


 9   all know that.  As the man said, I digress.
  


10           And, lastly, Governor Carcieri and his
  


11   group when they propounded this, they talked a lot
  


12   about jobs in Rhode Island, it would bring jobs to
  


13   Rhode Island in the depressed economy.  These are
  


14   all laudable ideas, and I am not mocking them,
  


15   however, the latest evidence indicates that those
  


16   jobs are not forthcoming.  Thank you.
  


17           MR. BIANCULLI:  Folks.  Before we announce
  


18   the next speaker, if those of you that are
  


19   standing, if you wish to come in, there are a few
  


20   seats up here, you can sit up here.  We're just
  


21   visitors to this room today, and if you do wish to
  


22   sign in, there's still a sign-in sheet for giving
  


23   public comments over there as soon as you enter
  


24   the room.
  


25           MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Millie
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 1   McGinnis.
  


 2           MS. McGINNIS:  Hi, my name is Millie
  


 3   McGinnis (M-c-G-i-n-n-i-s).  I'm going to speak
  


 4   very briefly this afternoon.  I'm going to then
  


 5   excuse myself to be with my family, but I live
  


 6   here and I work here year-round, and I just want
  


 7   to say that I support this project with a big warm
  


 8   heart for it.  I look forward to it going forward.
  


 9   I'm hoping that the permitting process will
  


10   continue.
  


11           It's a good thing for Block Island
  


12   environmentally and economically.  I feel for
  


13   Rhode Island, for the economic development
  


14   potential it brings.  It's a good thing for Rhode
  


15   Island.  I see it as a good thing for the nation,
  


16   for some innovation and technology, and I
  


17   certainly think it's a great thing, so, bring it
  


18   on.  Thank you.
  


19           MR. GAGNON:  Rob Gilpin?
  


20           MR. GILPIN:  Thank you.  I would just like
  


21   to say that I support this project.  I've watched
  


22   it from the beginning and I think you really need
  


23   to start at the beginning and how it started, and
  


24   it was the governor and the state that put in an
  


25   RFP, and the first proposal that I saw showed 130
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 1   wind turbines all around Block Island.  Now, I
  


 2   opposed that, I didn't think it was feasible, and
  


 3   then it was Deepwater, this contractor that came
  


 4   forward and said, we don't think you ought to do
  


 5   that.  We'd like to see six to eight around Block
  


 6   Island and then move the bulk of them offshore,
  


 7   which is more of a proposal that I could support.
  


 8           I've been involved with Deepwater.  I
  


 9   monitor their med (sic) equipment while I was on
  


10   the Island, and I have lived here for 35 years,
  


11   year-round.  The wind blows out here.  You have to
  


12   put the turbines where the wind is, and I
  


13   supported the governor and the legislature.
  


14   They're not only thinking of Block Island, this is
  


15   an opportunity to bring offshore wind to Rhode
  


16   Island.  Realizing that this country doesn't have
  


17   the infrastructure, they had to start with baby
  


18   steps.
  


19           I've been to Quonset point for years, it's
  


20   been well underdeveloped, and this is a perfect
  


21   opportunity to put Rhode Island in the forefront
  


22   of developing offshore wind on the East Coast.
  


23   Now, that's forward thinking, in my mind.  I live
  


24   on Mohegan Trail, I'm going to have to look at
  


25   them.  It's a risk I'm willing to take.  The power







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - May 08, 2013


58


  
 1   bills really don't affect me.  I conserve, but I
  


 2   know there's a lot of people who are elderly that
  


 3   their power bill in the summer can be seven or
  


 4   $800 a month.
  


 5           Currently, I've been on the Planning Board
  


 6   for ten years, and I served on the Zoning Board
  


 7   one, and the North Light Commission for over 20.
  


 8   So, I've been on the other side of the table, and
  


 9   the only thing I request of you is, take the
  


10   emotion out of it and examine the record.  All the
  


11   information is there.  You can debate the benefits
  


12   until the cows come home, but the bottom line is,
  


13   I think it's a benefit for this community and for
  


14   the State of Rhode Island.
  


15           I did read the comments from the Park
  


16   Service on the Southeast Light and the impact, and
  


17   I did meet with Bill Bulger and Marianne Abacus
  


18   (phonetic) when she came to the Island to do the
  


19   assessment, and I was just curious on what
  


20   criteria do you evaluate this?  She looked at me
  


21   and said, there is none.  So, my point is, is
  


22   whether it's going to have an impact?  Obviously,
  


23   yes, but I ask you to consider this one thing:
  


24   Lighthouses were never enamored the way they are
  


25   today.  They were essentially utility structures,
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 1   not unlike wind turbines.
  


 2           When they were built, personally, for the
  


 3   North Light, they built four lighthouses in 38
  


 4   years because they just couldn't find the right
  


 5   site and, historically, they were built and they
  


 6   knew when they built the Southeast Light that it
  


 7   would have to be moved some day, or they would
  


 8   demolish it.  So, you've got to look at the
  


 9   historic value in that context.  I'm also aware
  


10   that the Coast Guard is planning to remove Cape
  


11   Lookouts First Order Lens and, in my opinion, that
  


12   will have more of an impact on the historic
  


13   Southeast Light than the wind turbines that are
  


14   three miles away.  Thank you.
  


15           MR. GAGNON:  Sean McGarry?
  


16           MR. McGARRY:  My name is Sean McGarry
  


17   M-c-G-a-r-r-y.  Good evening, and thank you for
  


18   coming to Block Island, Mr. Elliot, for being
  


19   proactive in getting a jump start on your
  


20   hearings.  My name is Sean McGarry, I'm a member
  


21   of the New Shoreham Town Council.  I am also
  


22   Chairman of the Democratic Town Committee, and I
  


23   want to talk briefly about why I'm opposed to the
  


24   overall project and, then, I want to focus on what
  


25   this hearing is really about.
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 1           Of course the visual impact and the
  


 2   quality of life is going to be greatly impacted
  


 3   for those of us who have lived here a great
  


 4   portion of our lives.  My family originally
  


 5   settled here in 1919.  I have two boys in the
  


 6   school and they represent the fifth generation of
  


 7   McGarrys here on the Island, and their quality of
  


 8   life is going to be greatly impacted by this.
  


 9   They'll never be able to know the pristine quality
  


10   of our vista that I was able to experience, that
  


11   four generations ahead of me were able to
  


12   experience and, hopefully, that my children will
  


13   some day be able to experience.
  


14           There's going to be a great impact on
  


15   tourism.  People say people are going to come to
  


16   see this.  Well, they might come and say, hey,
  


17   let's go check out and see what these fools did
  


18   over there because they really made a mess out of
  


19   that, but that's going to die out because what's
  


20   going to happen is, we're going to kill what is so
  


21   special and unique about our geographic isolation,
  


22   our unspoiled beauty.
  


23           This is going to represent
  


24   industrialization on a large scale in a very rural
  


25   isolated community that I'm sure you've enjoyed
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 1   seeing as you walked here or drove here, but
  


 2   moving forward -- oh, just briefly about the cost
  


 3   of electricity.  My health insurance is about
  


 4   $1,600 a month.  My electric bill in a year is
  


 5   about $1,600 a month.  So, if you want to do
  


 6   something for me, help me with my health insurance
  


 7   and not my electrical bill, but the reason for
  


 8   this hearing is the dredge application.
  


 9           Specifically, the application at this
  


10   point is incomplete.  I mean, they say that
  


11   they're going to land the cable in Narragansett,
  


12   but there's no agreement to land the cable in
  


13   Narragansett.  So, I don't understand why the
  


14   hearing would proceed anyway.  If they have to
  


15   change that location then, I guess, we would redo
  


16   this hearing again, and my hope is that you would
  


17   come back and we'd talk about the other location
  


18   because it would be very great, because if we were
  


19   to go to Charlestown, then we would land on West
  


20   Beach or Coast Guard Road.  I mean, everything
  


21   would change, all the dynamics.  Essentially, the
  


22   process should not have even started yet.
  


23           Now, why did they choose beaches as
  


24   landing areas for this cable?  The reason is
  


25   because there's an immense amount of equipment and







Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500
www.alliedcourtreporters.com


Deepwater Wind Project - May 08, 2013


62


  
 1   excavation, and demolition and destruction that's
  


 2   going to happen with this process:  The building
  


 3   of the cofferdams, the 40 acres of sea floor
  


 4   disturbance.  I like to call it sea floor
  


 5   destruction, but an immense, immense amount.
  


 6           So, they choose beaches because they can
  


 7   get the machinery in there and minimize the amount
  


 8   of impact, but there's going to be an enormous
  


 9   amount of impact.  There are a lot of issues that
  


10   are going to continue to be identified that aren't
  


11   identified yet.
  


12           We don't really understand what the impact
  


13   on the fishing stock is going to be, what the
  


14   issues with tidal -- or people talk about driving
  


15   the pilings and what effect that's going to have
  


16   on the bluffs.  You know, I can only imagine
  


17   driving a piling two and three quarter miles off
  


18   shore on our fragile bluffs, you know.  I can see
  


19   chunks of that falling off with that vibration,
  


20   maybe, I don't know, we don't know.  So, there
  


21   must be an environmental impact study to determine
  


22   not only the dredging impacts but the impacts of
  


23   the overall project.  So, I ask you to please,
  


24   please study those impacts thoroughly.
  


25           The public process for this has been
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 1   flawed from the start.  Here, on Block Island,
  


 2   there were never any public hearings.  We never
  


 3   had the opportunity to come and speak in front of
  


 4   the then Town Council, we weren't offered that
  


 5   opportunity.  The Public Utility Commission came
  


 6   out here for the first time and listened to us,
  


 7   and the next thing they did is they denied the
  


 8   Power Purchase Agreement with Deepwater Wind and
  


 9   then like people said, the legislature in their
  


10   infinite wisdom decided to legislate out the
  


11   people that were designated to protect us.
  


12           I'm looking to you to protect us as well
  


13   with our natural resources of our ocean floor and
  


14   our beaches and I hope that you don't, in turn,
  


15   get legislated out.  At this hearing today, this
  


16   time of the year there's only 25 percent of the
  


17   people that live here on the Island.  So, if this
  


18   were a month later, we would have had to have been
  


19   at the school because we would have been out far
  


20   into the street.
  


21           In a day like today -- and there are many
  


22   more to come like this, there would be no
  


23   electricity being generated by wind turbines.
  


24   What you would have is five competing foghorns,
  


25   not the tweeting of the birds but the five
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 1   foghorns fighting, and ten flashing lights.
  


 2   There's a lot of debate about what turbines do,
  


 3   whether there's positives or negatives.  One thing
  


 4   I will tell you that they do for certain is they
  


 5   divide communities.  This community is divided.
  


 6   The damage has already been done.  Thank you again
  


 7   for coming.
  


 8           MR. GAGNON:  Doreen Napoleone.
  


 9           MS. NAPOLEONE:  Hello, my name is Doreen
  


10   Napoleone (N-a-p-o-l-e-o-n-e).  I'd like to thank
  


11   the DEM and Army Corps for hearing our comments,
  


12   and everybody here.  I know this is a very
  


13   difficult topic, and I have many friends in the
  


14   room that we don't see eye-to-eye on this topic
  


15   and I am going to focus, I think, my comments
  


16   today on the environmental side since that is the
  


17   purpose of this hearing.
  


18           I realize this isn't a perfect project and
  


19   there's probably much about it that could be
  


20   improved, but I am for the wind turbines.  I was
  


21   very saddened to see the full page in our paper
  


22   this past week from a New Jersey-based
  


23   non-for-profit firm called Beautiful Block Island,
  


24   Inc. that was urging us to deny this project and
  


25   say no to it because of the birds and the fish,
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 1   and the lighthouse and the beauty of our Island.
  


 2           In that focus of the environment and the
  


 3   issues, I think it's so important to stress to
  


 4   everyone, and I know many of us know this, but
  


 5   there's overwhelming consensus among the
  


 6   scientific community that our planet is warming,
  


 7   the Arctic ice is melting, the sea levels are
  


 8   rising and man-made greenhouse gas and carbon
  


 9   dioxide such is that, that our power plant
  


10   produces is causing that problem.  So, for us to
  


11   talk about protecting our birds and our fish, and
  


12   our Island by burying our heads in the sand and
  


13   not addressing the problem head-on is very sad to
  


14   me.
  


15           I looked at our beaches after our storms
  


16   this winter, and our fish and our birds are very
  


17   damaged, and we need to be looking forward into
  


18   the future and what is there -- I don't have
  


19   children, but for the future generations to come
  


20   here.  I think that the offshore wind project is
  


21   an opportunity for this beautiful place to be a
  


22   leader, to lead and clean alternative energy in a
  


23   project that is not perfect, and I would encourage
  


24   all of you in the room that know all of the things
  


25   wrong with it to use that information to making it
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 1   a better project versus stopping the project.
  


 2           I feel like your comments about it being
  


 3   industrialized, we have a power plant in the
  


 4   middle of our Island, how much more industrial
  


 5   could that be?  We have a gigantic cell tower in
  


 6   the middle of our Island, those things are very
  


 7   industrial.  So I think we really need to sort of
  


 8   dwell and reflect on some of those comments, and I
  


 9   do feel that this project is not permanent.
  


10           Yes, we'll have some lights out there and
  


11   there will be some foghorns, but we talk about
  


12   this being turbines that are here for 20 years,
  


13   not a nuclear plant here forever, and 20 years
  


14   from now, people's grandchildren, maybe we'll see
  


15   the Southeast Light, maybe it will be there
  


16   because we won't have the super storms.  I know
  


17   it's a little project, a small impact to climate
  


18   change, but I feel it's important that we be
  


19   leaders in that process.  Thank you.
  


20           MR. GAGNON:  Dick Martin?
  


21           MR. MARTIN:  Dick Martin (M-a-r-t-i-n),
  


22   previous Town Council for the last six years.
  


23   I've worked at the Block Island Power Company for
  


24   32 years, still working there.  I'm not a
  


25   millionaire.  I made that very clear at the last
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 1   PUC meeting, I'm not, I wish I was.  I wish I was
  


 2   wealthy, as much as a lot of people in this room.
  


 3   I do respect a lot of you in this room for
  


 4   everything that you do say.
  


 5           I have a lot of issues, but I know when I
  


 6   moved to this Island and when I began to work at
  


 7   the Block Island Power Company, there was talk of
  


 8   the cable.  For 32 fricking years I've heard that
  


 9   that's what we need, is, a cable.  Franklin Renz
  


10   couldn't do it.  The previous owners, Mr.
  


11   McGinnis, Gerry Edwards and Dr. Gazazza, excuse
  


12   me, they couldn't do it.  They need help.  There's
  


13   only 2,000 customers out here, roughly, we can't
  


14   do it alone.  This was my way that I felt six
  


15   years ago or seven years almost now, when I went
  


16   on the council.  This is my way of trying to get a
  


17   cable.
  


18           I know it went from eight windmills down
  


19   to six to five, or whatever.  Who knows where it
  


20   will go before it's done, we're not there yet.  It
  


21   might go to three, who knows, but the cable is
  


22   what is more important to me than anything.  I
  


23   think it's more important to the Island.  That's
  


24   what has divided us.  Yes, we've had a civil war.
  


25   We've had a lot of arguments at our dinner tables,
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 1   whether it's in-laws, outlaws, or whatever you
  


 2   want to say, neighbors and, hopefully, we'll be
  


 3   friends after it's all over, still, but we have
  


 4   had the discussions and it's not being
  


 5   blind-sided, we all know what's going on.
  


 6           I am not an engineer, I do not know the
  


 7   answers, but I do know that I have seen a lot of
  


 8   businesses and a lot of people come and go because
  


 9   of electricity bills.  I've heard tonight that
  


10   it's the fourth level, wow.  If you were ever
  


11   around the first of the month and you heard the
  


12   electric bills come out, "This can't be my
  


13   electric bill, it must be somebody else's because
  


14   I couldn't do that."  Well, I don't get discounts
  


15   on my electric bills either.  In the summertime,
  


16   they're outrageous.
  


17           I talk to my family on the mainland.  I
  


18   wish that each and every one of you all that come
  


19   here tonight would call up every month and ask
  


20   what the electric rate was and compare it to your
  


21   electric and find out how much it would be, and
  


22   you'd understand where we said stand, but I am for
  


23   this project.  I'm not sure if it will go all the
  


24   way through, but I do know we need this cable, and
  


25   if we don't get this cable, damn it, I really hope
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 1   that each and every one of you that have fought
  


 2   this project stand up and get us a cable, and that
  


 3   should be a promise that we have before this is
  


 4   over, because we do need this cable, bad, this
  


 5   Island does.
  


 6           If you've ever owned a business on this
  


 7   Island -- I have not run a business -- but I've
  


 8   heard and seen a lot of them come and go, and I
  


 9   don't know how some of these people stay, but if
  


10   you go out to dinner here, it cost you $125 for
  


11   two people to go out and not have booze -- God
  


12   forbid if you need booze because it's going to be
  


13   more -- but $125 for a meal here is going to be a
  


14   lot more than you would have gotten from the
  


15   mainland, and that's my point, is, that we do live
  


16   here, and I live here 365 days a year.
  


17           I don't take vacations, very seldom.  I
  


18   only go off if it's a medical problem or if it's
  


19   something in the family.  So, this is where I do
  


20   still take my vacations.  I live here 365 days a
  


21   year, 32 years I've been here.  I want to thank
  


22   you all for coming, and I hope it's not wasting
  


23   your time, and I hope you're not wasting our time
  


24   and that you're listening to each and every one of
  


25   us.  Thank you.
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 1           MR. GAGNON:  The next speaker is Mya
  


 2   Velvenan Wilson.
  


 3           MS. WILSON:  I've written a poem about the
  


 4   wind turbines and what I think about them:
  


 5       Our heroes of the future need permission to
  


 6   come and stay.  They love the water like some of
  


 7   us, or most of us.  They are giants.  The wind is
  


 8   their horses.  They only spin, they don't hurt
  


 9   anybody.  Our heroes of the future, blue and
  


10   white, white more than gray.  Their names are wind
  


11   turbines.
  


12           MR. GAGNON:  Peter Saxon.
  


13           MR. SAXSON:  I want to reiterate what Dick
  


14   Martin said.  That is what this is all about, the
  


15   cables to the mainland.  We need it for
  


16   electricity, we need it for broadband.  We can get
  


17   it if it were a card (phonetic), but if you keep
  


18   pushing off Providence, they eventually will
  


19   capitulate, we can do it.  What we don't need is
  


20   an experimental project on Block Island.
  


21           This wind farm is called a demonstration
  


22   project.  Why?  Because they have to demonstrate
  


23   that it's feasible to build wind turbines off
  


24   Block Island and operate them.  Why?  Because
  


25   there's a chance you can't maintain those wind
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 1   turbines.  There's a chance they're not
  


 2   economically feasible.  There's a chance this is a
  


 3   100 percent boondoggle, which will result in five
  


 4   rusting wind turbines with no one to take them
  


 5   down.
  


 6           Instead of spending a fortune on building
  


 7   an experimental project off Block Island and
  


 8   ruining what many people feel is a great vista,
  


 9   what we should be doing is getting the damn cable
  


10   to the mainland and focusing our energy to do
  


11   that, not on an experimental project which could
  


12   fail.  I asked the President, I think it was Mr.
  


13   Rich (sic) years ago:  "What would happen if a
  


14   hurricane with 120 mile-an-hour wind hits those
  


15   turbines?"  He said, "Well, we have computer
  


16   simulations to show they'd be fine."  I said, "You
  


17   have computer simulations to show they'd be fine,"
  


18   that's as good as the data that goes in.
  


19   Computers never go wrong, right?  Nothing can go
  


20   wrong, nothing can go wrong.
  


21           What happens if these turbines, because of
  


22   the turbulence below and the winds above crack,
  


23   bend or fail, who's going to fix them; you, me?
  


24   Who's going to pay for it, you?  That's for sure.
  


25   Who's going to take them down, not Deepwater,
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 1   they'll be gone, you'll pay for that, and we'll
  


 2   have turbine reef out there with five rusting wind
  


 3   turbines.  That's why I'm opposed.
  


 4           MR. GAGNON:  Fred Leeder?
  


 5           MR. LEEDER:  Good evening, Fred Leeder.  I
  


 6   came to this Island to work for the summer 30
  


 7   years ago, I've been here ever since.  I came out
  


 8   here with a duffle bag full of clothes and a
  


 9   couple of milk crates full of books.  Since then,
  


10   part of the lesson is living within one's means.
  


11   You've all seen -- well, most of you have seen the
  


12   crappy cars I drive, I string them along as long
  


13   as I can.
  


14           You know, as far as introduction, if you
  


15   don't know me and my crappy cars or remember me
  


16   from the post office, maybe you should.  From
  


17   these extremely humble beginnings, I was able to
  


18   acquire some property and build my own home,
  


19   literally built it myself.  I recognize a lot of
  


20   people in here who actually helped me pound nails,
  


21   you know, living within your needs.
  


22           I'm off the grid, so I'm going to say I
  


23   don't have a dog in this fight because I don't get
  


24   electric bills.  In fact, when I worked at the
  


25   post office, that was the best part of my job, is
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 1   every month delivering the electric bills because
  


 2   I didn't get one again, but I heard people crying
  


 3   in the lobby of the outrageous bills, and during
  


 4   my term as postmaster, we put solar on the post
  


 5   office.  So, my alternative energy credentials are
  


 6   pretty good.
  


 7           Alternative energy works.  You've got to
  


 8   look at the pig picture.  We've got to do
  


 9   something as a country, as a society, as a world.
  


10   We cannot go on doing what we're doing, it's not
  


11   working.  In 200 years since the industrial
  


12   revolution just -- pollution, you can't see it,
  


13   your vistas that everybody is raving about just
  


14   aren't there.  Traveling national parks a few
  


15   years ago, I think it was Bryce Canyon, they
  


16   always have the wonderful displays they do and
  


17   usually they'll have something that shows you
  


18   which mountain range you're looking at, what's
  


19   over here, what's over there.
  


20           They had a display pointing out what you
  


21   used to be able to see before the smog from the
  


22   West Coast cut down the visibility.  You know, the
  


23   consumption, the waste and the pollution, just the
  


24   arrogance of our society, in general, is shameful.
  


25   We're behind Europe.  They can make us look like
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 1   fools when it comes to energy conservation,
  


 2   alternative energy, and the technology is there,
  


 3   they're doing it.
  


 4           I've heard the objections, "It won't
  


 5   work."  Well, they've been doing it in Europe for
  


 6   a long time.  I actually heard people stand up and
  


 7   say the warning lights for air craft will be a
  


 8   problem, and the foghorns will keep us awake at
  


 9   night.  Well, we're all a heck of a lot closer to
  


10   the Southeast Light than we're going to be to this
  


11   wind farm, and as I recall, people were jumping
  


12   for joy when the Southeast Light was relit.  So, a
  


13   little perspective there.
  


14           Cable, you know, cable will be great.
  


15   Standalone cable ain't going to happen.  Who's
  


16   going to pay for it, end of story.  Sure, maybe
  


17   Bill Gates will come along and write us a check,
  


18   we'll get a cable.  I'm not holding my breath.
  


19   The big one, the view, everybody is about the
  


20   view.  My small unscientific survey, people argue
  


21   about this affecting tourism.
  


22           I drive a taxi in the summer.  When the
  


23   test rigs were up, one of the big stops, the
  


24   show-stoppers were called Second Bluffs, not the
  


25   stairs but the ones to the west of that, and you
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 1   could see these rigs, and I'd just ask everybody I
  


 2   took up there -- and there was a lot of people, it
  


 3   was a big stop on the Island tour -- "What do you
  


 4   think?"  "It doesn't bother me, kind of
  


 5   interesting."
  


 6           So, I am totally an unscientific study,
  


 7   but I don't think it's going hurt tourism.  What
  


 8   will hurt tourism is when our businesses start to
  


 9   fail because they can't afford the electricity.
  


10   To sum things up, you know, is this the best
  


11   project?  I don't know.  Are there better ones?
  


12   Are the finances right?
  


13           They say -- they're being bent about that
  


14   they're investment capitalists and it's a hedge
  


15   fund and that's the anti-Christ, well, maybe it
  


16   is, but nobody else is offering to build a wind
  


17   farm and put in a cable.  You know, this is not
  


18   communism.  If they want to put in their
  


19   investment of work, that's what America is about,
  


20   to make a profit, and we'll all in some ways
  


21   profit from this.
  


22           I heard about this being an experimental
  


23   project.  I think that's what the Wright Brothers
  


24   had going to Kitty Hawk.  Somebody had to get on
  


25   that plane and give it a try 'cause, you know, you
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 1   name it, somebody had to do the first one.  Some
  


 2   Indian ate the first quahaug.  Think about that.
  


 3   This project has been coming up for a long time,
  


 4   2008, that's five years.  It will be another
  


 5   several years, I'm guessing, before this is
  


 6   completed.  I'd like to see this happen in my
  


 7   lifetime.
  


 8           If this fails, we're back to square one,
  


 9   we're going to have to start again, and another
  


10   five years at least, ten years.  There's plenty of
  


11   ways to find fault.  We can continue that and
  


12   maintain the status quo and watch the pollution
  


13   increase and our resources run out and, you know,
  


14   the number -- in the past 200 years since our
  


15   industrial revolution, it's shameful.
  


16           We pride ourselves on the Island that we
  


17   have 43.9, I think our latest is in conservancy,
  


18   that is stewardship.  It's taking care of our
  


19   Island.  We have a sense of place.  Well, it's
  


20   time to, I think, apply that to a wider picture
  


21   and take stewardship of our planet.
  


22           One more thing, we talked about dividing
  


23   the community, wind turbines dividing the
  


24   community.  Well, when that's all settled, guess
  


25   what, we can still fight about the deer and
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 1   whether we use fertilizer -- or mopeds, or the
  


 2   parking at the post office.  We're good at this,
  


 3   folks.  What divides us is what brings us
  


 4   together.
  


 5           MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Kay
  


 6   Lewis.
  


 7           MS. LEWIS:  Kay Lewis.  I don't have to
  


 8   give a speech because Doreen Napoleone did it for
  


 9   me, and she did a great job.  Thank you, Doreen.
  


10   I'll just make a few observations about some of
  


11   what I've heard today.  One, is, there are a lot
  


12   of people who seem very certain about the outcome
  


13   of this and, particularly, it seems that the
  


14   doomsayers are really certain it's going to be a
  


15   disaster.  Well, no one really knows, and I hope
  


16   that it will be more like Denmark than some of the
  


17   predictions, because it's very easy for me to
  


18   imagine that this goes forward and we all decipher
  


19   that they're beautiful, they work, and overall our
  


20   lives are improved and there's no loss in property
  


21   value and all of that.  Many people here look at
  


22   the same set of data and come down on totally
  


23   different sides, but my hope is it ends up on that
  


24   side, and that's where I'm placing my bets.
  


25           The second observation is that it's an
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 1   experiment, and we don't want any experiments.
  


 2   You know, life is an experiment, and I'm with
  


 3   those people who say, "We have to do something."
  


 4   I don't have children, but I worry about the globe
  


 5   that your children and your children's children
  


 6   will be living on and, yes, we're going to be
  


 7   dependent on fossil fuels for some time to come,
  


 8   but we have to start somewhere.  This is a small
  


 9   project, it's an experiment, it's worth a chance,
  


10   and I say give it a chance.
  


11           The third observation is probably the most
  


12   disturbing thing I heard today was someone who
  


13   said that he has gone past altruism and totally
  


14   embraced cynicism.  If very many people do that,
  


15   not only is this Island dead but the globe is
  


16   dead.  So, my appeal is, let's not give up on
  


17   altruism because our only hope for your children
  


18   and your children's children is that there's still
  


19   plenty of people here who will continue to embrace
  


20   altruism.  So, give it a chance.
  


21           MR. GAGNON:  Patrick Tengwall.
  


22           MR. TENGWALL:  My name is Patrick Tengwall
  


23   (T-e-n-g-w-a-l-l).  I want to thank the
  


24   representatives of DEM for coming here and taking
  


25   the time to listen to all of the comments that you
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 1   are receiving today.  I know you're going to get
  


 2   many more in written form, and I commend you for
  


 3   your patience with the entire public process
  


 4   that's involved.  I respect you for that.
  


 5           I am a year-round resident of Block
  


 6   Island.  I moved here with my wife who grew up on
  


 7   Block Island.  I moved here five years ago.  The
  


 8   house where my wife and I live is inland.  Our
  


 9   best view is of the airport, it's to the west, so,
  


10   we always have a sunset.  I will not see the
  


11   turbines in question from my home.
  


12           The view shed issues are largely
  


13   irrelevant.  I would say, though, that I agree
  


14   with some of the commenters today.  I find, in my
  


15   opinion, wind turbines to be beautiful and
  


16   graceful.  I have thought of one item in favor of
  


17   this project -- and I am in favor of this
  


18   project -- that I don't know if it's been raised
  


19   before.  It may not be strictly in DEM's purview,
  


20   but I want to put it out there.
  


21           I am hoping that when the Block Island
  


22   Wind Farm is in place and the cable is connected
  


23   to the mainland and this Island is enjoying the
  


24   benefits of being part of the New England electric
  


25   grid, I am looking forward to the Block Island
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 1   Power Company relaxing or eliminating its
  


 2   restrictions on a small scale, residential scale,
  


 3   wind and power projects, because my understanding
  


 4   is that those have been predicated on various
  


 5   capacity issues.  When we are a part of a larger
  


 6   grid, they will disappear.  Those issues, I
  


 7   believe, will disappear.
  


 8           I will also say that I think the most
  


 9   important point I can make today is, it's a given
  


10   for you folks at the Department of Environmental
  


11   Management, but I think it may need to be restated
  


12   for the audience.  DEM and the other agencies that
  


13   are involved in the permitting process here are
  


14   charged with making decisions on the basis of
  


15   science.
  


16           Scientific facts, as far as they can be
  


17   determined, are what should rule the day here.
  


18   Reliable, verifiable studies, statistics,
  


19   simulation, read and interpreted fairly, allowing
  


20   the data to drive the conclusion and not the other
  


21   way around.  That is what this process that you
  


22   are involved in regarding the dredging, and the
  


23   rest of our colleagues in the public process are
  


24   supposed to be about.
  


25           Yes, public opinion is important.  It's
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 1   one of the human factors that is involved here
  


 2   that needs to be considered in the public
  


 3   discourse, but I will agree with people we've
  


 4   heard today who say that irresponsible statistics
  


 5   and unsupported prejudice on either side of the
  


 6   issue should be ignored, and they should be
  


 7   ignored as a matter of law, a matter of law under
  


 8   the state Administrative Procedure Act.
  


 9           That includes my own rhetoric if, per
  


10   chance, I happen to be wrong about the matter of
  


11   the restrictions on small scale projects, but I
  


12   understand DEM's role in this matter is to make a
  


13   decision on the basis of the best evidence that
  


14   you have before you.  I was in your shoes.  I
  


15   worked for five years for the Division of Public
  


16   Utilities.  I understand the concept of making a
  


17   an administrative law decision on the basis of the
  


18   facts and testimony and sworn statements, and I
  


19   think that the public needs to remember that as
  


20   well.
  


21           I trust that you and your colleagues will
  


22   do your job to the best of your ability.  If, on
  


23   the other hand you do not, and some people will
  


24   regard that you have not regardless of the
  


25   outcome, that's what the appeals process is for,
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 1   that's what the courts are for but, in my opinion,
  


 2   the only people who will benefit from that are not
  


 3   the investors in the project, not the residents
  


 4   part-time/full-time, or the visitors of Block
  


 5   Island.  The only people who will benefit from
  


 6   that are attorneys.  That will serve no one.
  


 7   Thank you.
  


 8           MR. GAGNON:  Martha Ball.
  


 9           MS. BALL:  Sorry, we couldn't give you
  


10   gentlemen a better day.  I'm also sorry I'm late.
  


11   I missed a lot of this because, ironically, I was
  


12   on the mainland for a State Tourism Unity
  


13   Luncheon.  That's why I have my name tag on, in
  


14   case anybody doesn't know me.  Basically, I really
  


15   can't say it better than Norris Pike and Millie
  


16   McGinnis who spoke, when they said their peace.
  


17   They summed it up for a lot of us who live here,
  


18   who have always lived here.
  


19           I do just want to note a couple of things,
  


20   though.  One of the things I have found, since the
  


21   beginning, that's kind of disturbing is when
  


22   people say, "Well, it's a demonstration project,
  


23   why should we do that?"  Other people have said,
  


24   "Why not?"  Rhode Island used to lead the nation.
  


25   Rhode Island was one of the colonies, and a
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 1   handful of people here will know the answer to
  


 2   this question only because I ask it every single
  


 3   year on May 4th.  What's May 4th?
  


 4           THE AUDIENCE:  Rhode Island Independence
  


 5   Day.
  


 6           MS. BALL:  Those are the people who listen
  


 7   to me.  That's right, Rhode Island Independence
  


 8   Day.  Rhode Island declared independence two
  


 9   months before the rest of the colonies.  I mean,
  


10   we have a history of moving ahead and trying to
  


11   make things better, not just waiting for everybody
  


12   else to do it.  There's been talk about the cable,
  


13   which has been kind of interesting to just walk
  


14   in.  "The cable is really bad, it's going to
  


15   disrupt everything if it's coming from over.  The
  


16   cable is really good if it's coming only from the
  


17   mainland," which makes absolutely no sense when
  


18   you're talking about disturbance of land.
  


19           I would, though, remind everyone and,
  


20   again, I was reminded of this when I was on the
  


21   mainland today.  Maybe -- a lot of people don't
  


22   remember, we didn't always have the big tower up
  


23   on the hill to get telephone transmission.  Prior
  


24   to 1958 there was a submarine cable, that's how we
  


25   got telephone.  So, the total business of bringing
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 1   a cable into Block Island is not anything new, nor
  


 2   is, obviously, a cable coming from the mainland
  


 3   because telephone came from somewhere.
  


 4           There was only one other thing that I want
  


 5   to say, and I said this before toward the
  


 6   beginning of this.  When Cape Wind was approved, I
  


 7   was reading some comments about eyesores, and
  


 8   someone from West Virginia said, "I grew up where
  


 9   coal seams were open and mountains caught on fire,
  


10   and where rivers ran orange," and if you want an
  


11   eyesore, give me -- I will show you an eyesore.
  


12   These turbines are not rivers catching on fire,
  


13   they're not coal seams burning.  We've really got
  


14   to look at the big picture.  Thank you.
  


15           MR. GAGNON:  Beth Gaffett.
  


16           MS. GAFFETT:  Good afternoon, everyone.  I
  


17   have lived on Block Island all my life minus the
  


18   20 years I was away, which I don't count.  And,
  


19   initially, I was kind of on the fence about the
  


20   wind turbines.  I was, "Maybe, maybe not."  There
  


21   were things about them that I really liked and
  


22   there were concerns I had, but as I listened to
  


23   people, as I listened to concerns about the view
  


24   shed -- and I kept hearing this over and over
  


25   again, I started thinking about that.
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 1           I started thinking about the fact that I
  


 2   live off a dirt road at the top of High Street and
  


 3   I have a view of the airport, which isn't bad, it
  


 4   isn't perfect, and I have a view of a house that's
  


 5   this tall.  Next to mine it's this tall.  Yeah, I
  


 6   don't have a view at my house but, you know, I can
  


 7   walk five minutes to the top of High Street and I
  


 8   can see across.  So, not having a view -- most
  


 9   people can get to a view a lot easier than I can.
  


10           The other thing is the question about
  


11   savings.  You know, how are the wind turbines or
  


12   the cables going to save us on our power bill?  I
  


13   don't know.  It sounds to me like there's some
  


14   question about that.  There are people in this
  


15   room who have lived here all their lives, and
  


16   there are those of us who left and couldn't wait
  


17   to come back and, so, if we have some wind
  


18   turbines up, I can live with that because I'm
  


19   here.  Thank you.
  


20           MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Judith
  


21   Tierney.
  


22           MS. TIERNEY:  Judith Tierney
  


23   (T-i-e-r-n-e-y).  Hi, I'm a year-round resident of
  


24   Block Island.  I've been here for almost ten
  


25   years.  I'm the first of my family, but I think my
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 1   protenators (sic) would have come here with their
  


 2   bundles and opened a rooming house if they could
  


 3   have.  I am in favor of this exciting alternative
  


 4   energy project.  I've seen wind turbine farms on
  


 5   land and in water, in Iowa, in California, in
  


 6   Denmark and in Germany, and I don't understand why
  


 7   they would be considered experimental here when
  


 8   the whole world has been experimenting for us.
  


 9   It's time for us to change away from fossil fuels.
  


10           As for the view, it's not so pristine for
  


11   some of us.  I look at ugly telephone poles and
  


12   wires, and I look at cell phone towers out my
  


13   windows, and I don't see anybody turning in their
  


14   cell phones so I can have a better view.  I think
  


15   our power bills here have driven high costs for
  


16   our school, for our town, for our businesses and
  


17   for our residents, and if wind can help us, let's
  


18   harness it.  Thank you.
  


19           MR. GAGNON:  Kim Gaffett.
  


20           MS. GAFFETT:  I'll be very brief.  First
  


21   of all, I'd like to say thank you, and I know many
  


22   people have said thank you to the DEM and Mr.
  


23   Elliot from the Army Corps of Engineers, but I
  


24   know that you can never get enough thank yous.
  


25   Thank you for coming here.
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 1           I am speaking as an individual, although
  


 2   I've been a member of the Town Council for a
  


 3   number of years.  This Town Council, the previous
  


 4   Town Councils, in fact, each iteration of the Town
  


 5   Council since this project began have made public
  


 6   comments and have supported at various times to
  


 7   both the DEM the Army Corps, CRMC and the various
  


 8   places, so there's no need to reiterate those
  


 9   comments by the Town Council.
  


10           I speak as an individual, as a person who
  


11   has lived all -- most of my life.  As an
  


12   individual, I support this project, and I will
  


13   hope that some day we will say that the Town
  


14   Council was not desperate but forward-thinking,
  


15   and many people have spoken today to the
  


16   technology, to the resources that make this a good
  


17   project, and I would just like to adopt their
  


18   comments.  The comments of Bill Penn and the
  


19   Emsbos, the Bautes, the Ballards, Jules Craynock,
  


20   Barbara MacMullen, Mr. Greenman, Norris Pike,
  


21   Millie McGinnis, Martha Ball, Fred Leeder, just to
  


22   name a few, all said it much better than I can say
  


23   it, we're here to make comments.  Those are my
  


24   comments.
  


25           My concerns, I have three concerns, and I
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 1   guess I am truly an optimist because my concerns
  


 2   have to do with after the project is permitted and
  


 3   is in place.  I want to make sure that the record
  


 4   goes forward to say that I'm concerned that the
  


 5   project will be decommissioned even if it is
  


 6   working in 20 years, and I know that that is
  


 7   another part of the process but I, for one, don't
  


 8   want to see it decommissioned if it is working.
  


 9           My second is that I believe that one of
  


10   the best things -- I was, for a long time, not in
  


11   favor of a cable to the mainland.  I think there's
  


12   a lot to be said for Block Island's independence,
  


13   but we have grown and we need a certain amount of
  


14   technology.  The best way to accept a cable is if
  


15   we can be exporting renewable energy to the
  


16   mainland and continue as much independence as
  


17   possible.
  


18           That means when the grid on the mainland
  


19   goes down, that we should be able to stay up.  So,
  


20   I hope that in the future design -- I'm very
  


21   concerned that the design go in place so that, say
  


22   the mainland grid goes down, that the wind farm
  


23   can be tamped down so what is being produced by
  


24   the wind farm can meet the load of Block Island so
  


25   that we don't have to be turned down because of
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 1   excess power needing to protect the mainland from
  


 2   excess power.
  


 3           And my other major concern is that I think
  


 4   it's very important, through this process, that
  


 5   long-term monitoring, ecological monitoring be put
  


 6   in place, not for just two years or three years,
  


 7   ten years, fifteen years.  We are being considered
  


 8   a demonstration, but all over the world we're
  


 9   having to find out what are the effects of
  


10   individual wind turbine farms and the cumulative
  


11   effects, and the only way we can do that is if
  


12   there's ecological monitoring fish, wind,
  


13   migratory paths, birds, both pre-construction,
  


14   during construction, and post construction.  So,
  


15   my concerns to you are biological, and they have
  


16   to do with the future of this project once it is
  


17   permitted.  Thank you.
  


18           MR. GAGNON:  David Chatowsky.
  


19           MR. CHATOWSKY:  Hello, thank you for
  


20   coming to hear whatever everybody has to say.  I'm
  


21   an artist, a builder, and a naturalist here on
  


22   Block Island.  I write the cartoon Sea Squad and
  


23   Sealy that I contribute to the Block Island Times.
  


24   I built this stockade around the sonar, the
  


25   machine that Deepwater put out to track the birds
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 1   off the Southeast Light.
  


 2           They were concerned about the migratory
  


 3   patterns of the birds.  I have two things to
  


 4   say -- well, really three, and one is that a
  


 5   project of this magnitude, you don't want to rush,
  


 6   you want to operate on a snail's pace.  That's
  


 7   number one, is, to operate on a snail's pace.
  


 8   There should not be any rush, there should not be:
  


 9   We have to rush because so and so or this or that.
  


10   That, in my opinion, is wrong.  Don't let anybody
  


11   rush this project.
  


12           The second thing is transparency.
  


13   Everything should be transparent, the data --
  


14   there's some brilliant people on this Island, and
  


15   they have data that conflicts this or that, and
  


16   the data needs to be transparent.  There can't be
  


17   anything hidden from this community that would --
  


18   because of the magnitude of such a project.  So,
  


19   those are the two issues.  You know, operate on a
  


20   snail's pace, don't rush.  Have as many meetings
  


21   as you can.  More meetings, the better.  I don't
  


22   know why, I mean, there wouldn't be more meetings.
  


23   I don't know why the community shouldn't have the
  


24   most say.  It should be constantly talked about
  


25   and things should be brought out on the table
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 1   because this is a very, very huge project.
  


 2           As an artist, and the wind turbines that
  


 3   I've seen, they typically are white, and I know
  


 4   that a lot of you are concerned about the view,
  


 5   and should this project go through, an idea would
  


 6   be to paint the wind turbines like the color of
  


 7   that picture, like, that blue, okay.
  


 8           I have a beautiful view from the deck
  


 9   where I live.  I mean, it's absolutely stunningly
  


10   gorgeous except for three or two black water tanks
  


11   that I see.  So, my vista, I'll scan and obviously
  


12   I'll go away from them and I'll write, but it has
  


13   to do with the color.  If these wind turbines are
  


14   white, your eyes are going to go directly to them.
  


15   You know, you're going to look over this beautiful
  


16   vista of sky blue, ocean view, and then bam, white
  


17   as snow and there it is, but if you paint them
  


18   blue, sky blue, they just disappear.
  


19           I don't know whether this is going to be a
  


20   success, but I have only the three things:  Don't
  


21   rush, it's a mistake to rush.  Operate on a
  


22   snail's pace, and the more talks you could have,
  


23   the better.  I think that these ideas are
  


24   extremely valid.  The cable -- get the stuff out
  


25   on the table, don't let -- and be transparent.
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 1   This data, if there's any kind of conflicting
  


 2   ideas about data or anything like that, like a
  


 3   conflicting -- what's going to happen with these
  


 4   machines when they get decommissioned?  No, no,
  


 5   that shouldn't even be on the table.  All that
  


 6   stuff needs to be worked out ahead of time.  You
  


 7   can't, like, get into a project.  I don't get into
  


 8   projects and not think about the end.
  


 9           You know, responsible parties -- I'd like
  


10   to think that I'm a responsible individual, you
  


11   have everything worked out, you know, you be
  


12   responsible, we're all responsible.  You don't
  


13   just leave things unattended for somebody else to
  


14   deal with.  And, then, think about the color of
  


15   the wind turbine, and I suggest -- it's just a
  


16   recommendation -- to paint them sky blue and they
  


17   could very possibly just disappear.  Thank you.
  


18           MR. GAGNON:  That concluded the number of
  


19   speakers that have signed up.  Is there anyone
  


20   else that wishes to speak that didn't get a chance
  


21   to signup.  Excuse me, folks, if we could just
  


22   remain silent as the speakers continue.
  


23           MR. FALLON:  Hello, my name is Bob Fallon,
  


24   I'm a resident of Block Island for approximately
  


25   the past ten years but have been coming to the
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 1   Island for about 25 years.  I've been a Rhode
  


 2   Resident my entire life.  There are some things
  


 3   that I think you've heard tonight.  I have my back
  


 4   to the audience because it's you gentlemen that
  


 5   I'd like to take my message and not necessarily
  


 6   the people on Block Island.
  


 7           I think there are some things that you
  


 8   need to consider that other people have talked
  


 9   about.  One person indicated you need to be guided
  


10   and driven by the science, the statistics, the
  


11   facts.  I think that's a factor, but not the only
  


12   factor.  You also need to be driven by the
  


13   economics of the project, by the community feeling
  


14   about the project, as well as what I'll call the
  


15   intangible feeling of the esoteric and the beauty
  


16   of Block Island which, to me, is one of the most
  


17   important things.
  


18           I also think you need to take into account
  


19   the politics that have got this project to where
  


20   it is and the capitalism spirit that has brought
  


21   the project to where it is.  This is a project
  


22   that has been brought forward by entrepreneurs who
  


23   think that they can make money, and that's what
  


24   their main goal is, is to make a dollar bill here,
  


25   and they're doing that like any businessmen would,
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 1   using all the resources that they have.
  


 2           We've seen them lobby here on Block
  


 3   Island, we've seen them lobby in the statehouse,
  


 4   we've seen them lobby before the Public Utilities
  


 5   Commission.  We've seen the governor support their
  


 6   initiative, we've seen them lose at the Public
  


 7   Utilities Commission only to have the legislature
  


 8   change the rules that the Public Utilities
  


 9   Commission operates by, to allow the project to go
  


10   forward.  We've also seen, as part of that same
  


11   process, these entrepreneurs be able to make
  


12   assurances in the law that in the future we will
  


13   be protected.  But, in doing that, we should all
  


14   keep in mind that we have another boondoggle going
  


15   on right now in Rhode Island that has its basis in
  


16   Curt Shilling, the beloved Red Sox patriarch
  


17   pitcher that we're paying for and will pay for in
  


18   the future.
  


19           One of my main concerns as I fly around
  


20   the United States these past couple of months
  


21   since flying down the multiple rivers, the
  


22   multiple ports that we have looking at the ports,
  


23   looking at the structures, the docks, the railroad
  


24   trestles that are left to rot and stay where they
  


25   are because some business has left them there and
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 1   not taken care of our future.  Kim Gaffett talked
  


 2   about the future, that's what I'm most concerned
  


 3   about.
  


 4           I was in New York City this weekend and
  


 5   looked at the destruction that Sandy left.  Along
  


 6   the shore there are docks and busted concrete that
  


 7   God only knows who is going take care of it.  My
  


 8   guess is no one.  When this technology becomes
  


 9   outmoded, and it will, it will, there will be
  


10   something better and we have those windmills off
  


11   the coast.  We have no insurance, despite what the
  


12   legislation says, that they'll be taken care of,
  


13   and we all know that legislation can be changed.
  


14   Our Social Security have been changed.  We've seen
  


15   laws that are on the books that have been
  


16   repealed.
  


17           I was guaranteed a retirement, they
  


18   changed that.  All of us have.  So we can't go
  


19   forward with those guarantees and think that
  


20   they're replaced forever and to protect us.  On
  


21   the Island here, we need to make sure that what we
  


22   have, as Norris Pike pointed out, has to be here
  


23   for our children, and that includes the view and
  


24   the vista that we're able to see, as well as
  


25   having affordable electricity.  I agree with Peter
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 1   that the answer is cable, not a demonstration
  


 2   project in the ocean that we'll pay for 25 years
  


 3   from now.  Thank you.
  


 4           MR. GAGNON:  Pat Doyle.
  


 5           MS. DOYLE:  Good evening, my name is Pat
  


 6   Doyle and we've owned a home here for 23 years and
  


 7   have been full-time residents for seven years, and
  


 8   I sit here this evening taking great pride in this
  


 9   community.  I count the number, and over 10
  


10   percent of this town's full-time people, most of
  


11   them are full-timers, are here expressing views on
  


12   both sides, and I think that's something that we
  


13   all need to commend ourselves for.
  


14           This issue certainly has divided us.  And,
  


15   unfortunately, I think some of the words that Dave
  


16   Chatowsky used has been behind that, the lack of
  


17   transparency.  Patrick, you said, "Let us go
  


18   forward and make decisions based on science," and
  


19   I think we have to.  There's been a lot of
  


20   emotion, and we talk here about saving the
  


21   environment, the future of our children, how this
  


22   demonstration project is really not only going to
  


23   lower prices but it's going to do these huge --
  


24   accomplish these huge things.
  


25           I sit here tonight thinking what we have
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 1   to ensure is that there's no damage done, and
  


 2   there are other things beyond even the science for
  


 3   this Island.  I live in the Historic District and
  


 4   when we did a major renovation to our home, we
  


 5   couldn't use a type of product on our windows that
  


 6   would have been less expensive.  Because we were
  


 7   in the Historic District, we had to use something
  


 8   that was visually pleasing.
  


 9           We had -- two or three times that we had
  


10   to go to Historic about what I considered a minor
  


11   change, but we live on an Island that we love and
  


12   views are important, not only to us but to the
  


13   people who look at our home, and we recognize that
  


14   living in a Historic District put an added burden
  


15   on us.  Living on an Island such as this that
  


16   brings tremendous income to the state is in great
  


17   part -- and you heard many talk about view
  


18   sheds -- I am not a view shed person.  This is not
  


19   the view shed that I look at, but I do think for
  


20   tourism, for the beauty of what attracts people to
  


21   here, I think it is something that has to be
  


22   looked at.
  


23           So, what did we really learn here tonight?
  


24   Everyone of us here, there's not environmentalists
  


25   and non-environmentalists.  Block Islanders came
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 1   here because they love the environment, that's
  


 2   what brought us all here.  So, for one group to
  


 3   say "I love it more, I read Friedman, I support
  


 4   conservation," I think we all do.  Wherever we're
  


 5   coming from, we're here for that reason, we know
  


 6   that.  We all want to lower the cost of
  


 7   electricity on the Island, that's the other given,
  


 8   and everyone speaks to that.
  


 9           We know that a cable is an answer to bring
  


10   lower costs, and on this particular issue, I think
  


11   transparency, through the years, has not been
  


12   there, but we're getting a cable, we can't afford
  


13   it.  I certain would like to see -- we have to go
  


14   in that direction, however -- but what we need to
  


15   know, we know that we're all together in support
  


16   of the environment.  We need to know how to go
  


17   about getting lower cost energy in a way that's
  


18   scientifically the best way to do it.
  


19           January 2nd, 2011, I was listening to NBR
  


20   as I was traveling and they had the President of
  


21   MIT, a woman, and the director, the publisher, two
  


22   women speaking about what will this new decade
  


23   bring in terms of science to this country?  This
  


24   is going to be positive changes.  They talked
  


25   about medical and then they talked about energy,
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 1   and there was an extensive conversation about
  


 2   solar.
  


 3           Someone called in and said, "You have not
  


 4   in the last hour-and-a-half," it was as full day
  


 5   program "talked about winds," and it was the
  


 6   President of MIT that said, "I'm not ready to talk
  


 7   about wind energy as the viable source for this
  


 8   country at this time."  It's working in Europe
  


 9   where their availability of the kinds of energy we
  


10   have here are not, she said, "I will put my money
  


11   in the future of solar.  We don't have the battery
  


12   storage yet, we don't have this thing perfected."
  


13           I thought that was very, very telling, and
  


14   I really liked hearing one of our council people,
  


15   Chris Warfel, who has the science because of his
  


16   education.  I'm not a scientist, but I really want
  


17   to depend upon you folks, the DEM folks, to first
  


18   of all go for the best science, but keeping in
  


19   mind that there are other issues; the economy and
  


20   the affordability of the energy, but also to keep
  


21   our historic and beautiful vista, which we go to
  


22   great lengths to protect.
  


23           We have committee upon committee that
  


24   tries to keep each one of us in line, not to
  


25   destroy one slight inch of the vistas that we look
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 1   at that brought us here.  So, thank you for coming
  


 2   here, and I hope you keep those three things in
  


 3   mind as you make your decision.
  


 4           MR. GAGNON:  Are there any other speakers?
  


 5   Anyone else that would like to speak?  Do you have
  


 6   the extended list?
  


 7           MR. BIANCULLI:  The problem is, there was
  


 8   a sign-in sheet and folks may have signed up for
  


 9   the sign-in sheet, which was the attendance
  


10   record.  We also had another sheet there that was
  


11   to provide public comment.  I believe we're
  


12   getting near the end of the evening, but you can
  


13   come forward.  Come up to the microphone and just
  


14   say and spell your name and, then, you can provide
  


15   comment.
  


16           MR. SPIER:  Good evening, John Spier.
  


17   I'll be brief because as several people have said,
  


18   other people have stolen my best thoughts and said
  


19   it better than I could.  Like most of us out here,
  


20   I wear a number of hats.  One of my hats is sort
  


21   of on the Housing Board, and as part of our market
  


22   research for our next project has been sending out
  


23   questionnaires to Island families that live in
  


24   housing that we've created through a number of
  


25   entities.
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 1           So, this questionnaire is a recurring
  


 2   theme.  I've been reading them as they come in.
  


 3   The recurring theme is, "We love our house, we
  


 4   love living here.  Yes, our mortgage payments are
  


 5   pretty commensurate with our income but, boy,
  


 6   those utility bills are killing us.  We have to
  


 7   rent rooms to pay our utility bills.  I'm just
  


 8   going to address a few other topics, briefly.
  


 9           Construction impacts, look at some of the
  


10   big projects out there, look at the Panama Canal.
  


11   If you went today and said, I'm going to bulldoze
  


12   a path through 50 piles of virgin rain forest,
  


13   peoples' minds would be blown, okay.  They did it,
  


14   it's beautiful today and nobody would ever argue
  


15   that it shouldn't have been done.  So, to me,
  


16   running a cable through a beach in Narragansett or
  


17   Charlestown doesn't seem like a big deal.  It will
  


18   recover.  Nothing is free.
  


19           Corporations, sure, Deepwater Wind is a
  


20   corporation, they're out to make money, that's the
  


21   American way as people have said.  There's no
  


22   corporations out there that are warm and fuzzy
  


23   except, maybe, mine.  History, you know, somebody
  


24   had mentioned abandoned facilities all over this
  


25   country.  We have a problem here, we're getting
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 1   our butts kicked by the rest of the world.  In the
  


 2   1970s, the US was leading the world in wind
  


 3   energy.  Now, it's either Denmark or China, China
  


 4   may have passed Denmark.
  


 5           That's why we have abandoned facilities,
  


 6   abandoned shipping, factories, abandoned docks,
  


 7   okay.  We were innovators in this world for 150 or
  


 8   200 years, what happened?  Another thing, you
  


 9   know, what happened?  I grew up in upstate New
  


10   York, so forty years ago as a kid, you had
  


11   divisive issues.  My parents were involved, so I
  


12   was pretty aware.  We had cement factories, we had
  


13   correctional facilities, we had transfer stations,
  


14   things that divided communities, and I remember
  


15   when I was a kid, NIMBY was a bad word.
  


16           You didn't want to be a NIMBY, okay, it
  


17   was an insult.  If you called somebody a NIMBY,
  


18   you were saying, "You're a selfish ass."  Now,
  


19   forty years later, I hear people stand up and say,
  


20   "I'm a NIMBY.  I think alternative energy is
  


21   great, I don't want it in my backyard.  Yeah, we
  


22   need a transfer station, but I don't want it in my
  


23   backyard."  So, what happened, what happened to
  


24   this country where all of a sudden it's okay,
  


25   socially, to be selfish and to put your own
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 1   personal needs or desires in front of the good of
  


 2   the community?  What's the problem there?  On that
  


 3   note, somebody mentioned the full page ad.  I grew
  


 4   up with the idea that if you want to say
  


 5   something, put your name on it.
  


 6           MS. DELIA:  It's my name, I thought that
  


 7   was pretty obvious.
  


 8           MR. GANNON:  Just let him finish his --
  


 9           MS. DELIA:  Yeah, I will.
  


10           MR. SPIER:  It's an organization that
  


11   purports to be a whole bunch of people, and I
  


12   don't know who they are, I have a problem with
  


13   that.  And, lastly, on a positive note, I love
  


14   islands.  I live on one, I live in a state called
  


15   Rhode Island.  Most of you know I'm not
  


16   exaggerating when I say I've seen a lot of islands
  


17   all over the world, you know, hundreds, maybe
  


18   thousands.  A lot of them had wind turbines, it is
  


19   the future to a lot of places.
  


20           The Canary Islands, case in point, they're
  


21   a lot bigger than we are and there's a bunch of
  


22   them, but they have something in common with us,
  


23   they don't have coal, they don't have oil, they
  


24   don't have wood, so, they used to bring in tanker
  


25   trucks and diesels to run their power.  Well,
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 1   that's unsustainable.  Now they have wind
  


 2   turbines.  Sailing down the East Coast of the Gran
  


 3   Canaria, you can see hundreds, maybe thousands of
  


 4   wind turbines.  They work.  They're not unproven
  


 5   experimental technology.
  


 6           Some of the most beautiful remote islands
  


 7   in the South Pacific, they have wind turbines so
  


 8   that they can have some of the things that we take
  


 9   for granted in the First World.  They can play
  


10   music, they can access the internet, they can
  


11   charge their cell phones, they can have light in
  


12   their house.  They don't mind the wind turbines.
  


13   A lot of people have spoken very eloquently about
  


14   what we have to do to change in this world, and
  


15   I'm not going to reiterate or reverberate on that,
  


16   I would just like to suggest that we should all
  


17   work together to be part of the solution.  Thanks.
  


18           MR. RESOM:  My name is Sven (S-v-e-n)
  


19   Resom (R-e-s-o-m).  I've stayed out of the Block
  


20   Island Times letter writing debacle because we've
  


21   actually been pretty busy working.  My wife and I
  


22   run one of the very few year-round businesses on
  


23   Block Island, the only light industry business on
  


24   Block Island, which is a manufacturing business.
  


25   We actually produce something here.
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 1           We're trying to demonstrate that
  


 2   year-round businesses can work on Block Island.
  


 3   As you may know, there are very few in the winter,
  


 4   and half of the reason is because of the power
  


 5   costs, and you've got the belief that we're just a
  


 6   summer community versus a year-round community.
  


 7   As John expressed, housing and economic costs are
  


 8   a big issue.  Economic sustainability is a huge
  


 9   issue on Block Island, and I think the discussion
  


10   is really coming down to economic sustainability
  


11   versus view shed.
  


12           Many people have talked about tourism.
  


13   Well, if you actually look at our hotels and the
  


14   cost of our hotels versus the services that we're
  


15   providing relative to other destination markets,
  


16   we're losing our competitive advantage, and a lot
  


17   of that is because of the energy costs.  We need
  


18   to figure out how to lower energy costs.  It would
  


19   be great to have a cable, everybody would love
  


20   that.  Wouldn't that be ideal?  My son teaches
  


21   elementary and middle school in Rhode Island, they
  


22   can't even afford pencils.
  


23           So, let's try and figure out where that
  


24   money for a cable is going to come from, unless we
  


25   have someone to help us.  Demonstration, we're a
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 1   demonstration business, we're doing everything we
  


 2   can to demonstrate to Block Island that you can
  


 3   have a year-round manufacturing operation and be
  


 4   profitable.  We believe that Deepwater can
  


 5   demonstrate.  We believe that we can learn and
  


 6   that we'll allow for year-round businesses on
  


 7   Block Island.  Truly, I believe this is good for
  


 8   Block Island.  It will preserve Block Island, and
  


 9   it will not hurt Block Island.  Thank you.
  


10           MR. GAGNON:  Anyone else who hasn't signed
  


11   up wishes to speak?
  


12           MR. LEWIS:  Keith Lewis, I just want to
  


13   say for the record because there's several,
  


14   there's different people on the Island that have
  


15   the same name, I just want to say that I'm not
  


16   opposed to wind power.  I can't be -- I don't feel
  


17   I can be an advocate because the current proposal
  


18   is not in my view.  If it was in my view, then I
  


19   would think seriously about being an advocate but
  


20   then, again, in order to be an advocate, I would
  


21   have to study it a whole lot more to be an honest
  


22   advocate.
  


23           It's very easy to say, no.  I wouldn't
  


24   feel the necessity to study at all because I know
  


25   to say, yes, I would want to study more than I
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 1   have, but what holds me back is that the current
  


 2   proposal is not in my view, so I don't feel I can
  


 3   be an advocate for someone else's view.  Thank
  


 4   you.
  


 5           MR. LaCOSTE:  Ken LaCoste (L-a-C-o-s-t-e).
  


 6   I guess one of the words I heard earlier was the
  


 7   word, perspective, and I think that's an important
  


 8   word in decisions that your organizations will
  


 9   have to make.  The perspective of what this
  


10   project will do to the view sheds of Block Island,
  


11   the perspective of what it will do to the tourism,
  


12   and the perspective of what it will look like.  I
  


13   was a historical archeologist for five years
  


14   before I became a marine mechanic, and I learned a
  


15   lot about history and how the landscape changes,
  


16   and I don't know if you're familiar with the
  


17   books, they're put out by Bob Downey, they're
  


18   pictures of the Island.
  


19           Historically, the Island has been an
  


20   evolution of human occupation.  First, it was
  


21   fully deciduous forest, or forested, it was all
  


22   cut down, clear cut.  It was farmland.  It evolved
  


23   into an industry of farmland and tourism and
  


24   fishing.  Large hotels went up blocking some
  


25   people's view, obviously, of the ocean.  After the
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 1   hotel -- during that same period they had
  


 2   windmills, or prior to that period they had
  


 3   windmills up, relatively large windmills that were
  


 4   used to create grain.
  


 5           After the hotels were built and some of
  


 6   them still stand, you had a period of decline when
  


 7   the fishing fleet was wiped out, and it wasn't as
  


 8   predominant as it was before.  Then, you had a
  


 9   time period when you had the tower put up for
  


10   telephones, and all of a sudden large towers were
  


11   in the view shed.  At some point, Block Island was
  


12   declared one of the last great places -- one of
  


13   the last ten great places.  Since that time, we
  


14   had a large cell phone tower and radio tower put
  


15   up.  As far as I know, it's still one of the last
  


16   ten great places, it's a matter of perspective.
  


17           Through time, the evolution has evolved.
  


18   The landscape has evolved, our view shed has
  


19   evolved, and I think it's something that this,
  


20   too, will evolve.  Another perspective is a matter
  


21   of time.  I'm thinking, from what I understand,
  


22   the towers, the expected life of these wind
  


23   turbines is 20 years.  The expected life of the
  


24   cable is somewhere around 50 years.  Almost 20
  


25   years ago I quit the rescue squad after being on
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 1   it for 10 years.  14 years ago my son went into
  


 2   boot camp on his 18th birthday.  That time passes
  


 3   so quickly.
  


 4           Once these are put up, time will pass.
  


 5   They will either be very effective, they'll be
  


 6   very successful or they won't be, but if they're
  


 7   not, I just want to make sure that you folks do
  


 8   what you have to do to ensure that the money will
  


 9   be there to take them down when the time comes,
  


10   whether it be because of obsolescence, whether it
  


11   be because of damage, whether it be because they
  


12   just don't work.  I'm in favor of the wind farm,
  


13   but I want to make sure that you and we make sure
  


14   that the money is there at the proper time,
  


15   whether it be early in the project or late in the
  


16   project to take them down when and, if necessary,
  


17   because after that 20-year period they're going to
  


18   be gone, that's it, and we're going to go back to,
  


19   you know, the way it was, and I just want to make
  


20   sure that the money is there to take it down.
  


21   Thank you for coming.
  


22           MR. GAGNON:  Are there any further
  


23   speakers?  If not, we can conclude the public
  


24   hearing, and thank you everyone for coming
  


25   tonight.
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 1           THE AUDIENCE:  Thank you.
  


 2           (HEARING CONCLUDED AT 7:55 P.M.)
  


 3
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   1                  C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N
  


 2   STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
   PROVIDENCE, SC.


 3
  


 4           I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that
  


 5   the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete
  


 6   transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled
  


 7   proceeding.
  


 8           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
  


 9   hand this 30th day of May, 2013.
  


10
  


11
  


12
  


13
  


14                    ________________________________
                    SALLY BRASSARD, CSR/RPR


15                    NOTARY PUBLIC
                    MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  1/16/17


16
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           1                  (HEARING COMMENCED AT 5:08 P.M.)

           2                 MR. GAGNON:  Hello everyone, I'm going to

           3         try to get things started here.  How this is going

           4         to work is, I'm going to read a statement to start

           5         the commentary.  After I read the statement, we'll

           6         call up the names of the individuals who signed

           7         in, and you can come up here to give your public

           8         comment.

           9                 So, welcome everyone.  Today is Wednesday,

          10         May 8, 2013, it is 5:08 p.m.  My name is Ron

          11         Gagnon.  I'm the Chief of the Rhode Island

          12         Department of Environmental Management's Office of

          13         Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today

          14         is Richard Bianculli from our DEM Legal Services

          15         office.  Also, here today is Michael Elliot from

          16         United Corps of Engineers.

          17                 We've gathered at the New Shoreham Town

          18         Hall today regarding a public hearing concerning

          19         the application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a

          20         State of Rhode Island Water Quality Certificate

          21         and Dredge Permit in accordance with the

          22         Department's Rules and Regulations for Dredging

          23         and the Management of Dredge Materials and the

          24         State Water Quality Regulations.

          25                 This hearing is being conducted under the
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           1         authority of the Administrative Procedures Act

           2         located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of

           3         Rhode Island.  In accordance with the Act's

           4         requirements, public notices of this hearing were

           5         published in the Narragansett Times, the South

           6         County Independent and the Block Island Times.

           7         Notice was also posted on the Department's

           8         website.

           9                 The purpose of this hearing is to afford

          10         interested parties an opportunity to comment on

          11         the noted application.  The hearing is not

          12         intended as a means of providing a forum for

          13         discussion, debating, arguing or otherwise having

          14         any dialogue at this time with members of the

          15         Department.  We ask that you please be silent when

          16         an individual is making his or her comments to let

          17         them fully have their time to speak.

          18                 Full copies of the application have been

          19         placed in the public libraries in Narragansett and

          20         New Shoreham.  We've also extended the written

          21         public comment period to 4 p.m. Wednesday, May

          22         22nd, 2013.  The previous public hearing was held

          23         at the Narragansett Town Hall on April 24, 2013 at

          24         6:30 p.m.

          25                 The procedure we will use for those who
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           1         wish to speak is as follows:  If you have not

           2         already done so, you can register at our desk over

           3         here.  I will call the speakers in the order of

           4         their registration.  We will allow approximately

           5         five minutes for each individual to make comments

           6         on the record.  When your name is called, please

           7         come to this microphone and speak clearly and

           8         slowly so that the stenographer can accurately

           9         transcribe your comments.  Written comments may

          10         also be submitted before or after your

          11         presentation of this meeting.

          12                 Please note that if it's necessary, I will

          13         raise a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you have

          14         approximately one minute remaining for comments,

          15         and at the end of the approximately five-minute

          16         period, I'll raise the red cardboard sign -- I'll

          17         try not to use those -- we didn't need them in

          18         Narragansett but, if necessary, I have them.  We

          19         ask that you please respect the time limit so that

          20         all comments may be heard.  Thank you for your

          21         cooperation.

          22                 After the time has elapsed for the

          23         submission of the written comments, the Department

          24         will prepare a written response to all comments

          25         and then we will complete the review process and
�
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           1         issue a final determination.  So, at this time,

           2         we'll start with the registered speakers for the

           3         comments.

           4                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Before we start, there are

           5         sign-in sheets by the entrance.  We do have a

           6         sign-in sheet just for attendance and another

           7         sign-in sheet if you wish to give public comments,

           8         and please do remember to speak slowly, we do have

           9         a stenographer that's present here tonight that

          10         will be transcribing all of the public comments.

          11                 MR. GAGNON:  Our first speaker is Linda

          12         Spak.

          13                 MS. SPAK:  Do I address you or the

          14         audience?

          15                 MR. BIANCULLI:  You can address the

          16         audience.  The stenographer will be transcribing

          17         your public comment, so you can speak in whichever

          18         direction you feel comfortable.

          19                 MS. SPAK:  My name is Linda Spak.  I

          20         would, first of all, thank you for coming here and

          21         having a meeting on Block Island.  It's much

          22         easier for us to come here than it is to go to the

          23         mainland, and my concerns are several.  First of

          24         all, our beautiful view from our Southeast

          25         Lighthouse, all the wedding pictures that are
�
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           1         taken there, it might seem like a small thing, but

           2         weddings have developed into quite an industry

           3         here.

           4                 Secondly, our very dramatic night skies.

           5         I understand there will be illumination on the

           6         towers, and I think that is a critical thing to be

           7         concerned about, and I've read some comments

           8         recently from some fishermen from Point Judith

           9         that have grave concern over what this building

          10         will do to our fishing grounds, and I share their

          11         concerns.  I hope that there is serious thought

          12         put to that.  Thank you.

          13                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is

          14         Bill Penn.

          15                 MR. PENN:  Bill Penn.  For the record, I

          16         want everyone in this room to know that while I

          17         represent members of several community

          18         organizations, I stand here before you as an

          19         individual, a homeowner for over 30 years, and a

          20         year-round resident for 17 years.  I strongly

          21         support the Deepwater Wind Project.  It's a

          22         significant public -- it's a significant

          23         infrastructure improvement to Rhode Island.

          24                 As a semi-retired person, 40 percent

          25         reduction in my monthly electric bill is going to
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           1         be very significant to me.  Also, the bills are

           2         going to be more constant.  They're not going to

           3         fluctuate up and down with the cost of diesel.

           4         It's also the fact that the cable to the mainland

           5         is going to be socialized with the mainland rate

           6         payers.  There's no way that 1,800 customers of

           7         BIPCO could afford a stand-alone cable to the

           8         mainland.

           9                 Now, most of you know I'm an

          10         environmentalist.  The environmental benefits to

          11         this project will significantly reduce the carbon

          12         footprints of Block Island.  We will no longer be

          13         burning and consuming a million gallons of diesel

          14         fuel a year.  The diesels will no longer run 24/7,

          15         and will only run if there's an interruption to

          16         the cable to the mainland.  This is truly a

          17         renewable energy source.  Renewable energy

          18         sources, such as this project, are the only way to

          19         reverse global warming.

          20                 We in the U.S. have 4 percent of the world

          21         population, but we emit 25 percent of greenhouse

          22         gases.  This project is one small step to reduced

          23         greenhouse gases and should be applauded for that

          24         result.  Also, professionally, I'm an

          25         environmental finance person, consultant, and I
�
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           1         have had a chance to meet several of the

           2         management team both locally and in Providence,

           3         and my professional opinion is that they are very

           4         professional.  So, with that, I would like to

           5         submit my written statement.  Thank you.

           6                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Folks, just a reminder,

           7         those that are giving public comment today, if you

           8         could please state your name and spell your name

           9         in its entirety so the stenographer can enter that

          10         into the record, and just a reminder for folks to

          11         turn off their cell phones if you do have them.

          12                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Jane and

          13         George Emsbo.

          14                 MS. EMSBO:  My name is Jane Emsbo

          15         (E-m-s-b-o).  My husband and I, Jorgen and myself,

          16         would like to share two things.  We'd like to

          17         share a letter that we wrote to the Council

          18         members concerning this and, then, we would like

          19         to briefly go over a few of the comments we got

          20         back from the council members with some

          21         information we'd like to share.

          22                 So, the letter we sent was:  We are so

          23         proud to live on an island famous for its

          24         continuing commitment to land and environmental

          25         preservation.  Let us now be leaders, not laggers,
�
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           1         to also bring the first U.S. offshore wind farm to

           2         Block Island.  Please vote, yes, to this project.

           3         Change is never easy, but is often critical for

           4         our well-being.  The clock is running down to save

           5         our environment and wind power is one of the

           6         solutions for the future.

           7                 The fears expressed by the opponents of

           8         the wind farm must be acknowledged, but they have

           9         been allayed again and again through international

          10         research and examples.  Now Block Island has the

          11         enormous opportunity to inspire others while

          12         reaping economic and environmental benefits

          13         ourselves.  We depend on our council to assure

          14         this.

          15                 Now I'm going to talk to some of the

          16         points.  We were very fortunate to get two

          17         responses from council members with some of their

          18         concerns and, very briefly, we're going to go over

          19         some of those concerns and we're going to depend

          20         on some information.  Most of the information we

          21         got from Danish sources on the Internet, and also

          22         through a personal phone call Jorgen made to

          23         Denmark yesterday.  Jorgen is Danish and that's

          24         one reason we're going to quote from Denmark.

          25         There is another reason for using Denmark, and
�
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           1         I'll read, briefly, that Denmark is the country in

           2         the world with the longest experience in this area

           3         of offshore wind farms and wind itself.

           4                 The first farm was in 1991, 20 years ago

           5         offshore, and I'm very excited that, right now,

           6         Denmark is using -- wait a minute -- has 28

           7         percent of the electricity produced by wind power,

           8         and the project now is by 2020, they hope to use

           9         50 percent by wind power.  Then, I do have those

          10         figures if I come to them quickly about how much

          11         of this is from offshore wind farms.

          12                 Some of the concerns of the council

          13         members, I'll read one of the concerns:  Most of

          14         the European countries have or are discontinuing

          15         permitting projects because of undue hardship

          16         placed on abutters' quality of life, general

          17         health and well-being.  The first point, as far as

          18         discontinuing the projects -- and I have all these

          19         resources I'm going to hand to the council members

          20         for their perusal.  Right now, as of October 2010,

          21         3.16 gigawatts of wind power is operational

          22         worldwide.  By 2020, the estimate is, we will have

          23         75 gigawatts worldwide with significant

          24         contributions from China and the U.S.

          25                 So, going on to the quality of life
�
                                                                    12


           1         talking about health, I don't see any reference to

           2         that, not that we've done extensive research.  I

           3         don't think that's too appropriate with an

           4         offshore wind farm.  Well-being, I'd like to read

           5         from an excerpt from a Danish paper, Offstiff

           6         Stelenoff (phonetic) and it's very brief, sounds

           7         familiar.  Everybody complained, holiday cottage

           8         owners, Town Councilors, nature conservation

           9         groups, animal lovers.  1,900 complaints were made

          10         about the first offshore wind farms in Denmark.

          11         2,000 holiday cottage owners were afraid of having

          12         their piece and wonderful sea view spoiled.  We

          13         all understand that.

          14                 It goes on with all the feelings,

          15         whatever, and I'll go down to how many years

          16         later, I don't know, but there were ten wind

          17         turbines that were set up and, now, there was a

          18         chairman of these beach villages that were

          19         affected by this, and it's a wonderful article, as

          20         you can read in full.  Ten years later, the

          21         chairman of this committee of the welfare of these

          22         beach cottages and houses, and mansions, says:  "I

          23         don't know anybody who's bothered by the wind

          24         turbine, said so and so, the chairman of the

          25         coastal group of 2,000 holiday cottage owners.
�
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           1                 From another municipality in that area,

           2         there's also a more positive area.  It seems the

           3         residents have embraced the wind turbines.  At the

           4         time, holiday owners, beach owners with properties

           5         wanted a tax reduction when it first came out

           6         because they felt that their house values were

           7         going to go down, so they wanted some

           8         compensation.  Today, a real estate agent

           9         specialized in property in that area states that

          10         the wind turbines in no way have had a negative

          11         impact on the value of holiday cottages, just to

          12         put that out.

          13                 And the next point -- I don't want to run

          14         out of time -- the rest of this will be given to

          15         the council members, and we thank them for all

          16         their hard work on this.

          17                 MR. EMSBO:  It so happens that I graduated

          18         pretty much at the same time that the wind

          19         adventure for Denmark started 50 years ago, and I

          20         have followed this minutely in the first years

          21         especially, and all these things that we have

          22         listened to here in this room and on this island

          23         was debated just like that, but over the first,

          24         like, 20 years and then all the negative requests,

          25         if you will, completely died out, and now
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           1         everybody is very happy with what is happening.

           2                 I have friends that have parts in wind

           3         power in Denmark and, as I said, I think it's five

           4         or six years ago, I stood up in this same room and

           5         I said:  All the issues, all the negative issues

           6         that has been mentioned, short of the visual

           7         problem when you look out over the sea has all

           8         been proven wrong.  The thing is, whether you

           9         think that the windmills are in your way, to enjoy

          10         the view or not is very difficult to quantify.

          11                 So, the only thing that is left is really

          12         what it looked like -- and I had it all down --

          13         one of the things I would say is a complaint about

          14         it's far too expensive, this Deepwater thing and,

          15         as I said five years ago in this room, this is one

          16         of the things that is very difficult for me to see

          17         because it is very, very expensive, but as

          18         somebody said to me, yes, but this is America, you

          19         know, somehow that was supposed to give an excuse

          20         for it.  Whereas, in Denmark, when the Danes got

          21         it all together and they started projects like

          22         that, supported by the public, it's very

          23         socialistic in Denmark, as you know, it -- you

          24         were not going to be considered if the power cost

          25         out of the wind farm was more than 5 percent
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           1         higher than the run-of-the-mill price, which in

           2         the case of Deepwater, that means that instead of

           3         9 cents or 10 cents a kilowatt, they couldn't

           4         charge more than five percent more than that, and

           5         this is the way that it's been operated since

           6         then.

           7                 Also, somebody complains that the lifetime

           8         is not long enough and say that after -- what was

           9         it, ten years or something like that, that the

          10         productivity of the turbines was down 30 percent.

          11         We have not been able to see where this has been

          12         coming from.  I'd better stop.  Okay, there are so

          13         many good arguments for starting it, and one of

          14         the things we have to look at, of course, is that

          15         it would help the local situation.  In the U.S.,

          16         as we just heard, are the people that use the most

          17         energy in the world by far.  They would be able to

          18         do a big reduction in carbon dioxide emission and

          19         help with global warming, which is much more

          20         serious than is admitted by the people in politics

          21         that talk about it; much, much more serious.

          22                 We have people here on the Island that are

          23         very knowledgeable about that, that has described

          24         for me what this means with the global warming,

          25         and I will just say, take yourself on a trip
�
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           1         around the country here and see the mountainsides

           2         all over the west and all over the country, and

           3         you will see that whether this project cost $400

           4         million too much, I mean, it's -- it means so much

           5         more to the whole big picture that we must have

           6         money to get it started so that if this becomes

           7         the first, we could hope that it would be

           8         successful and that more things would follow-up.

           9                 Denmark is starting their next six

          10         offshore parks right now.  It just was announced

          11         two weeks ago, and they will use the research that

          12         has been going on for, you know, how much are the

          13         fish and the birds suffering and how about the

          14         noise, et cetera?  They use all these things to

          15         compare what has actually happened over time, and

          16         somebody says that the fish are going to be going

          17         away and, yes, they may go away, they prefer not

          18         to stick around at the time that production or

          19         rather the installation happens, but once it is

          20         installed, you will get more fish than you ever

          21         had in most areas with our wind farms.

          22                 MR. GAGNON:  Sir, could I ask you to wrap

          23         it up.

          24                 MR. EMSBO:  Okay.  So, I must ask you to

          25         think it over if you are thinking of saying, no,
�
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           1         please change it to, yes.  It's really very

           2         important.  Excuse me for taking so much of your

           3         time.

           4                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  We have about

           5         sixteen speakers remaining, so we'll try to keep

           6         it to five or so minutes, if possible.  Thank you.

           7         Next speaker is Peter Baute.

           8                 MR. BAUTE:  My name is Peter Baute

           9         (B-a-u-t-e).  First, I want to thank DEM and the

          10         Army Corps for being here today.  We appreciate

          11         your efforts, and my compliments to DEM for taking

          12         the lead in using wind power at its own facilities

          13         on the mainland.  I think they're kind of setting

          14         a precedent that we could all mimic.

          15                 I'm a former three-term member of the Town

          16         Council and Chair of the Town's Energy Planning

          17         Committee, which was responsible for developing a

          18         long range energy plan for our community.  My

          19         purpose for speaking today is to give you some

          20         insight into Island opinion on the Deepwater

          21         Project, as well as just a few of my own thoughts.

          22                 Three years ago the Town Council requested

          23         that Roger Williams University conduct a

          24         scientific survey to determine whether Block

          25         Island residents would support or oppose a wind
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           1         farm off the shores of Block Island.  This survey

           2         was anonymous and voluntary.  It was mailed to all

           3         Block Island residents and voters.  The response

           4         rate was 42 percent for Island voters and 58

           5         percent for non-voting homeowners who are largely

           6         seasonal residents.  Both groups overwhelmingly

           7         are in support.  84 percent of the voters on Block

           8         Island favored the wind farm, 71 percent of the

           9         seasonal residents.

          10                 These results are similar to those of a

          11         recent survey carried out by the Block Island Land

          12         Trust.  The disastrous results of the past winter

          13         and fall storm give us a graphic example of some

          14         of the effects of climate change and provide

          15         emphasis to the great importance of limiting

          16         carbon emissions to the atmosphere.  Every wind

          17         turbine, every solar panel is a step in the right

          18         direction.  For Block Island, the elimination of

          19         emissions from the power plant is important, and

          20         cessation of the noise of the diesel generators

          21         will be a blessing.

          22                 The risks involved in the shipping and the

          23         storage of a million gallons of diesel oil are

          24         real and need to be avoided.  The dollars saved by

          25         Block Island residents, easily as much as 100 to
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           1         $200 a month, and much greater amounts by

           2         businesses will be an enormous benefit to our

           3         Island economy, and the recycling of these dollars

           4         on the Island will be a boost.

           5                 Just a couple small remarks about the

           6         environmental effects.  First, at a range of

           7         almost three miles off the Island, there will be

           8         no noise pollution from wind turbines.  Flicker is

           9         a geometric impossibility at that distance.  The

          10         fish will appreciate the presence of structure,

          11         and as Mr. Emsbo said, there will be more of them

          12         rather than less.  Nature will repair whatever

          13         disturbance there is to the ocean floor.

          14                 I urge you to continue the permitting of

          15         this project, it will be of great benefit to the

          16         people of Block Island and the economy of the

          17         state.  It's environmental effects will be

          18         positive.  Thank you.

          19                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Michael

          20         Ballard.

          21                 MR. BALLARD:  Michael Ballard, and I'd

          22         like to thank the DEM and the representatives from

          23         the Army Corps for coming out and hearing how we

          24         feel here on the Island.  Good afternoon to all of

          25         you.  As many of you know, I've had a life-long
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           1         love affair with Block Island and have been a

           2         resident for the last -- full time resident for

           3         the last five years.

           4                 As a resident, I strongly support this

           5         project, strongly in favor of it.  I had come to

           6         that conclusion knowing that in life not

           7         everything is perfect, and there are aspects of

           8         this that, perhaps, I agree with, are not perfect

           9         but, in my opinion, the overriding chapter is the

          10         fact that with this project comes a cable which

          11         affects the cost of electricity on Block Island.

          12         I'm happy to reduce my electrical cost, but my

          13         thinking goes beyond that, and this community has

          14         a number of very critical issues facing the

          15         viability of it.

          16                 One of them is the cost of electricity,

          17         and I, for one, feel that we need to throw a

          18         lifeline to the businesses that operate here on

          19         Block Island so that they continue to be a viable

          20         operation.  Thank you.

          21                 MR. GAGNON:  Jules Craynock.

          22                 MR. CRAYNOCK:  My name is Jules Craynock

          23         (C-r-a-y-n-o-c-k), and I am a year-round resident

          24         here on Block Island.  I spent 37 years federal

          25         service as a research oceanographer with NOAA, and
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           1         my field of study was anthropological impact and

           2         coastal marine environment, kind of some of the

           3         issues that we run into here.

           4                 I chose to live on Block Island because

           5         it's Block Island, and I could have chosen any

           6         place along the East Coast, and I chose Block

           7         Island.  I live up on Sands Pond Road.  I can see

           8         clearly the site where, hopefully, we will see our

           9         wind generators coming up, and I welcome this

          10         site.  To me, this is just an amazing leading edge

          11         of a way to get to a cleaner energy issue.

          12                 Block Island is a beautiful Island, but

          13         it's not a pristine island.  We are downwind and

          14         downstream of major pollutants, nuclear power

          15         plants, you name it.  We're a little structure out

          16         on the fringes of the North Atlantic, and if we

          17         can somehow reduce our own footprint a little bit,

          18         it's all to the good.  I have comments that I had

          19         made in a previous letter to the Block Island

          20         Times, and I will submit those as a written

          21         statement that came out on March 16.

          22                 I found that the comments of people who

          23         grew up here is important to listen to the full

          24         gamut, so we have different opinions, but I think

          25         we are all, all united in how do you make it
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           1         better here on Block Island?  How do you make it a

           2         little easier?  If I look at my property value and

           3         if I look at my view shed, I find myself -- and I

           4         would consider myself to be very narrow minded,

           5         somewhat inconsiderate of people who don't have

           6         that view shed.

           7                 So, in fact, it's a small island and we're

           8         all in each other's view shed.  Anyway, I come

           9         from an environment standpoint and, again, I think

          10         this is part of a prosperity, a direction for

          11         prosperity on Block Island with a limited resource

          12         space.  Thank you.

          13                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Bud Comeau.

          14                 MR. COMEAU:  My name is Bud Comeau

          15         (C-o-m-e-a-u), and I'm here, actually, to read a

          16         letter from Sandra and Pat Kelly who are off the

          17         Island.  They were fortunate enough to schedule

          18         their European vacation before this meeting was

          19         scheduled.  I know they had a hell of a time, they

          20         flipped a coin and said, which way should we go?

          21         Clearly, European first.  Anyway, what it says --

          22         and by the way, gentlemen, thank you very much for

          23         being here, and I do standup comedy sometimes,

          24         too.

          25                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Sorry, we butchered your
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           1         last name.

           2                 MR. COMEAU:  If I had a quarter for every

           3         time that happened, I wouldn't care what you did

           4         with the electricity on Block Island.  Anyway,

           5         what it says here is:  We are opposed to the

           6         Deepwater Project 1/2 to 3 miles off the coast of

           7         Block Island.  Do not permit this project to

           8         damage forever one of Rhode Island's natural

           9         resources, a resource that can never be replaced.

          10         The Mohegan Bluffs are very fragile.  The drilling

          11         construction for these massive 600 foot towers 1/2

          12         to 3 miles off the coast is unthinkable.

          13                 It's understandable when Newport, Little

          14         Compton, Jamestown and other communities didn't

          15         want any part of this venture.  Is there any study

          16         that shows what this massive drilling and

          17         construction could mean being completed so close

          18         to a bluff?  Should we not be protective of our

          19         historic Southeast Lighthouse?  Will this massive

          20         drilling weaken the bluffs and possibly the

          21         Southeast Light?  Much effort and money were

          22         extended to move the Southeast Lighthouse probably

          23         for the last time.  Do we want to take the chance

          24         of moving this historic treasure sooner than the

          25         studies have shown?  Detailed environmental and
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           1         construction studies must be completed before

           2         allowing the project to continue.  Protect our

           3         bluffs and waters, protect the Southeast

           4         Lighthouse.  Sincerely, Patrick Kelly and Sandra

           5         Kelly.

           6                 I have -- just a thought occurred of my

           7         own on this subject.  I didn't register to speak

           8         only to be a proxy or something, but it does occur

           9         to me that in the 40 years I've been fooling

          10         around on Block Island, a fair number of people

          11         have viewed this place as sort of a smorgasbord.

          12         They've come in, helped themselves, satisfied

          13         themselves and left.  I can't say that's what's

          14         going to happen with Deepwater Winds, but I'm old

          15         enough to be past altruism and have embraced fully

          16         cynicism, and the only thing I can say about the

          17         whole damn thing is, follow the money.  Thank you.

          18                 MR. GAGNON:  The next speaker is

          19         Christopher Warfel.

          20                 MR. WARFEL:  Christopher Warfel

          21         (W-a-r-f-e-l).  I'm going to speak to DEM since

          22         you probably all know exactly what I'm going to

          23         say -- and Michael Elliot.  My name is Christopher

          24         Warfel.  I was elected to the Town Council this

          25         past year and began service December 3rd of 2012.
�
                                                                    25


           1         I'm a registered professional engineer with 30

           2         years of experience in the field of energy

           3         utilization and 27 years of experience in utility

           4         generation, renewable energy generation and energy

           5         conservation.

           6                 I've been published several times in

           7         issues ranging from the use of wind power to

           8         provide potable water, to industrial financial

           9         behavior for investing in energy efficiency, to

          10         administration of the nationally awarded

          11         Department of Energy Program to encourage the

          12         development of renewal energy technology in grid

          13         isolated diesel generated power systems, such as

          14         Block Island.  My intention today is to convey to

          15         DEM that this project has been misrepresented with

          16         respect to its supposed public benefit, and should

          17         not go forward.

          18                 I believe DEM, itself, has made some

          19         mistakes in its calculations regarding emission

          20         reductions in its submittal to the Rhode Island

          21         Public Utilities Commission dated July 20th, 2010.

          22         I believe this project is a poor use of the waters

          23         under the trust of the State, and it is an

          24         economic albatross around the ratepayers of

          25         National Grid and Block Island Power Company.
�
                                                                    26


           1         This project will be an economic windfall to DB

           2         Shaw, one of the hedge funds behind this project,

           3         a company that has been behind similar ventures

           4         and has a poor track record, in my opinion.

           5                 I'd like to give a little context to DEM

           6         as to how we got here, in my opinion.  Formerly, I

           7         was a member of the Electric Utility Task Group

           8         for the Town of New Shoreham.  Our task, in

           9         essence, was to see if we could purchase Block

          10         Island Power Company in order to form a co-op

          11         under the guise of lowering electric rates on the

          12         Island.

          13                 Three years later, we delivered what Mr.

          14         McGinnis, Sr., Dr. Gazazza and Dr. Emandi

          15         (phonetic), I don't know how to spell his name,

          16         sorry.  We delivered their asking price, they then

          17         tripled the asking price.  That left us with a

          18         very desperate Town Council, which I feel is

          19         exactly the situation that companies such as DB

          20         Shaw was seeking.  So, our Town Council was

          21         desperate, and they grasped at the concept of a

          22         cable.

          23                 Going through the record it is apparent

          24         that the Town, even with a $12 million budget, did

          25         not allocate financial resources to properly
�
                                                                    27


           1         analyze this project.  Even when they were told

           2         they incorrectly analyzed the project, the Town

           3         did not, and still has not, conducted the proper

           4         analysis.  Today, we have people referring to the

           5         incorrect analysis as factual.  We just heard some

           6         people refer to a 40 percent reduction in energy.

           7                 This was based upon an incorrect

           8         understanding of power contracting.  I'm going to

           9         respond to Mr. Baute's intentions that we had

          10         qualified surveys that showed great support for

          11         this project.  The survey out of Roger Williams

          12         was done by a professor of architecture, including

          13         such questions as:  Do you think wind turbines are

          14         sexy?  This is not a serious survey.  It was not a

          15         serious survey.

          16                 Also, I would like to point out that

          17         electricity, while very expensive on Block Island,

          18         is not one of the major cost drivers, or is not

          19         the major cost drivers for businesses out here,

          20         it's probably number 4, and I don't think the

          21         money that is saved from any reduction, supposed

          22         reduction in electricity, is necessarily going to

          23         stay on this Island, it's going to go where the

          24         business owners go.

          25                 I think DEM indirectly analyzed the power
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           1         production in energy usage of Deepwater Wind and

           2         Block Island Power Company and, hence, the

           3         environmental benefit.  DEM, Deepwater Wind and

           4         the Town of New Shoreham had mixed power and

           5         generation variables together, forgetting or

           6         ignoring that power is instantaneous, while energy

           7         is time dependent.

           8                 We challenged Jeff Grybowski, the CEO of

           9         Deepwater to set the record straight, offering to

          10         resign from the Town Council if he could prove me

          11         wrong.  He declined, calling the intent for

          12         clarity as silly and, instead, repeated the same

          13         incorrect information.  How does this affect DEM

          14         analysis?  It greatly overstates the environmental

          15         benefit by ignoring the reality of BIPCO's energy

          16         pattern and is incompatible with Deepwater Wind's

          17         production.

          18                 I'll just refer you to this:  Block Island

          19         Power Company is a summer peaking utility with a

          20         very poor load factor of approximately, annually,

          21         29 percent.  The wind energy on Block Island is

          22         going to -- if we look at the mathematical

          23         function -- most of the time the wind speed -- not

          24         most of the time -- 40 percent of the time the

          25         wind speed is going to be below the cut-in of
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           1         these wind turbines for the summer.  This also is

           2         -- you know, so we don't get the energy that we

           3         thought we would get.

           4                 It doesn't match up with our energy usage

           5         and, in addition, we actually are not buying power

           6         from Deepwater, we're buying it from ISO-New

           7         England and nobody in this Town has done that

           8         calculation.  Let's see, if we look at graphs of

           9         ISO-New England generation, we hit right on their

          10         peak.  So, we will be buying the highest cost of

          11         electricity in New England, and with our poor load

          12         factor, we'll be buying probably the most

          13         expensive power in New England.  Again, we don't

          14         buy power from Deepwater, we cannot claim

          15         environmental benefits from Deepwater, all those

          16         benefits are being claimed by National Grid.

          17                 I do believe there are some problems with

          18         your analysis that you've provided to the PUC.

          19         They used very old data, and using the most

          20         current report from ISO-New England, which is

          21         2012, there's been an overstatement, or there will

          22         be a reduction of -- there is an error, that is

          23         the best way to say it, an error of 50 percent in

          24         the nitrous oxide emission.  There's a 91 percent

          25         error in the SO2 emissions, and there's a 10
�
                                                                    30


           1         percent error in the carbon dioxide emissions.

           2                 With respect to the benefit to Block

           3         Island Power Company, we found just mistakes,

           4         which meant there was a 76 percent error in NOx

           5         and 89 percent error in SO2, and I could not

           6         determine what the error would be in carbon

           7         dioxide in time for this presentation.  The

           8         ammonia calculation also appears to be very much

           9         an error.  13,210 pounds of ammonia are supposed

          10         to be emitted by BIPCO, however, our resources

          11         showed that BIPCO only has 670 pounds.  We think

          12         the analysis is inaccurately calculating in the

          13         slip and the SCR process.

          14                 It should also be noted that of all the

          15         states in New England, Rhode Island has the second

          16         lowest emissions, Vermont has the lowest.  So, if

          17         you're really worried about the impact in Rhode

          18         Island, this is another contributing error to the

          19         analysis.  My recommendation to you, to DEM, I

          20         know it's not within your purview but it's within

          21         the state purview, that instead of taking so much

          22         money out of the state economy, transferring it

          23         from the mainland ratepayers and turning it to DB

          24         Shaw is -- just work with the Town of New Shoreham

          25         and other state agencies to develop our own
�
                                                                    31


           1         indigenous resources.

           2                 I did that analysis.  That, coupled with

           3         energy conservation by far is the lowest cost

           4         option for the state and, actually, it's the

           5         lowest cost option for Block Island, and that is

           6         on another graph, which I will just highlight.  My

           7         point that I'd like to make is that we did not do

           8         our homework.  I think mistakes have been made in

           9         the analysis that overstate the benefit of the

          10         project.  This project is not what it has been

          11         purported to be as an economic benefit to the

          12         Island, it's definitely not an economic benefit to

          13         the state, and for that amount of money, we could

          14         do so much more by developing indigenous resources

          15         within Rhode Island.

          16                 40 percent of every project, in my

          17         estimation, the dollars of that project stay

          18         within the state, stay with the companies that do

          19         it.  What's going to happen here is that almost

          20         all the money is going to go to the investors.

          21         Thank you.

          22                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  The next speaker

          23         is Peter Lasser (sic).

          24                 MR. GREENMAN:  Good evening, everybody.

          25         My handwriting is so horrible, I printed out my
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           1         last name, which is Greenman (G-r-e-e-n-m-a-n).  I

           2         am a -- I'm in my 19th full-time year out here,

           3         and Sandy and I are out here for eleven or twelve

           4         full months a year.  I mean, we both are -- I am

           5         speaking for her as well -- entirely in favor of

           6         alternative energy.  I do think that, clearly,

           7         that after all of us here are dead and gone, the

           8         entire area, state, country and throughout

           9         globally, certainly, in China, are going to be

          10         very used to wind and solar generation.  I have

          11         read Tom Friedman's book, Hot, Flat and Crowded.

          12         He is either a one -- or I can't remember, a

          13         three-time Pulitzer Prize winner.  He is a

          14         journalist for the Block Island -- New York Times.

          15         We would do well to have him, isn't that true,

          16         Bruce?

          17                 I have also read a book by Bill McKennon.

          18         He is active in this very same genre.  Bill is

          19         from Vermont.  I have heard him speak and he, too,

          20         is very familiar with what is happening to our

          21         world.  All of these engineering details, fiscal

          22         details and so on and so forth, they're totally

          23         irrelevant.  This world is changing.  His book

          24         called, EEARTH, E-E-A-R-T-H, and the reason for

          25         that is, is that the earth that all of us here
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           1         grew up in as kids, nobody here will ever see that

           2         again.  That earth is totally gone.  So, it must

           3         be spelled in a different way.

           4                 We have, within the last few months

           5         experienced, with Super Storm Sandy -- didn't even

           6         qualify as a hurricane out here -- damage millions

           7         of dollars.  Some of that came from the Feds, some

           8         of it came from the State.  Much of it is coming

           9         right out of our pockets here in the repair of our

          10         beach pavilion.  So, anyway, it is a mystery to me

          11         how anybody who can read these two books would

          12         ever find any fault with wind generation or solar

          13         generation.

          14                 A few years ago the nature conservancy in

          15         their wonderful magazine wrote a beautiful article

          16         on wind generation, and it made very clear,

          17         there's good places to do it and there's bad

          18         places to do it.  The best place to do it is the

          19         ocean where the winds are more constant and

          20         favorable for producible.  As for here in our

          21         country, those best sources are the Atlantic Ocean

          22         and not the Pacific Ocean, but even though you can

          23         generate certainly wonderful electricity from wind

          24         generation of the land, it is much less efficient

          25         than if it were in the ocean.
�
                                                                    34


           1                 Financial condition on Deepwater Wind:  I

           2         started to read some of these letters from people

           3         that want to take potshots at Deepwater Wind, and

           4         somebody is going to make a big windfall.  My

           5         attitude is these investors have invested their

           6         own money in this company.  If they make a

           7         windfall, God bless them is my take here.  They

           8         are at enormous risk right now.  Are they going to

           9         make mistakes?  Of course they are.  This is the

          10         first time operation for this -- and there are

          11         lots of risks involved.  So, are they going to

          12         make mistakes, I expect them to.  Are they going

          13         to be corrected, I expect them to.  Anything

          14         that's this new and this huge, there are going to

          15         be bugs and they are going to be worked out.  So,

          16         anybody that wants to take -- I was in accounting

          17         and financial all my life.  I have no interest in

          18         Deepwater Wind's financial statements and so on

          19         and so forth.

          20                 The state has found fit to sit down and

          21         write a contract with them and, so, I think all of

          22         these potshots are from people, really, that have

          23         a problem with the -- what they think is going to

          24         be the appearance, the bad appearance of five

          25         turbines out at sea.  If this is a problem with
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           1         them, and this is my last point, this is what I

           2         urge you to do:  Just look out here or anywhere

           3         else on the Island.

           4                 You want to see something ugly, look at

           5         our electrical and telephone distribution system.

           6         It is the ugliest you could ever want to see.

           7         However, we're so used to it, we've been used to

           8         this since birth and, so, we don't even see it

           9         anymore, but if you really want to see something

          10         ugly, go down to Chapel Street and look towards

          11         Estes Park and all of this construction of all of

          12         these poles, none of which are plumb, or level, or

          13         anything else, is just a hobble affront.

          14                 So, anyway -- and further, I don't find

          15         the turbines at all ugly, but if it's appearance

          16         that bothers you, just look right outside your

          17         door.  Thank you.

          18                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Barbara --

          19         because I'm going to mess up your last name.

          20                 MS. MacMULLAN:  I guess we all have bad

          21         handwriting on Block Island.  My name is Barbara

          22         MacMullan (M-a-c-M-u-l-l-a-n).  I also want to

          23         say, as Bill Penn did, that I'm a member of the

          24         Town Board, the Electric Utility Task Group, but

          25         I'm speaking today on behalf of just myself and
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           1         not any groups.  I'd like to speak in favor of

           2         Deepwater Wind Farm, I think it will provide

           3         enormous economic and environmental benefits to

           4         Block Island.  We can quibble about the numbers,

           5         and we can argue about whether it's 10 pounds of

           6         CO2 or 20 pounds of CO2, but the matter of this

           7         will be to reduce the consumption of diesel fuel

           8         on the Island and to substitute that with wind

           9         power from the wind farm.

          10                 At the same time, our rates will go down.

          11         We can argue about whether it will be 20 percent

          12         or 40 percent or 60 percent, but the fact is that

          13         our rates will go down.  In terms of the impact on

          14         the mainland, while the project is expensive and

          15         the cost of power is higher than -- from the wind

          16         farm is higher than the average cost of power

          17         being generated or purchased on the mainland, the

          18         wind farm -- the Block Island Wind Farm will

          19         provide only a small portion of the total

          20         electricity consumed on the mainland.  So, the

          21         overall economic impact on mainland Rhode Island

          22         will be small.

          23                 And, finally, I think it will be a

          24         tremendous boom to the economy in this Island,

          25         which has struggles with high costs on every
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           1         facet.  We just went through with the ferry -- I

           2         think as an Island, we should support the project

           3         and look forward to the benefits that we'll

           4         receive.  Thank you.

           5                 MR. GAGNON:  Henry DuPont?

           6                 MR. DuPONT:  Henry DuPont.  I'm a

           7         year-round resident of the Island for all my adult

           8         life.  I served three terms on the Town Council.

           9         I want to thank you guys for coming down here

          10         today, it's important to hold these hearings in

          11         the places that are most affected.  I'm also a

          12         35-year wind energy project consultant and, most

          13         recently, I worked for COVEN (phonetic), which is

          14         the largest offshore wind energy consulting firm

          15         in the world with projects that total over 2,000

          16         megawatts.

          17                 Of course, since we don't have any

          18         projects here yet, they're all in Europe, Asia,

          19         and places like that.  So, I reviewed the

          20         Deepwater Wind Application at the Army Corps of

          21         Engineers and to DEM, and I note that the cable

          22         runs and the installation procedures, in my

          23         opinion, follow offshore wind energy best

          24         management procedures, and they've done quite a

          25         bit to mitigate the environmental impact of
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           1         installing the cables through directional drilling

           2         and cofferdams and other stuff, of course, and

           3         especially I know that people have been looking at

           4         marine animals and a number of other issues with

           5         regard to installing the structures offshore.  So,

           6         this all -- I believe, the environmental impact of

           7         the actual construction activities have been well

           8         addressed and have been mitigated.

           9                 I also note in the big picture that there

          10         are significant environmental benefits to Block

          11         Island and to the region, as a whole, especially

          12         with regard to emissions with diesel fuel

          13         transportation risk and also with -- when you live

          14         on an island, seawater rises is an important issue

          15         and, so, we need to do everything we can in New

          16         England and around to embrace forms of energy

          17         generation which will not put us underwater in the

          18         next few years.

          19                 Lastly, this project has significant --

          20         not only environment but economic impacts to the

          21         Island, somewhere in the neighborhood of $2

          22         million a year in electrical savings from getting

          23         power from the low cost mainland power grid, and

          24         that is a significant economic benefit to the

          25         Island.  So, thank you again for your time, and I
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           1         appreciate your good review of this project.

           2                 MR. GAGNON:  Edith Littlefield Blane.

           3                 MS. BLANE:  I thank you for coming, Mr.

           4         Elliot, who was gracious enough to answer my

           5         letter, and everybody in the room.  I currently

           6         have a different outlook about this project

           7         because I've lived here my entire life, which is

           8         84 years right now, and I'm not entirely convinced

           9         by the studies that have been done and the recent

          10         letter from the National Park Service -- which was

          11         printed in the Block Island Times -- had one item

          12         that was not in there, in the original, which said

          13         that an environmental impact statement should be

          14         made.

          15                 Now, we had a report done -- so it was

          16         said that Deepwater did a report, an environmental

          17         report, which is a lot different than an impact

          18         statement, and I'm sure you gentlemen all know

          19         that.  When the first survey came out, I was in

          20         favor of it and I answered in favor of it, but as

          21         time went on and the more I thought about it, I

          22         looked at what was going to transpire.  I have no

          23         objection to the blades themselves.  I think

          24         they're beautiful, I've seen them on the mainland.

          25         On the other hand, we're used to the black velvet
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           1         nights of the Mohegan Bluffs and the Southeast

           2         Light, which is historic -- and has been preserved

           3         at great cost emotionally and financially.  I

           4         think to, you know, jeopardize that in any way,

           5         would be hard for me to accept.

           6                 I could accept the blades themselves, but

           7         I think the bells, the whistles and the lights,

           8         which we know are going to be on them, because

           9         where are they going to be.  I don't -- I'm not

          10         entirely convinced that they have studied

          11         thoroughly the fragility of the bluffs.  We are at

          12         a slump there.  If I were a property owner along

          13         those bluffs, I would really be worried.

          14                 The other thing that really bothered me in

          15         looking at the background and how Governor

          16         Carcieri was quoted in the paper as saying that we

          17         did not have enough people here to really matter

          18         for any kind of objection, and we all know we're a

          19         small community and we don't have any political

          20         clout because we have no senator or representative

          21         who lives on Block Island, and unless you live

          22         here, you don't know really what Block Island is

          23         like on a twelve-month basis for a lifetime.

          24                 I know that the pluses are going to be

          25         good, and I fear also for the businesses in the
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           1         State of Rhode Island because their electricity is

           2         going to be greatly increased on this project, and

           3         I think that if these were not going to be within

           4         half-a-mile to three miles from Block Island, it

           5         would be a lot easier for me to accept that,

           6         therefore, I would just like to have my objections

           7         noted in the record.  Thank you.

           8                 MR. GAGNON:  Norris Pike?

           9                 MR. PIKE:  Good afternoon, my name is

          10         Norris Pike, I'm a member of Block Island's Town

          11         Council and have been involved with the local

          12         politics on the Island for quite a few years.  I

          13         was a member of the Utility Task Force at one

          14         point and active on the Planning Board of Block

          15         Island, both as a member and its chairman.

          16                 I am also a proud member of Block Island's

          17         codfish aristocracy.  My descendants go back to

          18         Justin Dodge who came to Block Island to teach the

          19         original settlers how to fish.  I started my

          20         working career early in life fishing out of Point

          21         Judith, and some of our best fishing was around

          22         dumping grounds or wreck sites and structure on

          23         the bottom that invited fish in to live.  Probably

          24         the best spots were around the torpedo's dumping

          25         grounds, I caught a few of those, those aren't
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           1         good.

           2                 I also visited Denmark when my daughter

           3         was in school in Copenhagen and noticed the beauty

           4         of all of their wind turbines out on their outer

           5         harbor around Copenhagen, the Jutland Peninsula,

           6         and it astounded me, it was awesome.  To me, it

           7         was just beautiful.  I'm sure there's others in

           8         this audience that would disagree to the beauty of

           9         turbines, but I see them sprouting up in Wickford,

          10         Providence, Fair Haven.  To me, it's a step in the

          11         right direction.

          12                 I think the bottom line is whether or not

          13         we believe that there's a problem with global

          14         warming.  I, personally, believe there is.  I've

          15         worked outside all my life.  I have scars on my

          16         face from skin cancer.  My insurance rates are

          17         higher because of skin cancer.  I think the ozone

          18         hole over North America is something that most

          19         people aren't aware of.  The amount of nitrous

          20         oxide spewed out of diesel engines gobble up the

          21         ozone on a significant basis.

          22                 Whatever Block Island can do to offset

          23         some of this emission is probably just a small

          24         step, but in the long run, I think if everybody

          25         takes small steps, we'll get a big step.  They say
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           1         in the next 90 years we're looking at a three to a

           2         six-foot ocean rise due to global warming.  I

           3         don't disbelieve it.  I think there's enough

           4         science out there to be able to put your finger on

           5         it, and it's not our generation.

           6                 Nobody sitting in this room is going to

           7         realize any significant change, it's our children

           8         and our grandchildren that are coming along that

           9         we're going to leave our world to, that we need to

          10         make changes for.  Can they look back in history

          11         and blame us for not doing what we could to offset

          12         this problem?  I think DB Shaw is entitled to

          13         profit.  They are taking a significant risk with

          14         what they're doing.  If they make millions, great,

          15         that's what America was built on and will continue

          16         to be built on.

          17                 I think we need to go forward and accept

          18         that we need to change the world that we live in.

          19         We can no longer continue burning and consuming

          20         massive quantities of fossil fuel.  China is

          21         taking steps to get into the big picture of wind

          22         industry.  The Europeans have been doing it for

          23         years, they had to.  The cost of fuel for them was

          24         significantly higher than in the states where fuel

          25         and water were synonymous, but that's changing.
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           1         $4 a gallon for diesel fuel that we burn to make

           2         electricity with has had a significant economic

           3         impact on Block Island, and if we can change that,

           4         reduce it by 20 percent, 10 percent even, to spill

           5         some of that money back into our economy, I think

           6         the survival rate of old codfish aristocracy, guys

           7         like myself, will be a better thing.  Thank you.

           8                 MR. GAGNON:  Maggie Delia?

           9                 MS. DELIA:  Thank you for coming to Block

          10         Island.  I'm going to address the room since I've

          11         addressed you before in Narragansett.  Maggie

          12         Delia (D-e-l-i-a).  I'm sitting here thinking

          13         about what can I say to you because when someone

          14         speaks, it's not just the words that they say but

          15         it's who's listening to them, and a lot of you

          16         don't know me, some of you do.  Some of you just

          17         know me as someone who doesn't like this project.

          18         Some of you know me as a friend.  Some of you know

          19         me as a part of your community.  I am not an

          20         expert in wind energy, though, I know more about

          21         wind energy more than I ever thought I would know

          22         in this lifetime.  What I am an expert in is being

          23         on the ground upfront and personal with this

          24         project since 2009.

          25                 I've seen things that I thought I would
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           1         never see.  We read about things in the newspaper

           2         about our government.  Well, in Rhode Island, it's

           3         as bad as you might think it is in your worst

           4         dreams.  Not that there aren't some good people

           5         out there because I've met some extraordinarily

           6         great people with great integrity, but that's not

           7         the business, as usual, in government.

           8                 What has me working on this day after day

           9         is because I really do care about the future for

          10         our children and our grandchildren, and I don't

          11         think that future is going to get fixed by the

          12         same people who messed it up to begin with.  Who

          13         Deepwater Wind is, is, a hedge fund.  They were

          14         introduced tonight as an LLC.  An LLC is a paper

          15         company, it has no assets.  If we have 660-foot

          16         wind turbines out in our ocean and something goes

          17         wrong with them, there is no way to fix them.  If

          18         lightening strikes these things and they are

          19         burning, there aren't any 660 -- well, maybe it's

          20         only 400 feet because the blades -- you don't have

          21         to go up to the blades, you go to NSL.  There even

          22         aren't any vehicles, no boats, no nothing to get

          23         up to 400 feet to fix these things when they're on

          24         fire, they will just be on fire until they burn

          25         out, and the thing I want to say to you is,
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           1         really, take this seriously, you know, and I might

           2         say some really stupid things here but they're

           3         real things, like logical things.

           4                 Like, when you've been to that great

           5         restaurant and you really love -- because I worry

           6         about tourism here, too -- when you go to that

           7         great restaurant that's really cute and small, and

           8         they have so many people that they change and they

           9         make it bigger, and then it's not the same

          10         restaurant and you don't want to go there anymore.

          11         This is not going to be the same Island having

          12         660-foot turbines hanging over it.  If I just do

          13         that to you right now, that's kind of dominating,

          14         you know.  That's what it's like to be in the

          15         presence of something that tall.

          16                 I screwed up a long time ago when I didn't

          17         know and didn't care about -- and it's not that I

          18         didn't care, it's just really that I didn't know

          19         the impact of the electricity rate on this Island,

          20         because had I known then, I don't think we'd be in

          21         this shape right now talking about this, I think

          22         something different would have happened, and we

          23         would be insured that this Island was the same

          24         beautiful unique place that it is right now.

          25                 Wind energy is not good renewable energy.
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           1         I will work on having electricity go down on this

           2         Island, you can count on me for that, because I've

           3         learned my lesson.  I've been working for almost

           4         five years to not have this happen because I

           5         screwed up and didn't know about the electricity

           6         rates and the impact that it had on everyone,

           7         which was the big opening for Deepwater Wind to

           8         come to this Island and say we're going to fix

           9         everything for you, but I'll tell you something,

          10         Deepwater Wind is a hedge fund.  They are

          11         lobbyists, and our corporations and our government

          12         work together to make sure that they get what they

          13         want.

          14                 When I hear tonight that people say it's

          15         only a little bit of money for the mainland, it's

          16         not a little bit of money for people.  Everything

          17         is meaningful for people that don't have a lot of

          18         money.  It's a half-a-billion dollars over market

          19         for this energy.  I don't see how you can justify

          20         that.  I listen to fishermen in Narragansett

          21         because I've been in Narragansett now for the past

          22         few months listening to that community, and this

          23         cable will go directly through their winter

          24         flounder breeding grounds, breeding grounds that

          25         they haven't been able to fish for a number of
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           1         years that are now opened up and they said, well,

           2         the cable will go through there and it will, you

           3         know, destroy your eggs and larvae but, you know,

           4         that's a little something that we have to give up.

           5         Well, you're going to pay more for this than over

           6         market, but that's a little something that we have

           7         to give up.

           8                 Well, you're going to have, you know,

           9         poles and substations and big turbines, and that's

          10         a little something we just have to give up, and I

          11         say there's something possible that doesn't have

          12         to be, that we're all working on different sides,

          13         because I'm for renewable energy.  I'm an

          14         environmentalist my entire life, actively for the

          15         past, you know, thirty years.  I put my money

          16         where my mouth is about that.  I give a lot of

          17         money to environmental groups, and I do a lot of

          18         work with them.

          19                 There's so much commitment in this room.

          20         People who are for renewable energy getting the

          21         electric rate down, you know, doing the right

          22         thing for this Island, keeping the Island, you

          23         know, the way that it is.  I am for that, too.

          24         Deepwater Winds and the hedge fund, their job is

          25         to make money.  Governor Carcieri pushed this
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           1         thing through.

           2                 If you want to find out about that, talk

           3         to, you know, your commissioners at the PUC.  They

           4         got more pressure to put that thing through than

           5         anything they've ever seen before and when they

           6         turned it down, I was at the State House and

           7         watched Deepwater Winds write the new piece of

           8         legislation that was foolproof, that no one could

           9         deny.

          10                 Narragansett just suspended negotiations

          11         with Deepwater Wind for the landfall.  They did

          12         that because a new Town Council member there said

          13         he couldn't stand how much back room conversations

          14         there were.  He wanted a public transparent

          15         process, and he wanted time on their own to do the

          16         research they needed to find out if it was a good

          17         project.  Not that they would just listen to

          18         Deepwater Wind about whether or not it was a good

          19         project.  He just, you know, he held up, you know,

          20         a huge stack of paper he just got through Docket

          21         4111, and he still has to get through the next

          22         docket, but he's serious about the impact that

          23         this thing is going to have on their town.

          24                 We need to get serious about the impact on

          25         this town.  Whether you're for it or against it, I
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           1         can find all the studies in the world that will

           2         prove my points, and if you are for it, you can

           3         find all the studies in the world that are for

           4         your points.  You have got to talk to the real

           5         people who are living with these wind turbines.

           6         You have to look at the real numbers.  The 40

           7         percent output of these wind turbines is not

           8         reality that's happening, it's 25 percent.

           9                 In Scotland, they just spent $2 million.

          10         They gave $2 million to wind farms to shut down

          11         for the day because they were getting too much

          12         energy at National Grid in Scotland, and how they

          13         worked that out is, they didn't turn down other

          14         sources of energy because they're too hard and

          15         they use too much energy to go up and down, so

          16         they just turned off 13 wind farms and paid them

          17         $2 million.

          18                 I believe we really want the right thing.

          19         Our government doesn't necessarily do the right

          20         thing, and we're, most of us, old enough in here

          21         to know that something that might look like it can

          22         help us has many, many drawbacks.  Like, you know,

          23         sometimes I think I'm listening to Saturday Night

          24         Live about, you know, we can fix your fungus on

          25         your toenails only you might die, you might have
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           1         seizures, you know, it's like all of those things.

           2         There are really some drawbacks to this.

           3                 So, I ask you to listen to me like a

           4         member of your community because that's who I

           5         consider myself to be.  I know I'm a summer person

           6         for some of you.  I know I'm an NIMBY for some of

           7         you.  I know some of you think all I care about is

           8         my view.  I know some of you think I really care

           9         dearly about, you know, the future.  However, you

          10         listen to me, I am committed to being in a

          11         relationship in communication with you about this,

          12         and there's lots and lots that I know about this,

          13         and I ask you to please call on me.  Thank you.

          14                 MR. GAGNON:  I need some help with this

          15         one.  I think the initials are T. R. --

          16                 MR. DOYLE:  Doyle.  Tom Doyle.  Most of

          17         you know me, I've had a home on the Island for 23

          18         years, and I have lived here full-time since 2007.

          19         I would like to reiterate the facts echoed by the

          20         previous speakers to the DEM and the Army Corps of

          21         Engineers for coming and listening to us, both the

          22         pros and cons.

          23                 As most of you know, I'm against the

          24         deepwater demonstration project.  I jotted down

          25         seven -- very brief, seven brief reasons why I'm
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           1         against it.  First of all, the procedure to which

           2         several previous speakers have alluded, Little

           3         Compton turned it down, Jamestown turned it down

           4         and then we have the Deepwater Demonstration

           5         Project on Block Island, and most people have no

           6         awareness that that's what was going on.

           7                 My second reason is the wanted BIRA

           8         survey.  As Mark Twain said, "There are lives,

           9         there are damn lives, and there are statistics."

          10         This is an excellent example of irresponsible

          11         statistics.  I stated very briefly, and I know

          12         good people disagree, I'm not saying those who

          13         quote the survey are evil, and I am good.  I'm

          14         just pointing this out.

          15                 There were many marginal comments to that

          16         survey which qualified the opinion that we are in

          17         favor of wind farm.  For example, people who are

          18         in favor of a wind farm are far enough away that

          19         they couldn't see it, et cetera, et cetera.  Those

          20         comments were never published although, full

          21         disclosure, the BIRA Board asked Dr. Papalitas

          22         (phonetic), who lead the survey, to publish those

          23         things and they were never published.  The

          24         mysteries of science.

          25                 My third reason, which has also been
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           1         alluded to was the override of the Public

           2         Utilities Commission or PUC.  They thought that

           3         the electricity generated would be too expensive,

           4         and I think they were right, I'll leave that up to

           5         you.

           6                 The fourth reason is there's a need for a

           7         cable.  However, it's very interesting that the

           8         cost for the cable, if you look at it, has jumped

           9         up and down, whereas, the consumer price index has

          10         not.  Now, you hear about the price of copper,

          11         that's what driving it up, the cost of labor, that

          12         may all be so but that, really, has not been

          13         investigated, at least I don't think it has.

          14                 My fifth reason, I am not a -- "Not In My

          15         Backyard Person," I won't see the windmills.  I'm

          16         not opposed to them.  In fact, I'm not opposed to

          17         alternative energy.  I think it's a wonderful

          18         idea, I'm just opposed to this version of

          19         alternative energy.  However, one must note that

          20         it's very easy to say, if you're not looking at

          21         them, "Well, I think they're beautiful structural

          22         entities," but you're not looking at them.  That

          23         should be left to the people that look at them.

          24                 Part of this is that we're giving up our

          25         view, and we'll be giving up some other things and
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           1         we have gotten very little in return.  In fact,

           2         many of us feel we've been rolled by Deepwater

           3         Wind.  For example, we've talked about burying our

           4         electrical wires.  Why couldn't that be done?

           5         And, once again, I'm a capitalist.  I think it's

           6         the worst best system we have.  The other systems

           7         don't work.  Ours works.  However, there is an

           8         issue of fairness, and as long someone has a lot

           9         of cash, they either have to give it -- which they

          10         usually don't -- but you have to be smart enough

          11         to take it away from them and we haven't done

          12         that.

          13                 My sixth reason is the -- talk about

          14         energy bills.  The projections are 20 to 40

          15         percent, and this is a good thing.  However, no

          16         one has mentioned the escalator clause that

          17         National Grid has.  If the escalator clause works

          18         and if inflation kicks in, God forbid.  So far we

          19         don't have any inflation, but we could well end up

          20         spending as much or more for energy than we are

          21         now.  There's something to be considered.

          22                 Lastly, we hear a lot of talk about this

          23         is going to be -- the environment is going to be

          24         clean, our grandchildren, et cetera, will live in

          25         a pollution-free environment, that's a losery.  I,
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           1         like you, I would love to see a cleaner

           2         environment, and I would do everything in my power

           3         to make that so, but practicality tells us that

           4         we're going to be dependent on fossil fuels for

           5         the foreseeable future.  Coal, oil, gas won't go

           6         away.  When the wind turbines shut down, the

           7         diesel generators pick up, and they're not running

           8         on sea algae, they're running on fossil fuel.  You

           9         all know that.  As the man said, I digress.

          10                 And, lastly, Governor Carcieri and his

          11         group when they propounded this, they talked a lot

          12         about jobs in Rhode Island, it would bring jobs to

          13         Rhode Island in the depressed economy.  These are

          14         all laudable ideas, and I am not mocking them,

          15         however, the latest evidence indicates that those

          16         jobs are not forthcoming.  Thank you.

          17                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Folks.  Before we announce

          18         the next speaker, if those of you that are

          19         standing, if you wish to come in, there are a few

          20         seats up here, you can sit up here.  We're just

          21         visitors to this room today, and if you do wish to

          22         sign in, there's still a sign-in sheet for giving

          23         public comments over there as soon as you enter

          24         the room.

          25                 MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Millie
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           1         McGinnis.

           2                 MS. McGINNIS:  Hi, my name is Millie

           3         McGinnis (M-c-G-i-n-n-i-s).  I'm going to speak

           4         very briefly this afternoon.  I'm going to then

           5         excuse myself to be with my family, but I live

           6         here and I work here year-round, and I just want

           7         to say that I support this project with a big warm

           8         heart for it.  I look forward to it going forward.

           9         I'm hoping that the permitting process will

          10         continue.

          11                 It's a good thing for Block Island

          12         environmentally and economically.  I feel for

          13         Rhode Island, for the economic development

          14         potential it brings.  It's a good thing for Rhode

          15         Island.  I see it as a good thing for the nation,

          16         for some innovation and technology, and I

          17         certainly think it's a great thing, so, bring it

          18         on.  Thank you.

          19                 MR. GAGNON:  Rob Gilpin?

          20                 MR. GILPIN:  Thank you.  I would just like

          21         to say that I support this project.  I've watched

          22         it from the beginning and I think you really need

          23         to start at the beginning and how it started, and

          24         it was the governor and the state that put in an

          25         RFP, and the first proposal that I saw showed 130
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           1         wind turbines all around Block Island.  Now, I

           2         opposed that, I didn't think it was feasible, and

           3         then it was Deepwater, this contractor that came

           4         forward and said, we don't think you ought to do

           5         that.  We'd like to see six to eight around Block

           6         Island and then move the bulk of them offshore,

           7         which is more of a proposal that I could support.

           8                 I've been involved with Deepwater.  I

           9         monitor their med (sic) equipment while I was on

          10         the Island, and I have lived here for 35 years,

          11         year-round.  The wind blows out here.  You have to

          12         put the turbines where the wind is, and I

          13         supported the governor and the legislature.

          14         They're not only thinking of Block Island, this is

          15         an opportunity to bring offshore wind to Rhode

          16         Island.  Realizing that this country doesn't have

          17         the infrastructure, they had to start with baby

          18         steps.

          19                 I've been to Quonset point for years, it's

          20         been well underdeveloped, and this is a perfect

          21         opportunity to put Rhode Island in the forefront

          22         of developing offshore wind on the East Coast.

          23         Now, that's forward thinking, in my mind.  I live

          24         on Mohegan Trail, I'm going to have to look at

          25         them.  It's a risk I'm willing to take.  The power
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           1         bills really don't affect me.  I conserve, but I

           2         know there's a lot of people who are elderly that

           3         their power bill in the summer can be seven or

           4         $800 a month.

           5                 Currently, I've been on the Planning Board

           6         for ten years, and I served on the Zoning Board

           7         one, and the North Light Commission for over 20.

           8         So, I've been on the other side of the table, and

           9         the only thing I request of you is, take the

          10         emotion out of it and examine the record.  All the

          11         information is there.  You can debate the benefits

          12         until the cows come home, but the bottom line is,

          13         I think it's a benefit for this community and for

          14         the State of Rhode Island.

          15                 I did read the comments from the Park

          16         Service on the Southeast Light and the impact, and

          17         I did meet with Bill Bulger and Marianne Abacus

          18         (phonetic) when she came to the Island to do the

          19         assessment, and I was just curious on what

          20         criteria do you evaluate this?  She looked at me

          21         and said, there is none.  So, my point is, is

          22         whether it's going to have an impact?  Obviously,

          23         yes, but I ask you to consider this one thing:

          24         Lighthouses were never enamored the way they are

          25         today.  They were essentially utility structures,
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           1         not unlike wind turbines.

           2                 When they were built, personally, for the

           3         North Light, they built four lighthouses in 38

           4         years because they just couldn't find the right

           5         site and, historically, they were built and they

           6         knew when they built the Southeast Light that it

           7         would have to be moved some day, or they would

           8         demolish it.  So, you've got to look at the

           9         historic value in that context.  I'm also aware

          10         that the Coast Guard is planning to remove Cape

          11         Lookouts First Order Lens and, in my opinion, that

          12         will have more of an impact on the historic

          13         Southeast Light than the wind turbines that are

          14         three miles away.  Thank you.

          15                 MR. GAGNON:  Sean McGarry?

          16                 MR. McGARRY:  My name is Sean McGarry

          17         M-c-G-a-r-r-y.  Good evening, and thank you for

          18         coming to Block Island, Mr. Elliot, for being

          19         proactive in getting a jump start on your

          20         hearings.  My name is Sean McGarry, I'm a member

          21         of the New Shoreham Town Council.  I am also

          22         Chairman of the Democratic Town Committee, and I

          23         want to talk briefly about why I'm opposed to the

          24         overall project and, then, I want to focus on what

          25         this hearing is really about.
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           1                 Of course the visual impact and the

           2         quality of life is going to be greatly impacted

           3         for those of us who have lived here a great

           4         portion of our lives.  My family originally

           5         settled here in 1919.  I have two boys in the

           6         school and they represent the fifth generation of

           7         McGarrys here on the Island, and their quality of

           8         life is going to be greatly impacted by this.

           9         They'll never be able to know the pristine quality

          10         of our vista that I was able to experience, that

          11         four generations ahead of me were able to

          12         experience and, hopefully, that my children will

          13         some day be able to experience.

          14                 There's going to be a great impact on

          15         tourism.  People say people are going to come to

          16         see this.  Well, they might come and say, hey,

          17         let's go check out and see what these fools did

          18         over there because they really made a mess out of

          19         that, but that's going to die out because what's

          20         going to happen is, we're going to kill what is so

          21         special and unique about our geographic isolation,

          22         our unspoiled beauty.

          23                 This is going to represent

          24         industrialization on a large scale in a very rural

          25         isolated community that I'm sure you've enjoyed
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           1         seeing as you walked here or drove here, but

           2         moving forward -- oh, just briefly about the cost

           3         of electricity.  My health insurance is about

           4         $1,600 a month.  My electric bill in a year is

           5         about $1,600 a month.  So, if you want to do

           6         something for me, help me with my health insurance

           7         and not my electrical bill, but the reason for

           8         this hearing is the dredge application.

           9                 Specifically, the application at this

          10         point is incomplete.  I mean, they say that

          11         they're going to land the cable in Narragansett,

          12         but there's no agreement to land the cable in

          13         Narragansett.  So, I don't understand why the

          14         hearing would proceed anyway.  If they have to

          15         change that location then, I guess, we would redo

          16         this hearing again, and my hope is that you would

          17         come back and we'd talk about the other location

          18         because it would be very great, because if we were

          19         to go to Charlestown, then we would land on West

          20         Beach or Coast Guard Road.  I mean, everything

          21         would change, all the dynamics.  Essentially, the

          22         process should not have even started yet.

          23                 Now, why did they choose beaches as

          24         landing areas for this cable?  The reason is

          25         because there's an immense amount of equipment and
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           1         excavation, and demolition and destruction that's

           2         going to happen with this process:  The building

           3         of the cofferdams, the 40 acres of sea floor

           4         disturbance.  I like to call it sea floor

           5         destruction, but an immense, immense amount.

           6                 So, they choose beaches because they can

           7         get the machinery in there and minimize the amount

           8         of impact, but there's going to be an enormous

           9         amount of impact.  There are a lot of issues that

          10         are going to continue to be identified that aren't

          11         identified yet.

          12                 We don't really understand what the impact

          13         on the fishing stock is going to be, what the

          14         issues with tidal -- or people talk about driving

          15         the pilings and what effect that's going to have

          16         on the bluffs.  You know, I can only imagine

          17         driving a piling two and three quarter miles off

          18         shore on our fragile bluffs, you know.  I can see

          19         chunks of that falling off with that vibration,

          20         maybe, I don't know, we don't know.  So, there

          21         must be an environmental impact study to determine

          22         not only the dredging impacts but the impacts of

          23         the overall project.  So, I ask you to please,

          24         please study those impacts thoroughly.

          25                 The public process for this has been
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           1         flawed from the start.  Here, on Block Island,

           2         there were never any public hearings.  We never

           3         had the opportunity to come and speak in front of

           4         the then Town Council, we weren't offered that

           5         opportunity.  The Public Utility Commission came

           6         out here for the first time and listened to us,

           7         and the next thing they did is they denied the

           8         Power Purchase Agreement with Deepwater Wind and

           9         then like people said, the legislature in their

          10         infinite wisdom decided to legislate out the

          11         people that were designated to protect us.

          12                 I'm looking to you to protect us as well

          13         with our natural resources of our ocean floor and

          14         our beaches and I hope that you don't, in turn,

          15         get legislated out.  At this hearing today, this

          16         time of the year there's only 25 percent of the

          17         people that live here on the Island.  So, if this

          18         were a month later, we would have had to have been

          19         at the school because we would have been out far

          20         into the street.

          21                 In a day like today -- and there are many

          22         more to come like this, there would be no

          23         electricity being generated by wind turbines.

          24         What you would have is five competing foghorns,

          25         not the tweeting of the birds but the five
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           1         foghorns fighting, and ten flashing lights.

           2         There's a lot of debate about what turbines do,

           3         whether there's positives or negatives.  One thing

           4         I will tell you that they do for certain is they

           5         divide communities.  This community is divided.

           6         The damage has already been done.  Thank you again

           7         for coming.

           8                 MR. GAGNON:  Doreen Napoleone.

           9                 MS. NAPOLEONE:  Hello, my name is Doreen

          10         Napoleone (N-a-p-o-l-e-o-n-e).  I'd like to thank

          11         the DEM and Army Corps for hearing our comments,

          12         and everybody here.  I know this is a very

          13         difficult topic, and I have many friends in the

          14         room that we don't see eye-to-eye on this topic

          15         and I am going to focus, I think, my comments

          16         today on the environmental side since that is the

          17         purpose of this hearing.

          18                 I realize this isn't a perfect project and

          19         there's probably much about it that could be

          20         improved, but I am for the wind turbines.  I was

          21         very saddened to see the full page in our paper

          22         this past week from a New Jersey-based

          23         non-for-profit firm called Beautiful Block Island,

          24         Inc. that was urging us to deny this project and

          25         say no to it because of the birds and the fish,
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           1         and the lighthouse and the beauty of our Island.

           2                 In that focus of the environment and the

           3         issues, I think it's so important to stress to

           4         everyone, and I know many of us know this, but

           5         there's overwhelming consensus among the

           6         scientific community that our planet is warming,

           7         the Arctic ice is melting, the sea levels are

           8         rising and man-made greenhouse gas and carbon

           9         dioxide such is that, that our power plant

          10         produces is causing that problem.  So, for us to

          11         talk about protecting our birds and our fish, and

          12         our Island by burying our heads in the sand and

          13         not addressing the problem head-on is very sad to

          14         me.

          15                 I looked at our beaches after our storms

          16         this winter, and our fish and our birds are very

          17         damaged, and we need to be looking forward into

          18         the future and what is there -- I don't have

          19         children, but for the future generations to come

          20         here.  I think that the offshore wind project is

          21         an opportunity for this beautiful place to be a

          22         leader, to lead and clean alternative energy in a

          23         project that is not perfect, and I would encourage

          24         all of you in the room that know all of the things

          25         wrong with it to use that information to making it
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           1         a better project versus stopping the project.

           2                 I feel like your comments about it being

           3         industrialized, we have a power plant in the

           4         middle of our Island, how much more industrial

           5         could that be?  We have a gigantic cell tower in

           6         the middle of our Island, those things are very

           7         industrial.  So I think we really need to sort of

           8         dwell and reflect on some of those comments, and I

           9         do feel that this project is not permanent.

          10                 Yes, we'll have some lights out there and

          11         there will be some foghorns, but we talk about

          12         this being turbines that are here for 20 years,

          13         not a nuclear plant here forever, and 20 years

          14         from now, people's grandchildren, maybe we'll see

          15         the Southeast Light, maybe it will be there

          16         because we won't have the super storms.  I know

          17         it's a little project, a small impact to climate

          18         change, but I feel it's important that we be

          19         leaders in that process.  Thank you.

          20                 MR. GAGNON:  Dick Martin?

          21                 MR. MARTIN:  Dick Martin (M-a-r-t-i-n),

          22         previous Town Council for the last six years.

          23         I've worked at the Block Island Power Company for

          24         32 years, still working there.  I'm not a

          25         millionaire.  I made that very clear at the last
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           1         PUC meeting, I'm not, I wish I was.  I wish I was

           2         wealthy, as much as a lot of people in this room.

           3         I do respect a lot of you in this room for

           4         everything that you do say.

           5                 I have a lot of issues, but I know when I

           6         moved to this Island and when I began to work at

           7         the Block Island Power Company, there was talk of

           8         the cable.  For 32 fricking years I've heard that

           9         that's what we need, is, a cable.  Franklin Renz

          10         couldn't do it.  The previous owners, Mr.

          11         McGinnis, Gerry Edwards and Dr. Gazazza, excuse

          12         me, they couldn't do it.  They need help.  There's

          13         only 2,000 customers out here, roughly, we can't

          14         do it alone.  This was my way that I felt six

          15         years ago or seven years almost now, when I went

          16         on the council.  This is my way of trying to get a

          17         cable.

          18                 I know it went from eight windmills down

          19         to six to five, or whatever.  Who knows where it

          20         will go before it's done, we're not there yet.  It

          21         might go to three, who knows, but the cable is

          22         what is more important to me than anything.  I

          23         think it's more important to the Island.  That's

          24         what has divided us.  Yes, we've had a civil war.

          25         We've had a lot of arguments at our dinner tables,
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           1         whether it's in-laws, outlaws, or whatever you

           2         want to say, neighbors and, hopefully, we'll be

           3         friends after it's all over, still, but we have

           4         had the discussions and it's not being

           5         blind-sided, we all know what's going on.

           6                 I am not an engineer, I do not know the

           7         answers, but I do know that I have seen a lot of

           8         businesses and a lot of people come and go because

           9         of electricity bills.  I've heard tonight that

          10         it's the fourth level, wow.  If you were ever

          11         around the first of the month and you heard the

          12         electric bills come out, "This can't be my

          13         electric bill, it must be somebody else's because

          14         I couldn't do that."  Well, I don't get discounts

          15         on my electric bills either.  In the summertime,

          16         they're outrageous.

          17                 I talk to my family on the mainland.  I

          18         wish that each and every one of you all that come

          19         here tonight would call up every month and ask

          20         what the electric rate was and compare it to your

          21         electric and find out how much it would be, and

          22         you'd understand where we said stand, but I am for

          23         this project.  I'm not sure if it will go all the

          24         way through, but I do know we need this cable, and

          25         if we don't get this cable, damn it, I really hope
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           1         that each and every one of you that have fought

           2         this project stand up and get us a cable, and that

           3         should be a promise that we have before this is

           4         over, because we do need this cable, bad, this

           5         Island does.

           6                 If you've ever owned a business on this

           7         Island -- I have not run a business -- but I've

           8         heard and seen a lot of them come and go, and I

           9         don't know how some of these people stay, but if

          10         you go out to dinner here, it cost you $125 for

          11         two people to go out and not have booze -- God

          12         forbid if you need booze because it's going to be

          13         more -- but $125 for a meal here is going to be a

          14         lot more than you would have gotten from the

          15         mainland, and that's my point, is, that we do live

          16         here, and I live here 365 days a year.

          17                 I don't take vacations, very seldom.  I

          18         only go off if it's a medical problem or if it's

          19         something in the family.  So, this is where I do

          20         still take my vacations.  I live here 365 days a

          21         year, 32 years I've been here.  I want to thank

          22         you all for coming, and I hope it's not wasting

          23         your time, and I hope you're not wasting our time

          24         and that you're listening to each and every one of

          25         us.  Thank you.
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           1                 MR. GAGNON:  The next speaker is Mya

           2         Velvenan Wilson.

           3                 MS. WILSON:  I've written a poem about the

           4         wind turbines and what I think about them:

           5             Our heroes of the future need permission to

           6         come and stay.  They love the water like some of

           7         us, or most of us.  They are giants.  The wind is

           8         their horses.  They only spin, they don't hurt

           9         anybody.  Our heroes of the future, blue and

          10         white, white more than gray.  Their names are wind

          11         turbines.

          12                 MR. GAGNON:  Peter Saxon.

          13                 MR. SAXSON:  I want to reiterate what Dick

          14         Martin said.  That is what this is all about, the

          15         cables to the mainland.  We need it for

          16         electricity, we need it for broadband.  We can get

          17         it if it were a card (phonetic), but if you keep

          18         pushing off Providence, they eventually will

          19         capitulate, we can do it.  What we don't need is

          20         an experimental project on Block Island.

          21                 This wind farm is called a demonstration

          22         project.  Why?  Because they have to demonstrate

          23         that it's feasible to build wind turbines off

          24         Block Island and operate them.  Why?  Because

          25         there's a chance you can't maintain those wind
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           1         turbines.  There's a chance they're not

           2         economically feasible.  There's a chance this is a

           3         100 percent boondoggle, which will result in five

           4         rusting wind turbines with no one to take them

           5         down.

           6                 Instead of spending a fortune on building

           7         an experimental project off Block Island and

           8         ruining what many people feel is a great vista,

           9         what we should be doing is getting the damn cable

          10         to the mainland and focusing our energy to do

          11         that, not on an experimental project which could

          12         fail.  I asked the President, I think it was Mr.

          13         Rich (sic) years ago:  "What would happen if a

          14         hurricane with 120 mile-an-hour wind hits those

          15         turbines?"  He said, "Well, we have computer

          16         simulations to show they'd be fine."  I said, "You

          17         have computer simulations to show they'd be fine,"

          18         that's as good as the data that goes in.

          19         Computers never go wrong, right?  Nothing can go

          20         wrong, nothing can go wrong.

          21                 What happens if these turbines, because of

          22         the turbulence below and the winds above crack,

          23         bend or fail, who's going to fix them; you, me?

          24         Who's going to pay for it, you?  That's for sure.

          25         Who's going to take them down, not Deepwater,
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           1         they'll be gone, you'll pay for that, and we'll

           2         have turbine reef out there with five rusting wind

           3         turbines.  That's why I'm opposed.

           4                 MR. GAGNON:  Fred Leeder?

           5                 MR. LEEDER:  Good evening, Fred Leeder.  I

           6         came to this Island to work for the summer 30

           7         years ago, I've been here ever since.  I came out

           8         here with a duffle bag full of clothes and a

           9         couple of milk crates full of books.  Since then,

          10         part of the lesson is living within one's means.

          11         You've all seen -- well, most of you have seen the

          12         crappy cars I drive, I string them along as long

          13         as I can.

          14                 You know, as far as introduction, if you

          15         don't know me and my crappy cars or remember me

          16         from the post office, maybe you should.  From

          17         these extremely humble beginnings, I was able to

          18         acquire some property and build my own home,

          19         literally built it myself.  I recognize a lot of

          20         people in here who actually helped me pound nails,

          21         you know, living within your needs.

          22                 I'm off the grid, so I'm going to say I

          23         don't have a dog in this fight because I don't get

          24         electric bills.  In fact, when I worked at the

          25         post office, that was the best part of my job, is
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           1         every month delivering the electric bills because

           2         I didn't get one again, but I heard people crying

           3         in the lobby of the outrageous bills, and during

           4         my term as postmaster, we put solar on the post

           5         office.  So, my alternative energy credentials are

           6         pretty good.

           7                 Alternative energy works.  You've got to

           8         look at the pig picture.  We've got to do

           9         something as a country, as a society, as a world.

          10         We cannot go on doing what we're doing, it's not

          11         working.  In 200 years since the industrial

          12         revolution just -- pollution, you can't see it,

          13         your vistas that everybody is raving about just

          14         aren't there.  Traveling national parks a few

          15         years ago, I think it was Bryce Canyon, they

          16         always have the wonderful displays they do and

          17         usually they'll have something that shows you

          18         which mountain range you're looking at, what's

          19         over here, what's over there.

          20                 They had a display pointing out what you

          21         used to be able to see before the smog from the

          22         West Coast cut down the visibility.  You know, the

          23         consumption, the waste and the pollution, just the

          24         arrogance of our society, in general, is shameful.

          25         We're behind Europe.  They can make us look like
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           1         fools when it comes to energy conservation,

           2         alternative energy, and the technology is there,

           3         they're doing it.

           4                 I've heard the objections, "It won't

           5         work."  Well, they've been doing it in Europe for

           6         a long time.  I actually heard people stand up and

           7         say the warning lights for air craft will be a

           8         problem, and the foghorns will keep us awake at

           9         night.  Well, we're all a heck of a lot closer to

          10         the Southeast Light than we're going to be to this

          11         wind farm, and as I recall, people were jumping

          12         for joy when the Southeast Light was relit.  So, a

          13         little perspective there.

          14                 Cable, you know, cable will be great.

          15         Standalone cable ain't going to happen.  Who's

          16         going to pay for it, end of story.  Sure, maybe

          17         Bill Gates will come along and write us a check,

          18         we'll get a cable.  I'm not holding my breath.

          19         The big one, the view, everybody is about the

          20         view.  My small unscientific survey, people argue

          21         about this affecting tourism.

          22                 I drive a taxi in the summer.  When the

          23         test rigs were up, one of the big stops, the

          24         show-stoppers were called Second Bluffs, not the

          25         stairs but the ones to the west of that, and you
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           1         could see these rigs, and I'd just ask everybody I

           2         took up there -- and there was a lot of people, it

           3         was a big stop on the Island tour -- "What do you

           4         think?"  "It doesn't bother me, kind of

           5         interesting."

           6                 So, I am totally an unscientific study,

           7         but I don't think it's going hurt tourism.  What

           8         will hurt tourism is when our businesses start to

           9         fail because they can't afford the electricity.

          10         To sum things up, you know, is this the best

          11         project?  I don't know.  Are there better ones?

          12         Are the finances right?

          13                 They say -- they're being bent about that

          14         they're investment capitalists and it's a hedge

          15         fund and that's the anti-Christ, well, maybe it

          16         is, but nobody else is offering to build a wind

          17         farm and put in a cable.  You know, this is not

          18         communism.  If they want to put in their

          19         investment of work, that's what America is about,

          20         to make a profit, and we'll all in some ways

          21         profit from this.

          22                 I heard about this being an experimental

          23         project.  I think that's what the Wright Brothers

          24         had going to Kitty Hawk.  Somebody had to get on

          25         that plane and give it a try 'cause, you know, you
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           1         name it, somebody had to do the first one.  Some

           2         Indian ate the first quahaug.  Think about that.

           3         This project has been coming up for a long time,

           4         2008, that's five years.  It will be another

           5         several years, I'm guessing, before this is

           6         completed.  I'd like to see this happen in my

           7         lifetime.

           8                 If this fails, we're back to square one,

           9         we're going to have to start again, and another

          10         five years at least, ten years.  There's plenty of

          11         ways to find fault.  We can continue that and

          12         maintain the status quo and watch the pollution

          13         increase and our resources run out and, you know,

          14         the number -- in the past 200 years since our

          15         industrial revolution, it's shameful.

          16                 We pride ourselves on the Island that we

          17         have 43.9, I think our latest is in conservancy,

          18         that is stewardship.  It's taking care of our

          19         Island.  We have a sense of place.  Well, it's

          20         time to, I think, apply that to a wider picture

          21         and take stewardship of our planet.

          22                 One more thing, we talked about dividing

          23         the community, wind turbines dividing the

          24         community.  Well, when that's all settled, guess

          25         what, we can still fight about the deer and
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           1         whether we use fertilizer -- or mopeds, or the

           2         parking at the post office.  We're good at this,

           3         folks.  What divides us is what brings us

           4         together.

           5                 MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Kay

           6         Lewis.

           7                 MS. LEWIS:  Kay Lewis.  I don't have to

           8         give a speech because Doreen Napoleone did it for

           9         me, and she did a great job.  Thank you, Doreen.

          10         I'll just make a few observations about some of

          11         what I've heard today.  One, is, there are a lot

          12         of people who seem very certain about the outcome

          13         of this and, particularly, it seems that the

          14         doomsayers are really certain it's going to be a

          15         disaster.  Well, no one really knows, and I hope

          16         that it will be more like Denmark than some of the

          17         predictions, because it's very easy for me to

          18         imagine that this goes forward and we all decipher

          19         that they're beautiful, they work, and overall our

          20         lives are improved and there's no loss in property

          21         value and all of that.  Many people here look at

          22         the same set of data and come down on totally

          23         different sides, but my hope is it ends up on that

          24         side, and that's where I'm placing my bets.

          25                 The second observation is that it's an
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           1         experiment, and we don't want any experiments.

           2         You know, life is an experiment, and I'm with

           3         those people who say, "We have to do something."

           4         I don't have children, but I worry about the globe

           5         that your children and your children's children

           6         will be living on and, yes, we're going to be

           7         dependent on fossil fuels for some time to come,

           8         but we have to start somewhere.  This is a small

           9         project, it's an experiment, it's worth a chance,

          10         and I say give it a chance.

          11                 The third observation is probably the most

          12         disturbing thing I heard today was someone who

          13         said that he has gone past altruism and totally

          14         embraced cynicism.  If very many people do that,

          15         not only is this Island dead but the globe is

          16         dead.  So, my appeal is, let's not give up on

          17         altruism because our only hope for your children

          18         and your children's children is that there's still

          19         plenty of people here who will continue to embrace

          20         altruism.  So, give it a chance.

          21                 MR. GAGNON:  Patrick Tengwall.

          22                 MR. TENGWALL:  My name is Patrick Tengwall

          23         (T-e-n-g-w-a-l-l).  I want to thank the

          24         representatives of DEM for coming here and taking

          25         the time to listen to all of the comments that you
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           1         are receiving today.  I know you're going to get

           2         many more in written form, and I commend you for

           3         your patience with the entire public process

           4         that's involved.  I respect you for that.

           5                 I am a year-round resident of Block

           6         Island.  I moved here with my wife who grew up on

           7         Block Island.  I moved here five years ago.  The

           8         house where my wife and I live is inland.  Our

           9         best view is of the airport, it's to the west, so,

          10         we always have a sunset.  I will not see the

          11         turbines in question from my home.

          12                 The view shed issues are largely

          13         irrelevant.  I would say, though, that I agree

          14         with some of the commenters today.  I find, in my

          15         opinion, wind turbines to be beautiful and

          16         graceful.  I have thought of one item in favor of

          17         this project -- and I am in favor of this

          18         project -- that I don't know if it's been raised

          19         before.  It may not be strictly in DEM's purview,

          20         but I want to put it out there.

          21                 I am hoping that when the Block Island

          22         Wind Farm is in place and the cable is connected

          23         to the mainland and this Island is enjoying the

          24         benefits of being part of the New England electric

          25         grid, I am looking forward to the Block Island
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           1         Power Company relaxing or eliminating its

           2         restrictions on a small scale, residential scale,

           3         wind and power projects, because my understanding

           4         is that those have been predicated on various

           5         capacity issues.  When we are a part of a larger

           6         grid, they will disappear.  Those issues, I

           7         believe, will disappear.

           8                 I will also say that I think the most

           9         important point I can make today is, it's a given

          10         for you folks at the Department of Environmental

          11         Management, but I think it may need to be restated

          12         for the audience.  DEM and the other agencies that

          13         are involved in the permitting process here are

          14         charged with making decisions on the basis of

          15         science.

          16                 Scientific facts, as far as they can be

          17         determined, are what should rule the day here.

          18         Reliable, verifiable studies, statistics,

          19         simulation, read and interpreted fairly, allowing

          20         the data to drive the conclusion and not the other

          21         way around.  That is what this process that you

          22         are involved in regarding the dredging, and the

          23         rest of our colleagues in the public process are

          24         supposed to be about.

          25                 Yes, public opinion is important.  It's
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           1         one of the human factors that is involved here

           2         that needs to be considered in the public

           3         discourse, but I will agree with people we've

           4         heard today who say that irresponsible statistics

           5         and unsupported prejudice on either side of the

           6         issue should be ignored, and they should be

           7         ignored as a matter of law, a matter of law under

           8         the state Administrative Procedure Act.

           9                 That includes my own rhetoric if, per

          10         chance, I happen to be wrong about the matter of

          11         the restrictions on small scale projects, but I

          12         understand DEM's role in this matter is to make a

          13         decision on the basis of the best evidence that

          14         you have before you.  I was in your shoes.  I

          15         worked for five years for the Division of Public

          16         Utilities.  I understand the concept of making a

          17         an administrative law decision on the basis of the

          18         facts and testimony and sworn statements, and I

          19         think that the public needs to remember that as

          20         well.

          21                 I trust that you and your colleagues will

          22         do your job to the best of your ability.  If, on

          23         the other hand you do not, and some people will

          24         regard that you have not regardless of the

          25         outcome, that's what the appeals process is for,
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           1         that's what the courts are for but, in my opinion,

           2         the only people who will benefit from that are not

           3         the investors in the project, not the residents

           4         part-time/full-time, or the visitors of Block

           5         Island.  The only people who will benefit from

           6         that are attorneys.  That will serve no one.

           7         Thank you.

           8                 MR. GAGNON:  Martha Ball.

           9                 MS. BALL:  Sorry, we couldn't give you

          10         gentlemen a better day.  I'm also sorry I'm late.

          11         I missed a lot of this because, ironically, I was

          12         on the mainland for a State Tourism Unity

          13         Luncheon.  That's why I have my name tag on, in

          14         case anybody doesn't know me.  Basically, I really

          15         can't say it better than Norris Pike and Millie

          16         McGinnis who spoke, when they said their peace.

          17         They summed it up for a lot of us who live here,

          18         who have always lived here.

          19                 I do just want to note a couple of things,

          20         though.  One of the things I have found, since the

          21         beginning, that's kind of disturbing is when

          22         people say, "Well, it's a demonstration project,

          23         why should we do that?"  Other people have said,

          24         "Why not?"  Rhode Island used to lead the nation.

          25         Rhode Island was one of the colonies, and a
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           1         handful of people here will know the answer to

           2         this question only because I ask it every single

           3         year on May 4th.  What's May 4th?

           4                 THE AUDIENCE:  Rhode Island Independence

           5         Day.

           6                 MS. BALL:  Those are the people who listen

           7         to me.  That's right, Rhode Island Independence

           8         Day.  Rhode Island declared independence two

           9         months before the rest of the colonies.  I mean,

          10         we have a history of moving ahead and trying to

          11         make things better, not just waiting for everybody

          12         else to do it.  There's been talk about the cable,

          13         which has been kind of interesting to just walk

          14         in.  "The cable is really bad, it's going to

          15         disrupt everything if it's coming from over.  The

          16         cable is really good if it's coming only from the

          17         mainland," which makes absolutely no sense when

          18         you're talking about disturbance of land.

          19                 I would, though, remind everyone and,

          20         again, I was reminded of this when I was on the

          21         mainland today.  Maybe -- a lot of people don't

          22         remember, we didn't always have the big tower up

          23         on the hill to get telephone transmission.  Prior

          24         to 1958 there was a submarine cable, that's how we

          25         got telephone.  So, the total business of bringing
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           1         a cable into Block Island is not anything new, nor

           2         is, obviously, a cable coming from the mainland

           3         because telephone came from somewhere.

           4                 There was only one other thing that I want

           5         to say, and I said this before toward the

           6         beginning of this.  When Cape Wind was approved, I

           7         was reading some comments about eyesores, and

           8         someone from West Virginia said, "I grew up where

           9         coal seams were open and mountains caught on fire,

          10         and where rivers ran orange," and if you want an

          11         eyesore, give me -- I will show you an eyesore.

          12         These turbines are not rivers catching on fire,

          13         they're not coal seams burning.  We've really got

          14         to look at the big picture.  Thank you.

          15                 MR. GAGNON:  Beth Gaffett.

          16                 MS. GAFFETT:  Good afternoon, everyone.  I

          17         have lived on Block Island all my life minus the

          18         20 years I was away, which I don't count.  And,

          19         initially, I was kind of on the fence about the

          20         wind turbines.  I was, "Maybe, maybe not."  There

          21         were things about them that I really liked and

          22         there were concerns I had, but as I listened to

          23         people, as I listened to concerns about the view

          24         shed -- and I kept hearing this over and over

          25         again, I started thinking about that.
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           1                 I started thinking about the fact that I

           2         live off a dirt road at the top of High Street and

           3         I have a view of the airport, which isn't bad, it

           4         isn't perfect, and I have a view of a house that's

           5         this tall.  Next to mine it's this tall.  Yeah, I

           6         don't have a view at my house but, you know, I can

           7         walk five minutes to the top of High Street and I

           8         can see across.  So, not having a view -- most

           9         people can get to a view a lot easier than I can.

          10                 The other thing is the question about

          11         savings.  You know, how are the wind turbines or

          12         the cables going to save us on our power bill?  I

          13         don't know.  It sounds to me like there's some

          14         question about that.  There are people in this

          15         room who have lived here all their lives, and

          16         there are those of us who left and couldn't wait

          17         to come back and, so, if we have some wind

          18         turbines up, I can live with that because I'm

          19         here.  Thank you.

          20                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Judith

          21         Tierney.

          22                 MS. TIERNEY:  Judith Tierney

          23         (T-i-e-r-n-e-y).  Hi, I'm a year-round resident of

          24         Block Island.  I've been here for almost ten

          25         years.  I'm the first of my family, but I think my
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           1         protenators (sic) would have come here with their

           2         bundles and opened a rooming house if they could

           3         have.  I am in favor of this exciting alternative

           4         energy project.  I've seen wind turbine farms on

           5         land and in water, in Iowa, in California, in

           6         Denmark and in Germany, and I don't understand why

           7         they would be considered experimental here when

           8         the whole world has been experimenting for us.

           9         It's time for us to change away from fossil fuels.

          10                 As for the view, it's not so pristine for

          11         some of us.  I look at ugly telephone poles and

          12         wires, and I look at cell phone towers out my

          13         windows, and I don't see anybody turning in their

          14         cell phones so I can have a better view.  I think

          15         our power bills here have driven high costs for

          16         our school, for our town, for our businesses and

          17         for our residents, and if wind can help us, let's

          18         harness it.  Thank you.

          19                 MR. GAGNON:  Kim Gaffett.

          20                 MS. GAFFETT:  I'll be very brief.  First

          21         of all, I'd like to say thank you, and I know many

          22         people have said thank you to the DEM and Mr.

          23         Elliot from the Army Corps of Engineers, but I

          24         know that you can never get enough thank yous.

          25         Thank you for coming here.
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           1                 I am speaking as an individual, although

           2         I've been a member of the Town Council for a

           3         number of years.  This Town Council, the previous

           4         Town Councils, in fact, each iteration of the Town

           5         Council since this project began have made public

           6         comments and have supported at various times to

           7         both the DEM the Army Corps, CRMC and the various

           8         places, so there's no need to reiterate those

           9         comments by the Town Council.

          10                 I speak as an individual, as a person who

          11         has lived all -- most of my life.  As an

          12         individual, I support this project, and I will

          13         hope that some day we will say that the Town

          14         Council was not desperate but forward-thinking,

          15         and many people have spoken today to the

          16         technology, to the resources that make this a good

          17         project, and I would just like to adopt their

          18         comments.  The comments of Bill Penn and the

          19         Emsbos, the Bautes, the Ballards, Jules Craynock,

          20         Barbara MacMullen, Mr. Greenman, Norris Pike,

          21         Millie McGinnis, Martha Ball, Fred Leeder, just to

          22         name a few, all said it much better than I can say

          23         it, we're here to make comments.  Those are my

          24         comments.

          25                 My concerns, I have three concerns, and I
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           1         guess I am truly an optimist because my concerns

           2         have to do with after the project is permitted and

           3         is in place.  I want to make sure that the record

           4         goes forward to say that I'm concerned that the

           5         project will be decommissioned even if it is

           6         working in 20 years, and I know that that is

           7         another part of the process but I, for one, don't

           8         want to see it decommissioned if it is working.

           9                 My second is that I believe that one of

          10         the best things -- I was, for a long time, not in

          11         favor of a cable to the mainland.  I think there's

          12         a lot to be said for Block Island's independence,

          13         but we have grown and we need a certain amount of

          14         technology.  The best way to accept a cable is if

          15         we can be exporting renewable energy to the

          16         mainland and continue as much independence as

          17         possible.

          18                 That means when the grid on the mainland

          19         goes down, that we should be able to stay up.  So,

          20         I hope that in the future design -- I'm very

          21         concerned that the design go in place so that, say

          22         the mainland grid goes down, that the wind farm

          23         can be tamped down so what is being produced by

          24         the wind farm can meet the load of Block Island so

          25         that we don't have to be turned down because of
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           1         excess power needing to protect the mainland from

           2         excess power.

           3                 And my other major concern is that I think

           4         it's very important, through this process, that

           5         long-term monitoring, ecological monitoring be put

           6         in place, not for just two years or three years,

           7         ten years, fifteen years.  We are being considered

           8         a demonstration, but all over the world we're

           9         having to find out what are the effects of

          10         individual wind turbine farms and the cumulative

          11         effects, and the only way we can do that is if

          12         there's ecological monitoring fish, wind,

          13         migratory paths, birds, both pre-construction,

          14         during construction, and post construction.  So,

          15         my concerns to you are biological, and they have

          16         to do with the future of this project once it is

          17         permitted.  Thank you.

          18                 MR. GAGNON:  David Chatowsky.

          19                 MR. CHATOWSKY:  Hello, thank you for

          20         coming to hear whatever everybody has to say.  I'm

          21         an artist, a builder, and a naturalist here on

          22         Block Island.  I write the cartoon Sea Squad and

          23         Sealy that I contribute to the Block Island Times.

          24         I built this stockade around the sonar, the

          25         machine that Deepwater put out to track the birds
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           1         off the Southeast Light.

           2                 They were concerned about the migratory

           3         patterns of the birds.  I have two things to

           4         say -- well, really three, and one is that a

           5         project of this magnitude, you don't want to rush,

           6         you want to operate on a snail's pace.  That's

           7         number one, is, to operate on a snail's pace.

           8         There should not be any rush, there should not be:

           9         We have to rush because so and so or this or that.

          10         That, in my opinion, is wrong.  Don't let anybody

          11         rush this project.

          12                 The second thing is transparency.

          13         Everything should be transparent, the data --

          14         there's some brilliant people on this Island, and

          15         they have data that conflicts this or that, and

          16         the data needs to be transparent.  There can't be

          17         anything hidden from this community that would --

          18         because of the magnitude of such a project.  So,

          19         those are the two issues.  You know, operate on a

          20         snail's pace, don't rush.  Have as many meetings

          21         as you can.  More meetings, the better.  I don't

          22         know why, I mean, there wouldn't be more meetings.

          23         I don't know why the community shouldn't have the

          24         most say.  It should be constantly talked about

          25         and things should be brought out on the table
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           1         because this is a very, very huge project.

           2                 As an artist, and the wind turbines that

           3         I've seen, they typically are white, and I know

           4         that a lot of you are concerned about the view,

           5         and should this project go through, an idea would

           6         be to paint the wind turbines like the color of

           7         that picture, like, that blue, okay.

           8                 I have a beautiful view from the deck

           9         where I live.  I mean, it's absolutely stunningly

          10         gorgeous except for three or two black water tanks

          11         that I see.  So, my vista, I'll scan and obviously

          12         I'll go away from them and I'll write, but it has

          13         to do with the color.  If these wind turbines are

          14         white, your eyes are going to go directly to them.

          15         You know, you're going to look over this beautiful

          16         vista of sky blue, ocean view, and then bam, white

          17         as snow and there it is, but if you paint them

          18         blue, sky blue, they just disappear.

          19                 I don't know whether this is going to be a

          20         success, but I have only the three things:  Don't

          21         rush, it's a mistake to rush.  Operate on a

          22         snail's pace, and the more talks you could have,

          23         the better.  I think that these ideas are

          24         extremely valid.  The cable -- get the stuff out

          25         on the table, don't let -- and be transparent.
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           1         This data, if there's any kind of conflicting

           2         ideas about data or anything like that, like a

           3         conflicting -- what's going to happen with these

           4         machines when they get decommissioned?  No, no,

           5         that shouldn't even be on the table.  All that

           6         stuff needs to be worked out ahead of time.  You

           7         can't, like, get into a project.  I don't get into

           8         projects and not think about the end.

           9                 You know, responsible parties -- I'd like

          10         to think that I'm a responsible individual, you

          11         have everything worked out, you know, you be

          12         responsible, we're all responsible.  You don't

          13         just leave things unattended for somebody else to

          14         deal with.  And, then, think about the color of

          15         the wind turbine, and I suggest -- it's just a

          16         recommendation -- to paint them sky blue and they

          17         could very possibly just disappear.  Thank you.

          18                 MR. GAGNON:  That concluded the number of

          19         speakers that have signed up.  Is there anyone

          20         else that wishes to speak that didn't get a chance

          21         to signup.  Excuse me, folks, if we could just

          22         remain silent as the speakers continue.

          23                 MR. FALLON:  Hello, my name is Bob Fallon,

          24         I'm a resident of Block Island for approximately

          25         the past ten years but have been coming to the
�
                                                                    93


           1         Island for about 25 years.  I've been a Rhode

           2         Resident my entire life.  There are some things

           3         that I think you've heard tonight.  I have my back

           4         to the audience because it's you gentlemen that

           5         I'd like to take my message and not necessarily

           6         the people on Block Island.

           7                 I think there are some things that you

           8         need to consider that other people have talked

           9         about.  One person indicated you need to be guided

          10         and driven by the science, the statistics, the

          11         facts.  I think that's a factor, but not the only

          12         factor.  You also need to be driven by the

          13         economics of the project, by the community feeling

          14         about the project, as well as what I'll call the

          15         intangible feeling of the esoteric and the beauty

          16         of Block Island which, to me, is one of the most

          17         important things.

          18                 I also think you need to take into account

          19         the politics that have got this project to where

          20         it is and the capitalism spirit that has brought

          21         the project to where it is.  This is a project

          22         that has been brought forward by entrepreneurs who

          23         think that they can make money, and that's what

          24         their main goal is, is to make a dollar bill here,

          25         and they're doing that like any businessmen would,
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           1         using all the resources that they have.

           2                 We've seen them lobby here on Block

           3         Island, we've seen them lobby in the statehouse,

           4         we've seen them lobby before the Public Utilities

           5         Commission.  We've seen the governor support their

           6         initiative, we've seen them lose at the Public

           7         Utilities Commission only to have the legislature

           8         change the rules that the Public Utilities

           9         Commission operates by, to allow the project to go

          10         forward.  We've also seen, as part of that same

          11         process, these entrepreneurs be able to make

          12         assurances in the law that in the future we will

          13         be protected.  But, in doing that, we should all

          14         keep in mind that we have another boondoggle going

          15         on right now in Rhode Island that has its basis in

          16         Curt Shilling, the beloved Red Sox patriarch

          17         pitcher that we're paying for and will pay for in

          18         the future.

          19                 One of my main concerns as I fly around

          20         the United States these past couple of months

          21         since flying down the multiple rivers, the

          22         multiple ports that we have looking at the ports,

          23         looking at the structures, the docks, the railroad

          24         trestles that are left to rot and stay where they

          25         are because some business has left them there and
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           1         not taken care of our future.  Kim Gaffett talked

           2         about the future, that's what I'm most concerned

           3         about.

           4                 I was in New York City this weekend and

           5         looked at the destruction that Sandy left.  Along

           6         the shore there are docks and busted concrete that

           7         God only knows who is going take care of it.  My

           8         guess is no one.  When this technology becomes

           9         outmoded, and it will, it will, there will be

          10         something better and we have those windmills off

          11         the coast.  We have no insurance, despite what the

          12         legislation says, that they'll be taken care of,

          13         and we all know that legislation can be changed.

          14         Our Social Security have been changed.  We've seen

          15         laws that are on the books that have been

          16         repealed.

          17                 I was guaranteed a retirement, they

          18         changed that.  All of us have.  So we can't go

          19         forward with those guarantees and think that

          20         they're replaced forever and to protect us.  On

          21         the Island here, we need to make sure that what we

          22         have, as Norris Pike pointed out, has to be here

          23         for our children, and that includes the view and

          24         the vista that we're able to see, as well as

          25         having affordable electricity.  I agree with Peter
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           1         that the answer is cable, not a demonstration

           2         project in the ocean that we'll pay for 25 years

           3         from now.  Thank you.

           4                 MR. GAGNON:  Pat Doyle.

           5                 MS. DOYLE:  Good evening, my name is Pat

           6         Doyle and we've owned a home here for 23 years and

           7         have been full-time residents for seven years, and

           8         I sit here this evening taking great pride in this

           9         community.  I count the number, and over 10

          10         percent of this town's full-time people, most of

          11         them are full-timers, are here expressing views on

          12         both sides, and I think that's something that we

          13         all need to commend ourselves for.

          14                 This issue certainly has divided us.  And,

          15         unfortunately, I think some of the words that Dave

          16         Chatowsky used has been behind that, the lack of

          17         transparency.  Patrick, you said, "Let us go

          18         forward and make decisions based on science," and

          19         I think we have to.  There's been a lot of

          20         emotion, and we talk here about saving the

          21         environment, the future of our children, how this

          22         demonstration project is really not only going to

          23         lower prices but it's going to do these huge --

          24         accomplish these huge things.

          25                 I sit here tonight thinking what we have
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           1         to ensure is that there's no damage done, and

           2         there are other things beyond even the science for

           3         this Island.  I live in the Historic District and

           4         when we did a major renovation to our home, we

           5         couldn't use a type of product on our windows that

           6         would have been less expensive.  Because we were

           7         in the Historic District, we had to use something

           8         that was visually pleasing.

           9                 We had -- two or three times that we had

          10         to go to Historic about what I considered a minor

          11         change, but we live on an Island that we love and

          12         views are important, not only to us but to the

          13         people who look at our home, and we recognize that

          14         living in a Historic District put an added burden

          15         on us.  Living on an Island such as this that

          16         brings tremendous income to the state is in great

          17         part -- and you heard many talk about view

          18         sheds -- I am not a view shed person.  This is not

          19         the view shed that I look at, but I do think for

          20         tourism, for the beauty of what attracts people to

          21         here, I think it is something that has to be

          22         looked at.

          23                 So, what did we really learn here tonight?

          24         Everyone of us here, there's not environmentalists

          25         and non-environmentalists.  Block Islanders came
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           1         here because they love the environment, that's

           2         what brought us all here.  So, for one group to

           3         say "I love it more, I read Friedman, I support

           4         conservation," I think we all do.  Wherever we're

           5         coming from, we're here for that reason, we know

           6         that.  We all want to lower the cost of

           7         electricity on the Island, that's the other given,

           8         and everyone speaks to that.

           9                 We know that a cable is an answer to bring

          10         lower costs, and on this particular issue, I think

          11         transparency, through the years, has not been

          12         there, but we're getting a cable, we can't afford

          13         it.  I certain would like to see -- we have to go

          14         in that direction, however -- but what we need to

          15         know, we know that we're all together in support

          16         of the environment.  We need to know how to go

          17         about getting lower cost energy in a way that's

          18         scientifically the best way to do it.

          19                 January 2nd, 2011, I was listening to NBR

          20         as I was traveling and they had the President of

          21         MIT, a woman, and the director, the publisher, two

          22         women speaking about what will this new decade

          23         bring in terms of science to this country?  This

          24         is going to be positive changes.  They talked

          25         about medical and then they talked about energy,
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           1         and there was an extensive conversation about

           2         solar.

           3                 Someone called in and said, "You have not

           4         in the last hour-and-a-half," it was as full day

           5         program "talked about winds," and it was the

           6         President of MIT that said, "I'm not ready to talk

           7         about wind energy as the viable source for this

           8         country at this time."  It's working in Europe

           9         where their availability of the kinds of energy we

          10         have here are not, she said, "I will put my money

          11         in the future of solar.  We don't have the battery

          12         storage yet, we don't have this thing perfected."

          13                 I thought that was very, very telling, and

          14         I really liked hearing one of our council people,

          15         Chris Warfel, who has the science because of his

          16         education.  I'm not a scientist, but I really want

          17         to depend upon you folks, the DEM folks, to first

          18         of all go for the best science, but keeping in

          19         mind that there are other issues; the economy and

          20         the affordability of the energy, but also to keep

          21         our historic and beautiful vista, which we go to

          22         great lengths to protect.

          23                 We have committee upon committee that

          24         tries to keep each one of us in line, not to

          25         destroy one slight inch of the vistas that we look
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           1         at that brought us here.  So, thank you for coming

           2         here, and I hope you keep those three things in

           3         mind as you make your decision.

           4                 MR. GAGNON:  Are there any other speakers?

           5         Anyone else that would like to speak?  Do you have

           6         the extended list?

           7                 MR. BIANCULLI:  The problem is, there was

           8         a sign-in sheet and folks may have signed up for

           9         the sign-in sheet, which was the attendance

          10         record.  We also had another sheet there that was

          11         to provide public comment.  I believe we're

          12         getting near the end of the evening, but you can

          13         come forward.  Come up to the microphone and just

          14         say and spell your name and, then, you can provide

          15         comment.

          16                 MR. SPIER:  Good evening, John Spier.

          17         I'll be brief because as several people have said,

          18         other people have stolen my best thoughts and said

          19         it better than I could.  Like most of us out here,

          20         I wear a number of hats.  One of my hats is sort

          21         of on the Housing Board, and as part of our market

          22         research for our next project has been sending out

          23         questionnaires to Island families that live in

          24         housing that we've created through a number of

          25         entities.
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           1                 So, this questionnaire is a recurring

           2         theme.  I've been reading them as they come in.

           3         The recurring theme is, "We love our house, we

           4         love living here.  Yes, our mortgage payments are

           5         pretty commensurate with our income but, boy,

           6         those utility bills are killing us.  We have to

           7         rent rooms to pay our utility bills.  I'm just

           8         going to address a few other topics, briefly.

           9                 Construction impacts, look at some of the

          10         big projects out there, look at the Panama Canal.

          11         If you went today and said, I'm going to bulldoze

          12         a path through 50 piles of virgin rain forest,

          13         peoples' minds would be blown, okay.  They did it,

          14         it's beautiful today and nobody would ever argue

          15         that it shouldn't have been done.  So, to me,

          16         running a cable through a beach in Narragansett or

          17         Charlestown doesn't seem like a big deal.  It will

          18         recover.  Nothing is free.

          19                 Corporations, sure, Deepwater Wind is a

          20         corporation, they're out to make money, that's the

          21         American way as people have said.  There's no

          22         corporations out there that are warm and fuzzy

          23         except, maybe, mine.  History, you know, somebody

          24         had mentioned abandoned facilities all over this

          25         country.  We have a problem here, we're getting
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           1         our butts kicked by the rest of the world.  In the

           2         1970s, the US was leading the world in wind

           3         energy.  Now, it's either Denmark or China, China

           4         may have passed Denmark.

           5                 That's why we have abandoned facilities,

           6         abandoned shipping, factories, abandoned docks,

           7         okay.  We were innovators in this world for 150 or

           8         200 years, what happened?  Another thing, you

           9         know, what happened?  I grew up in upstate New

          10         York, so forty years ago as a kid, you had

          11         divisive issues.  My parents were involved, so I

          12         was pretty aware.  We had cement factories, we had

          13         correctional facilities, we had transfer stations,

          14         things that divided communities, and I remember

          15         when I was a kid, NIMBY was a bad word.

          16                 You didn't want to be a NIMBY, okay, it

          17         was an insult.  If you called somebody a NIMBY,

          18         you were saying, "You're a selfish ass."  Now,

          19         forty years later, I hear people stand up and say,

          20         "I'm a NIMBY.  I think alternative energy is

          21         great, I don't want it in my backyard.  Yeah, we

          22         need a transfer station, but I don't want it in my

          23         backyard."  So, what happened, what happened to

          24         this country where all of a sudden it's okay,

          25         socially, to be selfish and to put your own
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           1         personal needs or desires in front of the good of

           2         the community?  What's the problem there?  On that

           3         note, somebody mentioned the full page ad.  I grew

           4         up with the idea that if you want to say

           5         something, put your name on it.

           6                 MS. DELIA:  It's my name, I thought that

           7         was pretty obvious.

           8                 MR. GANNON:  Just let him finish his --

           9                 MS. DELIA:  Yeah, I will.

          10                 MR. SPIER:  It's an organization that

          11         purports to be a whole bunch of people, and I

          12         don't know who they are, I have a problem with

          13         that.  And, lastly, on a positive note, I love

          14         islands.  I live on one, I live in a state called

          15         Rhode Island.  Most of you know I'm not

          16         exaggerating when I say I've seen a lot of islands

          17         all over the world, you know, hundreds, maybe

          18         thousands.  A lot of them had wind turbines, it is

          19         the future to a lot of places.

          20                 The Canary Islands, case in point, they're

          21         a lot bigger than we are and there's a bunch of

          22         them, but they have something in common with us,

          23         they don't have coal, they don't have oil, they

          24         don't have wood, so, they used to bring in tanker

          25         trucks and diesels to run their power.  Well,
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           1         that's unsustainable.  Now they have wind

           2         turbines.  Sailing down the East Coast of the Gran

           3         Canaria, you can see hundreds, maybe thousands of

           4         wind turbines.  They work.  They're not unproven

           5         experimental technology.

           6                 Some of the most beautiful remote islands

           7         in the South Pacific, they have wind turbines so

           8         that they can have some of the things that we take

           9         for granted in the First World.  They can play

          10         music, they can access the internet, they can

          11         charge their cell phones, they can have light in

          12         their house.  They don't mind the wind turbines.

          13         A lot of people have spoken very eloquently about

          14         what we have to do to change in this world, and

          15         I'm not going to reiterate or reverberate on that,

          16         I would just like to suggest that we should all

          17         work together to be part of the solution.  Thanks.

          18                 MR. RESOM:  My name is Sven (S-v-e-n)

          19         Resom (R-e-s-o-m).  I've stayed out of the Block

          20         Island Times letter writing debacle because we've

          21         actually been pretty busy working.  My wife and I

          22         run one of the very few year-round businesses on

          23         Block Island, the only light industry business on

          24         Block Island, which is a manufacturing business.

          25         We actually produce something here.
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           1                 We're trying to demonstrate that

           2         year-round businesses can work on Block Island.

           3         As you may know, there are very few in the winter,

           4         and half of the reason is because of the power

           5         costs, and you've got the belief that we're just a

           6         summer community versus a year-round community.

           7         As John expressed, housing and economic costs are

           8         a big issue.  Economic sustainability is a huge

           9         issue on Block Island, and I think the discussion

          10         is really coming down to economic sustainability

          11         versus view shed.

          12                 Many people have talked about tourism.

          13         Well, if you actually look at our hotels and the

          14         cost of our hotels versus the services that we're

          15         providing relative to other destination markets,

          16         we're losing our competitive advantage, and a lot

          17         of that is because of the energy costs.  We need

          18         to figure out how to lower energy costs.  It would

          19         be great to have a cable, everybody would love

          20         that.  Wouldn't that be ideal?  My son teaches

          21         elementary and middle school in Rhode Island, they

          22         can't even afford pencils.

          23                 So, let's try and figure out where that

          24         money for a cable is going to come from, unless we

          25         have someone to help us.  Demonstration, we're a
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           1         demonstration business, we're doing everything we

           2         can to demonstrate to Block Island that you can

           3         have a year-round manufacturing operation and be

           4         profitable.  We believe that Deepwater can

           5         demonstrate.  We believe that we can learn and

           6         that we'll allow for year-round businesses on

           7         Block Island.  Truly, I believe this is good for

           8         Block Island.  It will preserve Block Island, and

           9         it will not hurt Block Island.  Thank you.

          10                 MR. GAGNON:  Anyone else who hasn't signed

          11         up wishes to speak?

          12                 MR. LEWIS:  Keith Lewis, I just want to

          13         say for the record because there's several,

          14         there's different people on the Island that have

          15         the same name, I just want to say that I'm not

          16         opposed to wind power.  I can't be -- I don't feel

          17         I can be an advocate because the current proposal

          18         is not in my view.  If it was in my view, then I

          19         would think seriously about being an advocate but

          20         then, again, in order to be an advocate, I would

          21         have to study it a whole lot more to be an honest

          22         advocate.

          23                 It's very easy to say, no.  I wouldn't

          24         feel the necessity to study at all because I know

          25         to say, yes, I would want to study more than I
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           1         have, but what holds me back is that the current

           2         proposal is not in my view, so I don't feel I can

           3         be an advocate for someone else's view.  Thank

           4         you.

           5                 MR. LaCOSTE:  Ken LaCoste (L-a-C-o-s-t-e).

           6         I guess one of the words I heard earlier was the

           7         word, perspective, and I think that's an important

           8         word in decisions that your organizations will

           9         have to make.  The perspective of what this

          10         project will do to the view sheds of Block Island,

          11         the perspective of what it will do to the tourism,

          12         and the perspective of what it will look like.  I

          13         was a historical archeologist for five years

          14         before I became a marine mechanic, and I learned a

          15         lot about history and how the landscape changes,

          16         and I don't know if you're familiar with the

          17         books, they're put out by Bob Downey, they're

          18         pictures of the Island.

          19                 Historically, the Island has been an

          20         evolution of human occupation.  First, it was

          21         fully deciduous forest, or forested, it was all

          22         cut down, clear cut.  It was farmland.  It evolved

          23         into an industry of farmland and tourism and

          24         fishing.  Large hotels went up blocking some

          25         people's view, obviously, of the ocean.  After the
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           1         hotel -- during that same period they had

           2         windmills, or prior to that period they had

           3         windmills up, relatively large windmills that were

           4         used to create grain.

           5                 After the hotels were built and some of

           6         them still stand, you had a period of decline when

           7         the fishing fleet was wiped out, and it wasn't as

           8         predominant as it was before.  Then, you had a

           9         time period when you had the tower put up for

          10         telephones, and all of a sudden large towers were

          11         in the view shed.  At some point, Block Island was

          12         declared one of the last great places -- one of

          13         the last ten great places.  Since that time, we

          14         had a large cell phone tower and radio tower put

          15         up.  As far as I know, it's still one of the last

          16         ten great places, it's a matter of perspective.

          17                 Through time, the evolution has evolved.

          18         The landscape has evolved, our view shed has

          19         evolved, and I think it's something that this,

          20         too, will evolve.  Another perspective is a matter

          21         of time.  I'm thinking, from what I understand,

          22         the towers, the expected life of these wind

          23         turbines is 20 years.  The expected life of the

          24         cable is somewhere around 50 years.  Almost 20

          25         years ago I quit the rescue squad after being on
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           1         it for 10 years.  14 years ago my son went into

           2         boot camp on his 18th birthday.  That time passes

           3         so quickly.

           4                 Once these are put up, time will pass.

           5         They will either be very effective, they'll be

           6         very successful or they won't be, but if they're

           7         not, I just want to make sure that you folks do

           8         what you have to do to ensure that the money will

           9         be there to take them down when the time comes,

          10         whether it be because of obsolescence, whether it

          11         be because of damage, whether it be because they

          12         just don't work.  I'm in favor of the wind farm,

          13         but I want to make sure that you and we make sure

          14         that the money is there at the proper time,

          15         whether it be early in the project or late in the

          16         project to take them down when and, if necessary,

          17         because after that 20-year period they're going to

          18         be gone, that's it, and we're going to go back to,

          19         you know, the way it was, and I just want to make

          20         sure that the money is there to take it down.

          21         Thank you for coming.

          22                 MR. GAGNON:  Are there any further

          23         speakers?  If not, we can conclude the public

          24         hearing, and thank you everyone for coming

          25         tonight.
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           1                 THE AUDIENCE:  Thank you.

           2                 (HEARING CONCLUDED AT 7:55 P.M.)
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 1                  (HEARING COMMENCED AT 5:08 P.M.)
 2                 MR. GAGNON:  Hello everyone, I'm going to
 3         try to get things started here.  How this is going
 4         to work is, I'm going to read a statement to start
 5         the commentary.  After I read the statement, we'll
 6         call up the names of the individuals who signed
 7         in, and you can come up here to give your public
 8         comment.
 9                 So, welcome everyone.  Today is Wednesday,
10         May 8, 2013, it is 5:08 p.m.  My name is Ron
11         Gagnon.  I'm the Chief of the Rhode Island
12         Department of Environmental Management's Office of
13         Customer and Technical Assistance.  With me today
14         is Richard Bianculli from our DEM Legal Services
15         office.  Also, here today is Michael Elliot from
16         United Corps of Engineers.
17                 We've gathered at the New Shoreham Town
18         Hall today regarding a public hearing concerning
19         the application of Deepwater Wind, LLC, for a
20         State of Rhode Island Water Quality Certificate
21         and Dredge Permit in accordance with the
22         Department's Rules and Regulations for Dredging
23         and the Management of Dredge Materials and the
24         State Water Quality Regulations.
25                 This hearing is being conducted under the
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 1         authority of the Administrative Procedures Act
 2         located under Chapter 42-35 of the General Laws of
 3         Rhode Island.  In accordance with the Act's
 4         requirements, public notices of this hearing were
 5         published in the Narragansett Times, the South
 6         County Independent and the Block Island Times.
 7         Notice was also posted on the Department's
 8         website.
 9                 The purpose of this hearing is to afford
10         interested parties an opportunity to comment on
11         the noted application.  The hearing is not
12         intended as a means of providing a forum for
13         discussion, debating, arguing or otherwise having
14         any dialogue at this time with members of the
15         Department.  We ask that you please be silent when
16         an individual is making his or her comments to let
17         them fully have their time to speak.
18                 Full copies of the application have been
19         placed in the public libraries in Narragansett and
20         New Shoreham.  We've also extended the written
21         public comment period to 4 p.m. Wednesday, May
22         22nd, 2013.  The previous public hearing was held
23         at the Narragansett Town Hall on April 24, 2013 at
24         6:30 p.m.
25                 The procedure we will use for those who
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 1         wish to speak is as follows:  If you have not
 2         already done so, you can register at our desk over
 3         here.  I will call the speakers in the order of
 4         their registration.  We will allow approximately
 5         five minutes for each individual to make comments
 6         on the record.  When your name is called, please
 7         come to this microphone and speak clearly and
 8         slowly so that the stenographer can accurately
 9         transcribe your comments.  Written comments may
10         also be submitted before or after your
11         presentation of this meeting.
12                 Please note that if it's necessary, I will
13         raise a yellow cardboard sign to indicate you have
14         approximately one minute remaining for comments,
15         and at the end of the approximately five-minute
16         period, I'll raise the red cardboard sign -- I'll
17         try not to use those -- we didn't need them in
18         Narragansett but, if necessary, I have them.  We
19         ask that you please respect the time limit so that
20         all comments may be heard.  Thank you for your
21         cooperation.
22                 After the time has elapsed for the
23         submission of the written comments, the Department
24         will prepare a written response to all comments
25         and then we will complete the review process and
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 1         issue a final determination.  So, at this time,
 2         we'll start with the registered speakers for the
 3         comments.
 4                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Before we start, there are
 5         sign-in sheets by the entrance.  We do have a
 6         sign-in sheet just for attendance and another
 7         sign-in sheet if you wish to give public comments,
 8         and please do remember to speak slowly, we do have
 9         a stenographer that's present here tonight that
10         will be transcribing all of the public comments.
11                 MR. GAGNON:  Our first speaker is Linda
12         Spak.
13                 MS. SPAK:  Do I address you or the
14         audience?
15                 MR. BIANCULLI:  You can address the
16         audience.  The stenographer will be transcribing
17         your public comment, so you can speak in whichever
18         direction you feel comfortable.
19                 MS. SPAK:  My name is Linda Spak.  I
20         would, first of all, thank you for coming here and
21         having a meeting on Block Island.  It's much
22         easier for us to come here than it is to go to the
23         mainland, and my concerns are several.  First of
24         all, our beautiful view from our Southeast
25         Lighthouse, all the wedding pictures that are
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 1         taken there, it might seem like a small thing, but
 2         weddings have developed into quite an industry
 3         here.
 4                 Secondly, our very dramatic night skies.
 5         I understand there will be illumination on the
 6         towers, and I think that is a critical thing to be
 7         concerned about, and I've read some comments
 8         recently from some fishermen from Point Judith
 9         that have grave concern over what this building
10         will do to our fishing grounds, and I share their
11         concerns.  I hope that there is serious thought
12         put to that.  Thank you.
13                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  Next speaker is
14         Bill Penn.
15                 MR. PENN:  Bill Penn.  For the record, I
16         want everyone in this room to know that while I
17         represent members of several community
18         organizations, I stand here before you as an
19         individual, a homeowner for over 30 years, and a
20         year-round resident for 17 years.  I strongly
21         support the Deepwater Wind Project.  It's a
22         significant public -- it's a significant
23         infrastructure improvement to Rhode Island.
24                 As a semi-retired person, 40 percent
25         reduction in my monthly electric bill is going to
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 1         be very significant to me.  Also, the bills are
 2         going to be more constant.  They're not going to
 3         fluctuate up and down with the cost of diesel.
 4         It's also the fact that the cable to the mainland
 5         is going to be socialized with the mainland rate
 6         payers.  There's no way that 1,800 customers of
 7         BIPCO could afford a stand-alone cable to the
 8         mainland.
 9                 Now, most of you know I'm an
10         environmentalist.  The environmental benefits to
11         this project will significantly reduce the carbon
12         footprints of Block Island.  We will no longer be
13         burning and consuming a million gallons of diesel
14         fuel a year.  The diesels will no longer run 24/7,
15         and will only run if there's an interruption to
16         the cable to the mainland.  This is truly a
17         renewable energy source.  Renewable energy
18         sources, such as this project, are the only way to
19         reverse global warming.
20                 We in the U.S. have 4 percent of the world
21         population, but we emit 25 percent of greenhouse
22         gases.  This project is one small step to reduced
23         greenhouse gases and should be applauded for that
24         result.  Also, professionally, I'm an
25         environmental finance person, consultant, and I
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 1         have had a chance to meet several of the
 2         management team both locally and in Providence,
 3         and my professional opinion is that they are very
 4         professional.  So, with that, I would like to
 5         submit my written statement.  Thank you.
 6                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Folks, just a reminder,
 7         those that are giving public comment today, if you
 8         could please state your name and spell your name
 9         in its entirety so the stenographer can enter that
10         into the record, and just a reminder for folks to
11         turn off their cell phones if you do have them.
12                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Jane and
13         George Emsbo.
14                 MS. EMSBO:  My name is Jane Emsbo
15         (E-m-s-b-o).  My husband and I, Jorgen and myself,
16         would like to share two things.  We'd like to
17         share a letter that we wrote to the Council
18         members concerning this and, then, we would like
19         to briefly go over a few of the comments we got
20         back from the council members with some
21         information we'd like to share.
22                 So, the letter we sent was:  We are so
23         proud to live on an island famous for its
24         continuing commitment to land and environmental
25         preservation.  Let us now be leaders, not laggers,
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 1         to also bring the first U.S. offshore wind farm to
 2         Block Island.  Please vote, yes, to this project.
 3         Change is never easy, but is often critical for
 4         our well-being.  The clock is running down to save
 5         our environment and wind power is one of the
 6         solutions for the future.
 7                 The fears expressed by the opponents of
 8         the wind farm must be acknowledged, but they have
 9         been allayed again and again through international
10         research and examples.  Now Block Island has the
11         enormous opportunity to inspire others while
12         reaping economic and environmental benefits
13         ourselves.  We depend on our council to assure
14         this.
15                 Now I'm going to talk to some of the
16         points.  We were very fortunate to get two
17         responses from council members with some of their
18         concerns and, very briefly, we're going to go over
19         some of those concerns and we're going to depend
20         on some information.  Most of the information we
21         got from Danish sources on the Internet, and also
22         through a personal phone call Jorgen made to
23         Denmark yesterday.  Jorgen is Danish and that's
24         one reason we're going to quote from Denmark.
25         There is another reason for using Denmark, and
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 1         I'll read, briefly, that Denmark is the country in
 2         the world with the longest experience in this area
 3         of offshore wind farms and wind itself.
 4                 The first farm was in 1991, 20 years ago
 5         offshore, and I'm very excited that, right now,
 6         Denmark is using -- wait a minute -- has 28
 7         percent of the electricity produced by wind power,
 8         and the project now is by 2020, they hope to use
 9         50 percent by wind power.  Then, I do have those
10         figures if I come to them quickly about how much
11         of this is from offshore wind farms.
12                 Some of the concerns of the council
13         members, I'll read one of the concerns:  Most of
14         the European countries have or are discontinuing
15         permitting projects because of undue hardship
16         placed on abutters' quality of life, general
17         health and well-being.  The first point, as far as
18         discontinuing the projects -- and I have all these
19         resources I'm going to hand to the council members
20         for their perusal.  Right now, as of October 2010,
21         3.16 gigawatts of wind power is operational
22         worldwide.  By 2020, the estimate is, we will have
23         75 gigawatts worldwide with significant
24         contributions from China and the U.S.
25                 So, going on to the quality of life
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 1         talking about health, I don't see any reference to
 2         that, not that we've done extensive research.  I
 3         don't think that's too appropriate with an
 4         offshore wind farm.  Well-being, I'd like to read
 5         from an excerpt from a Danish paper, Offstiff
 6         Stelenoff (phonetic) and it's very brief, sounds
 7         familiar.  Everybody complained, holiday cottage
 8         owners, Town Councilors, nature conservation
 9         groups, animal lovers.  1,900 complaints were made
10         about the first offshore wind farms in Denmark.
11         2,000 holiday cottage owners were afraid of having
12         their piece and wonderful sea view spoiled.  We
13         all understand that.
14                 It goes on with all the feelings,
15         whatever, and I'll go down to how many years
16         later, I don't know, but there were ten wind
17         turbines that were set up and, now, there was a
18         chairman of these beach villages that were
19         affected by this, and it's a wonderful article, as
20         you can read in full.  Ten years later, the
21         chairman of this committee of the welfare of these
22         beach cottages and houses, and mansions, says:  "I
23         don't know anybody who's bothered by the wind
24         turbine, said so and so, the chairman of the
25         coastal group of 2,000 holiday cottage owners.
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 1                 From another municipality in that area,
 2         there's also a more positive area.  It seems the
 3         residents have embraced the wind turbines.  At the
 4         time, holiday owners, beach owners with properties
 5         wanted a tax reduction when it first came out
 6         because they felt that their house values were
 7         going to go down, so they wanted some
 8         compensation.  Today, a real estate agent
 9         specialized in property in that area states that
10         the wind turbines in no way have had a negative
11         impact on the value of holiday cottages, just to
12         put that out.
13                 And the next point -- I don't want to run
14         out of time -- the rest of this will be given to
15         the council members, and we thank them for all
16         their hard work on this.
17                 MR. EMSBO:  It so happens that I graduated
18         pretty much at the same time that the wind
19         adventure for Denmark started 50 years ago, and I
20         have followed this minutely in the first years
21         especially, and all these things that we have
22         listened to here in this room and on this island
23         was debated just like that, but over the first,
24         like, 20 years and then all the negative requests,
25         if you will, completely died out, and now
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 1         everybody is very happy with what is happening.
 2                 I have friends that have parts in wind
 3         power in Denmark and, as I said, I think it's five
 4         or six years ago, I stood up in this same room and
 5         I said:  All the issues, all the negative issues
 6         that has been mentioned, short of the visual
 7         problem when you look out over the sea has all
 8         been proven wrong.  The thing is, whether you
 9         think that the windmills are in your way, to enjoy
10         the view or not is very difficult to quantify.
11                 So, the only thing that is left is really
12         what it looked like -- and I had it all down --
13         one of the things I would say is a complaint about
14         it's far too expensive, this Deepwater thing and,
15         as I said five years ago in this room, this is one
16         of the things that is very difficult for me to see
17         because it is very, very expensive, but as
18         somebody said to me, yes, but this is America, you
19         know, somehow that was supposed to give an excuse
20         for it.  Whereas, in Denmark, when the Danes got
21         it all together and they started projects like
22         that, supported by the public, it's very
23         socialistic in Denmark, as you know, it -- you
24         were not going to be considered if the power cost
25         out of the wind farm was more than 5 percent
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 1         higher than the run-of-the-mill price, which in
 2         the case of Deepwater, that means that instead of
 3         9 cents or 10 cents a kilowatt, they couldn't
 4         charge more than five percent more than that, and
 5         this is the way that it's been operated since
 6         then.
 7                 Also, somebody complains that the lifetime
 8         is not long enough and say that after -- what was
 9         it, ten years or something like that, that the
10         productivity of the turbines was down 30 percent.
11         We have not been able to see where this has been
12         coming from.  I'd better stop.  Okay, there are so
13         many good arguments for starting it, and one of
14         the things we have to look at, of course, is that
15         it would help the local situation.  In the U.S.,
16         as we just heard, are the people that use the most
17         energy in the world by far.  They would be able to
18         do a big reduction in carbon dioxide emission and
19         help with global warming, which is much more
20         serious than is admitted by the people in politics
21         that talk about it; much, much more serious.
22                 We have people here on the Island that are
23         very knowledgeable about that, that has described
24         for me what this means with the global warming,
25         and I will just say, take yourself on a trip
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 1         around the country here and see the mountainsides
 2         all over the west and all over the country, and
 3         you will see that whether this project cost $400
 4         million too much, I mean, it's -- it means so much
 5         more to the whole big picture that we must have
 6         money to get it started so that if this becomes
 7         the first, we could hope that it would be
 8         successful and that more things would follow-up.
 9                 Denmark is starting their next six
10         offshore parks right now.  It just was announced
11         two weeks ago, and they will use the research that
12         has been going on for, you know, how much are the
13         fish and the birds suffering and how about the
14         noise, et cetera?  They use all these things to
15         compare what has actually happened over time, and
16         somebody says that the fish are going to be going
17         away and, yes, they may go away, they prefer not
18         to stick around at the time that production or
19         rather the installation happens, but once it is
20         installed, you will get more fish than you ever
21         had in most areas with our wind farms.
22                 MR. GAGNON:  Sir, could I ask you to wrap
23         it up.
24                 MR. EMSBO:  Okay.  So, I must ask you to
25         think it over if you are thinking of saying, no,
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 1         please change it to, yes.  It's really very
 2         important.  Excuse me for taking so much of your
 3         time.
 4                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  We have about
 5         sixteen speakers remaining, so we'll try to keep
 6         it to five or so minutes, if possible.  Thank you.
 7         Next speaker is Peter Baute.
 8                 MR. BAUTE:  My name is Peter Baute
 9         (B-a-u-t-e).  First, I want to thank DEM and the
10         Army Corps for being here today.  We appreciate
11         your efforts, and my compliments to DEM for taking
12         the lead in using wind power at its own facilities
13         on the mainland.  I think they're kind of setting
14         a precedent that we could all mimic.
15                 I'm a former three-term member of the Town
16         Council and Chair of the Town's Energy Planning
17         Committee, which was responsible for developing a
18         long range energy plan for our community.  My
19         purpose for speaking today is to give you some
20         insight into Island opinion on the Deepwater
21         Project, as well as just a few of my own thoughts.
22                 Three years ago the Town Council requested
23         that Roger Williams University conduct a
24         scientific survey to determine whether Block
25         Island residents would support or oppose a wind
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 1         farm off the shores of Block Island.  This survey
 2         was anonymous and voluntary.  It was mailed to all
 3         Block Island residents and voters.  The response
 4         rate was 42 percent for Island voters and 58
 5         percent for non-voting homeowners who are largely
 6         seasonal residents.  Both groups overwhelmingly
 7         are in support.  84 percent of the voters on Block
 8         Island favored the wind farm, 71 percent of the
 9         seasonal residents.
10                 These results are similar to those of a
11         recent survey carried out by the Block Island Land
12         Trust.  The disastrous results of the past winter
13         and fall storm give us a graphic example of some
14         of the effects of climate change and provide
15         emphasis to the great importance of limiting
16         carbon emissions to the atmosphere.  Every wind
17         turbine, every solar panel is a step in the right
18         direction.  For Block Island, the elimination of
19         emissions from the power plant is important, and
20         cessation of the noise of the diesel generators
21         will be a blessing.
22                 The risks involved in the shipping and the
23         storage of a million gallons of diesel oil are
24         real and need to be avoided.  The dollars saved by
25         Block Island residents, easily as much as 100 to
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 1         $200 a month, and much greater amounts by
 2         businesses will be an enormous benefit to our
 3         Island economy, and the recycling of these dollars
 4         on the Island will be a boost.
 5                 Just a couple small remarks about the
 6         environmental effects.  First, at a range of
 7         almost three miles off the Island, there will be
 8         no noise pollution from wind turbines.  Flicker is
 9         a geometric impossibility at that distance.  The
10         fish will appreciate the presence of structure,
11         and as Mr. Emsbo said, there will be more of them
12         rather than less.  Nature will repair whatever
13         disturbance there is to the ocean floor.
14                 I urge you to continue the permitting of
15         this project, it will be of great benefit to the
16         people of Block Island and the economy of the
17         state.  It's environmental effects will be
18         positive.  Thank you.
19                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Michael
20         Ballard.
21                 MR. BALLARD:  Michael Ballard, and I'd
22         like to thank the DEM and the representatives from
23         the Army Corps for coming out and hearing how we
24         feel here on the Island.  Good afternoon to all of
25         you.  As many of you know, I've had a life-long
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 1         love affair with Block Island and have been a
 2         resident for the last -- full time resident for
 3         the last five years.
 4                 As a resident, I strongly support this
 5         project, strongly in favor of it.  I had come to
 6         that conclusion knowing that in life not
 7         everything is perfect, and there are aspects of
 8         this that, perhaps, I agree with, are not perfect
 9         but, in my opinion, the overriding chapter is the
10         fact that with this project comes a cable which
11         affects the cost of electricity on Block Island.
12         I'm happy to reduce my electrical cost, but my
13         thinking goes beyond that, and this community has
14         a number of very critical issues facing the
15         viability of it.
16                 One of them is the cost of electricity,
17         and I, for one, feel that we need to throw a
18         lifeline to the businesses that operate here on
19         Block Island so that they continue to be a viable
20         operation.  Thank you.
21                 MR. GAGNON:  Jules Craynock.
22                 MR. CRAYNOCK:  My name is Jules Craynock
23         (C-r-a-y-n-o-c-k), and I am a year-round resident
24         here on Block Island.  I spent 37 years federal
25         service as a research oceanographer with NOAA, and


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 21


 1         my field of study was anthropological impact and
 2         coastal marine environment, kind of some of the
 3         issues that we run into here.
 4                 I chose to live on Block Island because
 5         it's Block Island, and I could have chosen any
 6         place along the East Coast, and I chose Block
 7         Island.  I live up on Sands Pond Road.  I can see
 8         clearly the site where, hopefully, we will see our
 9         wind generators coming up, and I welcome this
10         site.  To me, this is just an amazing leading edge
11         of a way to get to a cleaner energy issue.
12                 Block Island is a beautiful Island, but
13         it's not a pristine island.  We are downwind and
14         downstream of major pollutants, nuclear power
15         plants, you name it.  We're a little structure out
16         on the fringes of the North Atlantic, and if we
17         can somehow reduce our own footprint a little bit,
18         it's all to the good.  I have comments that I had
19         made in a previous letter to the Block Island
20         Times, and I will submit those as a written
21         statement that came out on March 16.
22                 I found that the comments of people who
23         grew up here is important to listen to the full
24         gamut, so we have different opinions, but I think
25         we are all, all united in how do you make it
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 1         better here on Block Island?  How do you make it a
 2         little easier?  If I look at my property value and
 3         if I look at my view shed, I find myself -- and I
 4         would consider myself to be very narrow minded,
 5         somewhat inconsiderate of people who don't have
 6         that view shed.
 7                 So, in fact, it's a small island and we're
 8         all in each other's view shed.  Anyway, I come
 9         from an environment standpoint and, again, I think
10         this is part of a prosperity, a direction for
11         prosperity on Block Island with a limited resource
12         space.  Thank you.
13                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Bud Comeau.
14                 MR. COMEAU:  My name is Bud Comeau
15         (C-o-m-e-a-u), and I'm here, actually, to read a
16         letter from Sandra and Pat Kelly who are off the
17         Island.  They were fortunate enough to schedule
18         their European vacation before this meeting was
19         scheduled.  I know they had a hell of a time, they
20         flipped a coin and said, which way should we go?
21         Clearly, European first.  Anyway, what it says --
22         and by the way, gentlemen, thank you very much for
23         being here, and I do standup comedy sometimes,
24         too.
25                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Sorry, we butchered your
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 1         last name.
 2                 MR. COMEAU:  If I had a quarter for every
 3         time that happened, I wouldn't care what you did
 4         with the electricity on Block Island.  Anyway,
 5         what it says here is:  We are opposed to the
 6         Deepwater Project 1/2 to 3 miles off the coast of
 7         Block Island.  Do not permit this project to
 8         damage forever one of Rhode Island's natural
 9         resources, a resource that can never be replaced.
10         The Mohegan Bluffs are very fragile.  The drilling
11         construction for these massive 600 foot towers 1/2
12         to 3 miles off the coast is unthinkable.
13                 It's understandable when Newport, Little
14         Compton, Jamestown and other communities didn't
15         want any part of this venture.  Is there any study
16         that shows what this massive drilling and
17         construction could mean being completed so close
18         to a bluff?  Should we not be protective of our
19         historic Southeast Lighthouse?  Will this massive
20         drilling weaken the bluffs and possibly the
21         Southeast Light?  Much effort and money were
22         extended to move the Southeast Lighthouse probably
23         for the last time.  Do we want to take the chance
24         of moving this historic treasure sooner than the
25         studies have shown?  Detailed environmental and
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 1         construction studies must be completed before
 2         allowing the project to continue.  Protect our
 3         bluffs and waters, protect the Southeast
 4         Lighthouse.  Sincerely, Patrick Kelly and Sandra
 5         Kelly.
 6                 I have -- just a thought occurred of my
 7         own on this subject.  I didn't register to speak
 8         only to be a proxy or something, but it does occur
 9         to me that in the 40 years I've been fooling
10         around on Block Island, a fair number of people
11         have viewed this place as sort of a smorgasbord.
12         They've come in, helped themselves, satisfied
13         themselves and left.  I can't say that's what's
14         going to happen with Deepwater Winds, but I'm old
15         enough to be past altruism and have embraced fully
16         cynicism, and the only thing I can say about the
17         whole damn thing is, follow the money.  Thank you.
18                 MR. GAGNON:  The next speaker is
19         Christopher Warfel.
20                 MR. WARFEL:  Christopher Warfel
21         (W-a-r-f-e-l).  I'm going to speak to DEM since
22         you probably all know exactly what I'm going to
23         say -- and Michael Elliot.  My name is Christopher
24         Warfel.  I was elected to the Town Council this
25         past year and began service December 3rd of 2012.
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 1         I'm a registered professional engineer with 30
 2         years of experience in the field of energy
 3         utilization and 27 years of experience in utility
 4         generation, renewable energy generation and energy
 5         conservation.
 6                 I've been published several times in
 7         issues ranging from the use of wind power to
 8         provide potable water, to industrial financial
 9         behavior for investing in energy efficiency, to
10         administration of the nationally awarded
11         Department of Energy Program to encourage the
12         development of renewal energy technology in grid
13         isolated diesel generated power systems, such as
14         Block Island.  My intention today is to convey to
15         DEM that this project has been misrepresented with
16         respect to its supposed public benefit, and should
17         not go forward.
18                 I believe DEM, itself, has made some
19         mistakes in its calculations regarding emission
20         reductions in its submittal to the Rhode Island
21         Public Utilities Commission dated July 20th, 2010.
22         I believe this project is a poor use of the waters
23         under the trust of the State, and it is an
24         economic albatross around the ratepayers of
25         National Grid and Block Island Power Company.
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 1         This project will be an economic windfall to DB
 2         Shaw, one of the hedge funds behind this project,
 3         a company that has been behind similar ventures
 4         and has a poor track record, in my opinion.
 5                 I'd like to give a little context to DEM
 6         as to how we got here, in my opinion.  Formerly, I
 7         was a member of the Electric Utility Task Group
 8         for the Town of New Shoreham.  Our task, in
 9         essence, was to see if we could purchase Block
10         Island Power Company in order to form a co-op
11         under the guise of lowering electric rates on the
12         Island.
13                 Three years later, we delivered what Mr.
14         McGinnis, Sr., Dr. Gazazza and Dr. Emandi
15         (phonetic), I don't know how to spell his name,
16         sorry.  We delivered their asking price, they then
17         tripled the asking price.  That left us with a
18         very desperate Town Council, which I feel is
19         exactly the situation that companies such as DB
20         Shaw was seeking.  So, our Town Council was
21         desperate, and they grasped at the concept of a
22         cable.
23                 Going through the record it is apparent
24         that the Town, even with a $12 million budget, did
25         not allocate financial resources to properly
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 1         analyze this project.  Even when they were told
 2         they incorrectly analyzed the project, the Town
 3         did not, and still has not, conducted the proper
 4         analysis.  Today, we have people referring to the
 5         incorrect analysis as factual.  We just heard some
 6         people refer to a 40 percent reduction in energy.
 7                 This was based upon an incorrect
 8         understanding of power contracting.  I'm going to
 9         respond to Mr. Baute's intentions that we had
10         qualified surveys that showed great support for
11         this project.  The survey out of Roger Williams
12         was done by a professor of architecture, including
13         such questions as:  Do you think wind turbines are
14         sexy?  This is not a serious survey.  It was not a
15         serious survey.
16                 Also, I would like to point out that
17         electricity, while very expensive on Block Island,
18         is not one of the major cost drivers, or is not
19         the major cost drivers for businesses out here,
20         it's probably number 4, and I don't think the
21         money that is saved from any reduction, supposed
22         reduction in electricity, is necessarily going to
23         stay on this Island, it's going to go where the
24         business owners go.
25                 I think DEM indirectly analyzed the power
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 1         production in energy usage of Deepwater Wind and
 2         Block Island Power Company and, hence, the
 3         environmental benefit.  DEM, Deepwater Wind and
 4         the Town of New Shoreham had mixed power and
 5         generation variables together, forgetting or
 6         ignoring that power is instantaneous, while energy
 7         is time dependent.
 8                 We challenged Jeff Grybowski, the CEO of
 9         Deepwater to set the record straight, offering to
10         resign from the Town Council if he could prove me
11         wrong.  He declined, calling the intent for
12         clarity as silly and, instead, repeated the same
13         incorrect information.  How does this affect DEM
14         analysis?  It greatly overstates the environmental
15         benefit by ignoring the reality of BIPCO's energy
16         pattern and is incompatible with Deepwater Wind's
17         production.
18                 I'll just refer you to this:  Block Island
19         Power Company is a summer peaking utility with a
20         very poor load factor of approximately, annually,
21         29 percent.  The wind energy on Block Island is
22         going to -- if we look at the mathematical
23         function -- most of the time the wind speed -- not
24         most of the time -- 40 percent of the time the
25         wind speed is going to be below the cut-in of
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 1         these wind turbines for the summer.  This also is
 2         -- you know, so we don't get the energy that we
 3         thought we would get.
 4                 It doesn't match up with our energy usage
 5         and, in addition, we actually are not buying power
 6         from Deepwater, we're buying it from ISO-New
 7         England and nobody in this Town has done that
 8         calculation.  Let's see, if we look at graphs of
 9         ISO-New England generation, we hit right on their
10         peak.  So, we will be buying the highest cost of
11         electricity in New England, and with our poor load
12         factor, we'll be buying probably the most
13         expensive power in New England.  Again, we don't
14         buy power from Deepwater, we cannot claim
15         environmental benefits from Deepwater, all those
16         benefits are being claimed by National Grid.
17                 I do believe there are some problems with
18         your analysis that you've provided to the PUC.
19         They used very old data, and using the most
20         current report from ISO-New England, which is
21         2012, there's been an overstatement, or there will
22         be a reduction of -- there is an error, that is
23         the best way to say it, an error of 50 percent in
24         the nitrous oxide emission.  There's a 91 percent
25         error in the SO2 emissions, and there's a 10
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 1         percent error in the carbon dioxide emissions.
 2                 With respect to the benefit to Block
 3         Island Power Company, we found just mistakes,
 4         which meant there was a 76 percent error in NOx
 5         and 89 percent error in SO2, and I could not
 6         determine what the error would be in carbon
 7         dioxide in time for this presentation.  The
 8         ammonia calculation also appears to be very much
 9         an error.  13,210 pounds of ammonia are supposed
10         to be emitted by BIPCO, however, our resources
11         showed that BIPCO only has 670 pounds.  We think
12         the analysis is inaccurately calculating in the
13         slip and the SCR process.
14                 It should also be noted that of all the
15         states in New England, Rhode Island has the second
16         lowest emissions, Vermont has the lowest.  So, if
17         you're really worried about the impact in Rhode
18         Island, this is another contributing error to the
19         analysis.  My recommendation to you, to DEM, I
20         know it's not within your purview but it's within
21         the state purview, that instead of taking so much
22         money out of the state economy, transferring it
23         from the mainland ratepayers and turning it to DB
24         Shaw is -- just work with the Town of New Shoreham
25         and other state agencies to develop our own
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 1         indigenous resources.
 2                 I did that analysis.  That, coupled with
 3         energy conservation by far is the lowest cost
 4         option for the state and, actually, it's the
 5         lowest cost option for Block Island, and that is
 6         on another graph, which I will just highlight.  My
 7         point that I'd like to make is that we did not do
 8         our homework.  I think mistakes have been made in
 9         the analysis that overstate the benefit of the
10         project.  This project is not what it has been
11         purported to be as an economic benefit to the
12         Island, it's definitely not an economic benefit to
13         the state, and for that amount of money, we could
14         do so much more by developing indigenous resources
15         within Rhode Island.
16                 40 percent of every project, in my
17         estimation, the dollars of that project stay
18         within the state, stay with the companies that do
19         it.  What's going to happen here is that almost
20         all the money is going to go to the investors.
21         Thank you.
22                 MR. GAGNON:  Thank you.  The next speaker
23         is Peter Lasser (sic).
24                 MR. GREENMAN:  Good evening, everybody.
25         My handwriting is so horrible, I printed out my
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 1         last name, which is Greenman (G-r-e-e-n-m-a-n).  I
 2         am a -- I'm in my 19th full-time year out here,
 3         and Sandy and I are out here for eleven or twelve
 4         full months a year.  I mean, we both are -- I am
 5         speaking for her as well -- entirely in favor of
 6         alternative energy.  I do think that, clearly,
 7         that after all of us here are dead and gone, the
 8         entire area, state, country and throughout
 9         globally, certainly, in China, are going to be
10         very used to wind and solar generation.  I have
11         read Tom Friedman's book, Hot, Flat and Crowded.
12         He is either a one -- or I can't remember, a
13         three-time Pulitzer Prize winner.  He is a
14         journalist for the Block Island -- New York Times.
15         We would do well to have him, isn't that true,
16         Bruce?
17                 I have also read a book by Bill McKennon.
18         He is active in this very same genre.  Bill is
19         from Vermont.  I have heard him speak and he, too,
20         is very familiar with what is happening to our
21         world.  All of these engineering details, fiscal
22         details and so on and so forth, they're totally
23         irrelevant.  This world is changing.  His book
24         called, EEARTH, E-E-A-R-T-H, and the reason for
25         that is, is that the earth that all of us here
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 1         grew up in as kids, nobody here will ever see that
 2         again.  That earth is totally gone.  So, it must
 3         be spelled in a different way.
 4                 We have, within the last few months
 5         experienced, with Super Storm Sandy -- didn't even
 6         qualify as a hurricane out here -- damage millions
 7         of dollars.  Some of that came from the Feds, some
 8         of it came from the State.  Much of it is coming
 9         right out of our pockets here in the repair of our
10         beach pavilion.  So, anyway, it is a mystery to me
11         how anybody who can read these two books would
12         ever find any fault with wind generation or solar
13         generation.
14                 A few years ago the nature conservancy in
15         their wonderful magazine wrote a beautiful article
16         on wind generation, and it made very clear,
17         there's good places to do it and there's bad
18         places to do it.  The best place to do it is the
19         ocean where the winds are more constant and
20         favorable for producible.  As for here in our
21         country, those best sources are the Atlantic Ocean
22         and not the Pacific Ocean, but even though you can
23         generate certainly wonderful electricity from wind
24         generation of the land, it is much less efficient
25         than if it were in the ocean.
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 1                 Financial condition on Deepwater Wind:  I
 2         started to read some of these letters from people
 3         that want to take potshots at Deepwater Wind, and
 4         somebody is going to make a big windfall.  My
 5         attitude is these investors have invested their
 6         own money in this company.  If they make a
 7         windfall, God bless them is my take here.  They
 8         are at enormous risk right now.  Are they going to
 9         make mistakes?  Of course they are.  This is the
10         first time operation for this -- and there are
11         lots of risks involved.  So, are they going to
12         make mistakes, I expect them to.  Are they going
13         to be corrected, I expect them to.  Anything
14         that's this new and this huge, there are going to
15         be bugs and they are going to be worked out.  So,
16         anybody that wants to take -- I was in accounting
17         and financial all my life.  I have no interest in
18         Deepwater Wind's financial statements and so on
19         and so forth.
20                 The state has found fit to sit down and
21         write a contract with them and, so, I think all of
22         these potshots are from people, really, that have
23         a problem with the -- what they think is going to
24         be the appearance, the bad appearance of five
25         turbines out at sea.  If this is a problem with
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 1         them, and this is my last point, this is what I
 2         urge you to do:  Just look out here or anywhere
 3         else on the Island.
 4                 You want to see something ugly, look at
 5         our electrical and telephone distribution system.
 6         It is the ugliest you could ever want to see.
 7         However, we're so used to it, we've been used to
 8         this since birth and, so, we don't even see it
 9         anymore, but if you really want to see something
10         ugly, go down to Chapel Street and look towards
11         Estes Park and all of this construction of all of
12         these poles, none of which are plumb, or level, or
13         anything else, is just a hobble affront.
14                 So, anyway -- and further, I don't find
15         the turbines at all ugly, but if it's appearance
16         that bothers you, just look right outside your
17         door.  Thank you.
18                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Barbara --
19         because I'm going to mess up your last name.
20                 MS. MacMULLAN:  I guess we all have bad
21         handwriting on Block Island.  My name is Barbara
22         MacMullan (M-a-c-M-u-l-l-a-n).  I also want to
23         say, as Bill Penn did, that I'm a member of the
24         Town Board, the Electric Utility Task Group, but
25         I'm speaking today on behalf of just myself and
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 1         not any groups.  I'd like to speak in favor of
 2         Deepwater Wind Farm, I think it will provide
 3         enormous economic and environmental benefits to
 4         Block Island.  We can quibble about the numbers,
 5         and we can argue about whether it's 10 pounds of
 6         CO2 or 20 pounds of CO2, but the matter of this
 7         will be to reduce the consumption of diesel fuel
 8         on the Island and to substitute that with wind
 9         power from the wind farm.
10                 At the same time, our rates will go down.
11         We can argue about whether it will be 20 percent
12         or 40 percent or 60 percent, but the fact is that
13         our rates will go down.  In terms of the impact on
14         the mainland, while the project is expensive and
15         the cost of power is higher than -- from the wind
16         farm is higher than the average cost of power
17         being generated or purchased on the mainland, the
18         wind farm -- the Block Island Wind Farm will
19         provide only a small portion of the total
20         electricity consumed on the mainland.  So, the
21         overall economic impact on mainland Rhode Island
22         will be small.
23                 And, finally, I think it will be a
24         tremendous boom to the economy in this Island,
25         which has struggles with high costs on every
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 1         facet.  We just went through with the ferry -- I
 2         think as an Island, we should support the project
 3         and look forward to the benefits that we'll
 4         receive.  Thank you.
 5                 MR. GAGNON:  Henry DuPont?
 6                 MR. DuPONT:  Henry DuPont.  I'm a
 7         year-round resident of the Island for all my adult
 8         life.  I served three terms on the Town Council.
 9         I want to thank you guys for coming down here
10         today, it's important to hold these hearings in
11         the places that are most affected.  I'm also a
12         35-year wind energy project consultant and, most
13         recently, I worked for COVEN (phonetic), which is
14         the largest offshore wind energy consulting firm
15         in the world with projects that total over 2,000
16         megawatts.
17                 Of course, since we don't have any
18         projects here yet, they're all in Europe, Asia,
19         and places like that.  So, I reviewed the
20         Deepwater Wind Application at the Army Corps of
21         Engineers and to DEM, and I note that the cable
22         runs and the installation procedures, in my
23         opinion, follow offshore wind energy best
24         management procedures, and they've done quite a
25         bit to mitigate the environmental impact of
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 1         installing the cables through directional drilling
 2         and cofferdams and other stuff, of course, and
 3         especially I know that people have been looking at
 4         marine animals and a number of other issues with
 5         regard to installing the structures offshore.  So,
 6         this all -- I believe, the environmental impact of
 7         the actual construction activities have been well
 8         addressed and have been mitigated.
 9                 I also note in the big picture that there
10         are significant environmental benefits to Block
11         Island and to the region, as a whole, especially
12         with regard to emissions with diesel fuel
13         transportation risk and also with -- when you live
14         on an island, seawater rises is an important issue
15         and, so, we need to do everything we can in New
16         England and around to embrace forms of energy
17         generation which will not put us underwater in the
18         next few years.
19                 Lastly, this project has significant --
20         not only environment but economic impacts to the
21         Island, somewhere in the neighborhood of $2
22         million a year in electrical savings from getting
23         power from the low cost mainland power grid, and
24         that is a significant economic benefit to the
25         Island.  So, thank you again for your time, and I
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 1         appreciate your good review of this project.
 2                 MR. GAGNON:  Edith Littlefield Blane.
 3                 MS. BLANE:  I thank you for coming, Mr.
 4         Elliot, who was gracious enough to answer my
 5         letter, and everybody in the room.  I currently
 6         have a different outlook about this project
 7         because I've lived here my entire life, which is
 8         84 years right now, and I'm not entirely convinced
 9         by the studies that have been done and the recent
10         letter from the National Park Service -- which was
11         printed in the Block Island Times -- had one item
12         that was not in there, in the original, which said
13         that an environmental impact statement should be
14         made.
15                 Now, we had a report done -- so it was
16         said that Deepwater did a report, an environmental
17         report, which is a lot different than an impact
18         statement, and I'm sure you gentlemen all know
19         that.  When the first survey came out, I was in
20         favor of it and I answered in favor of it, but as
21         time went on and the more I thought about it, I
22         looked at what was going to transpire.  I have no
23         objection to the blades themselves.  I think
24         they're beautiful, I've seen them on the mainland.
25         On the other hand, we're used to the black velvet
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 1         nights of the Mohegan Bluffs and the Southeast
 2         Light, which is historic -- and has been preserved
 3         at great cost emotionally and financially.  I
 4         think to, you know, jeopardize that in any way,
 5         would be hard for me to accept.
 6                 I could accept the blades themselves, but
 7         I think the bells, the whistles and the lights,
 8         which we know are going to be on them, because
 9         where are they going to be.  I don't -- I'm not
10         entirely convinced that they have studied
11         thoroughly the fragility of the bluffs.  We are at
12         a slump there.  If I were a property owner along
13         those bluffs, I would really be worried.
14                 The other thing that really bothered me in
15         looking at the background and how Governor
16         Carcieri was quoted in the paper as saying that we
17         did not have enough people here to really matter
18         for any kind of objection, and we all know we're a
19         small community and we don't have any political
20         clout because we have no senator or representative
21         who lives on Block Island, and unless you live
22         here, you don't know really what Block Island is
23         like on a twelve-month basis for a lifetime.
24                 I know that the pluses are going to be
25         good, and I fear also for the businesses in the
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 1         State of Rhode Island because their electricity is
 2         going to be greatly increased on this project, and
 3         I think that if these were not going to be within
 4         half-a-mile to three miles from Block Island, it
 5         would be a lot easier for me to accept that,
 6         therefore, I would just like to have my objections
 7         noted in the record.  Thank you.
 8                 MR. GAGNON:  Norris Pike?
 9                 MR. PIKE:  Good afternoon, my name is
10         Norris Pike, I'm a member of Block Island's Town
11         Council and have been involved with the local
12         politics on the Island for quite a few years.  I
13         was a member of the Utility Task Force at one
14         point and active on the Planning Board of Block
15         Island, both as a member and its chairman.
16                 I am also a proud member of Block Island's
17         codfish aristocracy.  My descendants go back to
18         Justin Dodge who came to Block Island to teach the
19         original settlers how to fish.  I started my
20         working career early in life fishing out of Point
21         Judith, and some of our best fishing was around
22         dumping grounds or wreck sites and structure on
23         the bottom that invited fish in to live.  Probably
24         the best spots were around the torpedo's dumping
25         grounds, I caught a few of those, those aren't
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 1         good.
 2                 I also visited Denmark when my daughter
 3         was in school in Copenhagen and noticed the beauty
 4         of all of their wind turbines out on their outer
 5         harbor around Copenhagen, the Jutland Peninsula,
 6         and it astounded me, it was awesome.  To me, it
 7         was just beautiful.  I'm sure there's others in
 8         this audience that would disagree to the beauty of
 9         turbines, but I see them sprouting up in Wickford,
10         Providence, Fair Haven.  To me, it's a step in the
11         right direction.
12                 I think the bottom line is whether or not
13         we believe that there's a problem with global
14         warming.  I, personally, believe there is.  I've
15         worked outside all my life.  I have scars on my
16         face from skin cancer.  My insurance rates are
17         higher because of skin cancer.  I think the ozone
18         hole over North America is something that most
19         people aren't aware of.  The amount of nitrous
20         oxide spewed out of diesel engines gobble up the
21         ozone on a significant basis.
22                 Whatever Block Island can do to offset
23         some of this emission is probably just a small
24         step, but in the long run, I think if everybody
25         takes small steps, we'll get a big step.  They say
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 1         in the next 90 years we're looking at a three to a
 2         six-foot ocean rise due to global warming.  I
 3         don't disbelieve it.  I think there's enough
 4         science out there to be able to put your finger on
 5         it, and it's not our generation.
 6                 Nobody sitting in this room is going to
 7         realize any significant change, it's our children
 8         and our grandchildren that are coming along that
 9         we're going to leave our world to, that we need to
10         make changes for.  Can they look back in history
11         and blame us for not doing what we could to offset
12         this problem?  I think DB Shaw is entitled to
13         profit.  They are taking a significant risk with
14         what they're doing.  If they make millions, great,
15         that's what America was built on and will continue
16         to be built on.
17                 I think we need to go forward and accept
18         that we need to change the world that we live in.
19         We can no longer continue burning and consuming
20         massive quantities of fossil fuel.  China is
21         taking steps to get into the big picture of wind
22         industry.  The Europeans have been doing it for
23         years, they had to.  The cost of fuel for them was
24         significantly higher than in the states where fuel
25         and water were synonymous, but that's changing.
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 1         $4 a gallon for diesel fuel that we burn to make
 2         electricity with has had a significant economic
 3         impact on Block Island, and if we can change that,
 4         reduce it by 20 percent, 10 percent even, to spill
 5         some of that money back into our economy, I think
 6         the survival rate of old codfish aristocracy, guys
 7         like myself, will be a better thing.  Thank you.
 8                 MR. GAGNON:  Maggie Delia?
 9                 MS. DELIA:  Thank you for coming to Block
10         Island.  I'm going to address the room since I've
11         addressed you before in Narragansett.  Maggie
12         Delia (D-e-l-i-a).  I'm sitting here thinking
13         about what can I say to you because when someone
14         speaks, it's not just the words that they say but
15         it's who's listening to them, and a lot of you
16         don't know me, some of you do.  Some of you just
17         know me as someone who doesn't like this project.
18         Some of you know me as a friend.  Some of you know
19         me as a part of your community.  I am not an
20         expert in wind energy, though, I know more about
21         wind energy more than I ever thought I would know
22         in this lifetime.  What I am an expert in is being
23         on the ground upfront and personal with this
24         project since 2009.
25                 I've seen things that I thought I would
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 1         never see.  We read about things in the newspaper
 2         about our government.  Well, in Rhode Island, it's
 3         as bad as you might think it is in your worst
 4         dreams.  Not that there aren't some good people
 5         out there because I've met some extraordinarily
 6         great people with great integrity, but that's not
 7         the business, as usual, in government.
 8                 What has me working on this day after day
 9         is because I really do care about the future for
10         our children and our grandchildren, and I don't
11         think that future is going to get fixed by the
12         same people who messed it up to begin with.  Who
13         Deepwater Wind is, is, a hedge fund.  They were
14         introduced tonight as an LLC.  An LLC is a paper
15         company, it has no assets.  If we have 660-foot
16         wind turbines out in our ocean and something goes
17         wrong with them, there is no way to fix them.  If
18         lightening strikes these things and they are
19         burning, there aren't any 660 -- well, maybe it's
20         only 400 feet because the blades -- you don't have
21         to go up to the blades, you go to NSL.  There even
22         aren't any vehicles, no boats, no nothing to get
23         up to 400 feet to fix these things when they're on
24         fire, they will just be on fire until they burn
25         out, and the thing I want to say to you is,
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 1         really, take this seriously, you know, and I might
 2         say some really stupid things here but they're
 3         real things, like logical things.
 4                 Like, when you've been to that great
 5         restaurant and you really love -- because I worry
 6         about tourism here, too -- when you go to that
 7         great restaurant that's really cute and small, and
 8         they have so many people that they change and they
 9         make it bigger, and then it's not the same
10         restaurant and you don't want to go there anymore.
11         This is not going to be the same Island having
12         660-foot turbines hanging over it.  If I just do
13         that to you right now, that's kind of dominating,
14         you know.  That's what it's like to be in the
15         presence of something that tall.
16                 I screwed up a long time ago when I didn't
17         know and didn't care about -- and it's not that I
18         didn't care, it's just really that I didn't know
19         the impact of the electricity rate on this Island,
20         because had I known then, I don't think we'd be in
21         this shape right now talking about this, I think
22         something different would have happened, and we
23         would be insured that this Island was the same
24         beautiful unique place that it is right now.
25                 Wind energy is not good renewable energy.
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 1         I will work on having electricity go down on this
 2         Island, you can count on me for that, because I've
 3         learned my lesson.  I've been working for almost
 4         five years to not have this happen because I
 5         screwed up and didn't know about the electricity
 6         rates and the impact that it had on everyone,
 7         which was the big opening for Deepwater Wind to
 8         come to this Island and say we're going to fix
 9         everything for you, but I'll tell you something,
10         Deepwater Wind is a hedge fund.  They are
11         lobbyists, and our corporations and our government
12         work together to make sure that they get what they
13         want.
14                 When I hear tonight that people say it's
15         only a little bit of money for the mainland, it's
16         not a little bit of money for people.  Everything
17         is meaningful for people that don't have a lot of
18         money.  It's a half-a-billion dollars over market
19         for this energy.  I don't see how you can justify
20         that.  I listen to fishermen in Narragansett
21         because I've been in Narragansett now for the past
22         few months listening to that community, and this
23         cable will go directly through their winter
24         flounder breeding grounds, breeding grounds that
25         they haven't been able to fish for a number of


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 48


 1         years that are now opened up and they said, well,
 2         the cable will go through there and it will, you
 3         know, destroy your eggs and larvae but, you know,
 4         that's a little something that we have to give up.
 5         Well, you're going to pay more for this than over
 6         market, but that's a little something that we have
 7         to give up.
 8                 Well, you're going to have, you know,
 9         poles and substations and big turbines, and that's
10         a little something we just have to give up, and I
11         say there's something possible that doesn't have
12         to be, that we're all working on different sides,
13         because I'm for renewable energy.  I'm an
14         environmentalist my entire life, actively for the
15         past, you know, thirty years.  I put my money
16         where my mouth is about that.  I give a lot of
17         money to environmental groups, and I do a lot of
18         work with them.
19                 There's so much commitment in this room.
20         People who are for renewable energy getting the
21         electric rate down, you know, doing the right
22         thing for this Island, keeping the Island, you
23         know, the way that it is.  I am for that, too.
24         Deepwater Winds and the hedge fund, their job is
25         to make money.  Governor Carcieri pushed this
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 1         thing through.
 2                 If you want to find out about that, talk
 3         to, you know, your commissioners at the PUC.  They
 4         got more pressure to put that thing through than
 5         anything they've ever seen before and when they
 6         turned it down, I was at the State House and
 7         watched Deepwater Winds write the new piece of
 8         legislation that was foolproof, that no one could
 9         deny.
10                 Narragansett just suspended negotiations
11         with Deepwater Wind for the landfall.  They did
12         that because a new Town Council member there said
13         he couldn't stand how much back room conversations
14         there were.  He wanted a public transparent
15         process, and he wanted time on their own to do the
16         research they needed to find out if it was a good
17         project.  Not that they would just listen to
18         Deepwater Wind about whether or not it was a good
19         project.  He just, you know, he held up, you know,
20         a huge stack of paper he just got through Docket
21         4111, and he still has to get through the next
22         docket, but he's serious about the impact that
23         this thing is going to have on their town.
24                 We need to get serious about the impact on
25         this town.  Whether you're for it or against it, I
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 1         can find all the studies in the world that will
 2         prove my points, and if you are for it, you can
 3         find all the studies in the world that are for
 4         your points.  You have got to talk to the real
 5         people who are living with these wind turbines.
 6         You have to look at the real numbers.  The 40
 7         percent output of these wind turbines is not
 8         reality that's happening, it's 25 percent.
 9                 In Scotland, they just spent $2 million.
10         They gave $2 million to wind farms to shut down
11         for the day because they were getting too much
12         energy at National Grid in Scotland, and how they
13         worked that out is, they didn't turn down other
14         sources of energy because they're too hard and
15         they use too much energy to go up and down, so
16         they just turned off 13 wind farms and paid them
17         $2 million.
18                 I believe we really want the right thing.
19         Our government doesn't necessarily do the right
20         thing, and we're, most of us, old enough in here
21         to know that something that might look like it can
22         help us has many, many drawbacks.  Like, you know,
23         sometimes I think I'm listening to Saturday Night
24         Live about, you know, we can fix your fungus on
25         your toenails only you might die, you might have
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 1         seizures, you know, it's like all of those things.
 2         There are really some drawbacks to this.
 3                 So, I ask you to listen to me like a
 4         member of your community because that's who I
 5         consider myself to be.  I know I'm a summer person
 6         for some of you.  I know I'm an NIMBY for some of
 7         you.  I know some of you think all I care about is
 8         my view.  I know some of you think I really care
 9         dearly about, you know, the future.  However, you
10         listen to me, I am committed to being in a
11         relationship in communication with you about this,
12         and there's lots and lots that I know about this,
13         and I ask you to please call on me.  Thank you.
14                 MR. GAGNON:  I need some help with this
15         one.  I think the initials are T. R. --
16                 MR. DOYLE:  Doyle.  Tom Doyle.  Most of
17         you know me, I've had a home on the Island for 23
18         years, and I have lived here full-time since 2007.
19         I would like to reiterate the facts echoed by the
20         previous speakers to the DEM and the Army Corps of
21         Engineers for coming and listening to us, both the
22         pros and cons.
23                 As most of you know, I'm against the
24         deepwater demonstration project.  I jotted down
25         seven -- very brief, seven brief reasons why I'm
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 1         against it.  First of all, the procedure to which
 2         several previous speakers have alluded, Little
 3         Compton turned it down, Jamestown turned it down
 4         and then we have the Deepwater Demonstration
 5         Project on Block Island, and most people have no
 6         awareness that that's what was going on.
 7                 My second reason is the wanted BIRA
 8         survey.  As Mark Twain said, "There are lives,
 9         there are damn lives, and there are statistics."
10         This is an excellent example of irresponsible
11         statistics.  I stated very briefly, and I know
12         good people disagree, I'm not saying those who
13         quote the survey are evil, and I am good.  I'm
14         just pointing this out.
15                 There were many marginal comments to that
16         survey which qualified the opinion that we are in
17         favor of wind farm.  For example, people who are
18         in favor of a wind farm are far enough away that
19         they couldn't see it, et cetera, et cetera.  Those
20         comments were never published although, full
21         disclosure, the BIRA Board asked Dr. Papalitas
22         (phonetic), who lead the survey, to publish those
23         things and they were never published.  The
24         mysteries of science.
25                 My third reason, which has also been
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 1         alluded to was the override of the Public
 2         Utilities Commission or PUC.  They thought that
 3         the electricity generated would be too expensive,
 4         and I think they were right, I'll leave that up to
 5         you.
 6                 The fourth reason is there's a need for a
 7         cable.  However, it's very interesting that the
 8         cost for the cable, if you look at it, has jumped
 9         up and down, whereas, the consumer price index has
10         not.  Now, you hear about the price of copper,
11         that's what driving it up, the cost of labor, that
12         may all be so but that, really, has not been
13         investigated, at least I don't think it has.
14                 My fifth reason, I am not a -- "Not In My
15         Backyard Person," I won't see the windmills.  I'm
16         not opposed to them.  In fact, I'm not opposed to
17         alternative energy.  I think it's a wonderful
18         idea, I'm just opposed to this version of
19         alternative energy.  However, one must note that
20         it's very easy to say, if you're not looking at
21         them, "Well, I think they're beautiful structural
22         entities," but you're not looking at them.  That
23         should be left to the people that look at them.
24                 Part of this is that we're giving up our
25         view, and we'll be giving up some other things and
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 1         we have gotten very little in return.  In fact,
 2         many of us feel we've been rolled by Deepwater
 3         Wind.  For example, we've talked about burying our
 4         electrical wires.  Why couldn't that be done?
 5         And, once again, I'm a capitalist.  I think it's
 6         the worst best system we have.  The other systems
 7         don't work.  Ours works.  However, there is an
 8         issue of fairness, and as long someone has a lot
 9         of cash, they either have to give it -- which they
10         usually don't -- but you have to be smart enough
11         to take it away from them and we haven't done
12         that.
13                 My sixth reason is the -- talk about
14         energy bills.  The projections are 20 to 40
15         percent, and this is a good thing.  However, no
16         one has mentioned the escalator clause that
17         National Grid has.  If the escalator clause works
18         and if inflation kicks in, God forbid.  So far we
19         don't have any inflation, but we could well end up
20         spending as much or more for energy than we are
21         now.  There's something to be considered.
22                 Lastly, we hear a lot of talk about this
23         is going to be -- the environment is going to be
24         clean, our grandchildren, et cetera, will live in
25         a pollution-free environment, that's a losery.  I,
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 1         like you, I would love to see a cleaner
 2         environment, and I would do everything in my power
 3         to make that so, but practicality tells us that
 4         we're going to be dependent on fossil fuels for
 5         the foreseeable future.  Coal, oil, gas won't go
 6         away.  When the wind turbines shut down, the
 7         diesel generators pick up, and they're not running
 8         on sea algae, they're running on fossil fuel.  You
 9         all know that.  As the man said, I digress.
10                 And, lastly, Governor Carcieri and his
11         group when they propounded this, they talked a lot
12         about jobs in Rhode Island, it would bring jobs to
13         Rhode Island in the depressed economy.  These are
14         all laudable ideas, and I am not mocking them,
15         however, the latest evidence indicates that those
16         jobs are not forthcoming.  Thank you.
17                 MR. BIANCULLI:  Folks.  Before we announce
18         the next speaker, if those of you that are
19         standing, if you wish to come in, there are a few
20         seats up here, you can sit up here.  We're just
21         visitors to this room today, and if you do wish to
22         sign in, there's still a sign-in sheet for giving
23         public comments over there as soon as you enter
24         the room.
25                 MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Millie
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 1         McGinnis.
 2                 MS. McGINNIS:  Hi, my name is Millie
 3         McGinnis (M-c-G-i-n-n-i-s).  I'm going to speak
 4         very briefly this afternoon.  I'm going to then
 5         excuse myself to be with my family, but I live
 6         here and I work here year-round, and I just want
 7         to say that I support this project with a big warm
 8         heart for it.  I look forward to it going forward.
 9         I'm hoping that the permitting process will
10         continue.
11                 It's a good thing for Block Island
12         environmentally and economically.  I feel for
13         Rhode Island, for the economic development
14         potential it brings.  It's a good thing for Rhode
15         Island.  I see it as a good thing for the nation,
16         for some innovation and technology, and I
17         certainly think it's a great thing, so, bring it
18         on.  Thank you.
19                 MR. GAGNON:  Rob Gilpin?
20                 MR. GILPIN:  Thank you.  I would just like
21         to say that I support this project.  I've watched
22         it from the beginning and I think you really need
23         to start at the beginning and how it started, and
24         it was the governor and the state that put in an
25         RFP, and the first proposal that I saw showed 130
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 1         wind turbines all around Block Island.  Now, I
 2         opposed that, I didn't think it was feasible, and
 3         then it was Deepwater, this contractor that came
 4         forward and said, we don't think you ought to do
 5         that.  We'd like to see six to eight around Block
 6         Island and then move the bulk of them offshore,
 7         which is more of a proposal that I could support.
 8                 I've been involved with Deepwater.  I
 9         monitor their med (sic) equipment while I was on
10         the Island, and I have lived here for 35 years,
11         year-round.  The wind blows out here.  You have to
12         put the turbines where the wind is, and I
13         supported the governor and the legislature.
14         They're not only thinking of Block Island, this is
15         an opportunity to bring offshore wind to Rhode
16         Island.  Realizing that this country doesn't have
17         the infrastructure, they had to start with baby
18         steps.
19                 I've been to Quonset point for years, it's
20         been well underdeveloped, and this is a perfect
21         opportunity to put Rhode Island in the forefront
22         of developing offshore wind on the East Coast.
23         Now, that's forward thinking, in my mind.  I live
24         on Mohegan Trail, I'm going to have to look at
25         them.  It's a risk I'm willing to take.  The power
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 1         bills really don't affect me.  I conserve, but I
 2         know there's a lot of people who are elderly that
 3         their power bill in the summer can be seven or
 4         $800 a month.
 5                 Currently, I've been on the Planning Board
 6         for ten years, and I served on the Zoning Board
 7         one, and the North Light Commission for over 20.
 8         So, I've been on the other side of the table, and
 9         the only thing I request of you is, take the
10         emotion out of it and examine the record.  All the
11         information is there.  You can debate the benefits
12         until the cows come home, but the bottom line is,
13         I think it's a benefit for this community and for
14         the State of Rhode Island.
15                 I did read the comments from the Park
16         Service on the Southeast Light and the impact, and
17         I did meet with Bill Bulger and Marianne Abacus
18         (phonetic) when she came to the Island to do the
19         assessment, and I was just curious on what
20         criteria do you evaluate this?  She looked at me
21         and said, there is none.  So, my point is, is
22         whether it's going to have an impact?  Obviously,
23         yes, but I ask you to consider this one thing:
24         Lighthouses were never enamored the way they are
25         today.  They were essentially utility structures,
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 1         not unlike wind turbines.
 2                 When they were built, personally, for the
 3         North Light, they built four lighthouses in 38
 4         years because they just couldn't find the right
 5         site and, historically, they were built and they
 6         knew when they built the Southeast Light that it
 7         would have to be moved some day, or they would
 8         demolish it.  So, you've got to look at the
 9         historic value in that context.  I'm also aware
10         that the Coast Guard is planning to remove Cape
11         Lookouts First Order Lens and, in my opinion, that
12         will have more of an impact on the historic
13         Southeast Light than the wind turbines that are
14         three miles away.  Thank you.
15                 MR. GAGNON:  Sean McGarry?
16                 MR. McGARRY:  My name is Sean McGarry
17         M-c-G-a-r-r-y.  Good evening, and thank you for
18         coming to Block Island, Mr. Elliot, for being
19         proactive in getting a jump start on your
20         hearings.  My name is Sean McGarry, I'm a member
21         of the New Shoreham Town Council.  I am also
22         Chairman of the Democratic Town Committee, and I
23         want to talk briefly about why I'm opposed to the
24         overall project and, then, I want to focus on what
25         this hearing is really about.
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 1                 Of course the visual impact and the
 2         quality of life is going to be greatly impacted
 3         for those of us who have lived here a great
 4         portion of our lives.  My family originally
 5         settled here in 1919.  I have two boys in the
 6         school and they represent the fifth generation of
 7         McGarrys here on the Island, and their quality of
 8         life is going to be greatly impacted by this.
 9         They'll never be able to know the pristine quality
10         of our vista that I was able to experience, that
11         four generations ahead of me were able to
12         experience and, hopefully, that my children will
13         some day be able to experience.
14                 There's going to be a great impact on
15         tourism.  People say people are going to come to
16         see this.  Well, they might come and say, hey,
17         let's go check out and see what these fools did
18         over there because they really made a mess out of
19         that, but that's going to die out because what's
20         going to happen is, we're going to kill what is so
21         special and unique about our geographic isolation,
22         our unspoiled beauty.
23                 This is going to represent
24         industrialization on a large scale in a very rural
25         isolated community that I'm sure you've enjoyed
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 1         seeing as you walked here or drove here, but
 2         moving forward -- oh, just briefly about the cost
 3         of electricity.  My health insurance is about
 4         $1,600 a month.  My electric bill in a year is
 5         about $1,600 a month.  So, if you want to do
 6         something for me, help me with my health insurance
 7         and not my electrical bill, but the reason for
 8         this hearing is the dredge application.
 9                 Specifically, the application at this
10         point is incomplete.  I mean, they say that
11         they're going to land the cable in Narragansett,
12         but there's no agreement to land the cable in
13         Narragansett.  So, I don't understand why the
14         hearing would proceed anyway.  If they have to
15         change that location then, I guess, we would redo
16         this hearing again, and my hope is that you would
17         come back and we'd talk about the other location
18         because it would be very great, because if we were
19         to go to Charlestown, then we would land on West
20         Beach or Coast Guard Road.  I mean, everything
21         would change, all the dynamics.  Essentially, the
22         process should not have even started yet.
23                 Now, why did they choose beaches as
24         landing areas for this cable?  The reason is
25         because there's an immense amount of equipment and
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 1         excavation, and demolition and destruction that's
 2         going to happen with this process:  The building
 3         of the cofferdams, the 40 acres of sea floor
 4         disturbance.  I like to call it sea floor
 5         destruction, but an immense, immense amount.
 6                 So, they choose beaches because they can
 7         get the machinery in there and minimize the amount
 8         of impact, but there's going to be an enormous
 9         amount of impact.  There are a lot of issues that
10         are going to continue to be identified that aren't
11         identified yet.
12                 We don't really understand what the impact
13         on the fishing stock is going to be, what the
14         issues with tidal -- or people talk about driving
15         the pilings and what effect that's going to have
16         on the bluffs.  You know, I can only imagine
17         driving a piling two and three quarter miles off
18         shore on our fragile bluffs, you know.  I can see
19         chunks of that falling off with that vibration,
20         maybe, I don't know, we don't know.  So, there
21         must be an environmental impact study to determine
22         not only the dredging impacts but the impacts of
23         the overall project.  So, I ask you to please,
24         please study those impacts thoroughly.
25                 The public process for this has been
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 1         flawed from the start.  Here, on Block Island,
 2         there were never any public hearings.  We never
 3         had the opportunity to come and speak in front of
 4         the then Town Council, we weren't offered that
 5         opportunity.  The Public Utility Commission came
 6         out here for the first time and listened to us,
 7         and the next thing they did is they denied the
 8         Power Purchase Agreement with Deepwater Wind and
 9         then like people said, the legislature in their
10         infinite wisdom decided to legislate out the
11         people that were designated to protect us.
12                 I'm looking to you to protect us as well
13         with our natural resources of our ocean floor and
14         our beaches and I hope that you don't, in turn,
15         get legislated out.  At this hearing today, this
16         time of the year there's only 25 percent of the
17         people that live here on the Island.  So, if this
18         were a month later, we would have had to have been
19         at the school because we would have been out far
20         into the street.
21                 In a day like today -- and there are many
22         more to come like this, there would be no
23         electricity being generated by wind turbines.
24         What you would have is five competing foghorns,
25         not the tweeting of the birds but the five
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 1         foghorns fighting, and ten flashing lights.
 2         There's a lot of debate about what turbines do,
 3         whether there's positives or negatives.  One thing
 4         I will tell you that they do for certain is they
 5         divide communities.  This community is divided.
 6         The damage has already been done.  Thank you again
 7         for coming.
 8                 MR. GAGNON:  Doreen Napoleone.
 9                 MS. NAPOLEONE:  Hello, my name is Doreen
10         Napoleone (N-a-p-o-l-e-o-n-e).  I'd like to thank
11         the DEM and Army Corps for hearing our comments,
12         and everybody here.  I know this is a very
13         difficult topic, and I have many friends in the
14         room that we don't see eye-to-eye on this topic
15         and I am going to focus, I think, my comments
16         today on the environmental side since that is the
17         purpose of this hearing.
18                 I realize this isn't a perfect project and
19         there's probably much about it that could be
20         improved, but I am for the wind turbines.  I was
21         very saddened to see the full page in our paper
22         this past week from a New Jersey-based
23         non-for-profit firm called Beautiful Block Island,
24         Inc. that was urging us to deny this project and
25         say no to it because of the birds and the fish,
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 1         and the lighthouse and the beauty of our Island.
 2                 In that focus of the environment and the
 3         issues, I think it's so important to stress to
 4         everyone, and I know many of us know this, but
 5         there's overwhelming consensus among the
 6         scientific community that our planet is warming,
 7         the Arctic ice is melting, the sea levels are
 8         rising and man-made greenhouse gas and carbon
 9         dioxide such is that, that our power plant
10         produces is causing that problem.  So, for us to
11         talk about protecting our birds and our fish, and
12         our Island by burying our heads in the sand and
13         not addressing the problem head-on is very sad to
14         me.
15                 I looked at our beaches after our storms
16         this winter, and our fish and our birds are very
17         damaged, and we need to be looking forward into
18         the future and what is there -- I don't have
19         children, but for the future generations to come
20         here.  I think that the offshore wind project is
21         an opportunity for this beautiful place to be a
22         leader, to lead and clean alternative energy in a
23         project that is not perfect, and I would encourage
24         all of you in the room that know all of the things
25         wrong with it to use that information to making it
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 1         a better project versus stopping the project.
 2                 I feel like your comments about it being
 3         industrialized, we have a power plant in the
 4         middle of our Island, how much more industrial
 5         could that be?  We have a gigantic cell tower in
 6         the middle of our Island, those things are very
 7         industrial.  So I think we really need to sort of
 8         dwell and reflect on some of those comments, and I
 9         do feel that this project is not permanent.
10                 Yes, we'll have some lights out there and
11         there will be some foghorns, but we talk about
12         this being turbines that are here for 20 years,
13         not a nuclear plant here forever, and 20 years
14         from now, people's grandchildren, maybe we'll see
15         the Southeast Light, maybe it will be there
16         because we won't have the super storms.  I know
17         it's a little project, a small impact to climate
18         change, but I feel it's important that we be
19         leaders in that process.  Thank you.
20                 MR. GAGNON:  Dick Martin?
21                 MR. MARTIN:  Dick Martin (M-a-r-t-i-n),
22         previous Town Council for the last six years.
23         I've worked at the Block Island Power Company for
24         32 years, still working there.  I'm not a
25         millionaire.  I made that very clear at the last
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 1         PUC meeting, I'm not, I wish I was.  I wish I was
 2         wealthy, as much as a lot of people in this room.
 3         I do respect a lot of you in this room for
 4         everything that you do say.
 5                 I have a lot of issues, but I know when I
 6         moved to this Island and when I began to work at
 7         the Block Island Power Company, there was talk of
 8         the cable.  For 32 fricking years I've heard that
 9         that's what we need, is, a cable.  Franklin Renz
10         couldn't do it.  The previous owners, Mr.
11         McGinnis, Gerry Edwards and Dr. Gazazza, excuse
12         me, they couldn't do it.  They need help.  There's
13         only 2,000 customers out here, roughly, we can't
14         do it alone.  This was my way that I felt six
15         years ago or seven years almost now, when I went
16         on the council.  This is my way of trying to get a
17         cable.
18                 I know it went from eight windmills down
19         to six to five, or whatever.  Who knows where it
20         will go before it's done, we're not there yet.  It
21         might go to three, who knows, but the cable is
22         what is more important to me than anything.  I
23         think it's more important to the Island.  That's
24         what has divided us.  Yes, we've had a civil war.
25         We've had a lot of arguments at our dinner tables,
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 1         whether it's in-laws, outlaws, or whatever you
 2         want to say, neighbors and, hopefully, we'll be
 3         friends after it's all over, still, but we have
 4         had the discussions and it's not being
 5         blind-sided, we all know what's going on.
 6                 I am not an engineer, I do not know the
 7         answers, but I do know that I have seen a lot of
 8         businesses and a lot of people come and go because
 9         of electricity bills.  I've heard tonight that
10         it's the fourth level, wow.  If you were ever
11         around the first of the month and you heard the
12         electric bills come out, "This can't be my
13         electric bill, it must be somebody else's because
14         I couldn't do that."  Well, I don't get discounts
15         on my electric bills either.  In the summertime,
16         they're outrageous.
17                 I talk to my family on the mainland.  I
18         wish that each and every one of you all that come
19         here tonight would call up every month and ask
20         what the electric rate was and compare it to your
21         electric and find out how much it would be, and
22         you'd understand where we said stand, but I am for
23         this project.  I'm not sure if it will go all the
24         way through, but I do know we need this cable, and
25         if we don't get this cable, damn it, I really hope
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 1         that each and every one of you that have fought
 2         this project stand up and get us a cable, and that
 3         should be a promise that we have before this is
 4         over, because we do need this cable, bad, this
 5         Island does.
 6                 If you've ever owned a business on this
 7         Island -- I have not run a business -- but I've
 8         heard and seen a lot of them come and go, and I
 9         don't know how some of these people stay, but if
10         you go out to dinner here, it cost you $125 for
11         two people to go out and not have booze -- God
12         forbid if you need booze because it's going to be
13         more -- but $125 for a meal here is going to be a
14         lot more than you would have gotten from the
15         mainland, and that's my point, is, that we do live
16         here, and I live here 365 days a year.
17                 I don't take vacations, very seldom.  I
18         only go off if it's a medical problem or if it's
19         something in the family.  So, this is where I do
20         still take my vacations.  I live here 365 days a
21         year, 32 years I've been here.  I want to thank
22         you all for coming, and I hope it's not wasting
23         your time, and I hope you're not wasting our time
24         and that you're listening to each and every one of
25         us.  Thank you.
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 1                 MR. GAGNON:  The next speaker is Mya
 2         Velvenan Wilson.
 3                 MS. WILSON:  I've written a poem about the
 4         wind turbines and what I think about them:
 5             Our heroes of the future need permission to
 6         come and stay.  They love the water like some of
 7         us, or most of us.  They are giants.  The wind is
 8         their horses.  They only spin, they don't hurt
 9         anybody.  Our heroes of the future, blue and
10         white, white more than gray.  Their names are wind
11         turbines.
12                 MR. GAGNON:  Peter Saxon.
13                 MR. SAXSON:  I want to reiterate what Dick
14         Martin said.  That is what this is all about, the
15         cables to the mainland.  We need it for
16         electricity, we need it for broadband.  We can get
17         it if it were a card (phonetic), but if you keep
18         pushing off Providence, they eventually will
19         capitulate, we can do it.  What we don't need is
20         an experimental project on Block Island.
21                 This wind farm is called a demonstration
22         project.  Why?  Because they have to demonstrate
23         that it's feasible to build wind turbines off
24         Block Island and operate them.  Why?  Because
25         there's a chance you can't maintain those wind
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 1         turbines.  There's a chance they're not
 2         economically feasible.  There's a chance this is a
 3         100 percent boondoggle, which will result in five
 4         rusting wind turbines with no one to take them
 5         down.
 6                 Instead of spending a fortune on building
 7         an experimental project off Block Island and
 8         ruining what many people feel is a great vista,
 9         what we should be doing is getting the damn cable
10         to the mainland and focusing our energy to do
11         that, not on an experimental project which could
12         fail.  I asked the President, I think it was Mr.
13         Rich (sic) years ago:  "What would happen if a
14         hurricane with 120 mile-an-hour wind hits those
15         turbines?"  He said, "Well, we have computer
16         simulations to show they'd be fine."  I said, "You
17         have computer simulations to show they'd be fine,"
18         that's as good as the data that goes in.
19         Computers never go wrong, right?  Nothing can go
20         wrong, nothing can go wrong.
21                 What happens if these turbines, because of
22         the turbulence below and the winds above crack,
23         bend or fail, who's going to fix them; you, me?
24         Who's going to pay for it, you?  That's for sure.
25         Who's going to take them down, not Deepwater,
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 1         they'll be gone, you'll pay for that, and we'll
 2         have turbine reef out there with five rusting wind
 3         turbines.  That's why I'm opposed.
 4                 MR. GAGNON:  Fred Leeder?
 5                 MR. LEEDER:  Good evening, Fred Leeder.  I
 6         came to this Island to work for the summer 30
 7         years ago, I've been here ever since.  I came out
 8         here with a duffle bag full of clothes and a
 9         couple of milk crates full of books.  Since then,
10         part of the lesson is living within one's means.
11         You've all seen -- well, most of you have seen the
12         crappy cars I drive, I string them along as long
13         as I can.
14                 You know, as far as introduction, if you
15         don't know me and my crappy cars or remember me
16         from the post office, maybe you should.  From
17         these extremely humble beginnings, I was able to
18         acquire some property and build my own home,
19         literally built it myself.  I recognize a lot of
20         people in here who actually helped me pound nails,
21         you know, living within your needs.
22                 I'm off the grid, so I'm going to say I
23         don't have a dog in this fight because I don't get
24         electric bills.  In fact, when I worked at the
25         post office, that was the best part of my job, is
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 1         every month delivering the electric bills because
 2         I didn't get one again, but I heard people crying
 3         in the lobby of the outrageous bills, and during
 4         my term as postmaster, we put solar on the post
 5         office.  So, my alternative energy credentials are
 6         pretty good.
 7                 Alternative energy works.  You've got to
 8         look at the pig picture.  We've got to do
 9         something as a country, as a society, as a world.
10         We cannot go on doing what we're doing, it's not
11         working.  In 200 years since the industrial
12         revolution just -- pollution, you can't see it,
13         your vistas that everybody is raving about just
14         aren't there.  Traveling national parks a few
15         years ago, I think it was Bryce Canyon, they
16         always have the wonderful displays they do and
17         usually they'll have something that shows you
18         which mountain range you're looking at, what's
19         over here, what's over there.
20                 They had a display pointing out what you
21         used to be able to see before the smog from the
22         West Coast cut down the visibility.  You know, the
23         consumption, the waste and the pollution, just the
24         arrogance of our society, in general, is shameful.
25         We're behind Europe.  They can make us look like
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 1         fools when it comes to energy conservation,
 2         alternative energy, and the technology is there,
 3         they're doing it.
 4                 I've heard the objections, "It won't
 5         work."  Well, they've been doing it in Europe for
 6         a long time.  I actually heard people stand up and
 7         say the warning lights for air craft will be a
 8         problem, and the foghorns will keep us awake at
 9         night.  Well, we're all a heck of a lot closer to
10         the Southeast Light than we're going to be to this
11         wind farm, and as I recall, people were jumping
12         for joy when the Southeast Light was relit.  So, a
13         little perspective there.
14                 Cable, you know, cable will be great.
15         Standalone cable ain't going to happen.  Who's
16         going to pay for it, end of story.  Sure, maybe
17         Bill Gates will come along and write us a check,
18         we'll get a cable.  I'm not holding my breath.
19         The big one, the view, everybody is about the
20         view.  My small unscientific survey, people argue
21         about this affecting tourism.
22                 I drive a taxi in the summer.  When the
23         test rigs were up, one of the big stops, the
24         show-stoppers were called Second Bluffs, not the
25         stairs but the ones to the west of that, and you
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 1         could see these rigs, and I'd just ask everybody I
 2         took up there -- and there was a lot of people, it
 3         was a big stop on the Island tour -- "What do you
 4         think?"  "It doesn't bother me, kind of
 5         interesting."
 6                 So, I am totally an unscientific study,
 7         but I don't think it's going hurt tourism.  What
 8         will hurt tourism is when our businesses start to
 9         fail because they can't afford the electricity.
10         To sum things up, you know, is this the best
11         project?  I don't know.  Are there better ones?
12         Are the finances right?
13                 They say -- they're being bent about that
14         they're investment capitalists and it's a hedge
15         fund and that's the anti-Christ, well, maybe it
16         is, but nobody else is offering to build a wind
17         farm and put in a cable.  You know, this is not
18         communism.  If they want to put in their
19         investment of work, that's what America is about,
20         to make a profit, and we'll all in some ways
21         profit from this.
22                 I heard about this being an experimental
23         project.  I think that's what the Wright Brothers
24         had going to Kitty Hawk.  Somebody had to get on
25         that plane and give it a try 'cause, you know, you
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 1         name it, somebody had to do the first one.  Some
 2         Indian ate the first quahaug.  Think about that.
 3         This project has been coming up for a long time,
 4         2008, that's five years.  It will be another
 5         several years, I'm guessing, before this is
 6         completed.  I'd like to see this happen in my
 7         lifetime.
 8                 If this fails, we're back to square one,
 9         we're going to have to start again, and another
10         five years at least, ten years.  There's plenty of
11         ways to find fault.  We can continue that and
12         maintain the status quo and watch the pollution
13         increase and our resources run out and, you know,
14         the number -- in the past 200 years since our
15         industrial revolution, it's shameful.
16                 We pride ourselves on the Island that we
17         have 43.9, I think our latest is in conservancy,
18         that is stewardship.  It's taking care of our
19         Island.  We have a sense of place.  Well, it's
20         time to, I think, apply that to a wider picture
21         and take stewardship of our planet.
22                 One more thing, we talked about dividing
23         the community, wind turbines dividing the
24         community.  Well, when that's all settled, guess
25         what, we can still fight about the deer and
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 1         whether we use fertilizer -- or mopeds, or the
 2         parking at the post office.  We're good at this,
 3         folks.  What divides us is what brings us
 4         together.
 5                 MR. GAGNON:  Our next speaker is Kay
 6         Lewis.
 7                 MS. LEWIS:  Kay Lewis.  I don't have to
 8         give a speech because Doreen Napoleone did it for
 9         me, and she did a great job.  Thank you, Doreen.
10         I'll just make a few observations about some of
11         what I've heard today.  One, is, there are a lot
12         of people who seem very certain about the outcome
13         of this and, particularly, it seems that the
14         doomsayers are really certain it's going to be a
15         disaster.  Well, no one really knows, and I hope
16         that it will be more like Denmark than some of the
17         predictions, because it's very easy for me to
18         imagine that this goes forward and we all decipher
19         that they're beautiful, they work, and overall our
20         lives are improved and there's no loss in property
21         value and all of that.  Many people here look at
22         the same set of data and come down on totally
23         different sides, but my hope is it ends up on that
24         side, and that's where I'm placing my bets.
25                 The second observation is that it's an
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 1         experiment, and we don't want any experiments.
 2         You know, life is an experiment, and I'm with
 3         those people who say, "We have to do something."
 4         I don't have children, but I worry about the globe
 5         that your children and your children's children
 6         will be living on and, yes, we're going to be
 7         dependent on fossil fuels for some time to come,
 8         but we have to start somewhere.  This is a small
 9         project, it's an experiment, it's worth a chance,
10         and I say give it a chance.
11                 The third observation is probably the most
12         disturbing thing I heard today was someone who
13         said that he has gone past altruism and totally
14         embraced cynicism.  If very many people do that,
15         not only is this Island dead but the globe is
16         dead.  So, my appeal is, let's not give up on
17         altruism because our only hope for your children
18         and your children's children is that there's still
19         plenty of people here who will continue to embrace
20         altruism.  So, give it a chance.
21                 MR. GAGNON:  Patrick Tengwall.
22                 MR. TENGWALL:  My name is Patrick Tengwall
23         (T-e-n-g-w-a-l-l).  I want to thank the
24         representatives of DEM for coming here and taking
25         the time to listen to all of the comments that you
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 1         are receiving today.  I know you're going to get
 2         many more in written form, and I commend you for
 3         your patience with the entire public process
 4         that's involved.  I respect you for that.
 5                 I am a year-round resident of Block
 6         Island.  I moved here with my wife who grew up on
 7         Block Island.  I moved here five years ago.  The
 8         house where my wife and I live is inland.  Our
 9         best view is of the airport, it's to the west, so,
10         we always have a sunset.  I will not see the
11         turbines in question from my home.
12                 The view shed issues are largely
13         irrelevant.  I would say, though, that I agree
14         with some of the commenters today.  I find, in my
15         opinion, wind turbines to be beautiful and
16         graceful.  I have thought of one item in favor of
17         this project -- and I am in favor of this
18         project -- that I don't know if it's been raised
19         before.  It may not be strictly in DEM's purview,
20         but I want to put it out there.
21                 I am hoping that when the Block Island
22         Wind Farm is in place and the cable is connected
23         to the mainland and this Island is enjoying the
24         benefits of being part of the New England electric
25         grid, I am looking forward to the Block Island
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 1         Power Company relaxing or eliminating its
 2         restrictions on a small scale, residential scale,
 3         wind and power projects, because my understanding
 4         is that those have been predicated on various
 5         capacity issues.  When we are a part of a larger
 6         grid, they will disappear.  Those issues, I
 7         believe, will disappear.
 8                 I will also say that I think the most
 9         important point I can make today is, it's a given
10         for you folks at the Department of Environmental
11         Management, but I think it may need to be restated
12         for the audience.  DEM and the other agencies that
13         are involved in the permitting process here are
14         charged with making decisions on the basis of
15         science.
16                 Scientific facts, as far as they can be
17         determined, are what should rule the day here.
18         Reliable, verifiable studies, statistics,
19         simulation, read and interpreted fairly, allowing
20         the data to drive the conclusion and not the other
21         way around.  That is what this process that you
22         are involved in regarding the dredging, and the
23         rest of our colleagues in the public process are
24         supposed to be about.
25                 Yes, public opinion is important.  It's
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 1         one of the human factors that is involved here
 2         that needs to be considered in the public
 3         discourse, but I will agree with people we've
 4         heard today who say that irresponsible statistics
 5         and unsupported prejudice on either side of the
 6         issue should be ignored, and they should be
 7         ignored as a matter of law, a matter of law under
 8         the state Administrative Procedure Act.
 9                 That includes my own rhetoric if, per
10         chance, I happen to be wrong about the matter of
11         the restrictions on small scale projects, but I
12         understand DEM's role in this matter is to make a
13         decision on the basis of the best evidence that
14         you have before you.  I was in your shoes.  I
15         worked for five years for the Division of Public
16         Utilities.  I understand the concept of making a
17         an administrative law decision on the basis of the
18         facts and testimony and sworn statements, and I
19         think that the public needs to remember that as
20         well.
21                 I trust that you and your colleagues will
22         do your job to the best of your ability.  If, on
23         the other hand you do not, and some people will
24         regard that you have not regardless of the
25         outcome, that's what the appeals process is for,
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 1         that's what the courts are for but, in my opinion,
 2         the only people who will benefit from that are not
 3         the investors in the project, not the residents
 4         part-time/full-time, or the visitors of Block
 5         Island.  The only people who will benefit from
 6         that are attorneys.  That will serve no one.
 7         Thank you.
 8                 MR. GAGNON:  Martha Ball.
 9                 MS. BALL:  Sorry, we couldn't give you
10         gentlemen a better day.  I'm also sorry I'm late.
11         I missed a lot of this because, ironically, I was
12         on the mainland for a State Tourism Unity
13         Luncheon.  That's why I have my name tag on, in
14         case anybody doesn't know me.  Basically, I really
15         can't say it better than Norris Pike and Millie
16         McGinnis who spoke, when they said their peace.
17         They summed it up for a lot of us who live here,
18         who have always lived here.
19                 I do just want to note a couple of things,
20         though.  One of the things I have found, since the
21         beginning, that's kind of disturbing is when
22         people say, "Well, it's a demonstration project,
23         why should we do that?"  Other people have said,
24         "Why not?"  Rhode Island used to lead the nation.
25         Rhode Island was one of the colonies, and a
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 1         handful of people here will know the answer to
 2         this question only because I ask it every single
 3         year on May 4th.  What's May 4th?
 4                 THE AUDIENCE:  Rhode Island Independence
 5         Day.
 6                 MS. BALL:  Those are the people who listen
 7         to me.  That's right, Rhode Island Independence
 8         Day.  Rhode Island declared independence two
 9         months before the rest of the colonies.  I mean,
10         we have a history of moving ahead and trying to
11         make things better, not just waiting for everybody
12         else to do it.  There's been talk about the cable,
13         which has been kind of interesting to just walk
14         in.  "The cable is really bad, it's going to
15         disrupt everything if it's coming from over.  The
16         cable is really good if it's coming only from the
17         mainland," which makes absolutely no sense when
18         you're talking about disturbance of land.
19                 I would, though, remind everyone and,
20         again, I was reminded of this when I was on the
21         mainland today.  Maybe -- a lot of people don't
22         remember, we didn't always have the big tower up
23         on the hill to get telephone transmission.  Prior
24         to 1958 there was a submarine cable, that's how we
25         got telephone.  So, the total business of bringing
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 1         a cable into Block Island is not anything new, nor
 2         is, obviously, a cable coming from the mainland
 3         because telephone came from somewhere.
 4                 There was only one other thing that I want
 5         to say, and I said this before toward the
 6         beginning of this.  When Cape Wind was approved, I
 7         was reading some comments about eyesores, and
 8         someone from West Virginia said, "I grew up where
 9         coal seams were open and mountains caught on fire,
10         and where rivers ran orange," and if you want an
11         eyesore, give me -- I will show you an eyesore.
12         These turbines are not rivers catching on fire,
13         they're not coal seams burning.  We've really got
14         to look at the big picture.  Thank you.
15                 MR. GAGNON:  Beth Gaffett.
16                 MS. GAFFETT:  Good afternoon, everyone.  I
17         have lived on Block Island all my life minus the
18         20 years I was away, which I don't count.  And,
19         initially, I was kind of on the fence about the
20         wind turbines.  I was, "Maybe, maybe not."  There
21         were things about them that I really liked and
22         there were concerns I had, but as I listened to
23         people, as I listened to concerns about the view
24         shed -- and I kept hearing this over and over
25         again, I started thinking about that.
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 1                 I started thinking about the fact that I
 2         live off a dirt road at the top of High Street and
 3         I have a view of the airport, which isn't bad, it
 4         isn't perfect, and I have a view of a house that's
 5         this tall.  Next to mine it's this tall.  Yeah, I
 6         don't have a view at my house but, you know, I can
 7         walk five minutes to the top of High Street and I
 8         can see across.  So, not having a view -- most
 9         people can get to a view a lot easier than I can.
10                 The other thing is the question about
11         savings.  You know, how are the wind turbines or
12         the cables going to save us on our power bill?  I
13         don't know.  It sounds to me like there's some
14         question about that.  There are people in this
15         room who have lived here all their lives, and
16         there are those of us who left and couldn't wait
17         to come back and, so, if we have some wind
18         turbines up, I can live with that because I'm
19         here.  Thank you.
20                 MR. GAGNON:  Next speaker is Judith
21         Tierney.
22                 MS. TIERNEY:  Judith Tierney
23         (T-i-e-r-n-e-y).  Hi, I'm a year-round resident of
24         Block Island.  I've been here for almost ten
25         years.  I'm the first of my family, but I think my
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 1         protenators (sic) would have come here with their
 2         bundles and opened a rooming house if they could
 3         have.  I am in favor of this exciting alternative
 4         energy project.  I've seen wind turbine farms on
 5         land and in water, in Iowa, in California, in
 6         Denmark and in Germany, and I don't understand why
 7         they would be considered experimental here when
 8         the whole world has been experimenting for us.
 9         It's time for us to change away from fossil fuels.
10                 As for the view, it's not so pristine for
11         some of us.  I look at ugly telephone poles and
12         wires, and I look at cell phone towers out my
13         windows, and I don't see anybody turning in their
14         cell phones so I can have a better view.  I think
15         our power bills here have driven high costs for
16         our school, for our town, for our businesses and
17         for our residents, and if wind can help us, let's
18         harness it.  Thank you.
19                 MR. GAGNON:  Kim Gaffett.
20                 MS. GAFFETT:  I'll be very brief.  First
21         of all, I'd like to say thank you, and I know many
22         people have said thank you to the DEM and Mr.
23         Elliot from the Army Corps of Engineers, but I
24         know that you can never get enough thank yous.
25         Thank you for coming here.
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 1                 I am speaking as an individual, although
 2         I've been a member of the Town Council for a
 3         number of years.  This Town Council, the previous
 4         Town Councils, in fact, each iteration of the Town
 5         Council since this project began have made public
 6         comments and have supported at various times to
 7         both the DEM the Army Corps, CRMC and the various
 8         places, so there's no need to reiterate those
 9         comments by the Town Council.
10                 I speak as an individual, as a person who
11         has lived all -- most of my life.  As an
12         individual, I support this project, and I will
13         hope that some day we will say that the Town
14         Council was not desperate but forward-thinking,
15         and many people have spoken today to the
16         technology, to the resources that make this a good
17         project, and I would just like to adopt their
18         comments.  The comments of Bill Penn and the
19         Emsbos, the Bautes, the Ballards, Jules Craynock,
20         Barbara MacMullen, Mr. Greenman, Norris Pike,
21         Millie McGinnis, Martha Ball, Fred Leeder, just to
22         name a few, all said it much better than I can say
23         it, we're here to make comments.  Those are my
24         comments.
25                 My concerns, I have three concerns, and I
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 1         guess I am truly an optimist because my concerns
 2         have to do with after the project is permitted and
 3         is in place.  I want to make sure that the record
 4         goes forward to say that I'm concerned that the
 5         project will be decommissioned even if it is
 6         working in 20 years, and I know that that is
 7         another part of the process but I, for one, don't
 8         want to see it decommissioned if it is working.
 9                 My second is that I believe that one of
10         the best things -- I was, for a long time, not in
11         favor of a cable to the mainland.  I think there's
12         a lot to be said for Block Island's independence,
13         but we have grown and we need a certain amount of
14         technology.  The best way to accept a cable is if
15         we can be exporting renewable energy to the
16         mainland and continue as much independence as
17         possible.
18                 That means when the grid on the mainland
19         goes down, that we should be able to stay up.  So,
20         I hope that in the future design -- I'm very
21         concerned that the design go in place so that, say
22         the mainland grid goes down, that the wind farm
23         can be tamped down so what is being produced by
24         the wind farm can meet the load of Block Island so
25         that we don't have to be turned down because of
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 1         excess power needing to protect the mainland from
 2         excess power.
 3                 And my other major concern is that I think
 4         it's very important, through this process, that
 5         long-term monitoring, ecological monitoring be put
 6         in place, not for just two years or three years,
 7         ten years, fifteen years.  We are being considered
 8         a demonstration, but all over the world we're
 9         having to find out what are the effects of
10         individual wind turbine farms and the cumulative
11         effects, and the only way we can do that is if
12         there's ecological monitoring fish, wind,
13         migratory paths, birds, both pre-construction,
14         during construction, and post construction.  So,
15         my concerns to you are biological, and they have
16         to do with the future of this project once it is
17         permitted.  Thank you.
18                 MR. GAGNON:  David Chatowsky.
19                 MR. CHATOWSKY:  Hello, thank you for
20         coming to hear whatever everybody has to say.  I'm
21         an artist, a builder, and a naturalist here on
22         Block Island.  I write the cartoon Sea Squad and
23         Sealy that I contribute to the Block Island Times.
24         I built this stockade around the sonar, the
25         machine that Deepwater put out to track the birds
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 1         off the Southeast Light.
 2                 They were concerned about the migratory
 3         patterns of the birds.  I have two things to
 4         say -- well, really three, and one is that a
 5         project of this magnitude, you don't want to rush,
 6         you want to operate on a snail's pace.  That's
 7         number one, is, to operate on a snail's pace.
 8         There should not be any rush, there should not be:
 9         We have to rush because so and so or this or that.
10         That, in my opinion, is wrong.  Don't let anybody
11         rush this project.
12                 The second thing is transparency.
13         Everything should be transparent, the data --
14         there's some brilliant people on this Island, and
15         they have data that conflicts this or that, and
16         the data needs to be transparent.  There can't be
17         anything hidden from this community that would --
18         because of the magnitude of such a project.  So,
19         those are the two issues.  You know, operate on a
20         snail's pace, don't rush.  Have as many meetings
21         as you can.  More meetings, the better.  I don't
22         know why, I mean, there wouldn't be more meetings.
23         I don't know why the community shouldn't have the
24         most say.  It should be constantly talked about
25         and things should be brought out on the table
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 1         because this is a very, very huge project.
 2                 As an artist, and the wind turbines that
 3         I've seen, they typically are white, and I know
 4         that a lot of you are concerned about the view,
 5         and should this project go through, an idea would
 6         be to paint the wind turbines like the color of
 7         that picture, like, that blue, okay.
 8                 I have a beautiful view from the deck
 9         where I live.  I mean, it's absolutely stunningly
10         gorgeous except for three or two black water tanks
11         that I see.  So, my vista, I'll scan and obviously
12         I'll go away from them and I'll write, but it has
13         to do with the color.  If these wind turbines are
14         white, your eyes are going to go directly to them.
15         You know, you're going to look over this beautiful
16         vista of sky blue, ocean view, and then bam, white
17         as snow and there it is, but if you paint them
18         blue, sky blue, they just disappear.
19                 I don't know whether this is going to be a
20         success, but I have only the three things:  Don't
21         rush, it's a mistake to rush.  Operate on a
22         snail's pace, and the more talks you could have,
23         the better.  I think that these ideas are
24         extremely valid.  The cable -- get the stuff out
25         on the table, don't let -- and be transparent.
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 1         This data, if there's any kind of conflicting
 2         ideas about data or anything like that, like a
 3         conflicting -- what's going to happen with these
 4         machines when they get decommissioned?  No, no,
 5         that shouldn't even be on the table.  All that
 6         stuff needs to be worked out ahead of time.  You
 7         can't, like, get into a project.  I don't get into
 8         projects and not think about the end.
 9                 You know, responsible parties -- I'd like
10         to think that I'm a responsible individual, you
11         have everything worked out, you know, you be
12         responsible, we're all responsible.  You don't
13         just leave things unattended for somebody else to
14         deal with.  And, then, think about the color of
15         the wind turbine, and I suggest -- it's just a
16         recommendation -- to paint them sky blue and they
17         could very possibly just disappear.  Thank you.
18                 MR. GAGNON:  That concluded the number of
19         speakers that have signed up.  Is there anyone
20         else that wishes to speak that didn't get a chance
21         to signup.  Excuse me, folks, if we could just
22         remain silent as the speakers continue.
23                 MR. FALLON:  Hello, my name is Bob Fallon,
24         I'm a resident of Block Island for approximately
25         the past ten years but have been coming to the
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 1         Island for about 25 years.  I've been a Rhode
 2         Resident my entire life.  There are some things
 3         that I think you've heard tonight.  I have my back
 4         to the audience because it's you gentlemen that
 5         I'd like to take my message and not necessarily
 6         the people on Block Island.
 7                 I think there are some things that you
 8         need to consider that other people have talked
 9         about.  One person indicated you need to be guided
10         and driven by the science, the statistics, the
11         facts.  I think that's a factor, but not the only
12         factor.  You also need to be driven by the
13         economics of the project, by the community feeling
14         about the project, as well as what I'll call the
15         intangible feeling of the esoteric and the beauty
16         of Block Island which, to me, is one of the most
17         important things.
18                 I also think you need to take into account
19         the politics that have got this project to where
20         it is and the capitalism spirit that has brought
21         the project to where it is.  This is a project
22         that has been brought forward by entrepreneurs who
23         think that they can make money, and that's what
24         their main goal is, is to make a dollar bill here,
25         and they're doing that like any businessmen would,
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 1         using all the resources that they have.
 2                 We've seen them lobby here on Block
 3         Island, we've seen them lobby in the statehouse,
 4         we've seen them lobby before the Public Utilities
 5         Commission.  We've seen the governor support their
 6         initiative, we've seen them lose at the Public
 7         Utilities Commission only to have the legislature
 8         change the rules that the Public Utilities
 9         Commission operates by, to allow the project to go
10         forward.  We've also seen, as part of that same
11         process, these entrepreneurs be able to make
12         assurances in the law that in the future we will
13         be protected.  But, in doing that, we should all
14         keep in mind that we have another boondoggle going
15         on right now in Rhode Island that has its basis in
16         Curt Shilling, the beloved Red Sox patriarch
17         pitcher that we're paying for and will pay for in
18         the future.
19                 One of my main concerns as I fly around
20         the United States these past couple of months
21         since flying down the multiple rivers, the
22         multiple ports that we have looking at the ports,
23         looking at the structures, the docks, the railroad
24         trestles that are left to rot and stay where they
25         are because some business has left them there and
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 1         not taken care of our future.  Kim Gaffett talked
 2         about the future, that's what I'm most concerned
 3         about.
 4                 I was in New York City this weekend and
 5         looked at the destruction that Sandy left.  Along
 6         the shore there are docks and busted concrete that
 7         God only knows who is going take care of it.  My
 8         guess is no one.  When this technology becomes
 9         outmoded, and it will, it will, there will be
10         something better and we have those windmills off
11         the coast.  We have no insurance, despite what the
12         legislation says, that they'll be taken care of,
13         and we all know that legislation can be changed.
14         Our Social Security have been changed.  We've seen
15         laws that are on the books that have been
16         repealed.
17                 I was guaranteed a retirement, they
18         changed that.  All of us have.  So we can't go
19         forward with those guarantees and think that
20         they're replaced forever and to protect us.  On
21         the Island here, we need to make sure that what we
22         have, as Norris Pike pointed out, has to be here
23         for our children, and that includes the view and
24         the vista that we're able to see, as well as
25         having affordable electricity.  I agree with Peter
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 1         that the answer is cable, not a demonstration
 2         project in the ocean that we'll pay for 25 years
 3         from now.  Thank you.
 4                 MR. GAGNON:  Pat Doyle.
 5                 MS. DOYLE:  Good evening, my name is Pat
 6         Doyle and we've owned a home here for 23 years and
 7         have been full-time residents for seven years, and
 8         I sit here this evening taking great pride in this
 9         community.  I count the number, and over 10
10         percent of this town's full-time people, most of
11         them are full-timers, are here expressing views on
12         both sides, and I think that's something that we
13         all need to commend ourselves for.
14                 This issue certainly has divided us.  And,
15         unfortunately, I think some of the words that Dave
16         Chatowsky used has been behind that, the lack of
17         transparency.  Patrick, you said, "Let us go
18         forward and make decisions based on science," and
19         I think we have to.  There's been a lot of
20         emotion, and we talk here about saving the
21         environment, the future of our children, how this
22         demonstration project is really not only going to
23         lower prices but it's going to do these huge --
24         accomplish these huge things.
25                 I sit here tonight thinking what we have
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 1         to ensure is that there's no damage done, and
 2         there are other things beyond even the science for
 3         this Island.  I live in the Historic District and
 4         when we did a major renovation to our home, we
 5         couldn't use a type of product on our windows that
 6         would have been less expensive.  Because we were
 7         in the Historic District, we had to use something
 8         that was visually pleasing.
 9                 We had -- two or three times that we had
10         to go to Historic about what I considered a minor
11         change, but we live on an Island that we love and
12         views are important, not only to us but to the
13         people who look at our home, and we recognize that
14         living in a Historic District put an added burden
15         on us.  Living on an Island such as this that
16         brings tremendous income to the state is in great
17         part -- and you heard many talk about view
18         sheds -- I am not a view shed person.  This is not
19         the view shed that I look at, but I do think for
20         tourism, for the beauty of what attracts people to
21         here, I think it is something that has to be
22         looked at.
23                 So, what did we really learn here tonight?
24         Everyone of us here, there's not environmentalists
25         and non-environmentalists.  Block Islanders came
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 1         here because they love the environment, that's
 2         what brought us all here.  So, for one group to
 3         say "I love it more, I read Friedman, I support
 4         conservation," I think we all do.  Wherever we're
 5         coming from, we're here for that reason, we know
 6         that.  We all want to lower the cost of
 7         electricity on the Island, that's the other given,
 8         and everyone speaks to that.
 9                 We know that a cable is an answer to bring
10         lower costs, and on this particular issue, I think
11         transparency, through the years, has not been
12         there, but we're getting a cable, we can't afford
13         it.  I certain would like to see -- we have to go
14         in that direction, however -- but what we need to
15         know, we know that we're all together in support
16         of the environment.  We need to know how to go
17         about getting lower cost energy in a way that's
18         scientifically the best way to do it.
19                 January 2nd, 2011, I was listening to NBR
20         as I was traveling and they had the President of
21         MIT, a woman, and the director, the publisher, two
22         women speaking about what will this new decade
23         bring in terms of science to this country?  This
24         is going to be positive changes.  They talked
25         about medical and then they talked about energy,
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 1         and there was an extensive conversation about
 2         solar.
 3                 Someone called in and said, "You have not
 4         in the last hour-and-a-half," it was as full day
 5         program "talked about winds," and it was the
 6         President of MIT that said, "I'm not ready to talk
 7         about wind energy as the viable source for this
 8         country at this time."  It's working in Europe
 9         where their availability of the kinds of energy we
10         have here are not, she said, "I will put my money
11         in the future of solar.  We don't have the battery
12         storage yet, we don't have this thing perfected."
13                 I thought that was very, very telling, and
14         I really liked hearing one of our council people,
15         Chris Warfel, who has the science because of his
16         education.  I'm not a scientist, but I really want
17         to depend upon you folks, the DEM folks, to first
18         of all go for the best science, but keeping in
19         mind that there are other issues; the economy and
20         the affordability of the energy, but also to keep
21         our historic and beautiful vista, which we go to
22         great lengths to protect.
23                 We have committee upon committee that
24         tries to keep each one of us in line, not to
25         destroy one slight inch of the vistas that we look
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 1         at that brought us here.  So, thank you for coming
 2         here, and I hope you keep those three things in
 3         mind as you make your decision.
 4                 MR. GAGNON:  Are there any other speakers?
 5         Anyone else that would like to speak?  Do you have
 6         the extended list?
 7                 MR. BIANCULLI:  The problem is, there was
 8         a sign-in sheet and folks may have signed up for
 9         the sign-in sheet, which was the attendance
10         record.  We also had another sheet there that was
11         to provide public comment.  I believe we're
12         getting near the end of the evening, but you can
13         come forward.  Come up to the microphone and just
14         say and spell your name and, then, you can provide
15         comment.
16                 MR. SPIER:  Good evening, John Spier.
17         I'll be brief because as several people have said,
18         other people have stolen my best thoughts and said
19         it better than I could.  Like most of us out here,
20         I wear a number of hats.  One of my hats is sort
21         of on the Housing Board, and as part of our market
22         research for our next project has been sending out
23         questionnaires to Island families that live in
24         housing that we've created through a number of
25         entities.
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 1                 So, this questionnaire is a recurring
 2         theme.  I've been reading them as they come in.
 3         The recurring theme is, "We love our house, we
 4         love living here.  Yes, our mortgage payments are
 5         pretty commensurate with our income but, boy,
 6         those utility bills are killing us.  We have to
 7         rent rooms to pay our utility bills.  I'm just
 8         going to address a few other topics, briefly.
 9                 Construction impacts, look at some of the
10         big projects out there, look at the Panama Canal.
11         If you went today and said, I'm going to bulldoze
12         a path through 50 piles of virgin rain forest,
13         peoples' minds would be blown, okay.  They did it,
14         it's beautiful today and nobody would ever argue
15         that it shouldn't have been done.  So, to me,
16         running a cable through a beach in Narragansett or
17         Charlestown doesn't seem like a big deal.  It will
18         recover.  Nothing is free.
19                 Corporations, sure, Deepwater Wind is a
20         corporation, they're out to make money, that's the
21         American way as people have said.  There's no
22         corporations out there that are warm and fuzzy
23         except, maybe, mine.  History, you know, somebody
24         had mentioned abandoned facilities all over this
25         country.  We have a problem here, we're getting
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 1         our butts kicked by the rest of the world.  In the
 2         1970s, the US was leading the world in wind
 3         energy.  Now, it's either Denmark or China, China
 4         may have passed Denmark.
 5                 That's why we have abandoned facilities,
 6         abandoned shipping, factories, abandoned docks,
 7         okay.  We were innovators in this world for 150 or
 8         200 years, what happened?  Another thing, you
 9         know, what happened?  I grew up in upstate New
10         York, so forty years ago as a kid, you had
11         divisive issues.  My parents were involved, so I
12         was pretty aware.  We had cement factories, we had
13         correctional facilities, we had transfer stations,
14         things that divided communities, and I remember
15         when I was a kid, NIMBY was a bad word.
16                 You didn't want to be a NIMBY, okay, it
17         was an insult.  If you called somebody a NIMBY,
18         you were saying, "You're a selfish ass."  Now,
19         forty years later, I hear people stand up and say,
20         "I'm a NIMBY.  I think alternative energy is
21         great, I don't want it in my backyard.  Yeah, we
22         need a transfer station, but I don't want it in my
23         backyard."  So, what happened, what happened to
24         this country where all of a sudden it's okay,
25         socially, to be selfish and to put your own
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 1         personal needs or desires in front of the good of
 2         the community?  What's the problem there?  On that
 3         note, somebody mentioned the full page ad.  I grew
 4         up with the idea that if you want to say
 5         something, put your name on it.
 6                 MS. DELIA:  It's my name, I thought that
 7         was pretty obvious.
 8                 MR. GANNON:  Just let him finish his --
 9                 MS. DELIA:  Yeah, I will.
10                 MR. SPIER:  It's an organization that
11         purports to be a whole bunch of people, and I
12         don't know who they are, I have a problem with
13         that.  And, lastly, on a positive note, I love
14         islands.  I live on one, I live in a state called
15         Rhode Island.  Most of you know I'm not
16         exaggerating when I say I've seen a lot of islands
17         all over the world, you know, hundreds, maybe
18         thousands.  A lot of them had wind turbines, it is
19         the future to a lot of places.
20                 The Canary Islands, case in point, they're
21         a lot bigger than we are and there's a bunch of
22         them, but they have something in common with us,
23         they don't have coal, they don't have oil, they
24         don't have wood, so, they used to bring in tanker
25         trucks and diesels to run their power.  Well,
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 1         that's unsustainable.  Now they have wind
 2         turbines.  Sailing down the East Coast of the Gran
 3         Canaria, you can see hundreds, maybe thousands of
 4         wind turbines.  They work.  They're not unproven
 5         experimental technology.
 6                 Some of the most beautiful remote islands
 7         in the South Pacific, they have wind turbines so
 8         that they can have some of the things that we take
 9         for granted in the First World.  They can play
10         music, they can access the internet, they can
11         charge their cell phones, they can have light in
12         their house.  They don't mind the wind turbines.
13         A lot of people have spoken very eloquently about
14         what we have to do to change in this world, and
15         I'm not going to reiterate or reverberate on that,
16         I would just like to suggest that we should all
17         work together to be part of the solution.  Thanks.
18                 MR. RESOM:  My name is Sven (S-v-e-n)
19         Resom (R-e-s-o-m).  I've stayed out of the Block
20         Island Times letter writing debacle because we've
21         actually been pretty busy working.  My wife and I
22         run one of the very few year-round businesses on
23         Block Island, the only light industry business on
24         Block Island, which is a manufacturing business.
25         We actually produce something here.
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 1                 We're trying to demonstrate that
 2         year-round businesses can work on Block Island.
 3         As you may know, there are very few in the winter,
 4         and half of the reason is because of the power
 5         costs, and you've got the belief that we're just a
 6         summer community versus a year-round community.
 7         As John expressed, housing and economic costs are
 8         a big issue.  Economic sustainability is a huge
 9         issue on Block Island, and I think the discussion
10         is really coming down to economic sustainability
11         versus view shed.
12                 Many people have talked about tourism.
13         Well, if you actually look at our hotels and the
14         cost of our hotels versus the services that we're
15         providing relative to other destination markets,
16         we're losing our competitive advantage, and a lot
17         of that is because of the energy costs.  We need
18         to figure out how to lower energy costs.  It would
19         be great to have a cable, everybody would love
20         that.  Wouldn't that be ideal?  My son teaches
21         elementary and middle school in Rhode Island, they
22         can't even afford pencils.
23                 So, let's try and figure out where that
24         money for a cable is going to come from, unless we
25         have someone to help us.  Demonstration, we're a
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 1         demonstration business, we're doing everything we
 2         can to demonstrate to Block Island that you can
 3         have a year-round manufacturing operation and be
 4         profitable.  We believe that Deepwater can
 5         demonstrate.  We believe that we can learn and
 6         that we'll allow for year-round businesses on
 7         Block Island.  Truly, I believe this is good for
 8         Block Island.  It will preserve Block Island, and
 9         it will not hurt Block Island.  Thank you.
10                 MR. GAGNON:  Anyone else who hasn't signed
11         up wishes to speak?
12                 MR. LEWIS:  Keith Lewis, I just want to
13         say for the record because there's several,
14         there's different people on the Island that have
15         the same name, I just want to say that I'm not
16         opposed to wind power.  I can't be -- I don't feel
17         I can be an advocate because the current proposal
18         is not in my view.  If it was in my view, then I
19         would think seriously about being an advocate but
20         then, again, in order to be an advocate, I would
21         have to study it a whole lot more to be an honest
22         advocate.
23                 It's very easy to say, no.  I wouldn't
24         feel the necessity to study at all because I know
25         to say, yes, I would want to study more than I
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 1         have, but what holds me back is that the current
 2         proposal is not in my view, so I don't feel I can
 3         be an advocate for someone else's view.  Thank
 4         you.
 5                 MR. LaCOSTE:  Ken LaCoste (L-a-C-o-s-t-e).
 6         I guess one of the words I heard earlier was the
 7         word, perspective, and I think that's an important
 8         word in decisions that your organizations will
 9         have to make.  The perspective of what this
10         project will do to the view sheds of Block Island,
11         the perspective of what it will do to the tourism,
12         and the perspective of what it will look like.  I
13         was a historical archeologist for five years
14         before I became a marine mechanic, and I learned a
15         lot about history and how the landscape changes,
16         and I don't know if you're familiar with the
17         books, they're put out by Bob Downey, they're
18         pictures of the Island.
19                 Historically, the Island has been an
20         evolution of human occupation.  First, it was
21         fully deciduous forest, or forested, it was all
22         cut down, clear cut.  It was farmland.  It evolved
23         into an industry of farmland and tourism and
24         fishing.  Large hotels went up blocking some
25         people's view, obviously, of the ocean.  After the
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 1         hotel -- during that same period they had
 2         windmills, or prior to that period they had
 3         windmills up, relatively large windmills that were
 4         used to create grain.
 5                 After the hotels were built and some of
 6         them still stand, you had a period of decline when
 7         the fishing fleet was wiped out, and it wasn't as
 8         predominant as it was before.  Then, you had a
 9         time period when you had the tower put up for
10         telephones, and all of a sudden large towers were
11         in the view shed.  At some point, Block Island was
12         declared one of the last great places -- one of
13         the last ten great places.  Since that time, we
14         had a large cell phone tower and radio tower put
15         up.  As far as I know, it's still one of the last
16         ten great places, it's a matter of perspective.
17                 Through time, the evolution has evolved.
18         The landscape has evolved, our view shed has
19         evolved, and I think it's something that this,
20         too, will evolve.  Another perspective is a matter
21         of time.  I'm thinking, from what I understand,
22         the towers, the expected life of these wind
23         turbines is 20 years.  The expected life of the
24         cable is somewhere around 50 years.  Almost 20
25         years ago I quit the rescue squad after being on


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500







Page 109


 1         it for 10 years.  14 years ago my son went into
 2         boot camp on his 18th birthday.  That time passes
 3         so quickly.
 4                 Once these are put up, time will pass.
 5         They will either be very effective, they'll be
 6         very successful or they won't be, but if they're
 7         not, I just want to make sure that you folks do
 8         what you have to do to ensure that the money will
 9         be there to take them down when the time comes,
10         whether it be because of obsolescence, whether it
11         be because of damage, whether it be because they
12         just don't work.  I'm in favor of the wind farm,
13         but I want to make sure that you and we make sure
14         that the money is there at the proper time,
15         whether it be early in the project or late in the
16         project to take them down when and, if necessary,
17         because after that 20-year period they're going to
18         be gone, that's it, and we're going to go back to,
19         you know, the way it was, and I just want to make
20         sure that the money is there to take it down.
21         Thank you for coming.
22                 MR. GAGNON:  Are there any further
23         speakers?  If not, we can conclude the public
24         hearing, and thank you everyone for coming
25         tonight.
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 1                 THE AUDIENCE:  Thank you.
 2                 (HEARING CONCLUDED AT 7:55 P.M.)
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 1                        C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N
 2         STATE OF RHODE ISLAND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS
           PROVIDENCE, SC.
 3
 4                 I, SALLY BRASSARD, do hereby certify that
 5         the foregoing is a true, accurate, and complete
 6         transcript of my notes taken at the above-entitled
 7         proceeding.
 8                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
 9         hand this 30th day of May, 2013.
10
11
12
13
14                          ________________________________
                            SALLY BRASSARD, CSR/RPR
15                          NOTARY PUBLIC
                            MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:  1/16/17
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


Allied Court Reporters, Inc. (401)946-5500





		Index

		$

		$1,600 (2)

		$12 (1)

		$125 (2)

		$2 (4)

		$200 (1)

		$4 (1)

		$400 (1)

		$800 (1)



		1

		1,800 (1)

		1,900 (1)

		1/2 (2)

		10 (6)

		100 (2)

		120 (1)

		13 (1)

		13,210 (1)

		130 (1)

		14 (1)

		150 (1)

		16 (1)

		17 (1)

		18th (1)

		1919 (1)

		1958 (1)

		1970s (1)

		1991 (1)

		19th (1)



		2

		2,000 (4)

		20 (13)

		20-year (1)

		200 (3)

		2007 (1)

		2008 (1)

		2009 (1)

		2010 (2)

		2011 (1)

		2012 (2)

		2013 (3)

		2020 (2)

		20th (1)

		22nd (1)

		23 (2)

		24 (1)

		24/7 (1)

		25 (5)

		27 (1)

		28 (1)

		29 (1)

		2nd (1)



		3

		3 (2)

		3.16 (1)

		30 (4)

		32 (3)

		35 (1)

		35-year (1)

		365 (2)

		37 (1)

		38 (1)

		3rd (1)



		4

		4 (3)

		40 (9)

		400 (2)

		4111 (1)

		42 (1)

		42-35 (1)

		43.9 (1)

		4th (2)



		5

		5 (1)

		50 (5)

		58 (1)

		5:08 (2)



		6

		60 (1)

		600 (1)

		660 (1)

		660-foot (2)

		670 (1)

		6:30 (1)



		7

		71 (1)

		75 (1)

		76 (1)

		7:55 (1)



		8

		8 (1)

		84 (2)

		89 (1)



		9

		9 (1)

		90 (1)

		91 (1)



		A

		Abacus (1)

		abandoned (4)

		ability (1)

		able (13)

		above (1)

		absolutely (2)

		abutters' (1)

		accept (5)

		access (1)

		accomplish (1)

		accordance (2)

		account (1)

		accounting (1)

		accurately (1)

		acknowledged (1)

		acquire (1)

		acres (1)

		across (1)

		Act (2)

		Act's (1)

		active (2)

		actively (1)

		activities (1)

		actual (1)

		actually (9)

		ad (1)

		added (1)

		addition (1)

		address (4)

		addressed (2)

		addressing (1)

		administration (1)

		Administrative (3)

		admitted (1)

		adopt (1)

		adult (1)

		advantage (1)

		adventure (1)

		advocate (5)

		affair (1)

		affect (2)

		affected (2)

		affecting (1)

		affects (1)

		afford (5)

		affordability (1)

		affordable (1)

		affront (1)

		afraid (1)

		afternoon (4)

		again (14)

		against (3)

		agencies (2)

		agent (1)

		ago (16)

		agree (4)

		agreement (2)

		ahead (3)

		ain't (1)

		air (1)

		airport (2)

		albatross (1)

		algae (1)

		allayed (1)

		allocate (1)

		allow (3)

		allowing (2)

		alluded (2)

		almost (6)

		alone (1)

		along (6)

		alternative (9)

		although (2)

		altruism (4)

		always (4)

		amazing (1)

		America (4)

		American (1)

		ammonia (2)

		among (1)

		amount (7)

		amounts (1)

		analysis (8)

		analyze (1)

		analyzed (2)

		animal (1)

		animals (1)

		announce (1)

		announced (1)

		annually (1)

		anonymous (1)

		answered (1)

		anthropological (1)

		anti-Christ (1)

		anymore (2)

		apparent (1)

		appeal (1)

		appeals (1)

		appearance (3)

		appears (1)

		applauded (1)

		application (6)

		apply (1)

		appreciate (3)

		appropriate (1)

		approved (1)

		approximately (5)

		April (1)

		archeologist (1)

		architecture (1)

		Arctic (1)

		area (5)

		areas (2)

		argue (4)

		arguing (1)

		arguments (2)

		aristocracy (2)

		Army (7)

		around (15)

		arrogance (1)

		article (2)

		artist (2)

		Asia (1)

		aspects (1)

		ass (1)

		assessment (1)

		assets (1)

		Assistance (1)

		assurances (1)

		assure (1)

		astounded (1)

		ate (1)

		Atlantic (2)

		atmosphere (1)

		attendance (2)

		attitude (1)

		attorneys (1)

		attracts (1)

		audience (7)

		authority (1)

		availability (1)

		average (1)

		avoided (1)

		awake (1)

		awarded (1)

		aware (3)

		awareness (1)

		away (9)

		awesome (1)



		B

		B-a-u-t-e (1)

		baby (1)

		back (11)

		background (1)

		Backyard (3)

		bad (8)

		bag (1)

		Ball (4)

		Ballard (3)

		Ballards (1)

		bam (1)

		Barbara (3)

		based (2)

		Basically (1)

		basis (6)

		battery (1)

		Baute (3)

		Baute's (1)

		Bautes (1)

		beach (6)

		beaches (4)

		beautiful (16)

		beauty (6)

		became (1)

		becomes (2)

		began (3)

		begin (1)

		beginning (4)

		beginnings (1)

		behalf (1)

		behavior (1)

		behind (4)

		belief (1)

		bells (1)

		beloved (1)

		below (2)

		bend (1)

		benefit (13)

		benefits (9)

		bent (1)

		best (17)

		Beth (1)

		bets (1)

		better (14)

		beyond (2)

		Bianculli (7)

		big (17)

		bigger (2)

		Bill (15)

		bills (12)

		biological (1)

		BIPCO (3)

		BIPCO's (1)

		BIRA (2)

		birds (8)

		birth (1)

		birthday (1)

		bit (4)

		black (2)

		blades (4)

		blame (1)

		Blane (2)

		bless (1)

		blessing (1)

		blind-sided (1)

		Block (94)

		blocking (1)

		blown (1)

		blows (1)

		blue (6)

		bluff (1)

		Bluffs (9)

		Board (6)

		boats (1)

		Bob (2)

		book (3)

		books (4)

		boom (1)

		boondoggle (2)

		boost (1)

		boot (1)

		booze (2)

		both (8)

		bother (1)

		bothered (2)

		bothers (1)

		bottom (3)

		boy (1)

		boys (1)

		breath (1)

		breeding (2)

		brief (5)

		briefly (8)

		brilliant (1)

		bring (7)

		bringing (1)

		brings (3)

		broadband (1)

		Brothers (1)

		brought (5)

		Bruce (1)

		Bryce (1)

		Bud (2)

		budget (1)

		bugs (1)

		build (3)

		builder (1)

		building (3)

		built (9)

		Bulger (1)

		bulk (1)

		bulldoze (1)

		bunch (2)

		bundles (1)

		burden (1)

		burn (2)

		burning (4)

		burying (2)

		business (9)

		businesses (10)

		businessmen (1)

		busted (1)

		busy (1)

		butchered (1)

		butts (1)

		buy (1)

		buying (4)



		C

		C-o-m-e-a-u (1)

		C-r-a-y-n-o-c-k (1)

		cable (44)

		cables (3)

		calculating (1)

		calculation (2)

		calculations (1)

		California (1)

		call (7)

		called (8)

		calling (1)

		came (13)

		camp (1)

		can (76)

		Canal (1)

		Canaria (1)

		Canary (1)

		cancer (2)

		Canyon (1)

		capacity (1)

		Cape (2)

		capitalism (1)

		capitalist (1)

		capitalists (1)

		capitulate (1)

		carbon (6)

		Carcieri (3)

		card (1)

		cardboard (2)

		care (10)

		career (1)

		carried (1)

		cars (2)

		cartoon (1)

		case (3)

		cash (1)

		catching (1)

		caught (2)

		cause (1)

		causing (1)

		cell (6)

		cement (1)

		cents (2)

		CEO (1)

		certain (5)

		certainly (4)

		Certificate (1)

		cessation (1)

		cetera (4)

		Chair (1)

		chairman (5)

		challenged (1)

		chance (10)

		Change (14)

		changed (3)

		changes (3)

		changing (2)

		Chapel (1)

		Chapter (2)

		charge (2)

		charged (1)

		Charlestown (2)

		Chatowsky (3)

		check (2)

		Chief (1)

		children (11)

		children's (2)

		China (5)

		choose (2)

		chose (2)

		chosen (1)

		Chris (1)

		Christopher (3)

		chunks (1)

		City (1)

		civil (1)

		claim (1)

		claimed (1)

		clarity (1)

		clause (2)

		clean (2)

		cleaner (2)

		clear (3)

		clearly (4)

		climate (2)

		clock (1)

		close (1)

		closer (1)

		clothes (1)

		clout (1)

		co-op (1)

		CO2 (2)

		Coal (4)

		Coast (9)

		coastal (2)

		codfish (2)

		cofferdams (2)

		coin (1)

		colleagues (2)

		colonies (2)

		color (3)

		Comeau (4)

		comedy (1)

		comfortable (1)

		coming (26)

		COMMENCED (1)

		commend (2)

		commensurate (1)

		comment (7)

		commentary (1)

		commenters (1)

		comments (31)

		Commission (7)

		commissioners (1)

		commitment (2)

		committed (1)

		committee (5)

		common (1)

		communication (1)

		communism (1)

		communities (3)

		community (20)

		companies (2)

		Company (11)

		compare (2)

		compensation (1)

		competing (1)

		competitive (1)

		complained (1)

		complains (1)

		complaint (1)

		complaints (1)

		complete (1)

		completed (3)

		completely (1)

		compliments (1)

		Compton (2)

		computer (2)

		Computers (1)

		concept (2)

		concern (2)

		concerned (6)

		concerning (2)

		concerns (13)

		conclude (1)

		concluded (2)

		conclusion (2)

		concrete (1)

		condition (1)

		conduct (1)

		conducted (2)

		conflicting (2)

		conflicts (1)

		connected (1)

		cons (1)

		consensus (1)

		conservancy (2)

		conservation (5)

		conserve (1)

		consider (4)

		considered (6)

		constant (2)

		constantly (1)

		construction (8)

		consultant (2)

		consulting (1)

		consumed (1)

		consumer (1)

		consuming (2)

		consumption (2)

		context (2)

		continue (11)

		continuing (1)

		contract (1)

		contracting (1)

		contractor (1)

		contribute (1)

		contributing (1)

		contributions (1)

		conversation (1)

		conversations (1)

		convey (1)

		convinced (2)

		cooperation (1)

		Copenhagen (2)

		copies (1)

		copper (1)

		corporation (1)

		corporations (3)

		Corps (8)

		corrected (1)

		correctional (1)

		cost (23)

		costs (7)

		cottage (3)

		cottages (2)

		Council (26)

		Councilors (1)

		Councils (1)

		count (3)

		countries (1)

		country (11)

		County (1)

		couple (4)

		coupled (1)

		course (5)

		courts (1)

		COVEN (1)

		cows (1)

		crack (1)

		craft (1)

		crappy (2)

		crates (1)

		Craynock (4)

		create (1)

		created (1)

		credentials (1)

		criteria (1)

		critical (3)

		CRMC (1)

		Crowded (1)

		crying (1)

		cumulative (1)

		curious (1)

		current (3)

		currently (2)

		Curt (1)

		Customer (1)

		customers (2)

		cut (3)

		cut-in (1)

		cute (1)

		cynicism (2)



		D

		D-e-l-i-a (1)

		damage (5)

		damaged (1)

		damn (4)

		Danes (1)

		Danish (3)

		data (9)

		dated (1)

		daughter (1)

		Dave (1)

		David (1)

		day (12)

		days (2)

		DB (4)

		dead (3)

		deal (2)

		dearly (1)

		debacle (1)

		debate (2)

		debated (1)

		debating (1)

		decade (1)

		December (1)

		decided (1)

		deciduous (1)

		decipher (1)

		decision (3)

		decisions (3)

		deck (1)

		declared (2)

		decline (1)

		declined (1)

		decommissioned (3)

		Deepwater (37)

		deer (1)

		definitely (1)

		Delia (5)

		delivered (2)

		delivering (1)

		DEM (20)

		DEM's (2)

		Democratic (1)

		demolish (1)

		demolition (1)

		demonstrate (4)

		demonstration (9)

		denied (1)

		Denmark (16)

		deny (2)

		Department (5)

		Department's (2)

		depend (3)

		dependent (3)

		depressed (1)

		descendants (1)

		described (1)

		design (2)

		designated (1)

		desires (1)

		desk (1)

		desperate (3)

		despite (1)

		destination (1)

		destroy (2)

		destruction (3)

		Detailed (1)

		details (2)

		determination (1)

		determine (3)

		determined (1)

		develop (1)

		developed (1)

		developing (3)

		development (2)

		dialogue (1)

		Dick (3)

		die (2)

		died (1)

		diesel (10)

		diesels (2)

		different (8)

		difficult (3)

		digress (1)

		dinner (2)

		dioxide (4)

		direction (5)

		directional (1)

		directly (2)

		director (1)

		dirt (1)

		disagree (2)

		disappear (4)

		disaster (1)

		disastrous (1)

		disbelieve (1)

		disclosure (1)

		discontinuing (2)

		discounts (1)

		discourse (1)

		discussion (2)

		discussions (1)

		display (1)

		displays (1)

		disrupt (1)

		distance (1)

		distribution (1)

		District (3)

		disturbance (3)

		disturbing (2)

		divide (1)

		divided (4)

		divides (1)

		dividing (2)

		Division (1)

		divisive (1)

		Docket (2)

		docks (3)

		Dodge (1)

		dog (1)

		dollar (1)

		dollars (5)

		dominating (1)

		done (13)

		doomsayers (1)

		door (1)

		Doreen (4)

		down (38)

		Downey (1)

		downstream (1)

		downwind (1)

		Doyle (6)

		Dr (4)

		dramatic (1)

		drawbacks (2)

		dreams (1)

		Dredge (3)

		Dredging (3)

		drilling (4)

		drive (3)

		driven (3)

		drivers (2)

		driving (3)

		drove (1)

		due (1)

		duffle (1)

		dumping (2)

		DuPont (3)

		during (3)

		dwell (1)

		dynamics (1)



		E

		E-E-A-R-T-H (1)

		E-m-s-b-o (1)

		earlier (1)

		early (2)

		earth (2)

		easier (4)

		easily (1)

		East (3)

		easy (4)

		echoed (1)

		ecological (2)

		economic (14)

		economically (2)

		economics (1)

		economy (7)

		edge (1)

		Edith (1)

		education (1)

		Edwards (1)

		EEARTH (1)

		effect (1)

		effective (1)

		effects (5)

		efficiency (1)

		efficient (1)

		effort (1)

		efforts (1)

		eggs (1)

		eight (2)

		either (6)

		elapsed (1)

		elderly (1)

		elected (1)

		electric (14)

		electrical (5)

		electricity (22)

		elementary (1)

		eleven (1)

		eliminating (1)

		elimination (1)

		Elliot (5)

		eloquently (1)

		else (8)

		else's (2)

		Emandi (1)

		embrace (2)

		embraced (3)

		emission (4)

		emissions (6)

		emit (1)

		emitted (1)

		emotion (2)

		emotionally (1)

		emphasis (1)

		Emsbo (6)

		Emsbos (1)

		enamored (1)

		encourage (2)

		end (5)

		ends (1)

		energy (56)

		engineer (2)

		engineering (1)

		Engineers (4)

		engines (1)

		England (8)

		enjoy (1)

		enjoyed (1)

		enjoying (1)

		enormous (5)

		enough (10)

		ensure (2)

		enter (2)

		entire (5)

		entirely (3)

		entirety (1)

		entities (2)

		entitled (1)

		entrance (1)

		entrepreneurs (2)

		environment (11)

		Environmental (21)

		environmentalist (2)

		environmentalists (1)

		environmentally (1)

		equipment (2)

		error (9)

		escalator (2)

		esoteric (1)

		especially (3)

		essence (1)

		essentially (2)

		estate (1)

		Estes (1)

		estimate (1)

		estimation (1)

		et (4)

		Europe (4)

		European (3)

		Europeans (1)

		evaluate (1)

		even (12)

		evening (7)

		eventually (1)

		Everybody (12)

		everyone (10)

		evidence (2)

		evil (1)

		evolution (2)

		evolve (1)

		evolved (4)

		exactly (2)

		exaggerating (1)

		examine (1)

		example (4)

		examples (1)

		excavation (1)

		excellent (1)

		except (2)

		excerpt (1)

		excess (2)

		excited (1)

		exciting (1)

		excuse (5)

		expect (2)

		expected (2)

		expensive (7)

		experience (6)

		experienced (1)

		experiment (3)

		experimental (6)

		experimenting (1)

		experiments (1)

		expert (2)

		exporting (1)

		expressed (2)

		expressing (1)

		extended (3)

		extensive (2)

		extraordinarily (1)

		extremely (2)

		eye-to-eye (1)

		eyes (1)

		eyesore (2)

		eyesores (1)



		F

		face (1)

		facet (1)

		facilities (4)

		facing (1)

		fact (9)

		factor (4)

		factories (2)

		factors (1)

		facts (4)

		factual (1)

		fail (3)

		fails (1)

		fair (2)

		fairly (1)

		fairness (1)

		fall (1)

		falling (1)

		Fallon (2)

		familiar (3)

		families (1)

		family (5)

		famous (1)

		far (10)

		farm (21)

		farmland (2)

		farms (8)

		fault (2)

		favor (12)

		favorable (1)

		favored (1)

		fear (1)

		fears (1)

		feasible (3)

		federal (1)

		Feds (1)

		feel (13)

		feeling (2)

		feelings (1)

		feet (2)

		felt (2)

		fence (1)

		ferry (1)

		fertilizer (1)

		few (15)

		field (2)

		fifteen (1)

		fifth (2)

		fight (2)

		fighting (1)

		figure (2)

		figures (1)

		final (1)

		finally (1)

		finance (1)

		finances (1)

		financial (5)

		financially (1)

		find (12)

		fine (2)

		finger (1)

		finish (1)

		fire (4)

		firm (2)

		first (28)

		fiscal (1)

		fish (11)

		fishermen (2)

		fishing (6)

		fit (1)

		five (19)

		five-minute (1)

		fix (5)

		fixed (1)

		flashing (1)

		Flat (1)

		flawed (1)

		fleet (1)

		Flicker (1)

		flipped (1)

		floor (4)

		flounder (1)

		fluctuate (1)

		fly (1)

		flying (1)

		focus (3)

		focusing (1)

		foghorns (4)

		Folks (10)

		follow (2)

		follow-up (1)

		followed (1)

		follows (1)

		fooling (1)

		foolproof (1)

		fools (2)

		foot (1)

		footprint (1)

		footprints (1)

		forbid (2)

		Force (1)

		forefront (1)

		foreseeable (1)

		forest (2)

		forested (1)

		forever (3)

		forgetting (1)

		form (2)

		former (1)

		Formerly (1)

		forms (1)

		forth (2)

		forthcoming (1)

		fortunate (2)

		fortune (1)

		forty (2)

		forum (1)

		forward (17)

		forward-thinking (1)

		fossil (5)

		fought (1)

		found (4)

		four (2)

		fourth (2)

		fragile (2)

		fragility (1)

		Franklin (1)

		Fred (3)

		free (1)

		fricking (1)

		Friedman (1)

		Friedman's (1)

		friend (1)

		friends (3)

		fringes (1)

		front (2)

		fuel (8)

		fuels (3)

		Full (11)

		full-time (4)

		full-timers (1)

		fully (3)

		function (1)

		fund (4)

		funds (1)

		fungus (1)

		further (2)

		future (18)

		fuzzy (1)



		G

		G-r-e-e-n-m-a-n (1)

		Gaffett (5)

		GAGNON (38)

		gallon (1)

		gallons (2)

		gamut (1)

		GANNON (1)

		gas (2)

		gases (2)

		Gates (1)

		gathered (1)

		gave (1)

		Gazazza (2)

		General (3)

		generate (1)

		generated (4)

		generation (12)

		generations (2)

		generators (3)

		genre (1)

		gentlemen (4)

		geographic (1)

		geometric (1)

		George (1)

		Germany (1)

		Gerry (1)

		giants (1)

		gigantic (1)

		gigawatts (2)

		Gilpin (2)

		given (3)

		giving (4)

		global (5)

		globally (1)

		globe (2)

		goal (1)

		gobble (1)

		God (4)

		goes (8)

		good (31)

		gorgeous (1)

		government (4)

		Governor (6)

		graceful (1)

		gracious (1)

		graduated (1)

		grain (1)

		Gran (1)

		grandchildren (4)

		granted (1)

		graph (1)

		graphic (1)

		graphs (1)

		grasped (1)

		grave (1)

		gray (1)

		great (24)

		greater (1)

		greatly (4)

		greenhouse (3)

		GREENMAN (3)

		grew (6)

		grid (11)

		ground (1)

		grounds (5)

		group (5)

		groups (4)

		grown (1)

		Grybowski (1)

		guaranteed (1)

		guarantees (1)

		Guard (2)

		guess (6)

		guessing (1)

		guided (1)

		guise (1)

		guys (2)



		H

		half (1)

		half-a-billion (1)

		half-a-mile (1)

		Hall (2)

		hand (3)

		handful (1)

		handwriting (2)

		hanging (1)

		happen (10)

		happened (7)

		happening (3)

		happens (3)

		happy (2)

		harbor (1)

		hard (3)

		hardship (1)

		harness (1)

		hats (2)

		Haven (1)

		Hawk (1)

		head-on (1)

		heads (1)

		health (4)

		hear (5)

		heard (18)

		HEARING (19)

		hearings (3)

		heart (1)

		heck (1)

		hedge (5)

		held (2)

		hell (1)

		Hello (4)

		help (8)

		helped (2)

		hence (1)

		Henry (2)

		heroes (2)

		hey (1)

		Hi (2)

		hidden (1)

		high (4)

		higher (5)

		highest (1)

		highlight (1)

		hill (1)

		historic (10)

		historical (1)

		historically (2)

		history (4)

		hit (1)

		hits (1)

		hobble (1)

		hold (1)

		holding (1)

		holds (1)

		hole (1)

		holiday (5)

		home (7)

		homeowner (1)

		homeowners (1)

		homework (1)

		honest (1)

		hope (14)

		hopefully (3)

		hoping (2)

		horrible (1)

		horses (1)

		Hot (1)

		hotel (1)

		hotels (4)

		hour-and-a-half (1)

		house (8)

		houses (1)

		Housing (3)

		huge (6)

		human (2)

		humble (1)

		hundreds (2)

		hurricane (2)

		hurt (4)

		husband (1)



		I

		ice (1)

		idea (3)

		ideal (1)

		ideas (3)

		identified (2)

		ignored (2)

		ignoring (2)

		illumination (1)

		imagine (2)

		immense (3)

		impact (24)

		impacted (2)

		impacts (5)

		importance (1)

		important (15)

		impossibility (1)

		improved (2)

		improvement (1)

		in-laws (1)

		inaccurately (1)

		Inc (1)

		inch (1)

		includes (2)

		including (1)

		income (2)

		incompatible (1)

		incomplete (1)

		inconsiderate (1)

		incorrect (3)

		incorrectly (1)

		increase (1)

		increased (1)

		Independence (5)

		Independent (1)

		index (1)

		Indian (1)

		indicate (1)

		indicated (1)

		indicates (1)

		indigenous (2)

		indirectly (1)

		individual (8)

		individuals (1)

		industrial (5)

		industrialization (1)

		industrialized (1)

		industry (4)

		infinite (1)

		inflation (2)

		information (6)

		infrastructure (2)

		initially (1)

		initials (1)

		initiative (1)

		inland (1)

		innovation (1)

		innovators (1)

		insight (1)

		inspire (1)

		installation (2)

		installed (1)

		installing (2)

		instantaneous (1)

		instead (4)

		insult (1)

		insurance (4)

		insured (1)

		intangible (1)

		integrity (1)

		intended (1)

		intent (1)

		intention (1)

		intentions (1)

		interest (1)

		interested (1)

		interesting (3)

		international (1)

		Internet (2)

		interpreted (1)

		interruption (1)

		into (14)

		introduced (1)

		introduction (1)

		invested (1)

		investigated (1)

		investing (1)

		investment (2)

		investors (3)

		invited (1)

		involved (9)

		Iowa (1)

		ironically (1)

		irrelevant (2)

		irresponsible (2)

		Island (178)

		Island's (4)

		Islanders (1)

		islands (4)

		ISO-New (3)

		isolated (2)

		isolation (1)

		issue (9)

		issues (16)

		item (2)

		iteration (1)



		J

		Jamestown (2)

		Jane (2)

		January (1)

		Jeff (1)

		jeopardize (1)

		Jersey-based (1)

		job (4)

		jobs (3)

		John (2)

		Jorgen (3)

		jotted (1)

		journalist (1)

		joy (1)

		Judith (4)

		Jules (3)

		July (1)

		jump (1)

		jumped (1)

		jumping (1)

		justify (1)

		Justin (1)

		Jutland (1)



		K

		Kay (2)

		keep (7)

		keeping (2)

		Keith (1)

		Kelly (3)

		Ken (1)

		kept (1)

		kicked (1)

		kicks (1)

		kid (2)

		kids (1)

		kill (1)

		killing (1)

		kilowatt (1)

		Kim (2)

		kind (9)

		kinds (1)

		Kitty (1)

		knew (1)

		knowing (1)

		knowledgeable (1)

		known (1)

		knows (4)



		L

		L-a-C-o-s-t-e (1)

		labor (1)

		lack (1)

		LaCoste (2)

		laggers (1)

		land (8)

		landfall (1)

		landing (1)

		landscape (2)

		large (5)

		largely (2)

		larger (1)

		largest (1)

		larvae (1)

		Lasser (1)

		last (14)

		Lastly (4)

		late (2)

		later (5)

		latest (2)

		laudable (1)

		law (4)

		Laws (2)

		lead (4)

		leader (1)

		leaders (2)

		leading (2)

		learn (2)

		learned (2)

		least (2)

		leave (3)

		Leeder (4)

		left (8)

		Legal (1)

		legislate (1)

		legislated (1)

		legislation (3)

		legislature (3)

		lengths (1)

		Lens (1)

		less (3)

		lesson (2)

		letter (7)

		letters (1)

		level (2)

		levels (1)

		Lewis (5)

		libraries (1)

		life (17)

		life-long (1)

		lifeline (1)

		lifetime (4)

		Light (13)

		lightening (1)

		Lighthouse (5)

		Lighthouses (2)

		lights (4)

		liked (2)

		limit (1)

		limited (1)

		limiting (1)

		Linda (2)

		line (3)

		list (1)

		listen (7)

		listened (4)

		listening (6)

		literally (1)

		little (14)

		Littlefield (1)

		live (25)

		lived (8)

		lives (6)

		living (7)

		LLC (3)

		load (3)

		lobby (4)

		lobbyists (1)

		local (2)

		locally (1)

		located (1)

		location (2)

		logical (1)

		long (9)

		long-term (1)

		longer (3)

		longest (1)

		look (33)

		looked (6)

		looking (11)

		Lookouts (1)

		lose (1)

		losery (1)

		losing (1)

		loss (1)

		lot (39)

		lots (3)

		love (11)

		lovers (1)

		low (1)

		lower (5)

		lowering (1)

		lowest (4)

		Luncheon (1)



		M

		M-a-c-M-u-l-l-a-n (1)

		M-a-r-t-i-n (1)

		M-c-G-a-r-r-y (1)

		M-c-G-i-n-n-i-s (1)

		machine (1)

		machinery (1)

		machines (1)

		MacMULLAN (2)

		MacMullen (1)

		magazine (1)

		Maggie (2)

		magnitude (2)

		mailed (1)

		main (2)

		mainland (28)

		maintain (2)

		major (5)

		makes (1)

		making (4)

		man (1)

		man-made (1)

		Management (4)

		Management's (1)

		mansions (1)

		manufacturing (2)

		many (20)

		March (1)

		marginal (1)

		Marianne (1)

		marine (3)

		Mark (1)

		market (3)

		markets (1)

		Martha (2)

		Martin (4)

		massive (4)

		match (1)

		Materials (1)

		mathematical (1)

		matter (8)

		May (13)

		maybe (13)

		McGarry (4)

		McGarrys (1)

		McGinnis (7)

		McKennon (1)

		meal (1)

		mean (8)

		meaningful (1)

		means (6)

		meant (1)

		mechanic (1)

		med (1)

		medical (2)

		meet (3)

		meeting (4)

		meetings (3)

		megawatts (1)

		melting (1)

		member (11)

		members (8)

		mentioned (4)

		mess (2)

		message (1)

		messed (1)

		met (1)

		Michael (4)

		microphone (2)

		middle (3)

		might (8)

		migratory (2)

		mile-an-hour (1)

		miles (6)

		milk (1)

		Millie (4)

		million (8)

		millionaire (1)

		millions (2)

		mimic (1)

		mind (5)

		minded (1)

		minds (1)

		mine (2)

		minimize (1)

		minor (1)

		minus (1)

		minute (2)

		minutely (1)

		minutes (3)

		misrepresented (1)

		missed (1)

		mistake (1)

		mistakes (5)

		MIT (2)

		mitigate (1)

		mitigated (1)

		mixed (1)

		mocking (1)

		Mohegan (3)

		money (22)

		monitor (1)

		monitoring (3)

		month (8)

		monthly (1)

		months (5)

		mopeds (1)

		more (37)

		mortgage (1)

		most (29)

		mountain (1)

		mountains (1)

		mountainsides (1)

		mouth (1)

		move (2)

		moved (4)

		moving (3)

		much (30)

		multiple (2)

		municipality (1)

		music (1)

		must (8)

		Mya (1)

		myself (8)

		mysteries (1)

		mystery (1)



		N

		N-a-p-o-l-e-o-n-e (1)

		nails (1)

		name (32)

		names (2)

		Napoleone (4)

		Narragansett (11)

		narrow (1)

		nation (2)

		National (6)

		nationally (1)

		natural (2)

		naturalist (1)

		nature (3)

		NBR (1)

		near (1)

		necessarily (3)

		necessary (3)

		necessity (1)

		need (35)

		needed (1)

		needing (1)

		needs (6)

		negative (3)

		negatives (1)

		negotiations (1)

		neighborhood (1)

		neighbors (1)

		New (20)

		Newport (1)

		newspaper (1)

		Next (21)

		night (3)

		nights (1)

		NIMBY (5)

		nitrous (2)

		NOAA (1)

		nobody (5)

		noise (3)

		non-environmentalists (1)

		non-for-profit (1)

		non-voting (1)

		none (2)

		nor (1)

		Norris (5)

		North (4)

		note (7)

		noted (3)

		Notice (1)

		noticed (1)

		notices (1)

		NOx (1)

		NSL (1)

		nuclear (2)

		number (12)

		numbers (2)



		O

		objection (2)

		objections (2)

		observation (2)

		observations (1)

		obsolescence (1)

		obvious (1)

		Obviously (4)

		occupation (1)

		occur (1)

		occurred (1)

		ocean (11)

		oceanographer (1)

		October (1)

		off (17)

		offered (1)

		offering (2)

		Office (6)

		offset (2)

		offshore (14)

		Offstiff (1)

		often (1)

		oil (3)

		old (4)

		once (4)

		one (60)

		one's (1)

		ones (2)

		only (34)

		open (1)

		opened (2)

		opening (1)

		operate (6)

		operated (1)

		operates (1)

		operation (3)

		operational (1)

		opinion (12)

		opinions (1)

		opponents (1)

		opportunity (7)

		oppose (1)

		opposed (8)

		optimist (1)

		option (2)

		orange (1)

		order (4)

		organization (1)

		organizations (2)

		original (2)

		originally (1)

		other's (1)

		others (2)

		otherwise (1)

		ought (1)

		Ours (1)

		ourselves (3)

		out (72)

		outcome (2)

		outer (1)

		outlaws (1)

		outlook (1)

		outmoded (1)

		output (1)

		outrageous (2)

		outside (2)

		over (31)

		overall (4)

		override (1)

		overriding (1)

		overstate (1)

		overstatement (1)

		overstates (1)

		overwhelming (1)

		overwhelmingly (1)

		own (10)

		owned (2)

		owner (1)

		owners (7)

		oxide (2)

		ozone (2)



		P

		pace (4)

		Pacific (2)

		page (2)

		paid (1)

		paint (3)

		Panama (1)

		panel (1)

		Papalitas (1)

		paper (5)

		parents (1)

		Park (3)

		parking (1)

		parks (2)

		part (13)

		part-time/full-time (1)

		particular (1)

		particularly (1)

		parties (2)

		parts (1)

		pass (1)

		passed (1)

		passes (1)

		past (10)

		Pat (3)

		path (1)

		paths (1)

		patience (1)

		patriarch (1)

		Patrick (4)

		pattern (1)

		patterns (1)

		pavilion (1)

		pay (7)

		payers (1)

		paying (1)

		payments (1)

		peace (1)

		peak (1)

		peaking (1)

		pencils (1)

		Peninsula (1)

		Penn (5)

		people (79)

		people's (2)

		peoples' (1)

		per (1)

		percent (32)

		perfect (6)

		perfected (1)

		perhaps (1)

		period (7)

		permanent (1)

		permission (1)

		Permit (2)

		permitted (2)

		permitting (4)

		person (7)

		personal (3)

		personally (2)

		perspective (7)

		perusal (1)

		Peter (5)

		phone (3)

		phones (3)

		phonetic (6)

		pick (1)

		picture (7)

		pictures (2)

		piece (2)

		pig (1)

		Pike (6)

		piles (1)

		piling (1)

		pilings (1)

		pitcher (1)

		place (10)

		placed (2)

		places (9)

		placing (1)

		plan (1)

		plane (1)

		planet (2)

		Planning (4)

		plant (4)

		plants (1)

		play (1)

		please (11)

		pleasing (1)

		plenty (2)

		plumb (1)

		pluses (1)

		PM (5)

		pockets (1)

		poem (1)

		Point (15)

		pointed (1)

		pointing (2)

		points (3)

		poles (3)

		political (1)

		politics (3)

		pollutants (1)

		pollution (4)

		pollution-free (1)

		Pond (1)

		poor (4)

		population (1)

		portion (2)

		ports (2)

		positive (4)

		positives (1)

		possible (3)

		possibly (2)

		post (5)

		posted (1)

		postmaster (1)

		potable (1)

		potential (1)

		potshots (2)

		pound (1)

		pounds (4)

		power (45)

		practicality (1)

		pre-construction (1)

		precedent (1)

		predicated (1)

		predictions (1)

		predominant (1)

		prefer (1)

		prejudice (1)

		prepare (1)

		presence (2)

		present (1)

		presentation (2)

		preservation (1)

		preserve (1)

		preserved (1)

		President (3)

		pressure (1)

		pretty (6)

		previous (7)

		price (5)

		prices (1)

		pride (2)

		printed (2)

		Prior (2)

		pristine (3)

		Prize (1)

		proactive (1)

		probably (8)

		problem (13)

		problems (1)

		procedure (3)

		Procedures (3)

		proceed (1)

		process (16)

		produce (1)

		produced (2)

		produces (1)

		producible (1)

		product (1)

		production (3)

		productivity (1)

		professional (3)

		professionally (1)

		professor (1)

		profit (3)

		profitable (1)

		Program (2)

		Project (89)

		projections (1)

		projects (9)

		promise (1)

		proper (2)

		properly (1)

		properties (1)

		property (5)

		proposal (4)

		propounded (1)

		pros (1)

		prosperity (2)

		Protect (7)

		protected (1)

		protecting (1)

		protective (1)

		protenators (1)

		proud (2)

		prove (2)

		proven (1)

		provide (6)

		provided (1)

		Providence (3)

		providing (2)

		proxy (1)

		public (32)

		publish (1)

		published (4)

		publisher (1)

		PUC (4)

		Pulitzer (1)

		purchase (2)

		purchased (1)

		purported (1)

		purports (1)

		purpose (3)

		purview (3)

		pushed (1)

		pushing (1)

		put (23)



		Q

		quahaug (1)

		qualified (2)

		qualify (1)

		Quality (7)

		quantify (1)

		quantities (1)

		quarter (2)

		questionnaire (1)

		questionnaires (1)

		quibble (1)

		quickly (2)

		quit (1)

		quite (3)

		quo (1)

		Quonset (1)

		quote (2)

		quoted (1)



		R

		R-e-s-o-m (1)

		radio (1)

		railroad (1)

		rain (1)

		raise (2)

		raised (1)

		ran (1)

		range (3)

		ranging (1)

		rate (6)

		ratepayers (2)

		rates (5)

		rather (2)

		raving (1)

		read (16)

		reading (2)

		ready (1)

		real (5)

		reality (2)

		realize (2)

		Realizing (1)

		really (39)

		reaping (1)

		reason (12)

		reasons (1)

		recall (1)

		receive (1)

		receiving (1)

		recent (2)

		recently (2)

		recognize (2)

		recommendation (2)

		record (11)

		recover (1)

		recurring (2)

		recycling (1)

		red (2)

		redo (1)

		reduce (5)

		reduced (1)

		reduction (7)

		reductions (1)

		reef (1)

		refer (2)

		reference (1)

		referring (1)

		reflect (1)

		regard (3)

		regarding (3)

		regardless (1)

		region (1)

		register (2)

		registered (2)

		registration (1)

		Regulations (2)

		reiterate (4)

		relationship (1)

		relative (1)

		relatively (1)

		relaxing (1)

		Reliable (1)

		relit (1)

		remain (1)

		remaining (2)

		remarks (1)

		remember (6)

		remind (1)

		reminded (1)

		reminder (2)

		remote (1)

		remove (1)

		Renewable (7)

		renewal (1)

		renovation (1)

		rent (1)

		Renz (1)

		repair (2)

		repealed (1)

		repeated (1)

		replaced (2)

		report (4)

		represent (3)

		representative (1)

		representatives (2)

		request (1)

		requested (1)

		requests (1)

		requirements (1)

		rescue (1)

		research (6)

		resident (10)

		residential (1)

		residents (9)

		resign (1)

		RESOM (2)

		resource (2)

		resources (10)

		respect (5)

		respond (1)

		response (2)

		responses (1)

		responsible (5)

		rest (4)

		restated (1)

		restaurant (3)

		restrictions (2)

		result (2)

		results (2)

		retirement (1)

		return (1)

		reverberate (1)

		reverse (1)

		review (2)

		reviewed (1)

		revolution (2)

		RFP (1)

		rhetoric (1)

		Rhode (28)

		Rich (1)

		Richard (1)

		right (22)

		rigs (2)

		rise (1)

		rises (1)

		rising (1)

		risk (4)

		risks (2)

		rivers (3)

		Road (3)

		Rob (1)

		Roger (2)

		role (1)

		rolled (1)

		Ron (1)

		room (16)

		rooming (1)

		rooms (1)

		rot (1)

		roughly (1)

		ruining (1)

		rule (1)

		Rules (2)

		run (9)

		run-of-the-mill (1)

		running (4)

		runs (1)

		rural (1)

		rush (7)

		rusting (2)



		S

		S-v-e-n (1)

		sad (1)

		saddened (1)

		Sailing (1)

		same (13)

		sand (1)

		Sandra (2)

		Sands (1)

		Sandy (3)

		satisfied (1)

		Saturday (1)

		save (2)

		saved (2)

		saving (1)

		savings (2)

		saw (1)

		Saxon (1)

		SAXSON (1)

		saying (4)

		scale (4)

		scan (1)

		scars (1)

		schedule (1)

		scheduled (1)

		school (5)

		science (9)

		scientific (3)

		scientifically (1)

		scientist (1)

		Scotland (2)

		SCR (1)

		screwed (2)

		sea (8)

		Sealy (1)

		seams (2)

		Sean (3)

		seasonal (2)

		seats (1)

		seawater (1)

		second (6)

		Secondly (1)

		Security (1)

		seeing (1)

		seeking (1)

		seem (3)

		seems (2)

		seizures (1)

		seldom (1)

		selfish (2)

		semi-retired (1)

		senator (1)

		sending (1)

		sense (2)

		sent (1)

		serious (7)

		seriously (2)

		serve (1)

		served (2)

		service (4)

		Services (2)

		set (3)

		setting (1)

		settled (2)

		settlers (1)

		seven (5)

		several (8)

		sexy (1)

		shameful (2)

		shape (1)

		share (4)

		Shaw (4)

		shed (10)

		sheds (2)

		sheet (6)

		sheets (1)

		Shilling (1)

		shipping (2)

		shoes (1)

		shore (2)

		Shoreham (6)

		shores (1)

		short (1)

		show (3)

		show-stoppers (1)

		showed (3)

		shown (1)

		shows (2)

		shut (2)

		sic (4)

		side (4)

		sides (3)

		sign (3)

		sign-in (6)

		signed (4)

		significant (11)

		significantly (2)

		signup (1)

		silent (2)

		silly (1)

		similar (2)

		simulation (1)

		simulations (2)

		Sincerely (1)

		single (1)

		sit (4)

		site (3)

		sites (1)

		sitting (2)

		situation (2)

		six (6)

		six-foot (1)

		sixteen (1)

		sixth (1)

		skies (1)

		skin (2)

		sky (3)

		slight (1)

		slip (1)

		slowly (2)

		slump (1)

		small (15)

		smart (1)

		smog (1)

		smorgasbord (1)

		snail's (4)

		snow (1)

		SO2 (2)

		Social (1)

		socialistic (1)

		socialized (1)

		socially (1)

		society (2)

		solar (6)

		solution (1)

		solutions (1)

		somebody (11)

		somehow (2)

		someone (8)

		sometimes (2)

		somewhat (1)

		somewhere (4)

		son (2)

		sonar (1)

		soon (1)

		sooner (1)

		Sorry (4)

		sort (3)

		sounds (2)

		source (2)

		sources (4)

		South (2)

		Southeast (13)

		Sox (1)

		space (1)

		Spak (4)

		speak (15)

		speaker (14)

		speakers (9)

		speaking (5)

		speaks (2)

		special (1)

		specialized (1)

		Specifically (1)

		speech (1)

		speed (2)

		spell (3)

		spelled (1)

		spending (2)

		spent (2)

		spewed (1)

		Spier (3)

		spill (1)

		spin (1)

		spirit (1)

		spoiled (1)

		spoke (1)

		spoken (2)

		spots (1)

		sprouting (1)

		Squad (2)

		square (1)

		Sr (1)

		stack (1)

		stairs (1)

		stand (7)

		stand-alone (1)

		Standalone (1)

		standing (1)

		standpoint (1)

		standup (1)

		start (10)

		started (10)

		starting (2)

		State (22)

		stated (1)

		statehouse (1)

		statement (6)

		statements (2)

		states (4)

		station (1)

		stations (1)

		statistics (5)

		status (1)

		stay (7)

		stayed (1)

		Stelenoff (1)

		stenographer (4)

		step (5)

		steps (3)

		stewardship (2)

		stick (1)

		still (10)

		stock (1)

		stockade (1)

		stolen (1)

		stood (1)

		stop (2)

		stopping (1)

		stops (1)

		storage (2)

		storm (2)

		storms (2)

		story (1)

		straight (1)

		Street (4)

		stress (1)

		strictly (1)

		strikes (1)

		string (1)

		strongly (3)

		structural (1)

		structure (3)

		structures (3)

		struggles (1)

		studied (1)

		studies (6)

		study (8)

		stuff (3)

		stunningly (1)

		stupid (1)

		subject (1)

		submarine (1)

		submission (1)

		submit (2)

		submittal (1)

		submitted (1)

		substations (1)

		substitute (1)

		success (1)

		successful (2)

		sudden (2)

		suffering (1)

		suggest (2)

		sum (1)

		summed (1)

		summer (7)

		summertime (1)

		sunset (1)

		Super (2)

		support (13)

		supported (3)

		supposed (5)

		sure (14)

		survey (12)

		surveys (1)

		survival (1)

		suspended (1)

		sustainability (2)

		Sven (1)

		sworn (1)

		synonymous (1)

		system (2)

		systems (2)



		T

		T-e-n-g-w-a-l-l (1)

		T-i-e-r-n-e-y (1)

		table (4)

		tables (1)

		tag (1)

		talk (17)

		talked (10)

		talking (3)

		talks (1)

		tall (3)

		tamped (1)

		tanker (1)

		tanks (1)

		Task (4)

		tax (1)

		taxi (1)

		teach (1)

		teaches (1)

		team (1)

		Technical (1)

		technology (7)

		telephone (5)

		telephones (1)

		telling (1)

		tells (1)

		ten (11)

		Tengwall (3)

		term (1)

		terms (3)

		test (1)

		testimony (1)

		Thanks (1)

		theme (2)

		therefore (1)

		thinking (9)

		third (2)

		thirty (1)

		thoroughly (2)

		though (5)

		thought (10)

		thoughts (2)

		thousands (2)

		Three (16)

		three-term (1)

		three-time (1)

		throughout (1)

		throw (1)

		tidal (1)

		Tierney (3)

		Times (10)

		Today (27)

		toenails (1)

		together (6)

		told (1)

		Tom (2)

		tonight (9)

		took (1)

		top (2)

		topic (2)

		topics (1)

		torpedo's (1)

		total (3)

		totally (5)

		tour (1)

		tourism (10)

		toward (1)

		towards (1)

		tower (5)

		towers (5)

		Town (32)

		Town's (2)

		track (2)

		Trail (1)

		transcribe (1)

		transcribing (2)

		transfer (2)

		transferring (1)

		transmission (1)

		transparency (3)

		transparent (4)

		transpire (1)

		transportation (1)

		Traveling (2)

		treasure (1)

		tremendous (2)

		trestles (1)

		tries (1)

		trip (1)

		tripled (1)

		trucks (1)

		true (1)

		truly (3)

		Trust (3)

		try (5)

		trying (3)

		turbine (6)

		turbines (49)

		turbulence (1)

		turn (3)

		turned (5)

		turning (2)

		Twain (1)

		tweeting (1)

		twelve (1)

		twelve-month (1)

		two (14)

		type (1)

		typically (1)



		U

		ugliest (1)

		ugly (4)

		unattended (1)

		under (5)

		underdeveloped (1)

		understandable (1)

		underwater (1)

		undue (1)

		unfortunately (1)

		unique (2)

		United (3)

		Unity (1)

		University (1)

		unless (2)

		unlike (1)

		unproven (1)

		unscientific (2)

		unspoiled (1)

		unsupported (1)

		unsustainable (1)

		unthinkable (1)

		up (61)

		upfront (1)

		upon (3)

		upstate (1)

		urge (2)

		urging (1)

		usage (2)

		use (13)

		used (10)

		using (5)

		usual (1)

		usually (2)

		Utilities (6)

		utility (9)

		utilization (1)



		V

		vacation (1)

		vacations (2)

		valid (1)

		value (4)

		values (1)

		variables (1)

		various (3)

		vehicles (1)

		Velvenan (1)

		velvet (1)

		venture (1)

		ventures (1)

		verifiable (1)

		Vermont (2)

		version (1)

		versus (4)

		viability (1)

		viable (2)

		vibration (1)

		view (36)

		viewed (1)

		views (2)

		villages (1)

		virgin (1)

		Virginia (1)

		visibility (1)

		visited (1)

		visitors (2)

		vista (6)

		vistas (2)

		visual (2)

		visually (1)

		voluntary (1)

		vote (1)

		voters (3)



		W

		W-a-r-f-e-l (1)

		wait (2)

		waiting (1)

		walk (2)

		walked (1)

		wants (1)

		war (1)

		Warfel (5)

		warm (2)

		warming (6)

		warning (1)

		waste (1)

		wasting (2)

		watch (1)

		watched (2)

		Water (7)

		waters (2)

		way (24)

		ways (2)

		weaken (1)

		wealthy (1)

		wear (1)

		website (1)

		wedding (1)

		weddings (1)

		Wednesday (2)

		week (1)

		weekend (1)

		weeks (1)

		welcome (2)

		welfare (1)

		well-being (3)

		weren't (1)

		west (6)

		what's (9)

		Whereas (2)

		Wherever (1)

		whichever (1)

		whistles (1)

		white (5)

		who's (6)

		whole (6)

		Wickford (1)

		wider (1)

		wife (3)

		Williams (2)

		willing (1)

		Wilson (2)

		Wind (121)

		Wind's (2)

		windfall (3)

		windmills (7)

		windows (2)

		Winds (6)

		winner (1)

		winter (4)

		wiped (1)

		wires (2)

		wisdom (1)

		wish (7)

		wishes (2)

		within (8)

		woman (1)

		women (1)

		wonderful (6)

		wood (1)

		word (3)

		words (3)

		work (17)

		worked (9)

		working (10)

		works (3)

		world (19)

		worldwide (2)

		worried (2)

		worry (2)

		worst (2)

		worth (1)

		wow (1)

		wrap (1)

		wreck (1)

		Wright (1)

		write (5)

		writing (1)

		written (8)

		wrong (9)

		wrote (2)



		Y

		year (10)

		year-round (12)

		years (74)

		yellow (1)

		yesterday (1)

		York (3)

		yous (1)



		Z

		Zoning(1)







